e NCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State CaseNo. F-2010-04163 Doc No, GOB137404 Dale: 01703/3013 ™y
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.L-E@y’ F{osemafy c DOD-CP,B5,B3 DD'D.F_GI
A
- rom: Desks, Ashley §
- Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 11:04 AM
To: Baumert, Kevin A, Guarin, Mare F; Jacobson, Linda
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Reissar, Wesley J; Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Staphen E
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza
' Looping in AP for the Israell angle and 5P for the blockads angle, based on hls Georgla wotk.
From: Baumert, K'ev!_n.A
‘Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 10:53 AM
To; Desks, Ashley S; Guarin, Marc F; Jacobson, Linda
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Relsser, Wesley J
Subject: FW! Israet Navy on Free Gaza
. . — S e S A — 85
Thanks,
Kevin
From: Reisser, Wesley ]
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 10:36 AM
To: Baumert, Kevin A
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Geodman, Ilan A; Scarlatelli, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H
Subject: RE: Isras| Navy on Free Gaza R
Keuinj"“" T T _
T__—
e e . e — U .

- i epn f e r e e e a a e e wm e

From: Baumert, Kevin A e e e L .
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 3:41 PM [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
Ta: Reisser, Wesley ]

Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, Ilan A; Scarlatelti, Adam W; Holmsttom, Todd C

Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza
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A

I SubjectiFw: Israe-Navy-on Free-Gaza——— —= =T T —————— =

~kevin{/”

Thanks,
,Ke\ﬁn.

) —— e e v RTRr - R

From: Relsaer, Wesley J

Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 3:00 PM

To; Baumert, Kevin A

Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, Ilan A, Scariatelii, Adam W; Ho]mstrom, Todd C

BS

Thankﬁ!‘
Was

et o ———— —a [p—

5 ey ry v —

From:[____ _——] B3
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 11:06 AM DOD-CP
To: [ . TSlevers, Marc J; Levin, Jan; Burnett, David R; Baron, Deslree A; Parker, Andrew C; Greene, Elisa;
Burgess, Richard J; Chere, John E

Cc: Reisser, Wesley J; Goldberger, Thomas H

Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza

rﬂm" - _ - - B3 DODFG!

VIR,

B3
DOD-CP

From:|
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 5:51 PM B3 DOD-CP
To; Slevers, Marc J; Levin, Jan; Burnett, David R; Baron, Desiree A; Parker, Andrew C; Greene, Elisa;[ ")

Cci Reisser, Wesley J; Goldberger, Thomas H

Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza
B3 DODFGI

R/
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B3
. » pop-Cp
")
From. R:atsser, Wesley ] ‘
— —Sent: Wednesday, May-26,-2010-5:06 BM__ B3 DOD-CP
To: Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Goldberger, Thomas H; Holmstrom, Todd mmmrsmwefﬂebecca— S

Richiter, Kim B; Lopatkiewicz, Viktoria; Bernier-Toth, Mlcheﬂe, Mendel, Teresa.$; Slevers, Marc J; Levlnm
David R; Baron, Desiree A; Adams, Julie 0; Parker, Andrew C; Greene, Elisa; Zeroubavely, Sandra S;

| Waters, John R; Rogan, Thomas G; Towry, Debra J; Hananla, Vera V; Welnfeid Nlﬁ I
Lewis, Glenn K; Beran, Sarah; Greengrass, Sara D; Kaplan, Dean; Walker, Caroles B; F[nver Frank J;[
Manring, Nicholas J; Tyson, Paul H; Mago, Robert W; Frederick, Jeffrey D; Falls, Eric G; Reed, Julia G; Davison, Kees Cy
Qgle, Karen L; Keen, Danlel G; Howard, Jeremiah "Jerry™; Parta, Yolanda A; Dilworth, Allson E; Osman, Amany A; Netos,
Eleftherios £; Taylor, Victorla J; Riley, Robert J; Dayton, Win (Istanbul); Marsh, Denise M; Baily, Jess L; Tomlinson,
Christina {Istanbul); Abeyta, Susan K (Istanbul); Gisvold, Lisa C (Istanbul); Parker, Andrew C; Silliman, Douglas A;
Rosenstock, Matthew 5
Subject: Israel Navy on Free Gaza

(SBU) Courtesy Embassy Tei Aviv, 3 message on how the navy Intends to handie this:

“The Isroel Navy has expressed to.me that they intend to respond to this situotion as peaceful as possible; however they
have been directed by the GOl to prevent the vessels from arriving in Gaza. Theirintention Is to ensure the ships arrive in
Ashdod, process the individuals to be deported and deliver any legitimate humanitorian aide to Gaza via land. it should
be noted, that GOf has made it cleor that although they have directed a peaceful response, those participating are
viewed s individuals defiberately attempting to provoke the Israel Navy and appropriate action to prevent arrival in
Gaza wlill be taken.”

Wesley J. Reisser, PR.D,

Desgk Officer - NEAJIPA

Office of Israel & Palestinian Affairs
Phone {202) 647-2647

Fax (202) 736-4461

This messago is UNCLASSIFIED/SBY according to the definiftions provikied by £.0. 12858,
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Law, Hosemary C _[RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD-CP,B3]

i ‘QOBFGLBBEu' - —
"~ From: Goldberger, Thomas H

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:48 AM

To: Cunningham, James B

Ce: Jacobson, Linda

Subject: RE: LcmnmeMsonMFAﬂMMabﬁeMm>

[ - I - e e B e L o D LU T S eSO

----- Original Message-----

From: Jacobsan, Linda

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2019 11:43 AM

To: Goldberger, Thomas M

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

L e ]

----- Original Message =----
From: Goldberger, Thomas H
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B, Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David 2

Sent: Mon May 31 11:39:39 2010

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing»

----- Original Message-----

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM

To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Helnemann, Thomas B; Dolan, .
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

----- Original Message -----

From! lacobson, Linda

To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2010

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

S — R
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o
*

S sl

To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson,
Linda; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: :Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2@le

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

-—-—1’

B5

Kevin
L/CES

wamen JPIF1INAL MESSAAR nom--

Original Message
From: Goldberger, Thomas H

Tao: Schwartz, Jonathan 8; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobsaon,
Linda : .
Sent: Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010

Subject: FW; L comments on MFA flotilla briefing»

----- Original Message
From: Cunningham, James B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM

To: Goldberger, Thomas H

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing»

Sent Froa-my Blaékﬁerry

Original Message
From: Goldberger, Thomas H

To: Curiningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, leffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly,
Maura; Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B._Shapirofinsc.eop.gov' <Daniel B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov>
Cc; Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn

Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:09 2018

Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

----- Original Message-~----

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 201@ 9:13 AM
To: Goldberger, Thomas H
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Sent: Mon May 31 ©8:08:22 2010 B3 DOD
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefin ‘ -CP
e ; B3 DODFGI

. "

“Many of the detaiis briefed have already been provided via other means.  Specific Highlights"
- Ongoing Opération
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I
= MA=MAVI-_MARMARA exppcted in port between 1786L and 18eeL :
- All ships will be in port by later today —_— N
- 18-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed
- 30 Civilians Wounded
- 10 10F wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with “"medium" wounds
= Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled
- Interaction occurred approx 7@ NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade, (See Attached Slides)

"Bj's DOD-CP

ISP -

----- Original Message-----

From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem)

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 2:46 PM

To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; lJeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc 1;

Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; MWaters,

John R; [_ _} Amcdeo_. Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltrnan, JeiB3 DOD-CP
D

Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapire@who.eop.gov’
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

! This may largely repeat at this polnt what is out in other places and/or others have heard
from fe, but Jjust to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from Gen.
_| who also spoke with the UN‘s Serry, among others, this am. B6

[ Jreported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met BB
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire.

Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc.

He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the

soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions taken were

in self-defense,

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more”. He said all injured
being moved to Israell hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some
reports have them coming into Halfa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There,
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries
rapidly and/or detain; ID the c¢argo and as planned initially, move as much of into Gaza as
promptly as possible.

Earlier this morning | __Jmade the following calls/contacts: B6
51
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I DNGLASSIFIED U.8. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C06137427 Date: 01/03/2045 " ;

--Turkish FM and Mob{ """} Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh[ "] He felt the BG
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he

will handle, With Pals, Erakat in partlcular, they discussed extent to which levels of

rhetoric could be kept in check, With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for security
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by status of

Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla.

(PIC seems to be on track/going feorward, Some events may be affected by it.)

---==0riginal Message-----
From; Cunningham, James B
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2818 1:38 PM _

Jo: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jleffrey, James F; Slevers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C;

Grubb, lason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; [ B3 DOD-CP
5 _]Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly,; Maura; Feltman,
jeffrey D

Ce: ‘Dennis_B. _Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov'
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing

Qur Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last waek to help in forwarding carge from ships
in Ashded, Serry is trylng to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have spoken to
Davotuglu this am.

Sent from my BlackBerry

----- Original Message ~----

From: Levin, Jan

To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew
C,i..,Gnuhf, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;[ B3 DOD-CP
[,u"uhm,. Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul), Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman,

Jeffray D

Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 201@

Subject: MFA flotilla briefing

]

BC]% DODEGI

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be
procesged and escorted to alrport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take,

-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi {Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all
injurles occurred on this ship,

-« |told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders aga DODFGI
ware armied. Unclear 1f they had flrearms in agdvance or took them from IDF boarding party,
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives,

-- Events took place in international waters., Israel asserted it had the legal right to
intercept in intl waters because there 1s a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict

between Israel and Hamas.

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guldance gn thiﬂ issua, thank
you.
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' Law, Rosemary C [RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD.CP,B3

. DODFGIBSBE
From: oldberger, Thomas H- ’
Sant; Manday, May 31, 2010 8:55 AM
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda
-Cet Holmstrom, Todd C; Knopt, Payton L; Baumert, Kevin A; Halnemann, Thomas B; Connelly,
Maura
T f———%ubjeet——__________RE: MFA flotllia briefing
----- Original Messape-----
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B
Sent: Monday, May 31, 201@ B:48 AM
To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; ¥nopf, Payton L} Baumert, Xevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B
Subject: Re; MFA flotilla briefing
e e S i 85
Jon
----- Original Message ~----
From: Goldberger, Thomas H :
To; Dolan, JoAnn; Jlacobson, Linda
Cc! Holmstrom, Todd C; SchwWartz, Jonathan 8; Knopf, Payton L
Sent: Mon May 31 @8:24:00 201
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing
moen Original Message -----
From: [ E] _ | B3 DOD-CP
To: Cunniiigham, James ®; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J;
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara
‘_(;lﬁgr_\ggg}ﬁgngl; Burgess, Richard 3; Murphy, Michael P; Pica, Tolan M; Lavin, Jen; [ "m3 DOD-CP
5 e e
Fént: Mon May 31 @B:08:22 2010
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing
T B3 DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlga DODFG)
) ongoing Operation (REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer '

- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I
| - M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 170eL and 18@0L
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i - 3@ Civilians Wounded

W ASSIFIED U.S. Depariment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No., 05137472 Date: 01/04/20173 e

- All ships will be in port by later today
- TB-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed

+« 18 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with “medium” wounds

- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled

- Interaction occurred approx 79 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law
because of intent by flotilla to braach the blockade. (See Attached Slides}

B3 DOD-CP

----- Original Message-----

From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem)

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2¢18 2:46 PM

To: Cunningham, James B} Levin, lan; Operatlons Center; Jeffrey, lames F; Sievers, Marc 1;

Parker, Andrew ; Grubb, lason 8; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Ellsa; Marchese, Gragory M; Waters,

John Ry | ~ " "7 7} Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, JeiB3 DOD-CP
O

Cc: 'Dennis_B._ Ross@insc.eop.gov'; 'Oshapiro@who.eop.gov'

Subject: RE:! MFA flotilla briefing

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard _
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from r'"“j B6
S .1 who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. N .

Lo

t]reported that when Israell soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met B6&
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire.
Military who boarded were attacked wlth knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc,
He said the military who boarded ware attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the
spldiers were stabbed and slashed, Made clear situatlon was one in which actions taken were
in self-defense. :

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”. He said all injured
being nioved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter, He said ships coming into Ashdod {some
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There,
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Gaza as
promptly as possible.

Earlier this morning ~]made the following calls/contacts: 86
--Turkish FM and MoD| Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh [ He felt the

calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly 15 Erdogan and how he

will handle, With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of

rhetoric could be kept in check, With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for security
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by status of

Ysraell Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla,

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected hy it.)
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-w~-«0riginal Message-----

FréW: Cunningham, James B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2810 1:38 PM

To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C;

Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Em“ B3 DOD-CP
- Amodeo, Salvatore A {Istanbul}; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman,
Jeffrey D

Cc: 'Dennis_B._ Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’ ,

 Subject: Rer MFA flotilla briefing o o ) T

Qur Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's
available. UN hpd been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships
in Ashdod., Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is
problemmatic but he'll see, Barak just gave a press conference, and appéars to have spoken to
Davotuglu this am.

Sent from my BlackBerry

----- Original Message -----

From: Levin, Jan

To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Slevers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew

C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;[f""‘“"B3 DOD-CP
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Fel¥man, ‘

Jeffrey D ¢

Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010

Subject: MFA flotilla briefing

i.. . : B3 ‘DODFGI

Highlights - Identiflcation of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively

to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of cltizens. The uninjured will be

processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take,

-~ Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all

injuries eccurred on this ship.

-~ ]told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders ag3 DODFGI
were armed. Unglear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party.

One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives.

-~ Events took place in international waters, Isragl asserted it had the legal right to

intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict

between Isragl and Hamas.

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank
you.
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UNCLASSIFIED U.5. Dapartment of State Gase No, F-2010-04163 Doc No, C05135625 Date: 01/04/2013
i

"R

_ RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD-CP,B5,83 i

Law, Hosemary C DODFGI !
' i

From: Dolan, JoAnn [
Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 2:02 PM 1
To: Jacobson, Linda [
Subject: FWw: Israal Navy on Free Gaza i

‘F__rom: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 1:40 PM
To: Reisser, Wesley ]

Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, Ilan A; Scarfatelli, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H; Netos, Eleftherios
E '
Subject: RE: Jsrael Navy on Free Gaza !

e S - TP N

4
1
i

[
Thanks, ]
Kevin ;
i
|

s ——— s AE imE B S = AN 7. — mer— e oan e

From: Relsser, Wesley J

Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 12:37 PM

To: Baumert, Kevin A ,

Cce: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, Han A; Scarlatelli, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H; Netos, Eleftherlos

E BS!

Subject: RE: Israe| Navy on Free Gaza B3 DOD-CP
|

From: Baumert, Kevin A ' ‘ |
Sent; Thursday, May 27, 2010 11:15 AM |
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Reisser, Wesley ] ‘
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, Tlan A; Scarlatelli, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H; Netos, Eibftherios
E I
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza l

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 11:00 AM i

To: Reisser, Wesley ] |

Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, llan A; Scarlatelli, Adam W, Hoimstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H; Netos, Elpftherios
E

Subject; RE; Israel Navy on Free Gaza

i
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F;2010-04163 Doc No. C08135625 Date: 01/04/2013
§
|

Thanks, : i
Kevin l

From. Reisser, Waesley J

Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 10;56 AM
Ta: Baumert, Kavin A

Cc: Dolari, JoAnn; Goodman, Ilan A; Scarlatelll, Adam:W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H; Netos, E feﬁherios
E ‘

Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza

S . S —
|

Was

|
1
From: Reisser, Wesley J ]
Sent; Thursday, May 27, 2010 10:36 AM (
To: Baumert, Kevin A l
Cci Dolan, JoAnn; Goodmian, Ilan A; Scarlatelll, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C; Goldberger, Thomas H
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza !
|

v .- - |

B homs parns s s a e S e e s st o tmm et v

From. Baumert ‘Kevin A

Sent; Wednesday, May 26, 2010 3:41 PM

To: Reisser, Wesley )

Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, lan A; Scarlatefli, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C

Subject: RE: Israal Navy on Free Gaza

- . - - - oy

Kevin

75
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l

From: Reisser, Wesley ] |
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 3:00 PM }
Ta: Baumert, Kevin A :
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, Han A; Scariatelli, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C I
Subject: FW: Israel Navy on Free Gaza |

3

“Thanks! T
Wes 5
- eih-r P B e e g b L - - L hambenndie i ot v
From, . B3DOD-CP
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 11:06 AM -
To'f e }S1evers, Marc J; Levin, Jan; Burnett, David R; Baron, Desiree A; Parker, Andrew C; Greeine, Eliga;
Burgess, Richard J; Chere, John E |
~ €c: Relsser, Wesley J; Goldberger, Thomas H |
Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza !
. ( '
| B3 DODFG!
VIR, ?
[ B3 DOD-CP
|
‘l
|
o e — SRR BT
From: - | B3 DOD-CP

Sent: Wednasday, May 26, 2010 5:51 PM :
To: Sievers, Marc 1; Levin, Jan; Burnett, David R; Baron, Desiree A; Parker; Andrew C; Greene, Elisa; Burgess, F*ichard 1;
Chere, John E [
Cc! Reisser; Wesley J; Goldberger, Thomas H [

Subject: RE: Israsl-Navy on Free Gaza ' ’)
Jocti RE: Lsrosl Navy on Free g - .| B3DODFGI
== e po T H L T = R ST T e LR e e g Bs

B3 DOD-CP

76
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AV

From: Reisser, Wesley )

Sent: Wednesday, May 26; 2010 5:06 M

To: Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Goldbarger, Thomas H; Holmstrom, Tadd C; Sindle, Jamies M; Struwe, Rebecca L;

Richter, Kim B; Lopatklewicz, Viktotia; Bernier-Toth, Mlcheﬂe, Mendel, Teresa $; Slevers, Marc J; 1.e~qun,_ng£ Bun‘nett
David R; Baron, Desiree Ay Adams, Julie D; Parker, Andrew €; Greens, Elisa; Zeroubavely, Sandra S;]

3 ichard }—GheFﬁzJQbBi aters-John R' Rogan, Thomas G; owry, DebraJ Hanana, Ver

B3 DOD-CP

: 3
Manring, Nichoias J; Tysan, Paui H; Maggi, Robert w; Fredarlck Jeffréy: D Falls, Enr: G, Reed, Julia G; Dawson,?ees Cr
Qgle, Karen L; Keen, Daniel G; Howard Jeremiah "Jerry"; Parra, Yolanda A; Dliworth, Alison E; Qsman, Amany A, Netos,
Eleftherlos E; Taylor, Victoria] Rliey, Robert J; Dayton, Win (Istanbut); Marsh Dentse M; Bally, Jess L; Tomlinspn,
Christiria (lstanbul), Abeyta, Susan K (istanbui), Gisvold, Lisa C (Istanbul); Parker, Andrew C; Siliiman, Douglasjl.,
Rosenstock; Matthew S i

Subject: Israel Navy on Free Gaza ]

{SBU} Courtesy Embassy Tel Aviy, a message on hiow the navy intends to handt‘e this:
“The Israel Navy has expressed to me that they intend to respend to this situation as peaceful as possible; howc}ver they
have been directed by the GOI to prevent the vessels from arfiving in Gazo. Their intenition is to ensure the sh:pJ arrive-in
Ashdod, process the Individuols to be deported-and defiver any legitimate humaritarlan aide to Gaza via land, It should
be noted, that GO! has made it clear that ofthough they have directed a peacefu! response, those participoting
viewed os individuals deliberately attempting to pravoke the israel Navy and apprapriate action to prevent arri
Gazo will be taken,

lin

Wesley J. Reisser, Ph.D.

Desk Ofticer - NEA/IPA

Qtfice of larasl & Palestinian Affairs
Phone {202} B47-2647

Fax (202) 736-4481

This message s UNCLASSIEIED/SBUY acoording to the definitions provided by E. Q. 12858.

i7

#
|
|
(
I
l
!
|
1
!
|
|
i
l
|
|
I
1
|
i
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|

RELEASED |ni_TPART“B'§-"|5"66LEE‘Eﬂ

|
Law, Rosemary C DODFGI,BE,B6 '
From: Dolan, JoAnn ]
Sant: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:52 PM {
To: Schwaitz, Jonathan B; Guarin, Marc F; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A, Heimamann,
Thomas B Pomper, Stephen E
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, Davld J; 'pormper_andersen@hotmail.com’; Mcleod, Maky
_ _ (USUN) Donoghue, Jean E; Jacobson, Linda; Goldberget, Thomas H
Subject; RE: L comments on MFA flofilia bristing> -

Israeli Briefing excerpts I circulated earlier say interaction occurred 7@NM out. ForT those
not familiar with Interim Agreement full text with further links to annexes is at
http://wwiw.mfa.gov.il/MFA/PeacerProcess/Guide+to+rthetPeace+Process/THE+ISRAELL -
PALESTINIAN4+INTERIM+AGREEMENT . htm

----- Original Message-----
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 2:40 PM !

Toy Guarin, Marc F; Perina, Alexandra H; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jaco?son,
Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; ‘pomper_andersen@hotmail,com'; Pomper, Stephen E;
McLeod, Mary (USUN); Donoghue, Joan E |
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing»

S
""""" Original Message--{REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Akmad, Senior Reviewer] -

From: Guarin, Mar¢ ¢ —  —/ 7 — 7/ — —— ™™ _ 1

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:34 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin Aﬂ
Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn '

Cc: Aswad, f£velyn M; Sullivan, David J; 'pomper_andersen@hotmail.com'; Pomper, Stepheq E
Subject RE: L comments on MFA flotilla brief:ng> _ ]

59 '
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’._..-w..u_. e e e |

Marc

----- Original Message-----

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 20810 1:92 PM
To: Perina, Alexandra H; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heidemann,
Themas B; Dolan, JoAnn |

C¢: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; 'pomper anderseng@hotmail.com'; Pomper, Stepheq E;
Guarin, Marc F

Subject: RE: L commants on MFA flotilla briefing> , }

1
T
|
!
|

————— Original Message~--~-

From: Perina, Alexandra H

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2019 12:56 PM
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldperger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heqnemann,
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; 'pomper_andersen@hotmall.com'; Pomper, Stephed E;
Guarin, Marc F I
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotllla briefing» '

T
!
l
i
i
1

l

T
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|
i

---»«0riginal Message-----
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B
—SentT yi—May=1— 3217 P
To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas—B7 Dol
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H .
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David 2J
Subject: RE: I comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

i et e aaem ——— s e e g e —

~~~~~ Original Message--~--- !
From: Goldberger, Thomas H !
Sent; Monday, May 31, 2010 11:4@ AM I
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Tromas B; Dolén,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H !
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn ™; Sullivan, David ) I
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotllla briefing> !
i

1
----- Original Message~-~-- |
From: Baumert, Kevin A . |
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 11:34 AW .
To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan Bj Heinemann, Thomas B; jDolan,
JoAnn; Peérina, Alexandra H
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]
Subject: Re: L comments an MFA flotilla briefing»

]

i
i
'
|
I
i
|
----- Origina) Message ----- |
From: Jacobson, Linda |

To: Baumert, ¥evin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B;
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent: Mon May 31 11:28:32 2018

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

----- Original Message ----- !

From: Baumert, Kevin A
To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Helnemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jachson,
Linda; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

Dolan,

61
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Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010 |
Sub;ect Re: L comments on MFA flotilla brief1ng> |
1

Kevin
1./OES

|
1
|
|
----- Original Message -«--- !
from: Goldberger, Thomas H :
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobsdn,
Linda _ i
Sent: Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010 :
Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> i

1

S

----- Driglnal Message----~ :
From: Cunningham, James 8 !
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 18:47 AM |
Te: Goldberger, Thomas H

Subject; Re: L comments on ‘MEA flotilla briefing> I
S S S - e e e i

“Sent from my BlackBerry

|

|
----- Original Message ----- !
From: Goldberger, Thomas H
To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D, Rubinstelin, Daniel H; Connelly,
Maura; Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel B. _Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel B. Shapiro@nsc. eop HOV>
Gc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010
Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla brilefing»

----- Original Message-----

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 20818 9:13 AM
To: Goldberger, Thomas H

Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heﬂh amann,
Thomas B | :
Subject: Fw: MFA flotillas briefing

l
|
See below from Jonathan pls. |
[
|
!
1

|
t

?
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| :

B5

----- Original Message +«---

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

To: Perina, Alexandra H; Helnemann, Thomas B

Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Mon May 31 ©9:95:16 2010

subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing

o e T PRSI . P = - A simmsmraii i - -

I
)
1
k3

i

BS

|
----- Original Message ----- !
from: Goldberger, Thomas H !
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda :
€¢: Holmstrom, Todd .C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L
Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:90 2010 l
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla brieflng i

H
““““ Original Message «---- I .
From:[_ N B3 DOD-CP
To: Cunningham, lames B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J;
Farker, Andrew C; Grubb, lason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara
(Jerusalem); Burgess, Richard J; Murphy, Michael P; Pica, Tolan M; Levin, Jan;

"B3DOD-C

Sent: Mon May 31 @8:08:22 2010
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

63
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Manj of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Hig3 DOD-CP
i B3 DODF

- Ongoing Operation - l ODFGI
~ Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER 1

- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1768L and 180@6L

- 19-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed

- 39 (ivilians Wounded—

- 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serlous-and-1- with-"medium” wounds

- Turkish smbassador to Israel recalled - 4
W

|
« All ships will be in port by later today |
|
I
1

- Interaction occurred approx 7@ NM from coastline, IDF confldent in International L
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) ,

B3 DOD-CP

----- Original Message-----

From: Rudman, Mara {Jerusalem)
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM t
Yo:; Cunningham, James B; Levln, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffray, lJames F; Sievers, Marc J;
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,
John R;|
D |
Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc,eop.gov’; 'Dshaplro@who,éop.gov' '
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing ' |
This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have | eard
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from?'

who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am.

|
i
i
i
|
i
|
i
i

l ]reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the maln deck of the main ship, thely met
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live firﬁ
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc,
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He. indicated that some of tHe
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions taken were
in self-defense.

Current estimates of those killled from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”. He said all ianred
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter, He said ships coming into Ashdod (scme
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. %here
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries
rapidly and/or deétain; ID the carge and as planned initially, move as much of into Gaqa as
promptly as possible. :
Earlier this morning [ " Imade the following calls/contacts: |
--Turkish FM and MoD Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh [ | He feltl the
calls w the Turks givéi“the situation were OK, but the concern clearly isr—L‘ " Jend how he
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels Pf

64 }
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‘ﬁELEA’éED IN PART B3 DOD-CP,B3

. LaW, Rosemary C DODFGIBEBS
From: Goldberger, Thomas H
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:46 AM
To: Cunningham, Jemes B
Ce: Jacobson, Linda
Subjoect: RE; L commants on MFA fiotilla briefing>

——————— ek

----- Original Message-«---

From: Jacobson, Linda

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2019 11:43 AM

To: Goldberger, Thomas H

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

L ]

----- Original Message -----
From: Goldberger, Thomas H
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

Sent: Mon May 31 11:39:39 2810

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla brilefing>

B

m Original Message---~-

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM
To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, lonathan B; Helnemann, Thomas B;}Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David )

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotlilla briefing>

----- Original Message ---~-
From: Jacobson, Linda

-To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Helnemann, Thomas B Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2018

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

----- Original Message -----
From: Baumert, Kevin A

15
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To: Goldberger; Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan Bj; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jas
Lifda; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent:; Mon May 31 11:18:29 2219

UNCLASSIFIED U.8. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05136026 Date: 01/04/2013

-obsan,

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilia briefing>

BS

Kevin
L/OES

----- Original Message -----
From: Goldberger, Thomas H
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobs
Linda

Sent: Mon May 31 1@:5@:27 2819

Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla biriefing>

on,

----- original Message-----

From: Cunningham, lames B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 10:47 AM
To: Goldberger, Thomas H

subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Sent from my BlackBerry

----- Original Message -----

From: Goldberger, Thomas H

To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, Davld M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Con
" Maura; Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_8. Shapiro@nsc.eo

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jopathan B} Jaccbson, Linda; Delan, JoAnn

Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:0¢ 2010

Ssubject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla brilefing>

See below from Jonathan pls.
------ Original Message--~---
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM
To: Goldberger, Thomas H

16
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Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Helnemann,

Thamas 8
*  Subject: Fu: MFA flotilla briefing

B5

----- Original Message -----

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B

Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, loAnn
Sent: #Mon May 31 €9:€5:16 29010

Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing

----- Original Message -~-~--
From: Goldberger, Thomas H

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda
Cc: Holmstroem, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Xnopf, Payton L
Sent: Mon May 31 88:24:09 201
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing

e } B3 DOD-CP
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Slevers, Mafc J;
parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason Bj NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara
(Jerusalem); Burgess, Richard 3; Murphy, Michael P; [ _ . Jievin, Jam; I T B3 DOD-CP

17
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Sent: Mon May 31 ©8:08:22 2018
subfect: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

04/2013 .

B3 DOD-CP

Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means.

- Ongoing Operation
- Two Ships ip Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I

Specific HighiB3 DODFGI

- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1709L and 1880L
- All ships will be in port by later today
- 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed
- 30 Civilians Wounded
- 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds
- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled
« Interaction occurred approx 79 NM from coastline.

because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (%ee Attached $lides)

IDF confident in International Lbaw

----- Criginal Message-»---

From: Rudman, Mara {Jerusalem)

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2019 2:46 PM

To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Ma
Parker, Andrew C: Grubb. Jlason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat
John R; | Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman,
o e

Cc: 'Dennis_B. Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’ |
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

This may largely repeat at this point what is cut in other places and/or others have
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from
] who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am.

" Treported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, the

with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire

B3 DOD-CP

e J;
ers,

1¢83 DOD-CP,

heard

— B6

2y met

13

B6

]

etc.

Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments,
He sald the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of t

soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions taken were

in self-defense.

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”,
being moved to Israeli hospital - by hellcopter.
reports have them coming into Haifa).
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people elther to return them to home countr

rapidly and/er detain; ID the cargo and as planned lnitially, move as much of into Gaza as

promptly as possible.

Earlier this morning lmade the following calls/contacts:

18
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~-Turkish FM and MoD ] Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh [ "1 He felt the BS
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and!how he

»  will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levelsjof
rhetoric could be kept in check. With fayyad they discussed primarily need for security
cooperation, keeping things calm, Concern about how this will be affected by status ¢f
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotiila,

Some events may be affected by it.)

—m——

PIC seems to be on track/going forward,

----- Original Message-----
From: Cunningham, James B
Sent: Moiiday, May 31, 2019 1:38.PM
To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Angrew €; .
Grubb, Jason B NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; aters, John R,[___ B3 DOD-CP

Jeffrey D
C¢: 'Dennis_B,_Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; ’Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla brilefing

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon @s 1t's
avallable. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo fro
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, 1s
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have sboken to
Davotuglu this am,

Sent from my BlackBerry

----- Original Message --=---

From: Levin, Jan

To: Qperations Center; Jeffrey, lames F; Cunningham, James B; Slevers, Marc J; Parker
C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, £lisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;
Amodeo, $alvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara {Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F 1tn33 DOD-CP

Andrew

e it et e

Jeffrey D
Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2019
Subject: MFA flotllla briefing

MEA DG Yossi Gal and IDF Col. Assaf Orion, Dir. Of Dept of Strategic Coordination, briefed
foreign ambassadors at 12:32 local time today.

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proaftivaly
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be
processed and escorted to alrport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take.

-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, |all
injuries occurred on this ship,

-- Col. Orion told Ambassador that activists on Mavl Marmara were prepared for boarders and
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party.
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knilvaes,

-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted i1t had the legal right to
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict
between Israel and Hamas. j

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Avlv clear Dept guldance on this issu;, thank
you.
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RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD-CP B3|
DODFGI,B6,B6

Law, Rosemary C

From: Goldberger, Thomas H

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010.8:55 AM

To: Schwantz, JonathanB Ddlan; JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Knopf Payton ; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; CPnneily,
Maura

Tsubject A flotilia-briefing— ]

— — — B »

-«---0riginal Message-~---
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B : B
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 8:48 AM :
To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacabson, Linda

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Knopf, Payton L; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B
subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing

BS

e T T T = T et T it T T I L T T T T b —— ]

----- Original Message -----

From: Goldberger, Thomas H

To: Dolen, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan 8; Knopf, Payton L
Sent: Mon May 31 €8:24:06 2910

Subject' FW: MFA flotilla bmefing

. I SR e . 35
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s Original Message -----
From: [ ] B3 DOD-CP
To: Cunningham, “James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Mapc 3;

Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Natﬁrs,

John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul), Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara
[(Jer'usalem); Burgess, Richard J; Murphy, Michael P; | ,-___.._J Levin, Jan; [ ____|_J_,B3 DOD-CP

Sent: Mon May 31 ©8:08:22 2010
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

R —— e _B3DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have alr'eady been provided via other means. Specific HighlB3 DODEG!

- Ongolng CGperation
- Twe Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I
- M/Vv MAVI MARMARA expected in port batween 17808L and 1888L

REVIEW AUTHORITY: $haron Ahmad, Senlo—} 39
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- All ships will be in port by later today
- 16-14 Civllians Seriously Injured or Killed
- 3@ Clvilians Wounded
- 19 IDF wounded to Include 1 serious and 1 with "medium” wounds
« Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled

- Interaction occurred approx 78 NM from coastline,
becausa of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade.

IDF confident in International Law
(See Attached Slides)

3000.0p

----- Original Message-----

From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem)
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 2:46 PM
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James f; Sievers, Marc J;
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Watérs,

John R; S } Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul}; Connelly, Maura; Feltman,|JeB3 DOD-CP
D

Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; ‘Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’

Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard ,

from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is fromjGen.
Dangot, the COGAT, who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am.

Dangot reported that when Israell soldiers boarded the main deck of the wain ship, they met
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire,
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments,ietc.
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made ¢lear situation was one in which actions take+ were
in self-defense. |

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15% “maybe more”. He said all injured
being moved to Israell hospital - by helicopter., He said ships coming into Ashdod (some
reports have them coming into Halfa}, At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. (Thera,
they will need to ID the bodies; move the pecple either to return them to home countries
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Gaia as
promptly as possible.

Earlier this morning he andh_ ade the following calls/contacts:
--Turkish €M and MoD| Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Shelkh| } He Felt
calls w the Turks givén the situation were OK, but the cencern clearly is Erdogan and

the B6&

how he

will handle.
rhetoric could be kept in check.
cooperation, keeping things calm.

With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels

With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for secur]
Concern about how this will be affected by status ¢

Israell Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla.

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward.

Some events may be affected by it.)

of

Ly
?f
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----- original Message~«~---

Frol: Cunnlngham, James B

Sent; Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM
To: Levin, Jan; Operatlons Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; )
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;[ "
“|Amodeo, Salvatore A {Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F=}.tr.3 DOD- CP
Jeffrey D

] cCc: 'Dennis B. Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapirowho.eop.gov' _,NWW -3

Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing

our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon gs it's
available. UN had been appreached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that

assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which 1s destined for Hamas, is
problemmatic but he'll see, Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have spoken to
Davotuglu this am.

Sent from my Blackberry

----- Original Message -----

From: Levin, Jan
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parkerl Andrew

€; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, Jlohn R; L_ rg__*m“ml K
[:f:::: 1Amodeo Salvatore A (Istanbul), Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem), Connelly, Maura, Feltman,
Jeffrey D

Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 20819
Subject: MFA flotilla briefihg

MFA DG Yossi Gal and IDF Col. Assaf Orion, Dir, Of Dept of Strategic Coordination, briefed
foreign ambassadors at 12:38 local time today.

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time., MFA will reach out proaftively
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be
processed and escorted to alrport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take,
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara, As far as 1s currently known,|all
injuries occurred on this ship,
-- Col, Orion told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boardeprs and
were armed, Unclear if they had firearms 1n advance or took them from IDF boarding phrty.
One 10F soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Actlivists also had knives,
-- Events took place in international waters, Israel asserted it had the legal righl to
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed cpnflict
between Israel and Hamas.

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank
you.
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Law, Roseman{l_c

P NGLASSIFIED U.S, Depanment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141620 Date: 01/04/2013

McLeod, Mary (USUN)

From:

Sent: Montlay, May 31, 2010 10:20 AM
To: Jacobson, Linda

Subject: Re: MFA fiotilla briefing

Have a safe flight! I'm sure we'll be in touch over the coming days.
----- original Message --«--

From: Jacobson, Linda

To: MclLeod, Mary (USUN)

Sent: Mon May 31 19:97:18 2010

Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing

Fyi, I am in Israel en route to airport so will be out of commission,

----- Original Message -«---

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

To: Goldbergetr, Thomas H; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Knopf, Payton L; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas 8

Sent: Mon May 31 ©8:47:48 2010

Subject Re: MFA flotilla briefing

Jon

»--== Original Message -----

From: Goldberger, Thomas H _
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knbpf, Payton L

Sent: Mon May 31 @8:24:00 2010

BS

Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing

wemms Qriginal, Nﬁﬁéﬂgﬁ_::i—-

from: |
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, |

Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; W

| tevin, Jan;

_Qgr‘usg_}}em), Burgess, Richard J; Murphy, Michael P;|

Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 201¢ [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senjor Rgngm
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

25

John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul), Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman) Mar:

B3 DOD-CP
farc J;
aters,
Marla

_,Bsi DOD-GP

f
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S 83 DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have already been provided vla other means.” Specific HighIB3 DODFG|

- Ongoing Operation
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I ;
- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 176@L and 1880L :
- All ships will be in port by later today

- 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed |

- 39 Civilians Wounded
- 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium” wounds

- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled
- Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International [Law

because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade, (See Attached Slides)

| B3 DOD-CP

----- Original Message-----

From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) E
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM i
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, | arc'J,[
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B, NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Ellsa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters),
John R,[_ _] Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltmarlﬁ JeBs DOD-CP
)] o !

Cc¢: 'Dennis_B. Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshaplro@who.eop.gov' '
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing ;

B6

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others havi heard
_from me, but_just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is frgm |
- "} who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am, .

| ]reported that when Israell soldlers boarded the main deck of the maln ship, they hed B6
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire, :
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc,
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dezens; He Indicated that some ofiithe

soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actlons ta%en wérﬁ
in self-defense.

Current estimates of these killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”. He sald all injured
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod ¢(some
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships{ There,
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries

rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into ‘Gaza jas

promptly as possible,

!
made the following calls/contacts: i B6

Earlier this morning o |
--Turkish FM and MoD ; Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikhr _1. He felt ﬁhe

calls w the Turks givén the situation were 0K, but the concern clearly 15 Erdogan and how He
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels oF
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rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarlly need for secy
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this wlll be affected by status
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla,

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.)

----- Original Message-----
From: Cunningham, James B

[ UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Depariment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141620 Date; 01/04/2013

Pity'

of ;

Sent! Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM

To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; leffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc 1; Parker, Andrew C;

Grubb, lJason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John' R;

l

| Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura;
Jeffrey D
Cc: 'Dennis_B._ Ross@nsc.,eop.gov'; 'Dshaplro@who.eop.gov'
subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing

FeliB3 DOD-CP|

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soo) as ﬁt'

available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo fp

in Ashdod. Serry is tryling to send a couple of obseéervers to Ashdod, has told cogat
assisting deliverles of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have
Davotuglu this am.

Sent from my BlackBerry

----- Original Message -~---

From: Levih, Jan

To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, Jamés B; Sievers, Marc J]; Park
C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;
B Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura;
Jeffrey D

Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 20190

Subject: MFA flotilla briefing

MFA DG Yossi Gal and IDF Col. Assaf Orion, Dir, Of Dept of Strategic Coordination, bBriefled

foreign ambassaders at 12:3¢ local time today.

om sihips

that,

spoREn

Felﬂﬁéﬁ

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out pngactivel

to Embassies as IDs are¢ done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured
processed and escorted to alrport for deportation. Unelear how long this will take

111 pe

-- Most vlolence occurred on ship Mavl {Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently knowy, all

injuries accurred on this ship.

«= Col. Orlon told Ambassador that activists on Mavl Marmara were prepared for boarg
were armed. Unclear 1f they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives.
-~ Events took place in international waters, Israel asserted it had the legal riﬂ
intercept in intl waters because there 1s a miltary blockade under the law of armed
between Israel and Hamas,

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this is‘ue, thank

you.
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T

[RTELEASEDIN‘ BART 53 DOD-CF,A3
: o DODFG!,B5,B6-
o kaw; Rosemary C

From: MoLeod, Mary (USUN)

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:20 AM

To: Jacobson, Linda .
Re: MFA flotilla briefing .

Subject:

Have a safe flight! I'm sure we'll be 1In touch over the coming days. i

----- Original Message -----
From: Jacobson, Linda '
To: McLeod, Mary (USUN) i
sent: Mon May 31 10:87:18 2019

Subject: Fw: MFA flotllla briefing

Fyi, I am in Israel en route to airport so will be out of commissien.

----- Original Message -«----
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B
To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Dolan, JoAnn; Jlacobsen, Linda '

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Knopf, Payton L; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B .
Sent: Mon May 31 08:47:48 2010 " ]
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing ‘ i

B5
Jon [
----- original Message ----- - :

- —

From: Goldbergei, Thomas H ,
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knbpf, Payton L

Sent: Mon May 31 @§:24:00 20190

Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing .

From: [ ] 'B3 DOD-CP
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, farc J;
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Ellsa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,

John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul}; Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffirey D; Rudmanj Mara |
(Jerusalem); Burgess, Richard J; Murphy, Michael P;| — — ~ "Jlevin, Jan; [~ B3 DOD-CP

Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewey
Subject: RE:; MFA flotilla briefing
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Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means, Specific RIENIB3 DODFGI

l

- Ongoing Operation
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER 1 o i
- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1708l and i8eel :
- All ships will be in port by later today

= 18-14 Civilia .

- 3@ Civilians Wounded

. 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medlum” wounds
. Turkish ambassador to Israel recalled

- Interaction occurred approx 7@ NM from coastline. IDF confident in International {Law .
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached 5lides)

: B3 DOD-CP

----- Original Message-----

From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem)
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM .
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc !j_; {
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wateprs, !
John R; ] Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltmard, J:B3 DOD-CP
b . :

Cc: 'Dennis_B. Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing ,

. B6
This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard
_from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from[ )

—Jwho also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am.

| |reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they meti B6
with what he deseribed as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live f re,

Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc.
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some ofijthe f
soldiers were ‘stabbed and slashed, Mede clear situation was one in which actions taken werd
in self-defense. : '

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”. He said all injured
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others wi)ll meet the ships! Thers,
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home coun{rie&

rapldly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of intov'aza]as
promptly as possible.

Ll

I

Earlier this morning ]| made the following calls/contacts: B

--Turkish FM and MoD | [ Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al sheikh[ . He fe¢lt ﬂhe[
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the coricern clearly 1s Erdogan and how He
will handle, With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of
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rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for secwityr ‘
codperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by statug of ;
«  Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. .

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward, Some events may be affected by it.)

----- Original Message-----
From: Cunningham, James B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2@le 1:38 PM - oo Trermemn
To: Léevin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Slievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; i
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;
[ 777 Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; [FelthB3 DOD-CP
_ Jeffrey D 5

Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; ‘Bshapiro@who.eop.gov’

Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 3

[T;]

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amclts as soon as it
available, UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo frem ﬁhiﬂ
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashded, has told cogat|that
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is .
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to havejspoken [to
Davotuglu this am.

Sent from my BlackBerry

[T

---+= Original Message ----- N
From: Levin, Jan :
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Slevers, Marc¢ J; Parkétl ggdAew

C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, £lisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; L“__“ o
'::] Amodeo, Salvatore A {Istanbul); Rudman, Mara {Jerusalem); Connelly, Mauraj Felﬁﬁéﬁ,
%??rey D 1 t
Sent: Mon May 31 13:26:31 2010 BT |
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing ' :

MEA DG Yossi Gal and IDF Col. Assaf Orion, Dir. Of Dept of Strategic Coordination, briefied 4
foreign ambassadors at 12:30 local time today.

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactive
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will belf
processed and escorted to airport for deportation, Unclear how long this will take
-~ Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all
injuries occurred on this ship.
-~ Col. Orion told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding|party.
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives,
.- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed confilid
between Israel and Hamas.

[ad

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, ‘thank
you, ' 7

o
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Law, Rosemary ¢ DODFG!

From: Pomper, Stephen E

Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 2:13 PM

To: Jacobson, Linda; Deeks, Ashley 5; Baumert, Kevin A Guarin, Marc F; Heinemann, Yhomas B
Cc: Delan, JoAnn; Reisser, Wesley J; Parina, Alexandra H; Meier, Michaei W

Subiject: RE: Israst Navy onFree Gaza

Jane Dalton worked extensively on the biockade law issues surrounding Georgia; it would be worth locating thgse files
for general knowledge (Kevin maybe you have some of the.papers?} though It's not clear that questions about our view

of the lagality of Israel's blockade are necessarily going to come up here {let’s hope not).

From: Jacobson, Linda
Sant: Thursday, May 27, 2010 2:05 PM

To: Deeks, Ashley S; Baumert, Kevin A; Guarin, Marc F; Heinemann, Thomas B
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Reisser, Wesley J; Petina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E
Subject: Re: Israet Navy on Free Gaza

Israel's position is that it is engaged In armed conflict w Hamas and it's actions to séal Gaza's

_maritime borders are acts of self-defense,|

From: Deeks, Ashley 5

To: Baumert, Kevin A; Guarin, Marc F; Jacobson, Linda

Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Relsser, Wesley J; Perina, Alexandra H; Pomper, Stephen E
Sent: Thu May 27 11:04:23 2010

Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza

Looplng In AR for the Israeli angle and SP for the blockade angle, based on his Georgla work,

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 10:53 AM

To: Deeks, Ashley S; Guarin, Marc F; Jacobson, Linda
Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Reisser, Wesley }

Subject: AW Israel Navy on Free Gaza

Thanks,

Kevin [REVIEW AUTHORITY: "Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer

From: Reisser, Wesley }

Sent: Thursday, May 27, 2010 10:36 AM

To: Baumert, Kevin A

Cc: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, llan A; Scarlatelfi, Adam W; Holmstrom, Tedd C; Goldberger, Thomas H

Subject: RE: Israel Navy on Free Gaza

a2
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Kevin—We are stﬂl try[ng to get confrrmatlon from Greece ont the 2 ships, They are yachts and may actually be

re __gis'tered_f

Wes

From. Baumert, Kevin A

~ 8entt Wednesday, May 26, 2010 3141 PM

To: Reisser, Wesley )
Ce: Dolan, JoAnn; Goodman, Hlan A; Scarlatell, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd C

Subject: RE: Israe! Navy on Free Gaza

Wes — It Is definitely worth pursuing more factual information as to which vessels are actually doing what, 1 sus

pect they

are not US flagged vessels, and mnght not even be Greek flagged (may just be Greek owned but who knows).

Thanks,
Kevin

From. Relsser, Wesley )

Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 3:00 PM

To: Baumert, Kevin A _

Cc: Dofan, JoAnn; Goodman, Tian A; Scarlatelli, Adam W; Holmstrom, Todd €
Subject: FW: Israel Navy on Free Gaza

Kevin ~ We have a whole burich of ships headed towards Gaza right now to “break the Israeli blockade.” The Isfaeli Navy
will probably interdict them this weekend, board the ships, haul them to port and deport all of the foreign natibnals

©ce, are

f the

{they did this last summer). However, we have a sllght hitch this time In that two of the boats, after leaving Grd
now supposedly flying American flags rather than Greek ones. Embassy Athens is looking into this to find out o
boats are registered in Greece orthe U.S.

The Israeli Embassy has contacted us about this, and they have been contacted by the Greek Ambassador herg

stated these ships are flying U.S. flags (although be did not tell the Israelis if the boats are American or Greek _r_{ggjgtered}.

who has

Thanks!

Wes

Fom{ ] B3 DOD-CP

Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 11:06 AM

-.T_O_'E . Slevers, Marc 1; Levin, Jan; Burnett, David R; Baron, Desiree A; Parker, Andrew C; Gregne, Elisa;

Cc: Relsser, Wesley J; Goldberger, Thomas H

Subject: RE:| ] B3 DODFGI
43
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],_hm__wq - e = “ : J B3 DODFGI
. VR ‘ )

Fom:[ B3 DOD-CP
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 5:51 PM S A
To: Sievars, Marc J; Levin, Jan; Burnett, David R; Baron, Desiree A; Parker, Andrew C; Greene, Eﬂsa;[ - 1

Cc: Reisser, Wesley J; Goldberger, Thomas H -
Subject: RE:[ ‘ 1 83 DODFGI

e B3 DOD-CP

E——

From: Relsser, Wesley )
Sent: Wednesday, May 26, 2010 5:06 PM
To: Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Goldberger, Thomas H; Holmstrom, Todd C; Sindie, James M; Struwe, Rebpeca L)
Richter, Kim B; Lopatklewlcz, Viktoris; Bernier-Toth, Michelie; Mendel, Teresa 5; Slevers, Marc 1; Levin, Jan;_ﬁ_&ggg@g,
David R; Baron, Desiree A; Adams, Juile D; Parker, Andrew C; Greene, Elisa; Zeroubavely, Sandra Sl 83 DOD-C
______ S | Waters, John R; Rogan, Thomas G; Towry, Debra J; Hananla, Vera V; Weinfgld, Nili §;
Lewls, Glenn K; Beran, Sarah; Greengrass, Sara D; Kaplan, Dean; Watker, Carolee B; Finver, Frank J; ey
Manring, Nicholas J; Tyson, Paul H; Maggi, Robert W; Frederick, Jeffrey D; Fails, Eric G; Reed, Jufia G; Davison, Keeas C;
Ogle, Karen L; Keen, Danlel G; Howard, Jeremiah "Jerry"; Parra, Yolanda A; Dilworth, Alison €; Osman, Amany A; Netos,
Eleftherfos E; Taylor, Victoria J;. Riley, Robert J; Dayton, Win {Istanbul); Marsh, Denise M; Bally, Jess L; Tomlinspn,
Christina (Istanbut); Abeyta, Susan K {Istanbul); Gisvold, Lisa C (Istanbul); Parker, Andrew C; Sitiman, Douglas @;
Rosenstock, Matthew S

Subject: Israel Navy on Free Gaza

{SBUJ Courtesy Embassy Tel Aviy, a message on how the navy intends to handle this:

“The Israel Navy has expressed to me that they intend to respond to this situotion os peaceful as possible; howéver they
have been directed by the GO to prevent the vessels from arriving in Gaza. Their intention ls to ensure the ships arrive In
Ashdod, process the Individuals to be deported and dellver any legitimate humanitorian aide to Gazavio land. It should
be noted, that GOl has mode it clear that olthough they have directed a peaceful response, thase participating gre
viewed os individuals deliberately attempting to provoke the Isroel Novy and appropriate action to prevent arriyal In
Gaza will be taken.”

Wesley J. Reisser, Ph.D.
Desk Officer - NEANIPA
Office of Israet & Palestintan Affairs
44
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Phone (202)-647-2647
' Fax (202) 736-4461

This message 8. UNCLASSIFIED/SBY according 10 tho defintions-provided by £.0, 12938.
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. Law, Rosemary C

PR UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141787 Date: 01/04/2078 "]

From: Rudman, Mara {Jerusalem)

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 8:14 AM
To: Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing

Antachments; Legal Aspacts.p|

From:e{
Sent: Monday, May 31, 201@ 3:88 PM

| Murphy, Michael P;{ 1 Levin, lan;|

Subject: RE: MFA flotiila briefing

To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Canter; Jeffrey, James f; Sievers, Mapc 1;
Parker, Andrew Cj; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Watprs,

John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffray D; Rudman, Wara

B3 DOD-CP

B3 DOD-GP

~ Ongoing Operation

- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I

- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 179@L and 18@6L

- All ships will be in port by later today

- 1@-14 Civilians Seriously Injured Or Killed

- 38 civilians Wounded

- 18 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds
- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled

because of intent by flotlila to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides)

- _ . : — - i B33 DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means, Specific HignlBa DODFG

- Interaction occurred approx 7@ NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Lpw

——

O ——

i
!
!

B U

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senlor Reviewer
----- Original Message-----
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem}
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2019 2:46 PM
To: Cunningham, James B8; Levin, Jan; Qperations Center; leffrey, James f; Sievers, Ma
Parker, Andrew €; Grubb, lason B; NEA IPA-DL; Greene, £lisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wa
John R; [ "7 Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman,

D
Cc: 'Dennis_B. _Ross@nsc.eop.gov’'; 'Dshaplro@who.eop.gov’
1

B3 DOD-CP

rc 1;
ers,

YB3 DOD-CP
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Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

“ This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have
From_me. but juyst_to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from
o N t_]who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am.
e lreported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, th
wlth what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fir

e LASSIFIED U.S, Dapariment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No, CO5141787 Date: 01704/2013

hgarq

Middtany wuho bea_pded_w etal an

VT EERat Wi

He said the military who boafded wére aftacked by dozens; He 1ndicafed"£ﬁé£"sdhé'6f”t

soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions takep were

in self-defense,

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”, He sald all inj
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashded (s
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships.

they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries

rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, meve as much of into Ga
promptly as possible,

Earlier this morning L="m;:: | made the following calls/contacts:

-~-Turkish FM and MoD [ | Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh Em'""f;]. He felt the
y 15 Erdog

calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clear an and
will handle. with Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels
rhetoric could be kept in check.
cooperation, keeping things calm, Concern about how this will be affected by status
Israell Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla.

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.)
----- Original Message---«-

from: Cunningham, James B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 1:38 PM
To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, lames F; Slevers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew

Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; [

| Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F
Jeffrey D

Cc: '‘Dennis_B. Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’

Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon
available.
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat t
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is
problemmatic but he’ll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have s
Davotuglu this am.

sent from my BlackBerry

Original Message
From; Levin, Jan

] B6&
7 B6
ey met B&
D,
ments,lete,
e
Ered
me
There, -
ra as
B6&

how he
of

With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for securfity

o

ps it's

UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help In forwarding cargo froE ships

at

poken to

To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew

C; Grubb, Jasen B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;[i_

Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman,

Je?%;E; D
Sent: Mon May 31 13:28:31 2010
Subject: MFA flotilla brlefing

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04183 Doc No. C05141787 Date: 01

/04/2013
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B3 DODFGI

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proagtively
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be

processed and escorted to alrport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take,
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known,|all

injuries occurred on this ship.
“1told Amba ra were prepared for boarders and

- : ! dor that activists o _Marmara W
weéra armed, Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party.
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives.
-~ Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict

between Israel and Hamas.

Ambassador Cunningham réquests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guldance on this issug, thank
you,
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From: Pomper, Stephen E

Sent: Moriday, May 31, 2010 1:02 PM

To: Jacobson, Lirida; Perlna, Alexandra H; Schwarlz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H;:
Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J;| ] Guarin, Marg F; B6
Donoghua Joan € _

Subject; —RerLrommentson MFAfietitarbriefings

----- Ooriginal Message ~----

From: lacobson, Linda
Teo: Perina, Alexandra H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldbarger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A}
Heinemann, Thomas 8; Dolan, JoAnn

Sent: Mon May 31 12t55:35 2010

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn Mi Sullivan, David 2; [~~~ B6
l Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Mar¢ F

Sent: Mon May 31 12:58:16 201t

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

----- Original Message -~---

From: Perina, Alexandra H

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann,

Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; |
; Pomper, 5tephen E, ‘Guarin, Marc F

Subject: RE:; L comments on MFA flotilla briefing)

[REVIEW AUTHORITY Sharon Ahmad Senior Rewewed
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=2 --0riginal Message-~---

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sént: Monday, May 31, 2018 12:17 PM
To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B8; Dolar,
JoAnn; Peérina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; 5Sullivan, David )

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA. flotilla briefing»

----- Original Message-----

From: Goldberger, Thomas H

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 11:40 AM
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolgn,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotllla briefing>

e L

----- Original Message-----

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM
To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas 8; [Dclan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing»

----- Original Message -----
From: Jacobson, Linda

To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B} Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Ce: Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 201@

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

----- Original Message -----
From: Baumert, Kevin A

To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jagobson,
Linda; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 201@

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing»
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----- Original Message -----
From: Goldberger, Thomas H
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobspn,
Linda

Sent: Mon May 31 109:50:27 2810

subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

e

----- Original Message-----

From: Cunningham, James B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1@:47 AM
To: Goldberger, Thomas H

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla brlefing>

----- Original Message -----

from: Goldberger, Thomas H
To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Conhelly,

Maura; Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_8._ Shapirofinsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B. Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov>
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 20190

Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing»

See below from Jonathan pls,

----- Original Message-----

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B8

Sent: Monday, May 31, 201@ 9:13 AM
To: Goldberger, Thomas H

Cc: Rudman, Mara {Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann,
Thomas B

Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing

LEHR;?X

!

[ ——
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----- Original Message -----
From; Schwartz, Jonathan B
To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harrils, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn
. Sent: Mon May 31 ©9:85:16 2010
[ Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing
. Alexandra/Tom -Are either of you in a position to assist L/OES?\ o B5
Joan o
----~ DOriginal Message -----
From: Goldberger, Thomas H
To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L
Sent: Mon May 31 ©8:24:00 2018
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing
o B5
----- Original Message ----- _
From:{__ B3 DOD-CP
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Mapc J;
Parker, Andrew (! Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greena, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Watprs,
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mira
rggggg§§;em); Burgess, Richard 3; Murphy, Michael P;[ Levin, Jan; s
‘Sent: Mon May 31 @8:08:22 2010
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing
I - . o B R .. _B3DOD-CP
Many of the detsils briefed have already been provided vla other means. Specific HighliB3 DODFGI
- Ongoing Operation
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I
- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1706L and 1806L
35
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- &11 ships will be in port by later today
- 18-14 ¢ivilians Seériously Injured or Killed
+ 38 Civilians Wounded
- 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium” wounds
- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled
- Interaction occurred approx 7@ NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides)

- . - R .- e :”n;wi
----- Original Message-----
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem)
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 2:46 PM
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, lames £; Sievers, Mapc J;
Parkaer, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, ‘Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, leffrey
D
Cc: ‘Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’
subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing
This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from| Gen.
pangot, the COGAT, who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am.
Dangot reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live firp.
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments,| etc.
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of tpe
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions takep were
in self-defense.
Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”. He said all injired
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (spine
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. | There,
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into GaZza as
promptly as possible.
Earlier this morning he and Barak made the following calls/contacts:
-=Turkish FM and MoD (Barak); Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al sheikh (Dangot). He feli the
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he
will handle, With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of
rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for secunity
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concarn about how this will be affected by status pf
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla.
(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.)
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----- Original Message-----
, From: Cunningham, James 8
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM
To: Levin, Jan; Operatlons Center; leffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc 1; Parker, Andrew
rubb,_iaSon B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, lJohn R;

Amodeo, Salvatora A (Istanbul), Rudman, Mara {Jerusalem); cConnelly, Maura; FdltnB3 DOD-CP}

Jeffrey D
Cc: 'Dennis_B, Ross@nsc eop gov'; 'Dshapiro@who eop gov'

Qur Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo fro

Subject: Ra: : ' . . ——

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

To: Operations Center; leffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker] A

C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Ellsa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;
"] Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Fg

Jeffrey D

Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010

Subject: MFA flotilla briefing

MFA DG Yossi Gal and IDF Col. Assaf Orion, Dir. OF Dept of Strategic Coordination, brj
foreign ambassadors at 12:3¢ local time today.

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time, MFA will reach out proad
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured wi%
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take.
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currEntly known,
injuries occurred on this ship.

-- Col. Orion told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarder
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding pa
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives,
-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted 1t had the legal right
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed co
between Israel and Hamas.

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv c¢lear Dept guldance on this issug
you.
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UNCLASSIFIED Y.S. Department of State Case No, F-2010-04183 Doc No. C18750666 Date: 01/04/2013

(RELEASED IN PART 1.4(B),83 DOD-CP,B1,86,1.4(D),1.4(C)) I‘/,_%d
\ Bdwers, Allyson M
B
From: Sindle, James M
Sent; Monday, May 31, 2010 1:35 PM
To: NEA-SEMEP-DL; NEA-IPA-DL,; Grubb, Jason B; Levin, Jan X: Sievers, Marc J; Greene, Elisa
- B; Parker, Apdraw.C; | ] B3 DOD-CP
Subjact: FW: Recentcc_ ___|Reporting on Israel/Gaza :
Attachments: 7 S_Hour,,l{p afe__S1 QSOO_MAWO_CLEAR.GOG; Free Gaza Flotilla 5x8 - 31May10.doc
This is what has been reported to the CICS from[' __| Nothing really new frorn our own reporting.
From:| |
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:59 PM
To: Sindle, James M
Subject: Recent]  Reporting on Israel/Gaza
Classification:SECRET/NOFORN
Jim,
'__Emlnjgr and below Is what we have,
311400 MAY 10
Israel: [Source: l

(U) Gaza Freedom Flotilla Sttuation Update: The latest reports on Israel’s seizure of the Gaza Freedom
Flotilla indicate at least ninc dead and up to 80 wounded, with all of the casuvalties on the Turkish flagged ship
MAVI MARMARA., A press statement from the Israell Defense Minister expressed regret over the injuries, but
placed blame on the organizers and participants of the Freedom Flotilla. The statement further indicated
passengers on the MAVI MARMARA resisted with clubs, knives, and possible small arms and “violence
encountered necessitated acts of self defense.” Video of the raid on the MAVI MARMARA shows an Israeli
soldier being assaulted by people on the ship. Israel has said they will conduct a full investigation. Prime
Minister Netanyahu of Israc] has canceled a meeting with President Obama to deal with the aftermath of the
event, Condemnation of the raid has been widespread. All Buropean Union member countries have summoned
their respective Isracli ambassadors to explain what happened and China has publicly condemned Istael, as have
most Muslim majority countries. The government of Turkey has canceled upcoming military exercises with
Isracl, the Turkish prime minister has ended a trip to Latin America early, and more than 10,000 demonstrators
are on the streets in Istanbul, The Turkish government has catled mectings of both the United Nations Security
Council and NATO to discuss the event. Two American citizens were reportedly aboard the MAV]
MARMARA and one was reportedly injured. Former U.S. ambassador Edward Peck, also reportedly with the
flotilla, was reported to be on a flight back to the 11.8. according to a statement on his website.

Comment: While there are indications of violent resistance by passengers on the MAVI MARMARA, reaction
to the event around the world has been very crifical of Israel. The prevailing response is the use of force was
disproportionate. Jsrael is likely to experience a great deal of international pressure over the next several weeks
and threats to the U.S. could increase as well due to U.S. support of Israel.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewst)

301400 MAY 10
Israel: [Seurce:
1
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. E-2010:04163 Doc No. C18750666 Date: 01/04/2013

(S/(NF) Counter-Flotilla Sails to “Free Gaza from Hamas”: According to press reports, a small fleet of
privately-owned Isracli boaty will sail from Ashdod and Herzliys, lsracli coastal citics south and north of Tef
Aviv, respcctwely, to meet the Free Gaza Flgtitla that has rendezvoused off the coast of Cyprus en route on its
humanitarian mission to deliver aid to Gaza, The counter-demonstration ig sponsored by the Los Angeles-based
StandWithUs organization. Crews have reportedly decorated their boats with “Pree Gaza from Hamas”
banners. Comment: According to the Free Gaza wabsite, the Free Gaza Flotilla of six ships departed
international waters in the vicinity of Cyprus at: 1_3J57~m_'iﬂ~ManL-tham&thate thaw wi .

T _Gezad8howslater (around 09157 on 31 May).

<<8_Hour_Update 310600_MAY10_CLEAR.Qoc>> <<Frea Gaza Fiotilfa 5x8 - 31May10.doc>> 1B14(B)
. 1.4(C)
1.4(0)

2
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. {RELEASED in FULLY

T

Bowers, Allyson M

From: Schwedt, Miriam L

Sant: Wednesday, June 23, 2010 8:39 AM

To: NEA-IPA-DL

Cc: NEA-Staff-Assistants-DL

Subjoct: FW: Blue Border - Summary of Canclusions of the Restricted Principals Committee Meeting
on the Flotilla {SES 201011051) CONFIDENTIAL

Attachments: 201011051

————— Driginal Message-----

From: Reaves, Stacey A

Sent: Wednesday, June 23, 201@ 8:92 A

To: TTL-NEA )

Cc: TTL-S; TTL-D~L; TTL-D-S; TTL-P; TTL-T; TTL-SP; TTL-INR; TTL-EUR; TTL-IO; YTL-L; TTL-PM;
TTL-SSEMEP; TTL-USUN~W; SES_4; Sarkis, Saadia E

Subject: Blue Border - Summary of Conclusions of the Restricted Principals Committee Meeting
on the Flotilla (SES 28101151} CONFIDENTIAL

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewed
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18750860 Date: 01/15/2013

Bowers, Allyson M - ' z / 5 7[

Fram: Kumar, Prem G. [PKumar@nss.eop.sgov.gov]

Sent: : 83 DOD-.CP

To:

Subject: RE: FREEDOM FLOTILLA II° GAZA AID CONVOY UPDATE - 6 JUL {SECRET) [SECRET,
Record]

Categories: Working [RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD—CP,B1,1.4(D)]

+ Rian Harris {Director for Aegean Affairs at N5C}

Eroms: |

Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2011 7:32 AM

Toi ]

ez ™

(REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C187508660 Date: 01/15/2013
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UNCLASSIFIED U.5. Department of State Case No. F-2010-U47163 Uoc No. C18/2UbbU LaTel Ul 19/4ula

‘ B3 DOD-CP |
,}
|
—SUBject FREEDOM FLOTILOA T GRZA AT CONVGY OPBATE ~ & JUL (SECRETS
Classification: SECRET ;;14(0)

Caveats: NOFQRN

Good moming J2 -

{U) The international “Freedom Flotilia Il (FF2) — Stay Human™ will include at least 10 ships, at ieast two of which ara
cargo boats camying aid, while the rest are passengar ships carrying hundreds of people, amang them, patiticians, MEPS,
writers, religious falth representatives, people of arts and culture and activists. Press releases indicales many TV crews
will be also on board {CNN, NBC, Al-Jazeera, et al) as well as journaliats sant by various world media and newspapers.
“Stay Human™ was selected in honar of 38-year ald Rtalian pro-Palestinian activist Vittorio Amigon:, wha was killed 14 Apr
2011 zfter being kidnapped in Gaza City by Salaflst radlcals.

SITREP follows:

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Dapartment of State Case No, F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18750660 Date: 01/15/2013
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18750660 Date: 01/15/2013

While there Is conflicting open source reposting suggesting two FF2 ships are underway, there is no confirmi .4(D)
that any of the FF2 participants are en route to Gaza. B1i

{SHOCUNE) |
1.

2,

3.

{SHOCHNF
1.

) Note (1)
}

(SINF) Note (2] K |

{L)) Political Developments:

~{U) On B Jul, the Palestinian news agency WAFA reported that some 40 organizations have confirmed their participation
in the "Welcome to Palestine” campalgn to be carried out between 8-16 Jul. Activisis from around the world, though
mainly from Europe, plan to land 3t Ben Gurion International Airport to tour Jerusalem, Ramaliah, Bethlehem, and the
Jdordan Valley.

Assessment: Israel's Foreign Ministry, Aviation Authority, intermal Security Ministry, police, and Prime Minister's
Office are expecting some 500 activists and are preparing for the pro-Palestinian fly-in. An leraell Pubfic Security
Ministry official states that activists identified at the airport as seeking provecation will not be allowed in lsrael
and will be sent back o their countries. Those who riot at the airpont or rafuse to head back will be transferred to
a special airport facility or turned over to the Prison Service. (Press, 6 Jul)

UNCLASSIFIED U.5. Depariment of State Case No. F-2010-04183 Deoc No. G18750660 Date: 01/15/2013
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Departmeﬁt of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C18750660 Date: 01/15/2013

- {\J) On 5 Jul, Israeli intelligence indicates a group of Arabs, of unknown origin, is attempting to travel from Jordan to
Turkey it order to procure & boat in order to join the Gaza flotilla. (USDAO Ankara 0512432 Jul)

- (1)) On 4 Jul, M/V TAHRIR, sponsored by the Canadian Boat to Gaza, altempted o depant Crete but was intercepted by
the Hellenic Coast Guard and forced to return to pori. (Press, OSINT) 1.4(D)

B1
- (1) On 1 Jul, MV AUDACITY OF HOPE, sponsored by the US Boat to Gaza, atiempted to depart Piragus, Greace put
was stopped by the Hellenic Coast Guard and forcad to return to port. (Press, OSINT)

{SHREL TO USA, GBR) lsraeli Defense Force (IDF)

{5} Nearest US Navy Forces

V/R, Larry

B3 DOD-CP

4
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UNGLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State CGase No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. G18750660 Date: 01/15/2013

Attachment Classification: SECRET
Aitachment Caveats: NOFORN
Classification: SECRET

Caveats: NOFORN
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_:jﬁ ACTION: NEA

I wro cories o

k{! LBl 1B |
s52k% gpaee

| DEPARTMENT OF STATE
EXECUTIVE BECRETARIAT

SIES

201011051

6/25) fﬁ"mw

MCC
-MED
MIPRI
MAWHL
OBO
OES

LEETT

M

3

RM
SICIEA
SICRS
SICT
SIEEE

SIEEN!
SIGAC
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REERRRN

USAID
SUBJECT:
_COMMITTEE MEETING ON THE FLOTILLA -- B/3/1
COPY ADVANCED TO: REMARKS:
ACTION REQUESTED:
MEMORANDUM FOR:
, APPROPRIATE HANDLING
FOR YOUR INFORMATION

OTHER

| DATE DUE IN S/ES: . AUTHORIZED BY:

SIGHFS!
SIGP
S/GWI
S/NKP
SICCR
SIBANAC
ECC
SISER
SISRAP
S/SRGIA
BISRMC
SUSSES
fWCH
USUNMW

vel

GISTAS
GITIF

SUMMARY OF CONCLUSIONS OF THE RESTRICTED PB! NCIPALS

SAADIA SARKIS

SIES-S, ROOM 7241
EXT: 7-8530
FaX: 7-2283

CONFIDENTIAL

A COPY OF THIS TASKER SHOULD -ACCOMPANY YOUR RESPONSE
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UNCLASSIFIED U5, UEPEMIMENT 01 SlHIE LEss (Vo oy 100 (g b 1v0 v T s vt Gtie s o 6t wtram < =
. 1

Law, Rosemary C

From: Baumert, Kevin A
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 4:14 PM
Dolan, JoAnn; Pomper, Stephen E; Towniey, Stephen G; Guarin, Marc F; Perina, Alexandr@

To:

H; Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Gorove, Katherine M; Sullivan, David J
Cc: Harris, Robert K; Jacabson, Linda
Subject: RE: PC on Fiotlta Thursday evening

V've passed this to USCGE, which needs 1o be involved in the first buller since it 1s a US flagged vessel.

From: Dolan, J0Ann ‘
Sent: Wednesday, June 02, 2010 3:41 PM

To: Pomper, Stephen E; Townley, Stephen G; Guarin, Marc F; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Aswad, Evelyn %1;
Banos, Mariano H; Gorove, Katherine M; Sullivan, David J

Cc: Harris, Robert K; Jacabson, Linda

Subject: PC on Flotilla Thursday evening

tsrael Dask has just called to alert us that NSC is scheduling a PC for Thursday evening to which S plans to attend. while
agenda is still being worked out it apparently includes such items as:

i | |
| |

Apparently the {_ ' [has been tasked to NSC/Legal and Desk assumed that we were

already working with themiand was locking Tor 3 point of contact to help them prepared the annotated agenda for §
Has anyong else heard about this and can 1 give Jeff Giaugue a point of contact on thatissue. R sounds like an L/HRR
and L/UNA task in preparation for HCR, but cannot be sure.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewe

20
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-041683 Doc Ne. C05141580 Date: 01/15/2013

RELEASED IN

IPART BS
Law, Rosemary G
o
From: Knopf, Payton L .
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 2:10 PM
To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Hof, Frederic C; Sindle, James M; Giauque, Jefirey G; Holmstr@m

Todd C; Jacobson, Linda ;

Subject: RE: Condensed version of the State paper for the PC

tave we seen the L paper?

From: Goldberger, Thomas H

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 2:06 PM !
To: Hof, Frederic C; Sindle, James M; Giaugue, Jeffrey G; Holmstrom, Todd C; Knopf, Payton L; Jacobson, Linda '
Subject; FW: Condensed version of the State paper for the PC

P—— [ S PA) T
From: Kumar, Prem G. [mailto:Prem_G._Kumar@nss.eop.gov]
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 2:02 PM
To: Bass, Warren; Mustafa, Herro K.; Goldberger, Thomas H; Lynn, Eric IV OSD POUCY; alan.sims@js.pentagon. m;l :
Antonietti, Patrick M CIV OSD POLICY
Subject: Condensed version of the State paper for the PC

X

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewed
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141580 Date: 01/15/2013 |
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T 39/

Bowers, Aliyson M

From: SMART Core [sveSMARTHBTSRetSPrec@state.sgov.gov)
Sent: Wednesday, July 06, 2011 2,38 PM
Ce: Doutrich, Jack T; Sachar, Alon; Eilts, Colin C; Pickett, Margarita; Rubinstein, Arrial J; Jimenez,
Elizabeth )
Sublect: {U) CONSUMER IIR EVALUATION/OIC-621
' Categories: Archival
SECRET/NOFORN
Sensitive
. info Office: POLITICAL
BRN: [ ' B3 DOD-CP
DatelDTG: Jul 06, 201170617382 JUL 11
From: | jl
Action: 5471S NELLIS AFB NV rouTINE; 97058 ALTUS AFB OKMNY rouTiveg, ACC CTIG

LANGLEY AFB VA/DOXD// ROUTINE; AFIAA AMHS BOLLING AFB DC ROUTINE; AFIOC
LACKLAND AFB TX ROUTINE; AFNORTH A2 TYNDALL AFB FLHIN/ rOuTINE, ANCHORY
FT GEORGE G MEADE MD rROUTINE; APL JHU LAUREL MD/I/STILO/ rouTive; CDR
USEUCOM INTEL VAIHINGEN GE/ECJ22-P-M// ROUTINE; CDR USTRANSCOM INTEL
CELL SCOTT AFB IL rouTing, CDRIDSFGA FT BRAGG NCI/AOSQ-SFT-SB/! ROUTINE,
CDRUSAREUR DCSINT HEIDELBERG GE rouTing; CIA WASHINGTON

DCIHPW STAFFIIRY ROUTINE;, COGARD INTELCOORDCEN WASHINGTON DC rourive,
COGARD MIFC PAC ALAMEDA CA rouTiNg; COMJSOC FT BRAGG NC//J2-CMDIY
ROUTINE; COMMARFORCOM rOUTINE, COMPACFLT PEARL HARBOR H! ROUTINE,
COMSEVENTHFLT rouTivg; COMSOGCENT INTEL MACDILL AFB FL ROUTINE;
COMUSFLTFORCOM NORFOLK VA rouUTINE; COMUSMARCENT INTEL MACDILL AFB
FL rouTivgE; COMUSNAVCENT rouTine; CTF 50 ROUTINE, CTF 56 rRoUTINE, CTF 561
ROUTINE, CTF 67 ROUTINE; CTF 69 rouTive; DA-AMHS WASHINGTON DCHINTELY
ROUTINE; DEPT OF ENERGY WASHINGTON DC/HIN-1// rouTiNE; DEPT OF HOMELAND
SECURITY WASHINGTON DC rouTine, DEPT OF TRANSPORTATION WASHINGTON
DC routiNe; DEPT OF TREASURY WASHINGTON DC//INTELY rouTiNg; DIRJATF
SOUTH 32 ROUTINE - " |DIRNSA FT
GEORGE G MEADE MD//S512/ ROUTINE; DNI WASHINGTON DC rouTiNg; DNIWATCH
ROUTINE; FAA NATIONAL HQ WASHINGTON DC/ACI-100/ ROUTINE, FORSCOM ACE
FT MCPHERSON GA rRouTINE; HOMELAND SECURITY CENTER WASHINGTON BC
ROUTINE; HQ AF ISR AGENCY LACKLAND AFB TX/NOC/ rouTINE;, HQ AFOSI
ANDREWS AFB MDD ROUTINE; HQ AFTAC PATRICK AFB FL roUTINE; HQ NORAD
USNORTHCOM INTEL PETERSON AFB CO rouTing; INTEL FACILITY SOUTHEAST
SECTOR TYNDALL AFB FL rOUTIVE; JAC MOLESWORTH JCDX RAF MOLESWORTH
UK roUTINE, JAC MOLESWORTH RAF MOLESWORTH UK rouTiNg; JATF SOUTH
INTEL KEY WEST FL RoUTINE; JIATF WEST ROUTINE, JJOWC SAN ANTONIO TX/I52//
ROUTINE; JWAC DAHLGREN VA RouTiNE; MARCORINTACT QUANTICO VA ROUTINE;
NASIC WRIGHT PATTERSON AFB OH rouTive; NATIONAL DRUG INTELLIGENCE
CENTER JOHNSTOWN PA roUTINE; NAVCENT INTEL MANAMA BA ROUTINE;
NAVEODTECHDIV INDIAN HEAD MD rRouTing; NAVOCEANO STENNIS SPACE
CENTER MS rounne; NAVSTKAIRWARCEN FALLON NV rROUTINE; NGA WASHINGTON
DC ROUTINE; NGIC INTEL OPS CHARLOTTESVILLE VA ROUTINE; NORAD-

1
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USNORTHCOM J2 PETERSON AFB CO rRouTing; NRC WASHINGTON DC ROUTINE,
PACOM IDHS HONOLULEY Hi ROUTINE; PACOM JIOC HONOLULY HIlfSVLI ROUTINE,
WASHDC, SECSTATE/INR/DC/ rouTivg; SR JOIC NAPLES (T ROUTINE; STILO
PATUXENT RIVER MD/STILON RoUTwE, UDITDUSAREUR HEIDELBERG GE ROUTINE,
US CUSTOMS AND BORDER PROTECTION WASHINGTON DC rouTivg; US SECRET
SERVICE WASHINGTON DCHSAICH rouring; US SURVEY DIV SHAPE BE RoOUTINE;
USAREUR ACE DARMSTADT GE rRouTing, USARPAC INTEL FT SHAFTER HI ROUTINE,

USCENTCOM INTEL CEN MACDILL AFB FLI/CCJ2// ROUTINE; |

|81

— Jroumme; USSOCOM INTEL MACDILL AFB FL ROUTINE; USSS CRIMINAY . 4(C)
INVESTIGATIVE DIVISION WASHINGTON DC RouTing; USSTRATCOM INTEL
DIRECTORATE OFFUTT AFB NEHOP322/! ROUTINE; UTAIS RAMSTEIN AB GE/INAAT//

ROUTINE
Captions: Sensitive, NOFORKN
Reference: T
Subjeet: (U) CONSUMER IR EVALUATION/OIC-621 B3 DOD-CP
SECRET/MNOFORN
QQQQ
SERIAL:(U) i B3 DOD-CP
COUNTRY: {U) GREECE (GRC); ISRAEL (ISR); SIERRA LEONE (SLE).
SUBJ: () CONSUMER IR EVALUATION/OIC-621
REF: {C/ — |-scation, Pictures; Currert 83 DOD-CP
Activity and Possible Schedule for Passible Gaza Freedom Fiotilla il
rEanicirze.msJM;lEira_r.z:.n_ahtlf.aece--U:>date One
i B3 DOD-CP
o ) o o B1
TEXT : {1) o 1.4(C)
1.4{C)
i B1
e .
1.4(C)
B1
will support further analysls for cofrelalion and —
entification. _ .
B3 DOD-CP
GUID: 1] ) ! B1
1.4(C)
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VALUE:(U)B-HighValwe =~ T
EVALNME: (U[__ T

PRODUSE: (UW/FOUO} A - Update Database, B - Confirm analytical
judgment, D - Oral Briefing, F - Support Law Enforcement

4_ﬂUSIIS.IfJ;111&..(.1[108_

l
—

DRV FROM: MULTIPLE SOURCES.

DECL: 25X1-human.

'B6

B3 DOD-CP

Deartved From: MULTIPLE SOURCES
Declassify on: 25X1-human
Attachments: metadata.dat

Actlion Post:

Dissemination Rule: DIS_POLITICAL

SECRET//INOFORN

Sensitive
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Law, Rosemary C

From: Levin, Jan

Sent: Satwday, June 05, 2010 10:12 AM
To: . Gaza Flotlilla Monitoring Group
Subject: Fw: Rachel Corrie Boarding

Fyi

me.L_ ] B3 DOD-CP

Cc: Sievers, Marc J; Levin, Jan; Grubb, Jason 8; ) j
Sent: Sat Jun 05 16:55:13 2010
Subject: Rachel Corrie Boarding

Sir,

Rachel Corrie boarding as reported by YNET:

Takeover ended In 3 minutes

Ron Ban-Yishal reporis from the Reld: Fiyve days xfter bloody reid on b Havy stages p L] &t 393; female coumbii pbldiera BlY Bart in guick raid on Richsl Comia,
fighiera bowrd ship wsing rope 1adders
Ran Ban-Yithat

Pbet ca g 1y e s 1ST2 ] News
Just five minutes — this is the estimated time it took Israel's Navy to commandeer the Rachel Corrie Ship en route to the

Gaza Strip.

mnﬁgummmmmmnmmummm l\gmmmbnwmdhmllmhwudmhum Ny Chisd bajar Genersl Edarer Marom recehvid tha chief of siaffs
epputwal bakore proceeting. Tha inp mitiary GRCES v B350 in Cuch with Dafersa Wnister Eud Barh dutlng the pperaton,

Tha cversl aperation wiet hesded by €6 comimandar of lereel's missie bodt ook, whiia the chusd rek! 1 D i wis 238 by tha # e Pz 13 o unl, Colont A
The ¢isclsion ks kak OVET the: vested wag baen rarghly 61 12 pm. sben it becama clesd 3l Ta vhip hid no Rtention of complying Wi s Navy's g End fm b the Asdiad port foc n Inspection.
Ths vassery capiain wes formed thas Wevy sokfers wi boarg tha ahip by Bap wifly mlematipna! e pnd wifhogl uslng fosct. end Erad e IGF enpected perianined ¢n the thip i behena windady,

4 formal Tighters
Tha copleia mede R cise B e kareas hy had no Intertion 1 offer vibient refstancs. m-anum mmbmmﬂnw:mmmmw&rnmm Tha Nawy
ispahod hees mm»mmnmnmmeM adtaenpaning tha Rachal Comiq phace Friday, Addtionsl Missh boats wers doployed It ciss tha operason tumed wadent,

Sharily baforn 12341, beo MAEs GO resChid the FEche! Comka canying about 20 oombat esiiars, induding Fow femase Aghtary kekoging to the Nevy's Bpeial sequrly usit, by chizgs of secwing porte end vaesels. The
femaies wors broughit | 50 el they personelly handia ths fansies b board, induding Robdh Prize Leresle kginod bagule.

The Narvy Cowmmaneis wis oo boar g negry mixese boct akwg with FloiSle 13% commander diing the oparaion. Tha fighters bapiad the clp Lsing rope kedders withou scing By res: that s

o Bua captain, e ensuned Biey ware belng met.

The opbrmtin gak sbout five nintes, with ciiviss on Berd B Khlp YEng slogsny 1 Navp bosps Mmm-vmumm bah Mefuers,
mmmmmumbmmmwwmmmm lev eclivisis wera pat of & "provoc st 33T, mmammmmﬂm«oa.w

Sreriing any ivlarl .

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
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QRELEASED IN PART B3 DOD-CP B3 DODFG1B6

Law, Rosemary C

From: Levin, Jan

Sent: Saturday, June 05, 2010 5:04 AM

To: Gaza Flotilla Monitoring Group

Subject: Fw: Rachel Gorrie

----- ieinal Message ----- )

From: . s B3 DOD-CP
To: [ Sievers, Marc 1; Palm, Robert H; Levin, lan; Grubb, Jason B

Sent: %at Jun 05 11:36:46 2810
Subject: Re: Rachel Corrie

}tha’c- RC-is “making circles” in the Wed and still insistingpprmsiea

Gaza. IDF is not going to allow RC into Gaza. MNo IDF boarding yet.

----- riginal Message --~-- )
From:i . \ ] B3 DOD-CP
To: Sievers, Marc J; Palm, Robert H; Levin, Jan; Grubb, Jason B

Sent: Sat Jun @5 16:57:14 201@
Subject: Re: fachel Corrie

RC approx 25 miles from coast. Have rejected multiple requests to dock at Ashdod Port,

itional stens to be taken by INF. 7
' B3 DOD-CP

From: [ B3 DOD-CP
To: | ievers, Marc 1; Palm, Robert H; Levin, Jan; Grubb, Jason B;

Schlereth, Frank G
Sent: Sat Jun 85 @88:54:69 28616
subject: Re: Rachel Corrie

I

. IRC--continuing to-refuse to head to Astdod. Expect additional” Efép‘%:;qu? i
vessel make port in Ashdod.
J B3 DOD-CP

----- ipd Messape -----
From: ] , N | B3 DOD-CP

i
Sent: Sat Jun 85 ©8:29:36 2019 L
Subject: Rachel Corrie

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer)

B6
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B3 DODFGI

t “saying RC still has not been boarded and negotiations with crew
continue to convince them to proceed to Ashdod. E [the message that RC will
not be allowed into Gaza. RC ds about 55 miles out and expect her to reach land around noon
today .
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Bowers, .Alfl_z,so_n ‘M

From: Sindie, James M
Sent: Thursday, June 23, 2011 8:14 AM
To: NEA-IPA-DL; EWR-SE-DL :
Ce: NEA-ELA-DL
Subject: FW: “FREEDOM FLOTILLA lI" GAZA AID CONVQY (SITREP #1) (SECRET)
Attachments: Froe Gaza |l Flotlila Update_23 Jun 2011.ppt
Imporiance: High ;
. :B5
Categorles: Working
1.4(D)

FYSA... B1;
VIR, . ) . |
Jim Sindle

: -;
This docuifient is SECRET//NOFORN when separated from SECRET/NOFORN attachment(s).
Sensitivity: Sensitive
Classification: SEGRE-THNOFORN
Derived From: DSCG 051 {b), (d)
Declassify On: 2021/06/23 ‘ .

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: _Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewar) ’

Fromi b B3 DOD-CP

se?t Thursdav. June 23, 2011.2:26 AM
Tos oo .

o)
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;
i
[
|
.
[
i
:
i
|
i
k
!
{
:
i
;

L g ———— .
3

Subject: “FREEDOM FLOTILLA II* GAZA AID CONVOY {SITREP #1) (SECRET)

Classification: SECRET .
Caveats: NOFORN ;"BS i

Good moring J2 / DJ2

————rn H
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. Attachment Classification; SECRET//REL TO USA, GBR
Classification: SECRET
Caveats: NOFORN
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TI3F

From: l‘h T — 1. B3 DOD-C
Sent: “Wedrigsday, July 08, 20011 1272 PM ""_I P
To: Doutrich, Jack T; NEA-IPA-DL; EUR-SE-DL; Masilko, BarbaraJ(USUN}, Zurcher, Kenneth M;
Eiits, CoilnC ~ P,
Ce! T
- Subjeét: “RE: Greece Bans Departure of FIoMR Vessels to Gaza, Ufgrs fo Dellver A~ ———

CLASSIFICATION: SECRET
CAVEATS: NOFORN

REL TO: NONE 1.4(D)
. B\1
Jack/David/Matt -
.- e — R
V/R.
B3DOD-CP

E’ EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senifor Ravioweﬂ
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.

~-«=-0riginal Message---~-
From: Doutrich, Jack T [mailto:Doutrich)T@state.sgov.gov] B‘-s DOD-CP
Sent: Wednesday, July €6, 2011 11:39 AM .

~To: NEA-IPA-DL: EUR-SE-DL: Masilko. Barhara 3 .(USUN): Zurcher. Kenneth M: Eilts. Coldn. € ... . __

Subject: #W: Greece Bans Departure of Flotilla vessels to Gaza, Offers to Deliver Aid
Jack Doutrich

Political Officer

NEA/IPA

(202) 647-4132

Sensitivity:
Sensitive
Classification: %
CONFIDENTIAL

Derived From:

Derived from previous message in thread.
Declassify On:

2021/07/86

from:
SMART Core

Sent;

StateDept004237
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Wednesday, July @6, 2011 @6:13:54
To:
Martin, Leah A (Athens)

Cc:

ATHENS-SMARTS; JERUSALEM-SMARTS; MILAN-SMARTS; SMARTS, Reykjavik; Valletta, SMARTS; GENEVA,
SMARTS; BAKU-SMARTS; ‘SOFIA-SMARTS; NICOSIA; ‘SMARTS; TBILISI, SMARTS; BARCELONA, SMARTS; OSLO-
SMARTS ;. Stockholm-SMARTS; BELGRADE-SMARTS; Dushanbe, SMARTS; VILNIUS, SMARTS; VATICAN, ,
SMARTS ;- THEHAGUE-SMARTS: USNATO, SMARTS; YEREVAN-SMARTS; PODGORICA, SMARTS; SKOPJE, SMARTS;
MOSCOW-SMARTS; WARSAW-SMARTS; ANKARA-SMARTS; TALLINN, SMARTS; Sarajeévo, SMARTS; PARIS-SMARTS:
BERN, SMARTS; UNVIE-SMARTS; LISBON, SMARTS; DUBLIN, SMARTS; Tashkent, SMARTS; BRUSSELS-
SMARTS; OSCE-SMARTS; ISTANBUL, SMARTS; BUDAPEST-SMARTS; FRANKFURT, SMARTS; ZAGREB-SMARTS;
LIUBLIANA-SMARTS; MADRID-SMARTS; KYIV-SMARTS; Ottawa-Smart5; HELSINKI-SMARTS; ASTANA-SMARTS]
TiranaSMARTS; Bishkek, SMARTS; LONDON-SMARTS; BRATISLAVA-SMARTS; PRAGUE, SMARTS; HAMBURG-
SMARTS; Riga, SMARTS; USEU-SMARTS; ROME, SMARTS; KRAKOW-SMARTS; BERLIN-SMARTS; LUXEMBOURG-
SMARTS; MAPLES, SMARTS; Copenhagen-SMARTS; MUNICH-SMARTS; CHISINAU-SMARTS; Pristina, SMARTS;
SMARTS; USUN, SMARTS; BUCHAREST-SMARTS; VIENNA-SMARTS; PMAT (Pol Ml Action Team);

HAshgabat . SMART:

B —E-Fbi bhasgovigoy; [ T 17B7(C)
e et i oo et e e B3 DOD-CP

Subject:

J——

Graace Bans Departure of Flotilla Vessels to Gaza, Offers to Deliver Aid

CONFIDENTIAL

STATE SEAL

MRN:

11 ATHENS 487

Date/DTG:

Jul @6, 2011 / 6615127 JUL 11
From:

AMEMBASSY ATHENS

Action:

WASHDC, SECSTATE ROUTINE
E.O.:

13526

TAGS:
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PREL, PHUM, PHSA, PTER, XCSY
Reference:

A) 11 ATHENS 383

<http://repository.state,.sgov.gov/_layouts/0555earchResults. aspxfk=mrn%3a%22:11%28ATHENS5%2038
3%22>

B) 11 ATHENS 349

<http: //repository.state.sgov.gov/_layouts/0S5SearchResults. aspx?k-mrn%Baxzz 11%20ATHENS %2034

9%22>

pass Line:

AMEMBASSY ASTANA PASS TO AMCONSUL ALMATY AMEMBASSY ANKARA PASS TO AMCONSUL ADANA AMEMBASSY
ROME. PASS TO AMCONSUL FLORENCE AMEMBASSY PARIS- PASS TO AMCONSUL STRASBOURG AMEMBASSY MOSCOW
PASS TO AMCONSUL VLADIVOSTOK AMEMBASSY VILMIUS PASS TO AMEMBASSY MINSK AMEMBASSY BERLIN PASS
TO AMCONSUL DUSSELDORF AMEMBASSY MOSCOW PASS TO AMCONSUL YEKATERINBURG AMEMBASSY BERLIN PASS
TO AMCONSUL LEIPZIG AMEMBASSY MOSCOW PASS TO AMCONSUL ST PETERSBURG

Subject: ' 1.4(B)

1 4(D)
Greece Bans Departure of Flotilla Vessels to Gara, OFfers to Deliver Aid 51
1. (C) SUMMARY: The Greek government’'s decision on July 1 to prohibit the depariure of

ships from Greek ports intended for Gaza was a significant shift from Greece's pravious, less
visibly confrontational, approach towards “Flotilla II - Stay Allve" Gaza vessels and !
activists. Over the July 4 weekend two boats attempting to depart Greek ports, in v1olation
of the ban, were intercepted by the Hellenlc Coast Guard, resulting in the arrest of thé
AMCIT captaln of one of the boats. Also over the weekend Gaza flotllla activists protested
the Coast Guard action at the American Embassy and the Embassy Mission Residence (EMR).]

BN SOMRARRY -~ "
Greek Ban on Departure of Ships to Gaza

2. {SBU) On July 1, the Ministry of Citizen Protection relessed a notice to flotilla
participants that the departure of ships with Greek and foreign flags from Greek ports to the
maritime area of Garza was prohibited, and that the Hellenitc Coadst Guard would take all
appropriate measures to enforce the decision. Despite the departure ban by the Greek
government (as well as an order to remain in port due to unresolved questions about the
vessel’s documentatlon and seaworthiness), the Amerlcan-flagged vessel “Audacity of Hope®
attempted to depart the Greek port of Perama, near Plrdeus on July 1. The Hellenic Coast
Guard intercepted the vessel and after a standoff at sea, the ship consented to return to
port.

’

3. {S58U) The American captain was arrested by Greek authorities upon the ship's return
to port. Embassy Athens provided regular consular services to Amcit members of this year's
“Flotilla II - Stay Alive” US Boat to Gaza organization both before and after the captailn's
arrest. On June 24, American Citizens Services (ACS) Chief and Counsel General met with
AMCIT flotilla participants to provide a consular briefing and ACS Chief had regular contact

q

StateDept004239




C18750663

with the captain and his attorney, including a meeting on July 5 to verify that he was in
good health, understood his arrest, had legal representation, and that authorities were
treating him well, The captain was released on July 6 without bail. There will be a trial
at some point, but-the captain will not have to return to Greeca.

4. (C) On July 4, the €anadian boat “"Tahrir” was intercepted by the Hellenic Coast
Guard five kilometers off shore when it attempted to leave the eastern port of Aghios
Nikolaos on the island of Crete. The boat carrying 5@ Gaza activists and medicine was towed
back to an undisclosed location ¢n Crete. According to reports, no arrests were made,
According to Embassy sources, a total of nine ships intending to participate in the flotilla
docked around Greece. Two of those, the “Audacity of Hope" and “Tahrir”, defied the
departure ban, prompting Coast Guard action. Seven have remained docked.

5. (5BU) On July 1 some 35 demonsirators assembled outside the American Embassy to
protast on behalf of the Gaza flotilla. On the evening of July 3, a group of eight pecple
from the US Boat to Gaza organization assembled at the American Embassy and presented a
letter calling for U.S. officials to defend their rights to sail out of Greece to Gaza and to
request 56 tickets to the Embassy’s upcoming Independence Day celebration. On both occasions
the protestors dispersed peacefully., On July 4, nine demonstrators assembled outside the
EMR. The demonstrators were taken into custody briefly for identification checks after
stating they planned to sleep on the sidewalk in front of the EMR. The demonstrators spent
under two hours in the station and were released. They were never placed under arrest.

6. (SBU) In addition to the group’s regular website updates and Tweets, the Embassy has
received roughly 500 c¢alls and emails since July 1 asking the USG to put pressure on Greece
to allow the flotilla to proceed to Gaza.

Greek Proposal to Deliver Humanitarian Ald to Gaza

7. (SBU) PM Papandreou spoke by phone with Palestinlan Authority leader Mahmoud abbas
on July 3. According to reports, Abbas positively viewed a Greek government proposal to
facilitate the transport of humanitarian aid to Gaza, in cooperation with the United Nations.
The proposal was confirmed later in the day when the MFA released a statement announcing
Greece’s intention to undertake the task of transporting humanitarian aid to Gaza through
"appropriate channels.” The statement also relterated Greece's ban on departure from Greek
ports primarily to protect human life and stressed Greece's concurrent view that the naval
blockade should be lifted. The MFA announced plans to lialse with all concerned parties,
while flotilla organizers and activists decried both the Greek government's intent ard Abbas'
alleged backstabbing collusion with the Greeks, "'\1.4(B)
1.4(0)
Rt .

z ... mr R g RIS ]

[IERSEE
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R

COMMENT 1 3%))
9, (C) On June 22, the Greek MFA issued a strongly worded statement discouraging 1ts Bﬂ
citizens from participating in the flotilla,[" " - B o _mdmm"_T:;:j::’”“*“—“ﬁ

Signature:

SMLTH

Classified By:

Name: Daniel B. Smith, Title: Ambassador

Reason:

1.4 (b), (d)

Declassify on:

2821/07/66

Drafted By:

ATHENS :Martin, teah A (Athens)

Clearad By:

POL:Cockrell; John D (Athens)
POL :Lawton, Daniel J (Athens)
Brandeis, Charles D (Athens)
Smith, Stuart M (Athens)
Miller, Thomas S (Athens)

‘Brandels, Katherine (Athens)
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i

Approved By:

EXEC:Smith, Daniel B (Athens)

Released By:

ATHENS :Martin, Lesh A (Athens)

Info:

JERUSALEM, AMCONSUL RQUTINE; EUROPEAN POLITICAL COLLECTIVE ROUTINE; ZEN/AMCONSUL ALMATY;

ZEN/AMCONSUL ADANA; ZEN/AMCONSUL FLORENCE; ZEN/AMCONSUL STRASBOURG; ZEN/AMCONSUL VLADIVOSTOK:

ZEN/AMEMBASSY MINSK; ZEN/AMCONSUL DUSSELDORF; ZEN/AMCONSUL YEKATERINBURG; ZEN/AMCONSUL
LEIPZIG; ZEN/AMCONSUL ST PETERSBURG

Attachments:

Metadata.dat

Actlen Post:

Dissemination Rule:

Released Copy

CONFIDENTIAL

DERIVED FROM: Multiple Sources.
DECLASSIFY ON: 20360706

CLASSIFICATION: SECRET

CAVEATS: NDFORN
REL TC: NONE
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UNCLASSIFIED U).S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05140864 Date: 02/14/2013
|

RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD.CP,BY !

DODFGIB5,B6
Law, Rosemary C T l
From: Schwariz, Jonathan 8 :
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:57 PM
To: Pomper, Stephen E; Perina, Alexandra H
Ce: ‘ Datan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Jacohson, Linda, Donoghue, Jos":n E
Subject: FW: MFA flotitla: TU Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Steps
Attachments: Legal Aspects.ppt

A further plea for L's advice on internatlonal law aspects,

----- Original Message-~---
From: Sindle, James M
Seit: Monday, May 31, 2@1@ 1:53 PM
To: Gordon, Philip H; Jeffrey, James F;L”_m"q“wmw_‘“ _J Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan;
Operations Center; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Gr‘e‘ene,
Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly,[Mauna;
Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); T T Halel, David
M; T 7] 'elizabeth_d. §KErHGBE-FandaII@nsC €GP, gov .
'"Bbrink@nsc.eop.gov’; McEldowney, Nancy E; Kaidanow, Tina §; Bally, Jess L; Riley, Robert 3;
Marsh, Denise M; Waser, Tamir G; Silliman, Oouglas A; Ankara-POL-DL; Wolff, Alexis 5;
e B e ] Baumert, Kevin A; JacLbson,
Linda; Dolan, 3ovAnn; Schwartz, Jenathan B !
Subject; RE: MFA flotilla: TU pParliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Step%

' f

|
|

B3 DOD-CP
i

According to attachment and in several statements, GOI believes that they are in armey
conflict with Hamas in Gaza and have the right to enforce blockade, including interdicting
ships in international waters that intend to break that blockade. |

AT ST AL R T AT AT e by

————— Original Message----- B3 DOD-CP
From: Gordon, Philip H

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:35 PM |

To: Jeffrey, James f;| _ | Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations|Center;
Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchesg,
Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Eeffrey
D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem);| | Hale, David M;[

DU

1 'elizabeth_d._sherwood-randall@nsc.ecp.gov’; 'Bbrink@nsc.eogTLov';
McEldowney, Nancy E; Kaidanow, Tina S; Baily, Jess L; Riley, Robert J; Marsh, Denlse M;
Waser, Tamir G; Silliman, Douglas A; Ankara-POL-DL; Wolff, Alexis S '
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla: TU Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next StepL

|
Isr Amb Oren told D-Steinberg that Israel would release/deport all the people forthwith. Did
not address plans for the ships. |

_[REVIEW AUTHORITY: _Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer

i
~-~-- Original Message - i
' |
|
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No, 05140864 Date: 02/14/2013
StateDepl004243
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S, Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C051408684 Date: 02/14/2013
B3 DOD-CP

From: Jeffrey, Jomes F _ !
To:| L | Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Slevers, marc J;
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul}; Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, flara
rusalem);[ o _I¥; Hale, David Mi[__ B3 DOD-CP
'elizabeth_d._sherwood-randall@nsc.eop.gov' <elizabeth_d._sherwood- |
‘Fandall@nsc.eop.gov>; 'bbrink@nsc.eop.gov' <bbrink@nsc.eop.gov>; Gordon, Philip W; |
McEldowney, Nancy E; Kaldanow, Tina 5; Baily, Jess L; Riley, Robert 3; Marsh, Denlse ?;

Waser, Tamir G; Silliman, Douglas A; Ankara-PQL-DL; Wolff, Alexis S; Rice, Susan E (USUN)
Sent: Mon May 31 13:27:49 2010
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla: TU Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Step

Aside from stressing as Amb Tan did to Phil Gordon need for Am 'condemnation’ of.Israil
Mercan-who can speak usually better for AKP leadership and Erdogan than MFA, Told Codel
Delahunt and me that of particular importance for Turks is immediate release of Turkish ships
and all personnel. He asserted and we need to look at, that under international law !
enforcing a blockade does not convey the right to selze people/properiy.

----- Original Message ----- B3 DOD-CP
From:| 1 l

To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Slevers, Marc J;
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; watérs,
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Hara

(Jerusalem); | Levin, Jan; Hale, David M; Murphy, Miﬁhael P;
! . B3 DOD-CP

Sent: Mon May 31 19:27:09 2010 B3 DODFG;

Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

ﬁrwnﬁww”mnm"“____wjlink between IHH organization and Muslim Brotherhood. Clear action on
part of individuals on MAVI MARMARA to incite viclence. Beat first wave of soldiers who
arrived on board via Fast Rope., Several Rhibs and 3 Blackhawks were used in action aZainst
MAVI MARMARA. Took approximately an hour for INF forces (Flotilla 13(Navy Seals})) to}gain

control of the vessel. All & boats were boarded at approximately the same time(B4BB~?590L)

in international waters. Vviolence isolated to MAVI MARMARA, Medical attention rendered to
all injured.

- As of 17@elL 3-4 of the vesseéls are in port Ashdod, MAVI MARAMRA t6 arrive soon.
borders

g).
on to

- All IDF forces are monitoring for reaction, but currently no heightened activity on
or in Gaza. Some minor incidents involving Israeli Arabs within Israel (stone throwi
Israelil Arab protests and strike expected tomorrow, IDF continuing to monitor situat
determine reactions,

S T ST,

- Several meetlngs and conversations with Turkish officials have taken place. There is

concern for safety of Israeli representatives 1n Turkey. :

- Air exercise that has been taking place in Crete with Greeks has been stopped by thd Greeks
and the IAF assets have been asked to leave. i

~ GDI and IDF focused on getting the facts out. Multiple video clips depicting violeﬁce
against IDF forces being released. They wlll review the eperation internally. {

’ |

I
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05140864 Date: 02/14/2013
StateDept004244
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= UNCLAGSIFIED U.S. Department of Stal Case NG, F-2070-04163 Doo No. G05140864 Date: 0371472013
|

- No decision on reaction to any additional vessels that may attempt to head to Gaza.
- We are awaiting response on CHALLENGER I Flag and any status of AMCITs.

- At this time, unclear if any riot related gas, etc was used.

ViR, -

I
|
;
!
|
[
|
|
B3 DOD-CP
|
|
!
1

----- Original Message----- B3 DOD“CP

From: Murphy, Michagl P i

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4:37 PM

To:[__ "7 "] Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, Lames F3
Sigvers, Marc 1; Parker, Andrew G} Grubb, Jason Bj NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchesé,
Gregory M; Waters, John R, Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Deffrey
D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem),] _ | Levin, Jan; Hale, David M

Subject RE: MFA flotilla briefing’ i

Ma'am, Sir, _ i
B3 DODFGI
l

" "There was a significant event this morning, we don't have all the details, and we are
still in the event. We will continue to update you." [

SO o L B3 DODFGI
LE“’ a prepared, written statement beginning with the asserticn that the
aza Strip is ruléd by a hostile enemy, HAMAS, that does not recognize the State of 15rael.

HAMAS encourages and executes hostile activity against Israel and is currently holdinF an
Israeli citizen, Gilad Shalit, against internatienal convention,

I
The naval blockade was established prevent smuggling that supports terrorist activity}

The free Gaza flotilla was organized by the Turkish IHH which is ‘balligerent towards Israel
and supports the Muslim Brotherhood. ;

Israel tried different avenues to prevent the flotilla from launching to include i
communications with the ships' owning countries and companies to no avall. Israel expressed
willingness to transfer any non-contraband: supplies wvia established land procedures and
Israel continues to look for ways to ameliorate the human conditions in Gaza. Israel:
assasses that there 1s no Humanitarian Crisis in Gaza. i

I
When the organizers of the flotilla showed no desire to divert to Ashdod when requestéd by
the Government of Israel (Gol), the Gol made the decision to board the ships In stric
accordance with international law and with a desire to minimize damage to the ships agd
injury to passengers.

|
Bcarding of the ships. :
3 l

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No, F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05140864 Date: 02/14/2013
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05140864 Date: 02/14/2013
|
|

buring boarding of the ship Mavl Marmara, Israel Navy (INF) Personhel encountered "seNere
physical violence" including khives, clubs and flrearms. 1 INF weapon was selzed by
passengers. Due to 2 clear and present danger to INF-personnel, the INF initiated conptact
using riot control systems (NFI} then transitioned to live fire. The Injured in the event,
both Israeli and foreign, have been transferred to "4-5 hospltals,”

Short term future actions,

Provision of Medical attention to the wounded, |
Non-contraband supplles, after lnspectlen and processing, will be transferred to Gazal
An IDF investipgation will be initiated.
The Gal continues to see HAMAS as a terrorist group. (Nete: this seemed out of plac% in the
context of the current topic of the briefing). .
Israel is taking action to prevent escalation of the situation, !
Israel will “respond heayvily" to any entity seekihg to provoke escalation. o
' B3 DODFGI

Legal Aspects ) E
: ' r
. B 1that a separate briefing would be provided on the legal aspects of the
operation. This was the attachment provided on — —___|s earlier summary, A ﬁopy is
attached as well to this email. B3 DOD-CP

Questions from the assembled group. |

what are the nationalitles of the casualties? I
No information yet, should have details in "a few hours." This information wilﬂ be

transmitted via “"diplomatic" channels, not military. !

Where are the ships? |
2 ships are at Ashdod, to include the Challenger I {as of 1415), The Challenger has US

citizens, European citizens and at least one Israeli citizen., The Mavi Marmara should arrive
to Ashdod between 1788-1800, !

What will happen-to passengers? |
Passengers will have 2 options, Accept immediate extradition or be jailed by ﬂsraeli
authorities. By "tonight,” all personal details should be known, [

Any information on nationalities?
Information will be passed to the Ambassador.

What time and where did bparding occur? _
Between ©50D-86€8, 70 NM from Israel in international waters, All & ships were
boarded, Only on the Mavl Marmara was serlous viclence encountered. O©One other minor
incident occurred on a second ship, All casualties were on the Mavi Marmara, |
|
Was permission granted to board the ships?
Unknown at this time.

What weapons were encountered? . l
One INF sailor was seriously wounded by rifle or pistel fire. 2 pistols were deized
from dead passengers. One INF weapon was seized by the passengers during boarding, |

What interrational reaction has occurred?
HAMAS has declared 3 days or mourning. Turkey has recalled its Ambassador, Israeli
Ambassador to Turkey was summoned to the Turkish Deputy Minister of Foreign Affairs and was

passed a "serious message."
l

4 J

{
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}spoke with UNIFIL, and MFO to coordinate for de-escalation effortB3 DODFGl
Lebanon "and Egypt. i

The INF assesses that there were Jordanians on the ships, but no detalls were given,
If there are Syrlan or Lebanese citizens on the ships, then they will be transferred Via the
Red Cross and UN to their respective countries. I

The MoD and IDF sent messages to the Palestinian Authority and the Israeli Arab’
Community to not escalate the situation. At least one Palestinian passenger may have‘been

wounded. .
|pointed out that there has been no US reaction as of yet. B3 ]DODFGI

Casualties? ‘
18-14 passengers severely wounded or killed, all on the Mavi Marmara. A total pf 3@

passengers now at 4-5 Israeli hospitals.

16 INF wounded, 1 seriously, one moderately {
E‘.3I DODFG!

Why were the ships boatded in international waters?
| ista'r'ted by saying the organizers were warned that the GoI would resp:nnd to

any provocation and the Free Gaze flotilla was meant only as a provocation, He then 5aid he
would not get into operational details, but the INF intercepted at 7@ NM in accordancé with
international law as the flotilla made it clear that its intention was to violate the]Israeli

exclusion zone. 1

Did the INF know what was on bhoard? o
Only through press accounts, but INF assessed contraband items such as concreter, and

iron,

Intentions for the ships?
The ships will remain at Ashdod until further notice.

Very Respectfully,

|
!
|
|
|
B3 DOD-CP
|
|
!

From: [ 7 B3 DOD-CP
Sent: Monday, May 31 2010 3:08 PM |
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jlan; Operations Center; lJeffrey, lames F; Sievers, Magc 3;
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B8; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; watﬁers,
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul}; Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Maro
3 ( ) ._.........»Y.Z-...,..A,A,“.WL-,,.,.A,,.,........._?.. y ét'BS DOD Cp

(Jerusalem);| ] | [ ] Levin, Jan; Schler

Frank G i -

: < B3 DOD-CP
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefin

o3 ° 8 83 DODFGI

Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. ~Specific HighIights ™
[}

- Ongoing Operation i

- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I

- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1788L and 13@6L !

~ All ships will be in port by later today !

- 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed i

~ 38 Civilians Wounded

- 1@ IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds |

- Turkish Ambassador to Israal recalled J
|
E

: E
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|

- Interaction occurred approx 7@ NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) |

— . I

B3 DOD-CP

----- Original Message-=----

From: Rudman, Mara {Jerusalem)

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2218 2:46 PM

To: Cunningham, James B; lLevin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, lames F} Sievers, Mafc J;
parker, Andrew €; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Gresne, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,

i
|
i

D
Cet ‘Dennis_B. Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop,.gov’ I
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing |

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from

[:: ________________ ], who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. |

reported that when Israell soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, thiy met

“with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fir

Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments,|etc.
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear sltuatlon was one in which actions taken were

in self-defense.

|
Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”. He said all Injured
being moved to Israell hospital ~ by helicopter. He sald ships coming into Ashdod (s%me
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. 'There,
they will need to XD the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Gaza as
promptly as possible.

Earlier this morning he and [ |made the following calls/contacts: |
--Turkish FM and MoD ; Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh [ ] He fel} the
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concepn clearly is Erdogan and how he
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels|of
rhetoric could be kept in check, With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for secur}ty
cooperation, keeping things ¢alm. Concern about how this will be affected by status ?f
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla, ;

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.)

----- Original Message-----
From: Cunningham, James 8
sent: Monday, May 31, 2019 1:38 PM
To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew (;

Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, €lisa; Marchesa, Gregory M; Waters, John R; [ "__~_W

|
|
|
|

6 |
i
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S B3 DOD-CP
“"H“JAmodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara {Jerusalem); Cornelly, Maura; F#ltman,
Jeffrey D
Cc¢: 'Dennis_B. Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@iho.eop.gov’ !
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing : |

Qur Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to:get info on amcits as soon as it's
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo fromf ships
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat tqat
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have spoken to
Davotuglu this am. i

Sent from my BlackBerry !

-r==- Qriginal Message «---- |

From:- Levin, Jan !

To: QOperations Center; Jeffrey, lJames F; Curningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J1; Parker] Andrew

C; Grubb, Jaspn B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; | _
7T Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; F%ltman,
effrey D .

Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2016 i

Subject: MFA flotilla briefing l

MFA DG Yossi Gal and IDF Col.| _
foreign ambassadors at 12:3¢ 1local time today.

kwmulbr%efed B

t
Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time, MFA will reach out proattively
to. Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens, The uninjured wiil be
‘processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. E
-- Mast violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known,lall
injuries _occurred on this ship.
-- Col, told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boardetrs and B6
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party.
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives.
-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal righ% to
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed cénflict

between Israel angd Hamas. |

Anibassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issué, thank
you. |

|
|
I
|
|
I
|
|
|

|
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RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD-CP,B3

N [a]s] BEBG

Law, Rosemary C 2 FG'

From: Townley. Stephen G

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:56 PM

To: Pomper, Stephen E; Heinemann, Thomas B; Donoghue, Joan E; Cleveland, Sarah H;
Eichensehr, Kiisten E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dotan, JoAnn: Baumert, Kevin
A

Subject: Fw: MFA flotitta: TU Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Steps

Attachments: Legal Aspects.ppt

Sending also to L/PM. Seems related to another ongoing discussicn.

----- Original Message ««---
From: Gordon, Philip H . \
To: Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Koh, Harold Hongju; Connery, Joyce L,
<Joyce_L._Connery@nsc.eop,gov>

Sent: Mon May 31 14:06:54 2018

Subject: FW: MFA flotilla: TU Parllament For Aff Comm Chlef Murat Mercan on Next Steps

Making sure you guys have this. (Tom Donilon asked for chop}.

----- Original Message----- \

From: Sindle, James M
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 1:53 PM + B3DOD-CP
To:; Gordon, Philip H; Jeffrey, James F; [ lCunnmgham, James B; Levip, Jan;

Operations Center; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, “Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene,
Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo..Salvatore A_(Istanbull}: Conpelly, Maura;
Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) rT Hale| David
M; | | 'elizabeth_d._sherwood-randall@nsc.eop.gov’;
Bbr1nk@nsc eop.gov'; McEldowney, Nancy E; Kazdanow, Tina S; Baily, Jess L; Riley, RoLert J;
Marsh, Denise M; Waser, Tamir G; 51lliman, Douglas A; Ankara-POL-DL; Wolff, Alexis 5;!
_J3cs 15 A0'; [ }; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson,
L1nda, Dolan, JoAnn, Schwartz, jonathan B
Subject: RE:; MFA flotilla: Tu Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Stepls

According to attachment and in several statements, GOI believes that they are in ar'med
conflict with Hamas in Gaza and have the right to enforce blockade, including. inter'dictz.ng
ships in international waters that intend to break that blockade. I ) BS

{REVIEW AUTHORITY' Sharon Ahmad, SenEor Reviewe
----- Original Message-----
From: Gordon, Phillp H !
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:35 PM__ B3 DOD-CP
To: Jeffrey, James F; r _)cUnningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center;
Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C, Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese,
Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul), Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Reffrey

1
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_ LOL-GH

dnan.,.Mara_ (Jerusalen); r ' !Hale, pavid M ]
elizabeth d. _sherwood - randall@nsc eop.gov'; 'Bbrink@nsc eop.gov';

McEldowney, Nancy y E; Kaidanow, Tina S, Baily, Jess L; Riley, Robert J, Marsh, Denise M;
Waser, Tamir G; Silliman, Douglas A; Ankara-POL-DL; Wolff, Alexis S
Subject: re: MFA flotilla: TU Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Mupat Mercan on Next Steps

Isr Amb Oren told D-Steinberg that Israel would release/deport all the people forthwith. Did
not address plans for the ships.

----- Original Message «=--- B3 DOD-CP

From:_ Jeffrey, James F
To ICunnlngham, Jamegs B;-Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Sievers, Marc J;
Parker, AndPew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA IPA -DL; Greene, Elisa, Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,

Jerusalem) l ] Hale, Pavid M,!
*elizabeth_d._sherwood- randall@nsc eop.gov' <elizabeth_d. sherwood-

rﬂndall@nsc eop.govs; 'bhrink@nsc eop.gov' <bbrink@nsc.eop.gow>; Gordon, Philip H;

McEldowney, Mancy E; Kaldanow, Tina S; Baily, Jess L; Riley, Robert J; Marsh, Denise M; "
Waser, Tamir G; $illiman, Douglas A; Ankara-POL-DL; Wolff, Alexis $; Rice, Susan E (USUN)
Sent: Mon May 31 13:27:49 201@

Subject: Re: MFA flotllla: TU Parliament For Aff Comm Chief Murat Mercan on Next Steps

Aside from stressing as Amb Tan did to Phil Gordon need for Am 'condemnation’ of Israel
Mercan-who can speek usually better for AKP leadership and Erdogan than MFA, Told Codel
Delahunt and me that of particular importance for Turks is immedlate release of Turkish ships
and all personnel. He asserted and we need to look at, that under international law .
enforclng a blockade does not convey thé right to selze people/property. _"] B5

----- Original Megsage ----- '

From: | ] B3 DOD-CP
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Mapc J;
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,

John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey Di Rudman. Ma
(Jerusalem); [ _ |Levin, Jan; Hale, David M;

Sent: Mon May 31 19:27:09 2016
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

A

" B3 DOD-CP
B3 DODFGI

stressed link between IHH organization and Muslim Brotherhood. Clear action on

“part of individuals on MAVI MARMARA to incite violence. Beat first wave of soldlers who
arrlved on board via Fast Rope. Several Rhibs and 3 Blackhawks were used in action against
MAVI MARMARA. Took approximately an hour for INF forces (Flotilla 13(Navy Seals)) to, gain
control of the vessel. All 6 boats were boarded at approximately the same time(@408-6500L)
1n internatlonal waters. Violence 1lsolated to MAVI MARMARA. Medical attention rendered to
all injured.

t

- AS of 1709L 3-4 of the vessels are 1In port Ashdod. MAVI MARAMRA to arrive soon.

- All IDF forces are monitoring for reactlon, but currently no helghtened activity on borders
or in Gaza. Some minor incidents invelving Israeli Arabs within Israel (stone throwing).

2
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Israeli Arab protests and strike expected tomorrow, IDF continuing to monitor situation to
determine reactions.

- Several meetings and conversations with Turkish officials have taken place. There is
concern for safety of Israeli representatives in Turkey.

- Air exercise that has been taking place in Crete with Greeks has been stopped by the Greeks
and the IAF assets have been asked to leave,

- GOI and IDF focused on getting the facts out. Multiple video clips depicting violence
against IDF forces being released. They will review the operation internally.

- No decision on reaction to any additional vessels that may attempt to head to Gaza. .,
- We are awaiting response on CHALLENGER I Flag and any status of AMCITs.

- At this time, unclear if any riot related gas, etc was used,

MR
B3 DOD-CP
\
----- Original Message-----
From: .
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 4:37 PM B3 DOD-CP
To:l _"_J cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; leffrey, James F;

Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese,
Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey
D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); | | Levin, Jan; Hale, David M

Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing ~— |

Ma‘am, Sir, B3 DODFGI

“There was a significant event this morning, we don't have all the details, and we are
still in the event. We will continue to update you." )

) a prepared, written statement beginning with the assertjion that the
Gaza strip is ruled by a hostile enemy, HAMAS, that does not recognize the State of Tsrael.
HAMAS encourages and executes hostile activity against Israel and is currently holding an
Israeli citizen, Gilad Shalit, against international convention.

The naval blockade was established prevent smuggling that supports terrorist activity,

The Free Gaza flotilla was organized by the Turkish IHH which 1s belligerent towsrds Israel
and supports the Muslim Brotherhood. |

Israel tried different avenues to prevent the flotilla from launching to include
communications with the ships' owning countries and companies to no avail. Israel expressed
willingness to transfer any non-contraband supplies via established land procedures and

3
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Israel continues to look for ways to ameliorate the human conditions in Gaza. Israel
assesses that there is no Humanltarlan Crisis in Gaza,

When the organizers of the flotilla showed no desire to divert to Ashdod when requested by
the Government of Israel (Gol), the GoI made the decision to board the ships in strict
accordance with international law and with a desire to minimize damage te the ships and
injury to passengers.

Boarding of the ships.

During boarding of the ship Mavi Marmara, Israel Navy (INF) Personnel encountered “severe
physical violence" including knives, clubs and firearms. 1 INF weapon was seized by
passengers. bDue to a clear and present danger to INF personnel, the INF initiated contact
using riot control systems (NFI) then transitioned te live fire. The injured in the event,
both Israeli and foreign, have been transferred to "4-5 hospitals.”

Short term future actions.
Provision of Medical attention to the wounded.
Non-contraband supplies, after inspection and processing, will be transferred to Gaza.
An IDF investigation will be initiated.
The GoI continues to see HAMAS as a terrorist group. (Note: this seemed out of place in the
context of the current topic of the briefing).
Israel is taking action to prevent escalation of the situation.
Israel will "respond heavily" to any entity seeking to provoke escalation. :
' P d Y MY grop B3 DODFG

Legal Aspects
| lthat a separate briefing would be provided on the legal aspects of the
operation, This was the attachment provided on[ ) s earlier_summary. A topy is

attached as well to this email. B3 DOD-CP

Questions from the assembled group.
b
What are the nationalities of the casualties?
No information yet, should have details in "a few hours.” This information will be
transmitted via "diplomatic” channels, not military,

Where are the ships?

2 ships are at Ashdod, to include the Challenger I (as of 1415). The Challenger has US
citizens, European cltizens and at least one Israeli citizen. The Mavi Marmara should arrive
to Ashdod between 1709-1800. ' f

What will happen to passengers?
Passengers will have 2 options. Accept immediate extradition or be jailed by Israeli

authorities. By "tonight,” all personal details should be known. :

Any information on nationalities? '

Information will be passed to the Ambassador.

What time and where did boarding occur? I
Between 0500-8600, 78 NM from Israel in international waters. All 6 ships werg

‘boarded, Only on the Mavi Marmara was serious viclence encountered. One other minor

incident occurred on a second ship. All casualties were on the Mavi Marmara.

Was permission granted to board the ships?

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141075 Date: 02/14/2013
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Unknown at this time.

What weapons were encountered?
One INF sailor was seriously wounded by rifle or plstol fire., 2 pistols were seired

from dead passengers, One INF weapon was seized by the passengers during boarding.

What international reaction has occurred? .

HAMAS has declared 3 days or mourning. Turkey has recalled its Ambassador. Israeli
Ambassador to Turkey was summoned to the Turkish Deputy Minister of Foreign Affairs add was
passed a “serious message."”

" |spoke with UNIFIL, and MFO to coordinate for de-escalation efforts i|33 DODFGI
Lebanon and Egypt.
The INF assesses that there were Jordanians on the ships, but no details were given.
If there are Syrian or Lebanese citizens on the ships, then they will be transferred yla the
Red Cross and UN to their respective countries,

The MoD and IDF sent messages to the Palestinian Authority and the Israell Arab’

Community to not escalate the situation. At least one Palestinian passenger may have-been

wounded,

Ipointed out that there has been no US reaction as of yet. B3 DODFGI

Casualties? .
16-14 passeéngeéers severely wounded or killed, all on the Mavi Marmara, A total of 3@

passengers now at 4-5 Israeli hospltals. _
i 18 INF wounded, 1 seriously, one moderately '

re_the ships boarded in international waters? B3 DODFGI
started by saying the organlzers were warned that the Gol would respbnd to

any provotation and the Free Gaze flotilla was meant only as a provocation., He then said he
would not get into operatlonal details, but the INF intercepted at 7@ NM in accordancg with
international law as the flotilla made 1t clear that 1ts intention was to violate theiIsraeli

exclusion zone, i

: Did the INF know what was on board?
' Only through press accounts, but INF assessed contraband items such as concrete, and

iron.

Intentions for the ships? |
The ships will remain at Ashdod until further notice,

Very Respectfully,
. B 1
F,.-MW S I B3 DOD-CP

t

----- Trigmal_ﬂas_s_ape_w:-
From: I
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 3:08 PM

To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, lames F; Sievers, Marc 3;
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,

lohn R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara
(lerusalem); | | Levin, Jan; [ . |33 DOD-CP

“Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing -
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B3 DOD-CP .
B3 DODFGI

Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific HigRLlights

- Qngoing Operation
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER 1
- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1708L and 18@8L
- All ships will be in port by later today
- 19-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed
- 39 Civilians Wounded ;
- 1¢ IDF wounded to include 1 seriocus and 1 with "medium” wounds
~ Turkish Ambassador to Isragl recalled

- Interaction occurred approx 7@ NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Lgw
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. {See Attached Slides)

B3 DOD-CP

!

----- Original Message----- I

From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem)

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM
" To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J;
"~ Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,
John R; [ ™) Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey
B2
Cc: ‘Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' BS DOD-CP
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing
This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is froml

[ ”__} reported that when Israell soldiers boarded the mailn deck of the main ship, they met
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire.
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments,'etc.
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of tHe
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was ohe in which actions taker were
In self-defense,

_L who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am.

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”, He said all injured
being moved to Israell hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod {(some
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. [There,
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Gaza as
promptly as possible. |
: |

Earlier this morning he and made the followlng calls/contacts:
--Turkish FM and MoD (Barak); Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh (Dangot). He felt the
calls w the Turks given the situation were 0K, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and.how he
will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels,of

6 !
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-rhetoric could be kept in check. wlth “Jthey discussed primarily need for securltyB3 DODFG!
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

From: Cunningham, James B _ .

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM B3 DOD-CP .
To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C;

Grubb Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M, Waters, John R; o]
| amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman,
Jeffrey D

Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov’'; ‘Dshapiro@who.eop.gov'
‘Subject: Re; MFA flotilla briefing

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get infe oni amcits as soon as it's
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that
assisting deliverles of humanitarian goods, much of which ls destined for Hamas, is
problemmatic¢ but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have spoken to
Davotuglu this am,

Sent from my BlackBerry ,

----- Original Message ---.- :
From: Levin, Jan

To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew
£:. Grubb, lason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R}

o rAmodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman,
“Jeffrey D

Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2019

Subject: MFA flotilla briefing

MFA D6 Yossi Gal and IDF Col. Assaf Orion, Dir. Of Dept of Strategic Coordination, briefed
foreign ambassadors at 12:3@ local time today.

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take.

-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all
injuries occurred on this ship,

-- Col, Orion told Ambassador that activists on Mavi.Marmara were prepared for boarders and
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advanhce or took them from IDF boarding party.
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives,

-- Events took place 1n international waters, Israel asserted it had the legal right to
intercept in intl waters because there 15 a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict

between Israel and Hamas.

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank
you,

7 1
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. SECRET JOCEUR Analytical Center
Morring Update Briaf

Israel: Gaza Flotilla Update

' I R— _
{ o )
l ] (SHREL TO UBA, FVEY). : o o 51

» 19 Jun: First Gaza Flotilla vessel scheduled to
: leave port from Hamburg, GE (uy
~ Up to 22 ships, 1000 participants possible in
Flotillawy
— ~27 Jun: Flotilla to rdvs south of Cyprus w)

+ Turkish NGO JHH sending mixed messages about “ _

Flotilla sailing w) Gounley
. ‘—l T WV Statano Ghlarinl -
' TUR “Whrv Mavl Margra VO (sianbul sis of 31 May 11
— Says may postpone flotilla due to concerns TOR MV Gazze 1VO Iotanbul oo of 4 Apr 11.
over possible Int intervention in Syria w) KAM_ . Wy Raohe! Corrls '
' . I GaN M Tahily
. Ankar-e.. discouraging Flol_ti!la participation, but aor WDty
states it cannot block participatlon {U} e WY Eroadam Figtikia I ’
| R M EIRECTOUSATVEY
|(s/REL TO USA, FVEY)
18 Jun 14 SECRET Declassify On: 18 Jun 36

(REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revigwer)
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Logg, Cristina A _
From: Staiford, Edward &
Sant: Thursday, November 03, 2011 1:33 PM .
To: I_Bams David_B: ‘Kumar, Prem ,(3“,%1Eﬂckson Mark D; Levin, Jan X; 'Steln, Lawrence J.
B3 DOD-CP
Ce: EUR-SE-TU DL NEA-IPA-DL; Ankara-PMA; Ankara-Political; | ‘ LAVIV
POL; 'AGodfrey@nss a0p.sgovigov'
Subject: RE: “FREEDOM WAVES TO GAZA" FLOTILLA - (SITREP 2) - 3 NOV 2011 (SECRET)

{SECRET, Record)

1.4(B)
: : : : 1.4(D)
(REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer] B1

Sonslitivity:  Sensitive
. Classlification; SECRET/NOFORN
Derived From: incoming IR
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From: Berns, David B B6é

Seint: Thursday, November 03, 2011 5;57 PM
“Tor 'Kumar, Prem.G.'; Stafford, Edward:G; Erickson, Mark D; Levin, Jan Xj
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Subject: RE: "FREEDOM WAVES TO GAZA' FLOTILLA - (STTREP 2) - 3 NOV 2011 (SECRET) [SECRET, Jscord] ™™™
01 01 0311562 NOV 11 RR RR S8SS ar zyow worrenB3 DOD-CP

[ l B3 DOD-CP

TO DIA WASHINGTON DC

B3 DOD-CP

"TOR USCENTCOM MACDILL AFD Tl
CDR USEUCOM [ |varuaneeEnw B/ | |

CDR USTRANSCOM | |scorT AFB IL

CIA WASHINGTON DC/
CNO WASHINGTON DC

DA WASHINGTON pC/ o
DEPT OF ENERGY WASHINGTON DC
DEPT_OF HOMELAND SECURITY WASHINGTON DC/

DIRNSA FT GEORGE G MEADE MD/ l l
DNI WASHINGTON DC

HO NORRD PETERSON AFB CO/[ |
H0 USEUCOM VAIHINGEN GE
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_SOURCE:
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USSTRATCOM{ JOPFUTT AFB NEJ

[ ]
WHITE. HOUSE STITUATION ROOM WASHINGTON DC

SECRE ‘r] l’no'ré*om:r

s.009

SERIAL: {U) || ) _ |

COUNTRY: (U} Iarael {ISR); Palestinian Territory, Occupied (PSE);
comoxos {COM); Turkey (TUR); Greece (GRC).

1Pgp: () [ ]

|

SUBJ; |deate on Flotilla to Gaza - 3 November 2011
{8/ NP

WARNING: {U) THIS IS AN INFORMATION REPORT, NOT FINALLY
EVALUATED INTELLIGENCE., REPORT CLRSSIFIED
BECRE T/[ rnoporm.

DOI: {U) 20111103.

RE%S: (| : }
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1.4(C)
B1
B3 DODFGI
SUMMARY: (U) SEE EXECUTIVE SUMMARY, TEXT PARAGRAPH 1, BELOW.
TEXT: 1. (8//NF) EXRCUTIVE SUMMARY. The November 2011 Gaza Flotilla
has. transited south of Cyprus and as of 0730% wap logated
approximately 250 nm from Gaza. ~Theére are 27 participanta fxom
multiple nations. The vespels declared a next port of eall to
Rhodes, but then thanged course after departing Turkish port. There
is a Turkish vessel providing an escort for the flotilla, but at this
time, it is not causing great consternation among the Israel Naval
Porces. The intentions of this flotilla are still not known, and
1.4(0)
B1
1.4(B)
1.4(C)
: 1.4(D)
B1
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COLL: {U)
INSTR; {U
EREP: {U}

AéQ: (U}
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SECRET/ | /NOFORNY,

CLASSIFIED BY:

DERIVED FROM:

DECLABSSIFY ON:

sucen/[orom

#oo00

Classification: SECRET/ANOFORN
Derived From: DSCS 05-1 (a)}, (b}, {d)
Doclassify On: 2036/11/03

B3 DOD-CP
B6—

From: Kumar, Prem G. [mailto:PKumar@nss.eop.sgov.gov]
Sent: Thursday, November 03, 2011 2:50 PM
To: Stafford, Edward G; Erickson, Mark D; Levin, Jan X; |

nm . |
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Sensitivity:  Sensitive
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Derived From: preceding thread
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From: Levin, Jan X
Seant: Thursday, November 03, 2011 11:34 AM
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Sent: Thursday, November 03, 2011 B:14 AM
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B6
TSubject; 'TREEDUM WAVES 10 GAZA™ FLOTILIA - TSITREP 2)
Classification: SECRET//REL TO USA, GBR
Classification: SECRET/REL TO USA, GBR 1.4(8)
Good morning J2 ~ 18;1-(0)

SITREP follows:

Convention: Blue is new

(U) This avent, called “Freadom Waves for Gaza,” unites 27x activists from at least 8x countries, including
America, Canada, Denmark, Belgium, Germany, and Australia, alongside Palestinians from Bethlehem and Haifa
in an international movement to break lsrael’s biockada of the 1.6 miliion inhabitants of the Gaza Strip. “Freadam
Waves for Gaxa” Is the 11™ attempt by international actlvists to defiver humanitarian aid through the Israeli  B1

blockade of Gaza since 2008. _ . 1.4(B)
1.4(C)
o ) T B1
_ 1.4(C)
{S//REL. TO USA, GBR) Flotilia Ships 1 4(D)
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Naval Activity: Routine B'1 I
|
]
JAC Molesworth wilt continue to keep ALCON infarmed. i
B3 DOD-CP
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[RELEASED IN FULL) "

The Supreme Court sitting as the High Court of Justice

HCJ 4169/10
HCJ 4193/10
HCJ 4220/10
HC) 4221/10
HCJY 4246/10
HCJY 4243/10

Before: The Honorable President D. Beinisch, The Honorable Jusiice
M. Naor, The Honorable Justice U. Vogelman
Respondents in HCJ 4169/10: The Minister of Defense; The Minister of

the Interior; The Minister of Public Securlty

Petitioners in HCJ 4193/10: Adatah — The Lepal Cenier for Arab
Minority Rights in Israel; Public Committee Against Torture in Israel;

Physicians for Human Rights
Respondents in HCJ 4193/10; The Minister of Defense; The Military
Advacate General; The Israc! Prison Service; The Israe] Police; The

lmmigration Authority

Petitioners in FICI 4220/10: Al Jazeera Satellite Network; Othman Al
Bukhbairi; Abas Naser; Muhammad Fal; All Sabri; Andrei Abu Kbalil;
Jamal Al Shial; Wasima Bin Safah

Respondents in HC) 4220/16: The Israel Defense Forces; Thie Minister of
Delense; The Minister of Public Security

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewerd -

|
i
!
!
|
l
Petitioners in HC) 4169/10: Yiftach Cohen; Omer Shatz, {tamar Mann i
|
|
I
|
{
I
I
f
|
|
|
I
|
|
I
|
I
I
i
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|

|

|

!

| 5

Petitioner in HCJ 4221/10: Yekuticl Ben Yaakov ;
Respondents in HCJ 4221/10: The Israc! Police; The Israel Prison l
Service; The Government of Isract; The Minister of Defense; The Prime '
Minister l
!|

Petitioner in HCT 4740/10: Shurat Hadin — Israel Law Cenler |
Respondents in HCJ 4240/10: The Attorney General; The Prime Minister; i
The Minister of Public Securily; The Minister of the Inlerior; The Israel I
Police '
I

Petitioners in HCJ 4243/10: 1. Almagor — Terror Victims Association; |
Y.5. — Navy commando (res.); D.B. ~ Navy commando (res)) and |
bereaved brother; Pniel Krichman; Yekira and Zecharia Komemi; Aviva !
and Rahamim Komemi, Trila Rahamim; Moshe Keinan, Briana and |
Shmuel Hilberg ' |
Respondents in HCY 4243/10; The Prime Minister; The Minister of the !
{nterior; ‘The Attorney General; The Inspecior General of the Israel Police |

I

Petitions to grant an order nisi i

|

Date of hearlng: 20 Nisan 5770 (June 2, 2010) I

' l

For the petitioners in HCJ 4169/10: ltamar Mann; Yiftach Cohen; Omer |

Shatz |

For the petitioners in HCJ 4193/10: Fatima Bi Ajou |

For the petitioners in HCJ 4220/10; Zski Kamal; Kamal Zaki Kama} f

For. the petitioner in HCJ 4421/10: Himself l

For the petitioner in HCJ 4240/10: Nitsana Darshan Leitner |

For the petitioners in HCY 4243/10: Sharon Avni; Shira Greenberg [

|

I

!

l

l

|
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:COE,thg' [} U.S, Lepariment of State ‘Case No. -2070-041638 Doc No. (LUo140844- Date: U1£18/20°

For the respondents: The State Attorney Moshe Lador; Osnat Mandel;
Ding Zilber; Hila Groni

Judgment
1 In view of the control of the Gaza Strip by the Hamas

organization, Isracl has taken various measures designed to prevent direcl
access (o the Gaza Strip, among them a blockade of the Gaza Strip which,
as declared by the State, is designed to prevent the infiltration of weapons
and arms o the Flamas organization, which, for years, has carried out acts
of shooting and lerrorism at Israeli territory for the purpose of harming

civilians.

2, In recent weeks, announceménts have been publicly made by
various organizalions, among them organizations that declarcd
themselves to be acting for humanitarian purposes, regarding their
intention o arrange & flotilla of ships which, they claimed, were
designated 1o transfer foodstufls and materials as humanitarian aid o the
residents of the Gaza Strip. Israel, for its part, made efforis to prevent the
flotilla from reaching: the shores of Gaza and breaching the blockade in
such manner. The State proposed to the organizers of the flotilla, among

others, that the cargo ~ which was supposed to reach Gaza ~ be unloaded
from the ships and transferred directly to Gaza via Jsrael. This proposal

|
was rejected. [
l
|
i
|
i
1

|
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0844 Date: 0171672013
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In the early hours of May 31, a number of ships approached the
shores of Israel fo implement the flotilla's plan. As decided by the
political echelon, the IDF prepared to take measures to prevent the entry
of the ships into the Gaza Strip as stated. In the framework of an

operation that was designed to stop the ships, soldiers landed on the deck

of the ship Mavi Marmara, the largest ship in the flotilla. The soldiers met
with a violerit and severé.response [rom. the flotilla participants on ihe
ship. The soldiers were attacked -with knives, clubs and iron rods.

were violenlly attacked, One of the soidiers was even thrown off the deck
of the ship. The soldiers were forced to respond to defend their lives and,
unfortunalely, the operation ended with unexpected loss of life - nine
people were kilted and both soldiers and flotilla participants were injured.
The operation concluded with the ships being halted and their passengers

removed and detained in Israel.

1 That same morning, when the results of the operation became
kriown, the pelition in HCJ 4169/10 was filed with this court (hereinafter;,
the First Petition), in which four attogneys filed the petition as public
petitioners. It shou!d be noted that at the opening of the hearing before us,
the petitioners gave notice of the request of attorney A, Feldman, who
was among the petitioners, lo strike his name from the petition. The

petition ascribed grave and illegal acls to the State of Israel and fhe

petitions sought a remedy of habeas corpus to free all the detainces, It is
evident in the petition, which was hastily filed, that, notwithstanding the
fact thai the petitioners knew nothing about the actual events, they were
quick to cast the gravest aspersions on the actions of ‘the IDF forces,

E
J
I
i
|
I
I
|
I
I
E
|
| I
] i
Altempts were made to seize the soldiers® personal weapons and they ! )
|
I
!
{
I
|
I
|
I
:
|
|
1
I
1
I
t
!
|
|
I
while using inappropriate language. Notwithstanding that stated, because |
!
I
I
I
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the relief sought was the release of the detainees, the petition was not
stricken in }imine at that stage, and the State’s response was requested by

the following day.

During the course of that day and the following day, a number
of additional petitions were fited with court. In  HCQ
4193710, which was filed on behatf of the Adalah organization and olher
human rights organizations, the petitioners requested information on the
detainees and their whéreabouts, ag well as details on the injured and the
dead. This petition was also filed as a public petition. Another petition
(HCJ 4220/10) was filed by the Al Jazeera television network and in the
name of journalists acting on iis behall who had been arrested on the
ship. This petition requested the release of the network personnel who
had participated in the flotilla. It should be noted that during the hearing
that we held, it transpired that his petition was super[luous since the

petitioners had alveady been released.

4, On June 1, 2010, the government issued a statement that all the
forcign fotilla participants would be relcased and returned to their
countries. After this statement was issued, three addilional pelilions were
filed with this court: HCI 4221710, which was filed on behalf of Mr.
Yekutiel Ben Yaakev; HCI 4240710, which was filed by Shurat Hadin ~
Israel Law Center; and -HIC 4243/10 fited by Almagor — Terror Victims
Association, In these three petitions, the remedy sought was to bar the
relcase of the foreign flotilla participants, with the main argument being
that these were peaple who had committed an offense, who were required
both for investigaling the facis and the circumslances surtounding the

incident and for a decision about arraignment for trial,

CO5UNMBASHTED U5, Depariment of Slale Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. CO5140844 Dals: 01]18/2073
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In view of the remedy sought, which related to the question of
the release of a large number of detainces, we conducted an urgent
hearing and deliberated all the petitions together before the punel al that

sessfon, and within two days of the filing of the First Pefition,

5. Before the hearing, the State submitted a written responsc in
which it protested the description of the events in the First Petition and
pointed out the distortion of the facts therein. In essence, the State
addressed the legality of the blockade and referred to an alternative
remedy set forth in the relevant provisions-of the Entry into lsrael Law,
5712-1952, with regard to the forcign participants in the flotilla and the
relevant provisions of the law pertaining to the criminal proceedings of
invesligation and detention with regard to the Israeli suspecis who
participated in the event. During the day, proximate to the time of hearing
the petitions, the Slate completed its statement and submitied a decision

e e e e e . e e md R —— . o ———— e ———— o — 2o e

formulated by the attorney general, which stated that on the day of the

evenl, May 31, 2010, the attorney general ordered the opening of an
investigation on suspicion of offenses committed on the deck of the ship
Mavi Marmara, including the offense of the grave attack on IDF soldiers,
disturbing the pcace, endangering the lives of soldiers, seizing weapons
and so forth, The attorney general further staled that the nex! day, the
miinisterial committee on national security matters convened and
conducted a long and exhaustive discussion of the sccurity, polilical,
tegal und other aspects. of the affair. Al the end of the discussion, the
senjor political echelon recommended *“to enable the immcdiate
deportation of alt the foreigners who had arrived on the flotilla, who were
suspecied of committing criminal offenses. This is recommended for
clear political reasons pertaining to foreign relations and the security of

the State of Israel.” In his decision, the attorney general noted that he had

!
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discussed the matter with the state attomey and other senior officials at

the Ministry of Justice and other government ministries, at the end of
which he decided, as stated, to allow the immediate deportation of all the

foreigners from Israel.

6. During the hearing before us, Siate Attorney Moshe Lador,
appearcd together with scnior atiorneys. It should be noted that due 10 the
nature of the proceedings which we conducted, we sought not 10 address
the claims pertaining to the icpatity of the blockade, nor with the factual
evenls during that grave incident, the full details of which had not been
presented o us, Claims pertaining to the detention of Israelis suspecied of
commilting offenses while participating in the flotilla were also nol
adjudicated before us, as they should be argued in individual hearings on
the criminal arrest proceedings before the competent courts. The hearing
focused on the urgent remedies sought which pertain to holding the
foreign detainees. The state aitorney stated that all the foreigners who
wished to do so could be released from detention and, in effect, those
who had not yet left the country were on their way Lo the airport. The
wounded whose medical condition allowed for it, were also removed Lo
their countries of origin, Apparently, two of the wounded remained in the
hospital because their condition did not enable them to be-flown back to
thejr country. The state attorney further stated that the names of all the
wounded had been submitted to the relevant consulales and, with regard
{0 those who came {rom coentrics that do not bave diplomatic refations
with Israel, the details were provided to the Red Cross. It stiould be noted
that the State did not see fil to acquiesce to the request to provide details
in this matter to counsel for the Adalah organization, as the details had
becn provided to the relevant entities. However, the possibility arose that

if a specific, substantive application were to be made to obtain dstails

[
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regarding one of the casualties or the wounded, the State would examine
the possibility of providing counsel for the Adzlah organizatjon with the
requested details. It-further transpired that the remaining details requested
by the Adalah organization regarding the place in which the detainees
were being held were resolved. The Adalah organization's counsel also
made cldims with regard to the detainees'ability to meet with aftorneys.
During the- hearing it was. made clear that there had been no intention 1o

with attorneys. Due to the need to relcase hundreds of people quickly, not
all the detainees may have had the opportunity to meel with an altorney.

The position of the attorney general to release all the foreign
participanis meant that the main remedy sought in the Firsi Petition was
already granted. In the course of the atguments, in view of the response
of the slate attorney and the cominents of the court, the. petitioners
retracted the style of the scathing verbal attack that they had employed in
the petition. '

7. As stated, three of the petitions were filed againsi the attormey
genesal’s decision to release the foreign deluinecs, Each one of the
petitioners argued before us at length about the importance of keeping the
deteinees in Isracl for the purpese of conducting an exhaustive
investigation regarding the grave everits that occurred on the ship, and
regarding the need to exercise the full rigor of the law or, at least, lo
investigate details which, they claim, would constitute defense arguments
for the IDF soldiers.

We did not find any ground for intervention in the decision of

|
!
|
|
i
|
!
prevent such & meeting, and many detalnces had aclually already met |
I
|
|
[
I
l
l
!
[
I
i
i
i
!
]
l
|
|
|
i
|
the atiorney gencral. The decision to release the detainees is in the realm |
|

|

I

|

|

I

|
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ol the attorney general’s discretion. In a long series of judgments, this !

Court has ruled thal the scope of intervention in the attomey general’s
discretion in decisions pertaining to investigation or prosecution is
Hmited to exceptional afid unusual instances. Duc to the-unusugl nature of
the event and the clrcumstances eniaited therein which, aside from the }

criminal aspects, also encompass political aspects periaining to the

State's foreign relations, the attorney peneral was entifled to consider
|hese aspects, The developments that have ensued in the international
arena indicate that a particular political sensitivity exists in cverything

pertaining to the handling of the matier by the enforcement entities. The

|
|
I
|
attorney general noted that he congulted with all the relevant government ;
entitios and after taking into account the fact that nine flotilla participants ,
were killed and several dozen were wounded, he reached the conclusion i
that the public, political and security interests outweigh the interests of !
criminal enforcement, We did not find in this decision, which was |
reasoned ns stated, and in the considerations underlying il, any cause for |

intervention.
Wherefore, afler we were convinced that the main remedies
sought in some of the petitions wore supeifluous, and. in the absence of

cause to intervene in the decision of the atiorney peneral, we have

decided to deny the petitions.

Given this day, 20 Sivan 5770 (June 2, 2010).

The President Justice Justice
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MEA Spokesman on Caza Hotilla 24-May-201U Page 1 of 2
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! [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senlior Reviewer]

Text:

Ships forcing their way into Gaza will do nothing to aid the people
there, Existing land crossings arc more than capable of meeting
their needs. International aid organizations and the private sector
of Gaza ensure that all the necessary food, medicine and clothing
are provided to the Strip via Israel.

In a typical week, 15,000 tons of supplies enter Gaza. Truckloads
[ of meat, poultry, fish, dairy products, fruits, vegetables, milk
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powder, baby food, wheat and other staples artive in Gaza on &
daily basis. Building materials are also shipped in, when
monitored by International organization so as not to be
commandesred by Hamas for the fortification of bunkers.

Since the ceasefire in January 2009, well over a million tons of
humanitarian supplies entered Gaza from Istael - that is almost a
ton of aid for each man, woman and child in the Strip.

The land crossings remain the most efficient system to transfer
goods.to Gaza, and the flotilia organizers are well aware of this
fact. The organizers also know that since December 2008, their
ships have been denied permission to land.

Tsrael has invited the organizers of the flotilla to use the land
crossings, in the samo manner as all the reputable interational
orgartizations.

However, they are less interested in bringing in aid than in
promoting their radical agenda, playing into the hands of Hamas
provocations. While they have wrapped themselves in a
humanitarian cloak, they are engaging in political propaganda and
not in pro-Palestinian aid.

If the organizers were truly interesting in providing humanitarian

aid - as opposed to engaging in publicity stunts - they would use
the proper channels to ensure delivery of any supplies.
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commupity keep the focus on what is certainly the main
probiem in-the Middle East and in the world: & nuclear
Iran. fran i$ trying in numerous ways to distract
{nternational attention away from lts nuclearization on the
eve of the Securlty Council's resolution on the subjact.
Iran s using extremist organizations and states in order
to distract world attention, and it is entirely possible that
the timing of the "terrorist flotifla” is not coincidental.

2. The purpose-of intercepting the flotilla was to protect
Israel’s security and sovereignty by maintaining the
maritime blockade on the Hamas terrorist entity and the
hostile territory of the-Gaza Strip. Israel must continue
the blockade In order to prevent more terrorist victims. ¥
the international community wants to give the proximity
talks between Israel-and the Palestinian Authority a real

-chance, it must strengthen the PA and Abu Mazen and

not the Hamas.

3. The goal of the flotilla was not peace but rather to
continue the tetrorism and to strengthen the waning
status of Hamas, which has been losing political and
ecohomic power,

4, HH, the organization behind the flotilla, has close
connections with Hamas, Al-Qaeda, and Global Jihad.
5. Israsl regrets the loss of lifg, but responsibility for
Moniday's events rests solsly on the organizers.

ln answer to a question concerning lsraeli-Turkish
relations, the deputy foreign minister said that Israe! did
not attack Turkey, although the latter had the power to
stop the flotlila, as Cypress did. Turkey must decide for
itself where its Interasts lie.

DFM Ayalon thanked all the participants for their support
of Israel and asked them to continue to engage In public
diplomacy. For-this purpose, the participants will be sent
clips from the IDF Spokesperson,

in light of the conference call’'s success, the participants

asked the organizers to set up calls of this type on a
regular basis as well as in times of emergency.

Feedback | Map | Hebrew
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The launching ccremony for the part in
the flotilla to the Gaza Strip was
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in Istanbul
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coordinating humanitarian aid to the
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English > News Channels > News and Events > 2010 > May > Navy Com
soldiers: “Act with judgment and accomplish the mission”

Navy Commandecr to soldiers: “Act with judgment and accomplish the mis
27 May 2010, 11 1:39 .

Maj. Gen. El Maj Gan. EliezorMarom
Marom
required
goldiérs not to
be dragged
into
provocations
while
fulfilling their
mission.
Moreover, the
flotilla will
have the

opportunity to
stI:)I;) its Y Navy Commander Maj. Gen,

journey to Eliezer Marom. Photo; [DF

'(_}'a_za’s"shores Spokesperson

Sa::gee\:l'ﬂl E] gerosh
otherwise the Sherel
passengers

will be

escorted into

Istael’s shores

and deported

to theif More Articles

country of IQPJQ!QIJS_amm_CKtL%&ié.hﬂkﬁQJQQMiﬂQﬁua
origin. The
aid brought
by the flotilla
will be
transferred
into the Gaza

NR

Strip after a
security
check.

According to the decision made by the Isracli government, the IDF and the
Navy are getting prepared to prevent the flotilla from reaching the shores ¢
flotilla’s passengers will be given the opportunity to tum back at any stage
or to give up the control of their ships.

From the moment of their departure, the ships will receive formal warning
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stages of their journey, requesting them to stop their trip to Gaza's shores.

Should the passengers decide to continue the journey and not take thie lsra
warning into consideration, they will be arrested, brought to Israel’s shore;
transferred to the Ministry of Interior and the immigration authorities so th
sent back to their country of origin,

The security forces will ‘grab hold of the aid expected to be brought to Gaz
flotilla, and after a security check of the goods, they will be transferred int:
Strip.

During the last few days, the Commander of the Navy, Maj, Gen. Eliezer!
organized a series of excrcises, consisting in stopping the flotilla, gaining «
the ships and brining them to Israel’s shores. He stressed that during the of
! Israeli forces willt take all the required steps in order to protect the soldiers
l make suré that no terrorist agents have been infiltrated into the ships,

Maj. Gen. Marom instructed his forces not to be dragged into provocation:
with fair judgment; otherwise it could be harmful to the mission’s accomp

He also said to his men that there is no intention to cause any harm among
hundreds of people expected to arrive on these ships, however a clear miss
assigned to the Israeli Navy and it has to be accomplished.
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_[——-——--'E'Go, invites the International fiotilla to unload its cargo in Ashdod port-27-May-
‘ o ) = | B {B-mail 10
& Israel invites the 5 |print the
tocauMeEbia  international flotilla to  |add to.m
L) Eacebook unload its cargo in ] see
[-] YouTube . '
(] Flicke Ashdod port | 5| Behin
MFA newsletter 27 May 2010 E . Headli
The Minister of Defense has issued . Istaeli
warrants prohibiting the entrance of -G Gal with humar
the vessels to Gaza. Israel has Swedish lifelin:
advised the relevant countries of Ambassador . | MEA;
this ban, ahd requested they Elisabet Borsiin Ships -
prevent the departure of the ggg‘;ggd(g‘mo_ way it
essols. . ' i
v | MFA) ffglt-ﬁ;
[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revt‘ewer] there
| MEAJ
(Communicate ' Saral
! cated by the MFA Spokesperson} Mandi
1
Ministry of Foreign Affairs Director-General Yossi Gal gﬁ;ﬁ
separately summoned today (Thursday, 27 May 2010} ]“,
the ambassadors of Turkey, Greece, Cyprus, Sweden [ lm—ae !
and Ireland ~ the countries from which the ships A
participating In the flotilla set sail, offorts ,
(] Aidte
At ail the mestings, D-G Gal expressly clarlfied the State Palesti
of Israel's official position, which declares the flotilla an
absolute provocation: There is no shortage of
humanitarian ald to Gaza, as food products, fuel and
supplies are constantly transferred into the Gaza Strip by
the international organizations, Therefore, the flotilla
organizers are invited to dock at Ashdod port, to unload
their cargo and transfer [tto Gaza, after a security check,
either via the !sraeli authorities or via the humanitarian
organizations.
........ R
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This is the third round of talks with the ambassadors, and
is in addition to paralel activities undertaken by Israeli
ambassadors in the various countrles waring the
governmants that the flotilla s about to break
internationat law. In-accordance with the authority
granted to the State of Israel, the Minister of Defense
issued warrants that prohibit the entrance of the vessels
to Gaza. Israel has advised the relevant countries of this
ban, and requested they prevent the departure of the
vessels.

The Ministry of Foreign Affairs has arranged with the
Ministry of Defense to assist the relevant government
ministrles in their handling of the passengers on the
fiotilla in.order to assist them In leaving the country as
800N as possible. The Consular Services Department
has.contacted the forelgn:embassies In Israe! and
explairied the measures expected to be implemented
against the participants in the flotilla. The MFA's situation
room will also be reinforced in order to provide a
response to developments.
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IDF SPOKESPERSON ((( g)))
ANNOUNCEMENT . T

|DF Spokesperson

May 31st, 2010
11130 FOR IMMEDIATE RELEASE

Pistols Found:.on Flotilla Activists

According to reports from sea, on board the flotilla_that was secking fo_break the maritime : !
closure on the Gaza Strip, IDF forees apprehended two violent activists holding pistols. The
violent activists took these pistols from IDF forces and apparently opened fire on the soldiers as

evident by the empty pistol magazines.

{REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer|

IDF Spokesperson Unit - Forefgn Press Branch : E

News Desk: +972-3-6080245/8 Arabic Medla Desk: +972-2-5485802
European & Paclfic Medla Dask: +972-2-5485800 Russtan Medla Desk: +872-2-5485808
North American Media Desk: +872-2-5485807 Cfficial IDF website: kifit/English
Latin-American & Asian Media Desk:  +972-2-5485801 IDF SpokespersonBlog:  Idfspokesperson.com
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are firing on-us with live fire!”

Video Reléase: "They are firing on us with live fire!"
01 June 2010, 21:08
Vidéo shows =
soldiers on
their way to
intercepting the
Mavi Marmara
ship being shot
at with live fire,

1=

During the
operation to
redirect the

Gaza flotilla on - :
Monday (May - IDF commandos boarding the

31), IDF Mavi Marmara ship. Photo: IDF
commandos Spokesperson

boardcd the

Mavi Marmata [%] geresn
ship. On the

other five ships Share]
which were

part of the

flotilla, the

interception

took place with  pore Articles

1o violence. LAF targets militant group preparing 10 Jaunch rockets

;",f}‘;’;‘;,?‘"‘ __m_ﬂummmﬁn,a_d_tm_ﬂqgmu__wﬁmgg
atterpted to : at.soldiers: “You operated ou
board the Mavi Emmmm&g,mm&m
Marmara,

activists on board attacked the soldiers and stole two pistols ina prepared :

In this footage you can hear the radio exchange between soldiers on their ¥
bridge and the IDF ship. Tho soldiers report encountering live fire and seri
violence,

On Tuesday (June 1) Captain R., a Naval Special Forces commander of on
squadrong who participated in the interception of the Mavi Marmara ship,
interview with IDF Radio: "There wete terrorists who wanted to kill us, I ¢
explain it any other way, We used evety means possible in order that those
shouldn’t get et ~— would not get hurt."
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Captain R.-was stabbed in the stomach and was wounded in his arm. "Afte
deseended from the helicopter, I was in front of several terrorists and I coc
weapon when | saw one of them come towards me with a knife. I fired one
at that point, another twenty people started coming at me from every direc
jumped at me and hurled me to the lower deck. At the samc time, I felt int
my stomach, I saw 2 knife stabbed into my stomach and I pulted it out. 1 s¢
managed to get to the lower level, where there was another mob of people.
with other team members, jumped into the water. The third commando tha
us was hit in the head and lost conisciousness," he said.

“We came to speak, they came to fight,”

Another naval soldier, who participated in the interception of the Mavi Ma
and sustained a broken arm while under attack by the ship’s passengers, de
how the soldiers were shot at from the entrance to the ship’s corridor.,

“I saw two from my group lying flat on the ground, From the opening of t
they were shooting at them the entire time with live fire, bullets. We identi
barrel, and one of us shot at the guy holding it, Afterwards we entered and
there, About 30 men, they simply came for war, We came to straighten thi
speak to those who went downstairs, but each of us who descended was sy
attacked.”

“There were some from my group that were thrown to the lower floor, and
passengers took their equipment. They jumped to the water as a last resort.
told that if they didn’t listen, we should shoot at their legs with our paintbe
pistol was to be used only if we really felt our lives in danger, which wasn
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to happen. It would be extremely abnormal. But in the end, that is what ha

“We came with the intention of stopping the ship and taking it to Ashdod,
not come with the-weapons we usually have; we came for something entin
different,”
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Video; Humanitarian aid from flotilla
transferred .into Gaza

IDF forees unioad the humanitarian
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IDF forces unload the humanitarian cargo from the | [x] Humaniterten Aid Tea
Gaza Flotilla and bring the aid through the Kerem Gaza Strip

Is]

i Shalom crossing

An average of 10,000 tons of aid a week are
imported into the Gaza Strip in coordination with
international organizations through the land
crossings. However, there remains a maritime
closure on the strip as Hamas continues to smuggle
weapons through tunnels for use against lsraeli
civilians.
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Video shows [] grenade thrown'from Mevi Marmara
what took place towards IDF soldiers

is IDF soldiers

intercepted the
Mavi Marmara
ship and were
attacked by its
passengers

Elana Kieffer

Video footage
shows Shayetet
Naval Special
Forces
attempting to
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intercept the Marmara ship towards IDS
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Law, Rosemary C

From: Aswad, Evelyn M
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4:30 PM
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen'; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert,
Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Pomper,-Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;
o = ownley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julie B B6
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA fiotilla briefing>
Looping in Mariano & Julie. EA
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3;:10 PM
To: 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen'; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas
B; Dolan, JoAnn v ) y
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; L ] B6
Townley, Stephen G S e
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>
ol W W e SEE = e —— et 85
Jon
From: Stephen & Betsy Pomper{Andersen(“ i == ‘ B6
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:14 PM
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;[ B e '_‘| B6
Townley, Stephen G i == -—SS a
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>
Folks-- [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
Here is a quick summary of where we seem to be on the grabbag of issues relating to the Israeli action off
of Gaza (please: jump in/correct as appropriate):
i = B5
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BS

From San Remo Manual on International Law Applicable to Armed Conflicts at Sea, 12 June 1994
http://mww.icre.org/inl.nsf/385ec082b509e76¢4 12567390032636d/7694fe2016f347e1c12564 1f002d49ce :

Blockade

83. A blockade shall be declared and notified to all belligerents and neutral States.

94. The declaration shall specify the commencement, duration, location, and extent of the blockade and the period within
which vessels of neutral States may leave the blockaded coastline.

95. A blockade must be effective. The question whether a blockade is effective is a question of fact.
96. The force maintaining the blockade may be stationed at a distance determined by military requirements.

97. A blockade may be enforced and maintained by a combination of legitimate methods and means of warfare provided
this combination cioes not result in acts inconsistent with the rules set out in this document.

98. Merchant vessels believed on reasonable grounds to be breaching a blockade may be captured. Merchant vessels
which, after prior warning, clearly resist capture may be attacked.
24
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99. A blockade must not bar access to the ports and coasts of neutral States.
100. A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels of all States.

101. The cessation, temporary lifting, re-establishment, extension or other alteration of a blockade must be deciared and
notified as in paragraphs 93 and 94.

102. The declaration or establishment of a blockade is prohibited if:

(a) it has the sole purpose of starving the civilian population ar denying it other objects essential for its survival, or
(b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in relation to the concrete and direct
military advantage anticipated from the blockade.

103. If the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided with food and other objects essential for
its survival, the blockading party must provide for free passage of such foodstuffs and other essential supplies, subject to:

(a) the right to pre:scribe the technical arrangements, including search, under which such passage is permitted; and
(b) the condition that the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of a Protecting Power or a
humanitarian arganization which offers guarantees of impartiality, such as the International Committee of the Red Cross.

104. The blockading belligerent shall allow the passage of medical supplies for the civilian population or for the wounded
and sick members of armed forces, subject to the right to prescribe technical arrangements, including search, under which
such passage is permitted.

Zones

105. A belligerent cannet be absolved of its duties under international humanitarian law by establishing zones which might
adversely affect the legitimate uses of defined areas of the sea.

106. Should a belligerent, as an exceptional measure, establish such a zone:

{a} the same body of law applies both inside and outside the zone;

(b) the extent, location and duration of the zone and the measures imposed shall not exceed what is strictly required by
military necessity and the principles of proportionality;

(c) due regard shill be given to the rights of neutral States to legitimate uses of the seas;

(d) necessary safie passage through the zone for neutral vessels and aircraft shall be provided:

(i) where the geographical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the ports and coasts of a
neutral State;

(ii) in other cases where normal navigation routes are affected, except where military requirements do not permit; and
(e) the commencement, duration, location and extent of the zone, as well as the restrictions imposed, shall be publicly
declared and appropriately notified.

107. Compliance with the measures taken by one belligerent in the zone shall not be construed as an act harmful to the
opposing belligerent, -

108. Nothing in this Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to control neutral vessels
and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval operations.

From Commanider's Handboolk

7.7 BLOCKADE

7.7.1 General

Blockade is a belligerent operation to prevent vessels and/or aircraft of all nations, enemy as well as neutral, from
enlering or exiting specified ports, airtields, or coastal arcas belonging to, occupied by, or under the control of an
enemy nation. While the belligerent right of visit and search is designed to interdict the flow of contraband goods,
the belligerent right of blockade is intended to prevent vessels and aircralt, regardless of their cargo, from
crossing an eslablished and publicized cordon separating the enemy from international walers and/or airspace.

25
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7.7.2 Criteria for Blockades
To be valid, a blockade must conform to the criteria in the following paragraphs.
7.7.2.1 Establishment
A blockade must be established by the government of the belligerent nation. This is usually accomplished by a
declaration of the belligerent government or by the commander of the blockading force acting on behaif of the belligerent
government. The declaration should include, as a minimum, the date the blockade is to begin, its
geographic limits, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircraft to leave the area to be blockaded.
7.7.2.2 Notification
It is customary for the belligerent nation establishing the blockade 1o notify all affected nations of its imposition.
Because knowledge of Lhe existence of a blockade is an essential element of the vtfenses of breach and attempted
breach of blockadle (see paragraph 7.7.4), neutral vessels and aircrall are always entitled to notification. The
commander of the blockading forces will usually also notify local authorities in the blockaded area. The form of
the notification is not material so long as it is effective.
7.7.2.3 Effectiveness
To be valid, a blockade must be effective—thal is, it must be maintained by a surface, air, or subsurface force or
other legilimate methods and means of warfare that is sufficient to render ingress or egress of the blockaded area
dangerous. The requirement of effectiveness does not preclude temporary absence of the blockading force, if such
absence is due to stress of weather or to some other reason connected with the blockade (e.g., pursuit of a
blockade runner). Effectiveness does not require that every possible avenue of approach to the blockaded area be
covered.
7.7.2.4 Impartiality
A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels and aircraft of all nations. Discrimination by the blockading
belligerent in favor ot or against the vessels and aircraft of particular nations, including those of its own or those
ol an allied nation, renders the blockade legally invalid.
7.7.2.5 Limitations
A blockade must not bar access to or departare from neutral ports and coasts, Neutral nations retain the right to
engage in neutral commerce that does not involve trade or communications originating in or destined for the
blockaded area. A blockade is prohibited if the sole purpose is to starve Lhe civilian population or to deny it other
objects essential for its survival.
7.7.3 Special En{ry and Exit Authorization
Although neutral warships and military aircraft enjoy no positive right of access to blockaded areas, the '
helligerent imposing Lhe blockade may authorize their entry and exit. Such special authorization may be made
subject to such conditions as the blockading force considers to be necessary and expedient. Neutral vessels and
aircrafl in evident distress should be authorized entry into a blockaded area, and subsequently authorized to
depart, under conditions prescribed by the officer in command ol the blockading force or responsible for
maintenance of the blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines). Similarly, neutral vessels and aircraft engaged in the
carriage of qualifying relief supplies for the civilian population and the sick and wounded should be authorized to
pass through the blockade cardon, subject to the right of the blockading force Lo prescribe the technical
arrangements, including search, under which passage is permitted.
7.7.4 Breach and Attempted Breach of Blockade
Breach of blockade is the passage of a vessel or aircraft through a blockade without special entry or exil
authorization frorn the blockading belligerent. Attempted breach of blockade occurs from the time a vessel or
aircrafl leaves a port or airfield with the intention of evading the blockade, and for vessels exiting the blockaded
area, conlinues until the voyage is completed. Knowledge of the existence of the blockade is essential to the
olfenses of breach of blockade and attempted breach of blockade. Knowledge may be presumed once a blockade
has been declared and appropriate nolitication provided to atfecled governments. I is immaterial that the vessel or
aircrafl is at the time of interception bound for neutral territory, if its ultimate destination is the blockaded area.
There is a presumption of attempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircrafl are bound for a neutral port or airfield
serving as a point of transit to the blockaded area. (Capture of such vessels is discussed in paragraph
7.10.)
7.7.5 Contemporary Practice
The criteria lor valid blockades, as set out above in paragraph 7.7.2, are [or the most part customary in nature,
having derived their definitive form through the practice ol maritime powers during the nineteenth century. The
rules reflect a balance between the right of a belligerent possessing effective command of the sea (o close enemy
ports and coastlines to international commerce, and the right of neutral nations to carry out neutral commerce with
the least possible interference from belligerent forces. The law of blockade is, therefore, premised on a system of

%6
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controls designed to effect only a limited interference with neutral trade. This was traditionally accomplished by a
relalively “close-in” cordon of surface warships stationed in the immediate vicinity of the blockaded area.

The increasing ennphasis in modern warfare on seeking to isolale completely the enemy from outside assistance
and resources by largeting enemy merchant vessels as well as warships, and on interdicting all neutral commerce
with the enemy, is not furthered substantially by blockades established in strict conformity with the traditional
rules. In World Wars I and II, belligerents of both sides resorted 1o methods which, although frequently referred to
as measures of blockade, cannot be reconciled with the traditional concept of the close-in blockade. The so-called
long-distance blockade of both world wars deparled materially from those traditional rules and were premised in
large measure upon the belligerent right of reprisal against illegal acts of warfare on the part of the enemy.
Moreover, developments in weapons systems and plaiforms, particularly submarines, supersonic aircraft, and
cruise missiles, have rendered the in-shore blockade exceedingly difficult, if not impossible, to maintain during
anything other than a local or limited armed conflict. Accordingly, the characteristics of modern weapon systems
will be a factor in analyzing the effectiveness of contemporary blockades.

Notwithstanding this trend in belligerent practices (during general war) away from the establishment of blockades
that conform to the traditional rules, blockade continues to be a useful means Lo regulate the competing interests
of belligerents and neutrals in more limited armed conflicl. The experience of the United States during the
Vietnam conflict provides a case in point. The closing of Haiphong and other North Vietnamese ports,
accomplished by the empiacement of mines, was undertaken in conlormity with traditional criteria of
establishment, notification, effectiveness, limitation, and impartiality, although at the time the mining took place
the term “blockadle” was not used.

From:
To: schwartzjb@state.gov; perinaah@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; jacobsonl@state.gov;
heinemanntb@state.gov; dolanja@state.gov

CC: aswadem@state.gov; sullivandji@state.gov; pomperse2@state.gov; guarinmf@state.gov;
donoghueje@state.gov

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 17:29:30 40000

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

> Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 13:01:59 -0400

> From: Schwartz)B@state.gov

> To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; JacobsonL@state.gov;
HeinemannTB@state.gov; Dolan]JA@state.gov

> CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanD]1@state.gov; |
PomperSE2@state.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov

> mmmen Original Message-----

> From: Perina, Alexandra H

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM

> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann,
Thomas B; Dolain, JoAnn
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> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J;|
Marc F
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

=

|P0rr|per, Stephen E; Guarin, B6

‘BS

>

> ----- Original Message-----

> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:17 PM
> To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn;
Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

> Subject: RE: | comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

BS

> meme- Original Message-----

> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM

> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobsen, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn;
Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

BS

> -----uriginar Miessage--—--

> From: Baumert, Kevin A

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM
> To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

> —— R -

BS
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> -—--- Original Message -----

> From: Jacobson, Linda

> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Geldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

> Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2010

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA fiotilla briefing>

BS

>

> —--m- Original Message -----

> From: Baumert, Kevin A

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson,
Linda; Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

> Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

> : ——— . : ———e— L

BS

> Kevin

> L/OES

> [
> mmees Original Message -----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H
> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda
> Sent: Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010

> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

>

i e T I BS

> e Original Message-----

> From: Cunningham, James B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

- —_

BS

> ----- Original Message --—--
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly, Maura;
Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov>

> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn

> Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010

> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> )
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>
> See below from Jonathan pls.
>

i > ----- Original Message-----

' > From: Schwartz, Jonathan B
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM
> To: Goldberger, Thomas H
> Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann,
Thomas B
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing

B5

b Original Message -----
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

> To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B

> Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn
> Sent: Mon May 31 09:05:16 2010

> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing

>

BS

> —=-e- Original Message -----

> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L
> Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010

> Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing

B5

> —fom= Qriginal Message -----
BERE] " e o we | B3 DOD-CP
> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker,
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B3 DOD-CP

Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo
Salvatore A (Isitanbut), Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); r

| — Lewn Jan;| T

> Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

>

| s B3 DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlights - B3 DODFGI
> - Ongoing Operation

> - Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I

> - M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L

> - All ships will be in port by later today

> - 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed

> - 30 Civilians. Wounded

> - 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds

> - Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled

> - Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law because of intent

by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides)

=

——) ' ' B3 DOD-CP

S
=
> --1--Original Message----- |
> From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem)
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM
> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker,
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;

Amodeaq, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D B3 DOD-CP
> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapirc@who.eop.gov' '
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

>

> This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from me, but

just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from‘ ,Nhn also B6
spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am.

>

- ~ |reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met with what B6

he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded were

attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boarded were

attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation

was one in which actions taken were in self-defense.

>

> Current estimates of those killed from flotiila 14-15 "maybe more”. He said all injured being moved to

Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them coming inte

Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; move the

people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned

initially, move as much of into Gaza as promptly as possible.

>

> Earlier this mormng _E_j'nade the following calls/contacts: B6
> --Turkish FM and MOD1 kat, Fayyad, and Hussein al ShEIkhl:]He felt the calls w the

Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he will handle. With Pals,
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Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad
they discussed primarily need for security cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will
be affected by status of Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla.

>

> (PIC seems tn be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.)
>

gy Original Message-----

> From: Cunningham, James B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM

> To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason
B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, JohnR;] | Amodeo, B3 DOD-CP
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D

> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’

> Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing

>

> Qur Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's available.
UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod. Serry is
trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that assisting deliveries of humanitarian
goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press
conference, and appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am.

> Sent from my BlackBerry

>

> ----- Original Message -----

> From: Levin, Jan

> To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C;
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; | B3 DOD-CP
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D

> Sent; Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010

> Subject: MFA flotilla briefing

>

i B3 DODFGI

WX S -+
> Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively to Embassies
as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be processed and escorted to
airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take.

> -- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injuries

occurred on this ship.

> == told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and weriB3 DODFGI
armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF soldier

nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives.

> -- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in intl

waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Hamas.

>

> Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank you.

Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn more.

The New Busy is not the old busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Get started.
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RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD-CP,B3 DODFGI,B5,B6|

Law, Rosemary C

From: Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:35 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Goldberger, Thamas H; Baumert, Kevin A;
Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn

Cc: Sullivan, David J; |Pomper. Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F;
Martin, Julie B; Banos, Mariano H; Khanna, Melanie J; Harris, Robert K

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Looping in Julie Martin who is TDY to Geneva for HRC and following this issue from there as
well as Mariano who will follow this during the week from DC. EA

----- Original Message-----

From: Schwartiz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 281@ 12:82 PM

To: Perina, Alexandra H; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann,
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; |
Guarin, Marc F

Subject: RE: L. comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

s Pomper, Stephen E;

B5

BS

----- Original Message-----

From: Perina, Alexandra H

Sent: Monday, May 31, 281@ 12:56 PM
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann,
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn 3
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; ~|; Pomper, Stephen E;
Guarin, Marc F

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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----- Original Message-----

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 20186 12:17 PM

To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

Subject: RE: I comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

————— Original Message-----

From: Goldberger, Thomas H

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 11:48 AM

To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David 3J

Subject: RE: I. comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

BS

----- Original Message-----

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2816 11:34 AM

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
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H j

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent: Mon May 31 11:2@:32 2010

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

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson,
Linda

Sent: Mon May 31 18:58:27 2010

Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

----- Original Message----- [
From: Cunningham, James B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 18:47 AM

To: Goldberger, Thomas H

Subject: Re: L. comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

----- Original Message -----
From: Goldberger, Thomas H
To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly,
Maura; Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B._ Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov>
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn

Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 20160

Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

See below from Jonathan pls.
-----0riginal Message-----
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2819 9:13 AM
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

e ) B

----- Original Message -----
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B
To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B

Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris; Rabert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Mon May 31 89:85:16 2018
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing

BS

----- Original Message -----

From: Goldberger, Thomas H

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L
Sent: Mon May 31 ©8:24:00 2010

Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing

----- Original Message -----
From: | | B3 DOD-CP,

To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J;
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,

John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara

(Jegysalem);{ ﬁ Levin, Jan;

.
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Sent: Mon May 31 ©8:@8:22 2010
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

| E— N B3 DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have already been provided viz other means. Specific HighlBB DODFGI

- Ongoing Operation

- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I

- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1768L and 18@@L

- All ships will be in port by later today

- 18-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed

- 38 Civilians Wounded

- 18 IDF wouncled to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium” wounds

- Turkish Ambaissador to Israel recalled

- Interaction occurred approx 78 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides)

| s = B3 DOD-CP

----- Original Message-----

From; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem)

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 2:46 PM |

To: tunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J;

Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,

John R; | | Amodeo, Salvatcre A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, JeB3 DOD-CP
D

Cc: 'Dennis_B._ Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; ‘Dshapiro@who.eocp.gov’

Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from Gen.
[ |who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. B6

reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met
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

Current astimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”. He said all injured
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

Earlier this morning made the following calls/contacts:
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--Turkish FM and MoD | I; Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh '_;} He felt the
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he

will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of
rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for security
cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by status of
Israeli Arab XIslamic leader on board the flotilla.

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.)

----- Original Message-----

From: Cunningham, James B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2016 1:38 PM

To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C;

Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; ]
!Amodpo, Salvatore A (Istanbul), Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maur‘a, Feltn33 DOD-CP

Jeffrey D

Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov'

Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have 5poken to
Davotuglu this am.

Sent from my BlackBerry

----- Original Message -----
From: Levin, Jan
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James 8; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew
C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; ]
| Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem), Connelly, Maura; Feltrg3 DOD-CP
Jeffrey D
Sent: Mon May 31 13:2@:31 2014
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing B3 DODFGI

o

Highlights - Jdentification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively
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

—_‘told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarderB2 DODFGI
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party.
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives.

-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to
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
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[RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD-CP,B3 DODFGI,B5,B6| .
Law, Rosemary C
From: Baumert, Kevin A
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4:54 PM
To: Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B;
s Jls |Perina, Alexandra H; Jacabson, Linda; Heinemann, |
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn ‘L \
Ce: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Marian
H; Martin, Julie B
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

From: Purnper, Stephen E

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4:31 PM

To: Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; |
Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn

Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julie B
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

removing non L address

__|Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A;

From: Aswad, Evelyn M

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen’
Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn

Cc: Sullivan, Dade Pomper, Stephen E; Guann Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;|

| Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mananc H; Martin, Julie B

Sent: Mon May 31 16:29:33 2010

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

| Perina, Alexandra

Looping in Mariano & Julie. EA REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:10 PM
To: 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thome
B; Dolan, JoAnn 5

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;/| |
Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

e T e

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05129937 Date; 02/20/2013

StateDept004321

B6

' BS

B6

B6

B6
B6




UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05129937 Date: 02/20/2013

From: Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen |:“ == ‘
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:14 PM e

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn'

Cc: Aswad, E\relyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;

Townley, Stephen G
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA fictilla briefing>

Folks--

BS

B6
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|

Erom San Remo Manual on International Law Applicable to Armed Conflicts at Sea, 12 June 1;;}_

http://www.icrc.ora/inl.nst/385ec082b509e76c41256739003e636d/76941e2016f347e1c125641f002d49ce
Blockade g
93. A blockade shall be declared and notified to all belligerents and neutral States.

94, The declaration shall specify the commencement, duration, location, and extent of the blockade and the period within |
which vessels of neutral States may leave the blockaded coastline.

95, A blockade must be effective. The question whether a blockade is effective is a question of fact.
96. The force maintaining the blockade may be stationed at a distance determined by military reguirements. |

97. A blockade may be enforced and maintained by a combination of legitimate methods and means of warfare provided
this combination does not result in acts inconsistent with the rules set out in this document. [

98, Merchant vessels believed on reasonable grounds to be breaching a blockade may be captured. Merchant vessels
which, after prior warning, clearly resist capture may be attacked.

99. A blockade must not bar access to the ports and coasts of neutral States.
100. A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessals of all States. ' |

101. The cessation, temporary lifting, re-establishment, extension or other alteration of a blockade must be declared and
natified as in paraigraphs 93 and 94.

102. The declaration or establishment of a blockade is prohibited if:

(a) it has the sole purpose of starving the civilian population or denying it other objects essential for its survival; or .
(b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in relation to the concrete and direct |
military advantage anticipated from the blockade. |

103. If the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided with food and other objects essential for
its survival, the blockading party must provide for free passage of such foodstuffs and other essential supplies, subject to:

(a) the right to presscribe the technical arrangements, including search, under which such passage is permitted; and i
(b) the condition that the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of a Protecting Power or a.

humanitarian organization which offers guarantees of impartiality, such as the International Committee of the Red Cross. |
|

|
104. The blockading belligerent shall allow the passage of medical supplies for the civilian population or for the wounded
and sick members of armed forces, subject to the right to prescribe technical arrangements, including search, under which,
such passage is permitted.

Zones |

105. A belligerent cannot be absolved of its duties under international humanitarian law by establishing zones which n']ight!
adversely affect the legitimate uses of defined areas of the sea. <

108. Should a belligerent, as an exceptional measure, establish such a zone:
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(a) the same body of law applies both inside and outside the zone;

(b) the extent, location and duration of the zone and the measures imposed shall not exceed what is strictly required by
military necessity and the principles of proportionality;

(c) due regard shall be given to the rights of neutral States to legitimate uses of the seas;

(d) necessary sate passage through the zone for neutral vessels and aircraft shall be provided:

(I) where the geographical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the ports and coasts of a
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
opposing belligerent.

w

108. Nothing in this Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to contral neutral vesse|
and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval operations.

From Commander's Handbook

7.7 BLOCKADE

7.7.1 General

Blockade is a belligerent operation to prevent vessels and/or aircraft of all nations, enemy as well as neutral, from
entering or exiting specified ports, airfields, or coastal areas belonging to, occupied by, or under the control of an
enemy nation. While the belligerent right of visit and search is designed to interdict the flow of contraband goods,
the belligerent right of blockade is intended to prevent vessels and aircraft, regardless of their cargo, from
crossing an established and publicized cordon separating the enemy from international waters and/or airspace.
7.7.2 Criteria for Blockades

To be valid, a blockade must conform to the criteria in the following paragraphs.

7.7.2.1 Establishment i
A blockade must be established by the government of the belligerent pation. This is usually accomplished by a |

declaration ol the belligerent government or by the commander of the blockading force acting on behalf of the belligerent

government. The declaration should include, as 2 minimum, the date the blockade is to begin, its

geographic limits, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircraft 1o leave the area to be blockaded.
7.7.2.2 Notification

It is customary for the belligerent nation establishing the blockade to notify all affected nations of its imposition.
Because knowledge of the existence of a blockade is an essential element of the offenses of breach and attempted
breach of blockade (see paragraph 7.7.4), neutral vessels and aircrafl are always entitled to notification. The
commander of the blockading forces will usually also notify local authorities in the blockaded area. The form of
the notification is not material so long as it is effective.

7.7.2.3 Effectiveness

To be valid, a blockade must be effective—that is, it must be maintained by a surface, air, or subsurface force or
other legitimate methods and means of wartare thal is sufficient to render ingress or egress of the blockaded area
dangerous. The requirement of effectiveness does not preclude lemporary absence of the blockading force, if such
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
belligerent in favor of or against the vessels and aircraft of particular nations, including those of its own or those
of an allied nation, renders the blockade legally invalid..

7.7.2.5 Limitations

A blockade must niot bar access to or departure from neutral ports and coasis. Neutral nations retain the right to
engage in neutral commerce that does not involve trade or communications originating in or destined for the
blockaded area. A blockade is prohibited if the sole purpose is (o starve the civilian population or to deny it other
objects essential for its survival,
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7.7.3 Special Entry and Exit Authorization

Although neutral warships and military aircraft enjoy no positive right of access to blockaded areas, the
belligerent imposing the blockade may authorize their entry and exit. Such special authorization may be made
subject to such conditions as the blockading force considers to be necessary and expedient. Neutral vessels and
aircraft in evident distress should be authorized entry into a blockaded area, and subsequently authorized to
deparl, under conditions prescribed by the officer in command of the blockading force or responsible for
maintenance of the blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines). Similarly, neutral vessels and aircrafl engaged in the
carriage of qualifying relief supplies for the civilian population and the sick and wounded should be authorized (o
pass through the blockade cordon, subject to the right of the blockading force to prescribe the technical '
arrangements, including search, under which passage is permitted.

7.7.4 Breach and Attempted Breach of Blockade

Breach of blockade is the passage of a vessel or aircraft through a blockade without special entry or exit
authorization frorn the blockading belligerent. Attempted breach of blockade occurs from the time a vessel or
aircrafl leaves a port or airfield with the intention of evading the blockade, and for vessels exiting the blockaded
area, continues until the voyage is completed. Knowledge of the existence of the blockade is essential to the
offenses of breach of blockade and attempted breach of blockade. Knowledge may be presumed once a blockade
has been declared and appropriate notification provided to affected governments. It is immaterial that the vessel or
aircraft is at the time of interception bound for neutral territory, if its ultimate destination is the blockaded area.
There is a presumption of attempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircralt are bound for a neutral port or airficld
serving as a point of transit to the blockaded area. (Capture of such vessels is discussed in paragraph

7.10.)

7.7.5 Contemporary Practice

The criteria for valid blockades, as set out above in paragraph 7.7.2, are for the most part customary in nature,
having derived their definitive form through the practice of maritime powers during Lhe nineteenth century. The
rules reflect a balance between the right of a belligerent possessing effective command of the sea to close enemy
ports and coastlines to international commerce, and the right ol neutral nations to carry out neutral commerce with
the least possible interference from belligerent forces. The law of blockade is, therefore, premised on a system of
controls designed to effect only a limited interference with neutral trade. This was traditionally accomplished by a
relatively “close-in” cordon of surface warships stationed in the immediate vicinity of the blockaded area.

The increasing emphasis in modern warfare on seeking to isolate completely the enemy from outside assistance
and resources by targeting enemy merchant vessels as well as warships, and on interdicting all neutral commerce
with the enemy, is not furthered substantially by blockades established in strict conformity with the traditional
rules. In World Wars 1 and I1, belligerents of both sides resorted to methods which, although frequently referred 1o
as measures of blockade, cannot be reconciled with the traditional concept of the close-in blockade. The so-called
long-disiance blockade of both world wars departed materially from those traditional rules and were premised in
large measure upon the belligerent right of reprisal against illegal acts of warfare on the part of the enemy.
Moreover, developments in weapons systems and platforms, particularly submarines, supersonic aircraft, and
cruise missiles, have rendered the in-shore blockade exceedingly difticult, if not impossible, to maintain during
anything other than a local or limited armed conflict. Accordingly, the characleristics of modern weapon systems
will be a factor in analyzing the effectiveness of contemporary blockades.

Notwithstanding this trend in belligerent practices (during general war) away from the establishment of blockades
that conform to the traditional rules, blockade continues 1o be a useful means to regulale the competing interests
of belligerents and neutrals in more limited armed conflict. The experience of the United States during the
Vietnam conflict provides a case in point. The closing of Haiphong and other North Vietnamese ports,
accomplished by the emplacement of mines, was undertaken in conformity with Lraditional criteria of
establishment, notification, effectiveness, limitation, and impartiality, although at the time the mining took place
the term “blockade™ was not used.

From:
To: schartzjb@”slate.gov; perinaah@state.qov; baumertka@state.gov; jacobsoni@state.gov;
heinemanntb@state.gov; dolanja@state.gov

CC: aswadem@state.gov; sullivandjl@state.gov; pomperse2@state.gov; guarinmf@state.gov;
donoghueje@state.gov
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Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>
Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 17:29:30 +0000

Marc Guarin is going to log in and weigh in on this question. I also reached out to JCS legal to see if they
have a Navy lawyer we can talk to, Have taken Tom G off this chain for the moment, Steve

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
HeinemannTB@state.gov; Dolan]A@state.gov

> CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanD]1@state.gov; | ‘
PomperSE2@state.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov -

|

> -----0Original Message-----

> From: Perina, Alexandra H

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM

> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann,
Thomas B; Dolain, JoAnn

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J;

Marc F

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA fiotilla briefing>

{Pomper, Stephen E; Guarip,

s S S — —_— == | ==

L - — e e e ——

>
Banses Original Message-----

> From: Schwaitz, Jonathan B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:17 PM
> To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn;
Perina, Alexandrra H :
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> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

. - S iy
- Original Message----- |
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM

> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, loAnn;
> From: Baumert, Kevin A

Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA ﬂo‘tilla briefing>

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM :
> To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dalan, |
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H |
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> .

S It Original Message --—-- '
> From: Jacobson, Linda

> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

> Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2010

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> '
> DE—— = = B!

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

> L/JOES = - i .
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> =mmes Original Message ----- |
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobsan, Llnda
> Sent: Mon May 31 10:50: 27 2010

> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

e o 9nginar rressage
> From: Cunningham, James B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H ' .
> Subject: Re: |. comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

> — - — ——— ="

'B5

S e - Original Message -----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H ;
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

>
> See below from Jonathan pls. l
) 1

> e Original Message---—- |

> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H

> Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann,
Thomas B i
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing

> — — e

> —m—- Original Message -----
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B I
> To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B |
> Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn
> Sent: Mon May 31 09:05:16 2010 .
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing :

~
-

- PG - ——
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

} — —
> mme== Original Message ----- ‘

> From{ ] B3 DOD-CP

> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker,

Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo,
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem);f— |
| | Levin, Jan;| : i R
> Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 I
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing : I
>

| o
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlights - B3 DODFGI

> - Ongoing Operation

> - Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I
> - M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L |
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
>

|
us]
@
W)
Q|
v
o
v

VVVVVVVVPY
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D Original Message-----

> From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem)

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM
> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, _
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; J :
| ~_|Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D B3 DOD-CP
> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’
> Subject: RE: MFA fiotilla briefing

>
> This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from me, but .
just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is fromr Who alsp BB
spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. -

- SNERAC—

S reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met with what

hlé‘ﬂ@sﬁﬁad as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded were
attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boarded were
attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation
was one in which actions taken were in self-defense.
>

> Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more”. He said all injured being moved to
Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them coming into
Haifa). At Ashdoad, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; move the
people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned
initially, move as much of into Gaza as promptly as possible.

>

> Earlier this morning[________ made the following calls/contacts:

> --Turkish FM and MoD Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheik He felt the calls w the

Turks given the situation were OK, but the coencern clearly is Erdogan and how he will handle. With Pals,

Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad '

they discussed primarily need for security cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this wil
be affected by status of Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla.

>

> (PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.)
>

O Original Message-----

> From: Cunningham, James B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM .

> To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason

B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; [ t Amodeo, B3 DOD-CP
Salvatore A (lstanbul), Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman Jeffrey D
> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov'

> Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing

>

> Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's available.
UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod. Serry i
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

>

Di s Original Message -----

> From: Levin, Jan

> To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C;
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Ehsa Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; B3 DOD-CP
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbu!). Rudman Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman Jeffrey D

> Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010

> Subject: MFA fiotilla briefing

>

U
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>

> Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively to Embassies
as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be processed and escorted to ’e
airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. |
> -- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injuries: '
eccurred on this ship. f :
>--[  Jrold Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and wereg3 DODFGI
armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF soldier
nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists zlso had knives. !
> -- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in intl
waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Hamas.
>

> Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank you. |

Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn more.

The New Busy is not the old busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Get started. .
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Law, Rosemary C

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:24 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B;
Dolan, JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Yes, just to confirm, that was my point. Thanks. Kevin

----- Original. Message -----
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B
To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J

Sent: Mon May 31 12:17:15 2018

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

----- Original Message-----

From: Goldberger, Thomas H

Sent: Monday, May 31, 20616 11:48 AM

To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David 3

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

----- Original Message-----

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 11:34 AM
To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolani
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David 1]

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
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M [REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer,

Sent: Mon May 31 11:26:32 2618
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>
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----- Original Message -----
From: Baumert, Kevin A

To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson)

Linda; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:25 2018

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

Sent: Mon May 31 18:50:27 2018

Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

----- Original Message-----

From: Cunningham, James B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 208186 10:47 AM

To: Goldberger, Thomas H

Subject: Re: I comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Sent from my BlackBerry

----- Original Message -----

From: Goldberger, Thomas H
To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly,

Maura; Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel B. Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov>
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn

Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:0@ 2810

Subject: FW: L. comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

See below from Jonathan pls.

----- Original Message-----
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B
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To: Goldberger, Thomas H
Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinema

Thomas B
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing \

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM |
Jn,i

BS

----- Original Message -----

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B

Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Mon May 31 @9:85:16 2018

Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing ,

3 ' | B5

----- Original Message -----

From: Goldberger, Thomas H

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L
Sent: Mon May 31 ©8:24:8@ 2018

Subiect: FW: MFA flotilla hriefine b L B5

----- Original Message ----- =

From:| . B3 DOD-CP
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc Jj | | .
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, =

John' R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara
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(Jerusalem); |

Sent: Mon May 31 98:88:22 2018
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

| tevin, Jan;[ B3 DOD-CP

| ¥ _ _ . % _ _ B3 DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific HighlB3 DODFGI

- Ongoing Operation

- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I

- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1786L and 18@eL

- All ships will be in port by later today

- 18-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed

E - 38 Civilians Wounded

| - 1@ IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with “medium" wounds

- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled

- Interaction occurred approx 78 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides)

i ) | - _

I 0r1g1nal Message-----
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) |
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 2:46 PM
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J;'
Parker,[fffff? -8 Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,
John R;

Cc. 'Dennis_B._ Ross@nsc.eop.gov’; ‘Dshapiro@who.eop.gov'
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is FPOm[:::]
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
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Gaza as'|

promptly as possible.
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Earlier this morning | made the following calls/contacts:
--Turkish FM and MoD Erakat, Fayyad; and Hussein al Sheikh J He felt the
calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he

will handle. With Pals, Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of
rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad they discussed primarily need for security
cocperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will be affected by status of
Israeli Arab Islamic leader on beard the flotilla.

(PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.)

————— Original Message-----

From: Cunningham, James B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2019 1:38 PM

To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers; Marc J; Parker, Andrew C;
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; b
| ‘_] Amodio, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; FeltnB3 DOD-CP
Jeffrey D

Cc: 'Dennis_B._ Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eaop.gov’,
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a3 couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that
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
From: Levin, Jan .
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew
C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;
| Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltmanl
Jeffrey D B3 DOD-CP
Sent: Mon May 31 13:28:31 2018
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing

e Shemem— . B3 DODFGI‘

Highlights - ldentification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactivel#
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take.

-- Most violerice occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all
injuries occurred on this ship.

ltold Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders B3 DODFGI

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

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thjnk'
you.
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[RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD-CP,B3 DODFGI,B5,B6|

Law, Rosemary C

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:02 PM ;

To: 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen'; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Jacabsg
Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

I’'m going to be inaccessible by email for a few hours. Here is my $.02 on the laws of the sea angle. This can bere-
packaged, as appropriate to the broader policy distro.

BS

Thanks,
Kevin

From: Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen E |
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:30 PM P w0

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, Jof
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Marc Guarin is going to log in and weigh in on this question. I also reached out to JCS legal to see if the
have a Navy lawyer we can talk to. Have taken Tom G off this chain for the moment. Steve

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

> Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 13:01:59 -0400

> From: Schwartz]B@state.gov

> To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; JacobsonL@state.gov;
HeinemannTB@state.gov; Dolan]A@state.gov

> CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanDJ1@state.gov;|
PomperSE2@state.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov

ann
|
|

v |

B6

> . S—— — o
|
|
I
— P - = |
> jon |
% [REVIEW AUTHORITY: _Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer '
s Original Message----- i

> From: Perina, Alexandra H
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM
> To; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann,
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Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn .
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J,; — Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin,
Marc F i
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

-~

< i . S
b Original Message-----

> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:17 PM

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn,
Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

- Original Message-----

> From: Goldberrger, Thomas H

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM
> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacebson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn;
Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>
e e i —— e

-

> =merm Original Message-----

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

b P R —— - — -

b
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>

> memm- Original Message -----
> From: Jacebson, Linda

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

> —emmm Original Message -----

> From: Baumert, Kevin A ;

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

—> ——— e ~ —_—

>
> Kevin .
> L/OES H

> ameee Original Message -----
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

> —mmem Original Message-----

> From: Cunningham, James B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H

> Subject: Re: |- comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

> mme—- Original Message -----

> From: Goldberger, Thomas H i

> To: Cunninghiam, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly, Maura;
Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B._Shapirc@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov>

> Cc: Holmstrorn, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn

> Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010

43

BS

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05130201 Date: 02/20/2013 I___ o

StateDept004339




UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05130201 Date: 02/20/2013

> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

o
> See below from Jonathan pls.
o

- Rt Original Message-----

> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM
> To: Goldberger, Thomas H

> Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann,
Thomas B |
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

> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing |

v BS

> Jon

>

> ----- Original Message -----

> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobsen, Linda

> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L
> Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010

> Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing

BS

>
P s QOriginal Message ----- |
> From:| | B3 DOD-CP
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> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc 1; Parker,
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo;
[_Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem);[
. Levin, Jan; | - > T R2DOD-
> Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 201(}3 = B2 RODGE
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing
>
L_ i ‘ ‘ , ~E At B3 DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlights - * B3 DODEGI
> - Ongoing Operation _
- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I
- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L
- All ships will be in port by later today
- 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed :
- 30 Civilians Wounded
- 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds |
- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled |
- Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law because of intent
y flotilla to breach the blockade, (See Attached Slides)

Y Ve N Y Y

o

AL ~ 5

1 =l . B3 DOD-CP

v

-
> .

> —-eem QOriginal Message----- |
> From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) '
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM

> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker,
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; _J
[ | Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D B3 DOD-CP-
> Cc: 'Dennis_IB._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov' | :
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing
>

> This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from me, but .'
just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from| who also |  Bg
spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. '
> |

— feported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met with what | B6
he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded were _
attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boarded were '
attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation
was one in which actions taken were in self-defense.
>
> Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “"maybe more”. He said all injured being moved to
Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them coming into
Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; move the '
people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned
initially, move as much of into Gaza as promptly as possible.
>
> Earlier this morning| made the following calls/contacts: >
> --Turkish FM and MoD| } Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh[ iHe felt the calls w the ' Bg
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Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he will handle. With Pals,

3

Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad |

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
B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John Rﬂ JAmcdeo, B3
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D '

> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’

>.Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing

>

> Qur Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's availabl
UN had been approached be COGAT last week tc help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod. Serry is
trying to send & couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that assisting deliveries of humanitarian
goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press
conference, and appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am.

> Sent from my BlackBerry

> —oem- Original Message -----

> From: Levin, Jan

> To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C;

Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; B3

Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D |

> Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 i
|

> Subject: MFA, flotilla briefing

B3 DODFGI

>

as IDs are done:, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be processed and escorted to
airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take.

> -- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injuries
occurred on this ship.

> - | told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boardB3 DODFGI
armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF scldier
nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives.

> -- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept iniintl
waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Hamas.
5 ;

> Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank you.

> Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively to Embassies'

DOD-CP

L

DOD-CP

Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn more.
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[RELEASED IN PART E3 DOD-CP,B3 DODFGI,B5,B6)|

Law, Rosemary C

From: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM

To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B;
Dolan, JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

Gt Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J

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

Sent: Mon May 31 11:28:32 2010

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

----- Original Message -----
From: Baumert, Kevin A |
To: Goldbergerr, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson,
Linda; Perina, Alexandra H

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

Sent; Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010

Kevin N Ry
L/OES BEVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Bgv[e_wgr]

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

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 16:47 AM

To: Goldberger, Thomas H

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Sent from my BlackBerry

----- Original Message -----

From: Goldberger, Thomas H

To: Cunningham, lames B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly,
Maura; Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel B. Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.ecp.gov>
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2018

Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

See below from Jonathan pls.

----- Original Message-----

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM
To: Goldberger, Thomas H

Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heineman
Thomas B

I
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing |

Jon

-=--- Original Message -----

From: Schwartiz, Jonathan B

To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Mon May 31 ©9:05:16 2018
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing
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St

B5

————— Original Message ----- i
From: Goldberger, Thomas H

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L

Sent: Mon May 31 ©8:24:0@ 2010
Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing

L ) _ = ) - B5

----- Original Message -----
From:| B3 DOD-CP

To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Slevers Marc R
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara

_(Jgrusalem);] | Levin, Jan;[ ) |

Sent: Mon May 31 ©8:08:22 2010
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

B3 DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific HighlB3 DODFGI
= |
- Ongoing Operation !

- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I :
- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1708L and 18@eL
- All ships will be in port by later today

- 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed .
- 3@ Civilians Wounded |
- 1@ IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds {
- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled ;
- Interaction occurred approx 7@ NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law i
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides)

~ — |
= e : x B3 DOD-CP

----- Original Message-----
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) .
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM
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To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J;
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,

|
John R;r— _ ‘ Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, JeiB3 DOD-CP

D
Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov’; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from

‘ who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am.

[ Jreported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met
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

--Turkish FM and MoD Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh He felt the
calls w the Turks given the situatien were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he
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

Sent: Monday, May 31, 20180 1:38 PM

To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C;

Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; waters,{q B3 DOD-CP

Frank G; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman|
Jeffrey D

Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov’; 'Dshapiroc@who.ecp.gov’
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing

wn

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it'
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ship
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is

n

problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have spoken jto'

Davotuglu this am.
Sent from my BlackBerry

----- Original Message -----
From: Levin, Jan

To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew.

C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;‘ B3 DOD-CP
: = |
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[ | Amodeo, salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; FeltiB3 DOD-CP
Jeffrey D '

Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2018
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing

[ ' B3 DODFGI

i
LI ‘ U

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively |
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take.
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all
injuries occurred on this ship. -
(e, | told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders :B3 DODFGI
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. | |
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives.
-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed confliqt |
between Israel and Hamas. -

i
Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank,
you. ;
|

| 5
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Law, Rosemary C

f

From: Baumert, Kevin A |

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:18 AM

To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn;

Jacobson, Linda; Perina, Alexandra H

Ce: Aswad, Evelyn M

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> :
|
|
|

Kevin

L/0ES

----- Original Message -----

From: Goldberger, Thomas H |
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, |
Linda ' | |
Sent: Mon May 31 18:58:27 291@ |
Subject: FW: I. comments on MFA flotilla briefing> !

————— Original Message-----

From: Cunningham, James B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 281@ 198:47 AM

To: Goldberger, Thomas H

Subject: Re: |. comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

— Sent from my BlackBerry

----- Original Message -----
From: Goldberger, Thomas H |
To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, leffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly,
Maura; Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B. Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov3
Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn |
Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:06 201

Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> ‘

See below from Jonathan pls. -
REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Rewewﬁgﬂ
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From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2016 9:13 AM
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
Sent: Mon May 31 ©9:85:16 2018

B5 |

Original Message
From: Goldberger, Thomas H

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L
Sent: Mon May 31 88:24:88 2010

Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing

BS

Original Message
eroms) - e - B3
To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J;

Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,
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John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Fe};m?n, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara
(Jer‘usalem), | - - | tevin, Jan; B3 DOD-CP

Sent: Mon May 31 ©8:88:22 201@
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

. 1o =¥ ey sotmn =" e I Lo T
| _ - _ B3 DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific HighlB3 DODFGI

- Ongoing Operation

- Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I
- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1788L and 18@eL ' |
- All ships will be in port by later today |
- 18-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed ' |
- 3@ Civilians Wounded '
- 1@ IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium® wounds

- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled

- Interaction occurred approx 78 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides)

O —— - =

i — B3 DOD-CP .

----- +Original Message----- /
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) .
Sent: Monday, May 31, 201© 2:46 PM

To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J;
Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, ||
John R;| R Sy ‘, Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman; JeB3 DOD-CP
D |

Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; ‘Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard |
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from| | B6
_tho also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. T
reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. I
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc.
He said the military who boarded were attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the |
soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation was one in which actions taken were |

in self-defense.

Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”. He said all injured |
being moved to Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some |
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, '
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries
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rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Gaza as
promptly as possible.

Earlier thi5|morning[ made the following calls/contacts: ! B6
--Turkish FM and MoD[' '____IEFEkat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh He felt the
calls w the Turks given tne situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how He '
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

Sent: Monday, May 31, 261e 1:38 PM

To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew (;
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; |

| &l Amcdeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maur'a, Feltrag DOD CP
Jeffrey D

Cc: 'Dennis_B._ Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov'
Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing 2 |

w

Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it’'
available. UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ship
in Ashdod. Serry is trying to send a couple of observers to Ashded, has told cogat that
assisting deliveries of humanitarian goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is [
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have spoken [to:
Davotuglu this am.
Sent from my BlackBerry |

wn

----- Original Message -----
From: Levin, Jan
To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andnew
C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; FeltrB3 DOD CP

Jeffrey D |

Sent: Mon May 31 13:2@8:31 2010
Subject: MFA -flotilla briefing [

|
B3 DODFGI

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactivel
to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take.

-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all
injuries occurred on this ship, .
- | told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders B3 DODFGI
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. I
One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. [
-- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to '
intercept in ifintl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflic
between Israel and Hamas.

<

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, tha kI
you.
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RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD-CP,B3

DODFGI,B5,B6

Law, Rosemary C

From: Dolan, JoAnn ]-

Sent: Monday. May 31, 2010 4:17 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B: 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen’; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert
Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B |

Ce: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghuq Joan E;

| Townley, Stephen G
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> |

From. Schwartz, Jonathan B [
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4:10 PM

To: 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen'; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, |Thomas
B; Dolan, JoAnn |

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; | |
Townley, Stephen G |*
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> i

[
Jon |

2= —— - o - - e e it it i 1 PSS e T._ v

From: Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen Sl |
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:14 PM
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; |

Townley, Stephen G =—SaE ]
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> ‘

Folks-- l

: — £ ' ] =
|

[REVIEW ANTHORITY: Sharan Ahmad Saninr Raviewar! l
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B5
B6
B ' |
Steve |
From San Remo Ma nternational Law Applicable to Armed Conflicts a 12 Juhe 1994
http://www.icre.org/inl.nsf/385ec082b509e76c41256739003e636d/7694fe2016f347e1c12564 1f002d49ce
Blockade

93. A blockade shall be declared and notified to all belligerents and neutral States.

which vessels of neutral States may leave the blockaded coastline.

|
|
|
|
1
94. The declaration shall specity the commencement, duration, location, and extent of the blockade and the peml':d within
I
95. A blockade must be effective. The question whether a blockade is effective is a question of fact. |

l

96. The force maintaining the blockade may be stationed at a distance determined by military requirements.
|

97. A blockade may be enforced and maintained by 2 combination of Iaglllmale methods and means of warfare browded
this combination does not result in acts inconsistent with the rules set out in this document.

|
|
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I

88. Merchant vesisels believed on reasonable grounds to be breaching a blockade may be captured. Merchant Jessels
which, after prior warning, clearly resist capture may be attacked. |

99. A blockade must not bar access to the ports and coasts of neutral States.
100. A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels of all States.

|
|
|
|
101. The cessation, temporary lifting, re-establishment, extension or other alteration of a blockade must be decl%red and
notified as in paragraphs 93 and 94.

102. The declaration or establishment of a blockade is prohibited if: .
|
(a) it has the sole purpase of starving the civilian population or denying it other objects essential for its survival; or
{b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in relation to the concrete and direct
military advantage: anticipated from the blockade.

103. If the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided with food and other objects esséntial for
its survival, the blockading party must provide for free passage of such foodstuffs and other essential supplies, subject to:

(a) the right to prescribe the technical arrangements, including search, under which such passage is permitted, q'*nd
(b) the condition that the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of a Protecting Power or a
humanitarian orgainization which offers guarantees of impartiality, such as the International Committee of the Red Cross.

104. The blockading belligerent shall allow the passage of medical supplies for the civilian population or for the wounded
and sick members; of armed forces, subject to the right to prescribe technical arrangements, including search, under which
such passage is permitted. |

Zones |
105. A belligerent cannot be absolved of its duties under international humanitarian law by establishing zones wlliich might
adversely affect the legitimate uses of defined areas of the sea. |
|

|

f

108. Should a belligerent, as an exceptional measure, establish such a zone:

(a) the same body of law applies both inside and outside the zone;

(b) the extent, location and duration of the zone and the measures imposed shall not exceed what is strictly requ!ired by
military necessity and the principles of proportionality; |
(c) due regard shaill be given to the rights of neutral States to legitimate uses of the seas; i

(d) necessary safe: passage through the zone for neutral vessels and aircraft shall be provided: ’

(i) where the geographical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the perts and coasts pf a

neutral State;
(ii) in other cases where normal navigation routes are affected, except where military requirements do not perm if; and
(e) the commencement, duration, location and extent of the zone, as well as the restrictions imposed, shall be erb[icly

declared and appropriately notified. |

107. Compliance with the measures taken by one belligerent in the zone shall not be construed as an act harmﬁ{i to the
opposing belligerent.

108. Nothing in this Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to control neutra‘ vessels
and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval operations.

|
From Commander's Handbook |
I

7.7 BLOCKADE '

7.7.1 General '

Blockade is a belligerent operation o prevent vessels and/or aircraft of all nations, encmy as well as neutral, from

entering or exiting specified ports, airfields, or coastal areas belonging to, occupied by, or under the control of an

enemy nation. While the belligerent right of visit and search is designed to interdict the flow of contraband goods,

the belligerent right of blockade is intended to prevent vessels and aircraft, regardless of their cargo, from |
49
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crossing an established and publicized cordon separating the enemy from international waters and/or airspace. :
7.7.2 Criteria for Blockades !
To be valid, a blockade must conform to the criteria in the following paragraphs. |
7.7.2.1 Establishment |
A blockade must be established by the government of the belligerent nation. This is usually accomplished by a |
declaration of the belligerent government or by the commander of the blockading force acting on behalf of the bEIligerent
government. The declaration should include, as a minimum, the date the blockade is to begin, its
geographic limits, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircrafl (o leave the area to be blockaded.
7.7.2.2 Notification
It is customary for the belligerent nation establishing the blockade to notify all affected nations of its imposi{iun]
Because knowledge of the existence of a blockade is an essential element of the offenses of breach and attempled
breach of blockade (see paragraph 7.7.4), neutral vessels and aircraft are always entitled to notification. The
commander of the blockading forces will usually also notify local authorities in the blockaded area. The form of
the notification is not material so long as it is effective. l
7.7.2.3 Effectiveniess |
To be valid, a blockade must be effective—that is, it must be maintained by a surface, air, or substrface force or
other legitimate methods and means of warfare that is sufficient to render ingress or egress of the blockaded arefl
dangerous. The requirement of effectiveness does not preclude temporary absence of the blockading force, if sudh
absence is due to stress of weather or to some other reason connected with the blockade (e.g., pursuit of a i
blockade runner). Effectiveness does not require that every possible avenue of approach to the blockaded area be
covered. '
7.7.2.4 Impartiality I
A blockade must loe applied impartially to the vessels and aircraft of all nations. Discrimination by the blockadin
belligerent in favor of or against the vessels and aircraft of particular nations, including those of ils own or thost:1I
of an allied nation, renders the blockade legally invalid.
7.7.2.5 Limitations |
A blockade must not bar access to or departure from neutral ports and coasts. Neutral nations retain the right to |
engage in neutral commerce that does not involve Irade or communications originating in or destined for the
blockaded area. A blockade is prohibited if the sole purpose is to starve the civilian population or to deny it othet
objects essential for its survival. |
7.7.3 Special Entry and Exit Authorization i
Although neutral warships and military aircraft enjoy no positive right of access to blockaded areas, the !
belligerent imposing the blockade may authorize their entry and exit. Such special authorization may be made |
subject 1o such conditions as the blockading force considers 10 be necessary and expedient. Neutral vessels and
aircrafl in evident distress should be authorized entry into a blockaded area, and subsequently authorized to
depart, under conditions prescribed by the officer in command of the blockading force or responsible for
maintenance of the blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines). Similarly, neutral vessels and aircraft engaged in 'h‘f
carriage of qualifying relief supplies for the civilian population and the sick and wounded should be authorized [r)
pass through the blockade cordon, subject to the right of the blockading force to prescribe the technical
arrangements, including search, under which passage is permitted. |
7.7.4 Breach and Attempted Breach of Blockade
Breach of blockade is the passage of a vessel or aircraft through a blockade without special entry or exit
authorization from the blockading belligerent. Attempted breach of blockade occurs from the time a vessel or
aircraft leaves a port or airfield with the intention of evading the blockade, and for vessels exiting the blockaded
area, continues until the voyage is completed. Knowledge of the existence of the blockade is essential to the
offenses of breach of blockade and attempled breach of blockade. Knowledge may be presumed once a blockade
has been declared and appropriate notification provided to affected governments. It is immaterial that the vessel or
aircrafi is at the time of interception bound for neutral territory, if its ultimate destination is the blockaded area. |
There is a presumption of attempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircraft are bound for a neutral port or ?irﬁcld
serving as a point of transit to the blockaded area. (Capture of such vessels is discussed in paragraph |
7.10,)
7.7.5 Contemporary Practice l
The criteria for valid blockades, as set out above in paragraph 7.7.2, are for the most part customary in nature, |
having derived their definitive form through the practice of maritime powers during the nineteenth century. The
rules reflect a balance between the right of a belligeren! possessing effective command of the sea to close enemy'
ports and coastlines Lo international commerce, and the right of neutral nations to carry out neutral commerce with
50 '
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!
the least possible interference from belligerent forces. The law of blockade is, therefore, premised on a system ol
controls designed to effect only a limited interference with neutral trade. This was traditionally accomplished byi a
relatively “close-in™ cordon of surface warships stationed in the immediate vicinity of the blockaded area. |
The increasing emphasis in modern warfare on seeking 1o isolate completely the enemy from outside assistance |
and resources by targeting enemy merchant vessels as well as warships, and on interdicting all neutral commerce
with the enemy, is not furthered substantially by blockades established in strict conformity with the traditional
rules. In World Wars [ and II, belligerents of both sides resorted to methods which, although frequently referred ,{o
as measures of blockade, cannot be reconciled with the traditional concept of the close-in blockade. The so-called
long-distance blockade of both world wars departed materially from those traditional rules and were premised in
large measure upon the belligerent right of reprisal against illegal acts of warfare on the part of the enemy.
Moreover, developments in weapons systems and platforms, particularly submarines, supersonic aircrafi, and
cruise missiles, have rendered the in-shore blockade exceedingly difficult, if not impossible, to maintain dunng
anything other than a local or limited armed conflict. Accordingly, the characteristics of modern weapon aysrem;s
will be a factor in anal yzmg the effectiveness of contemporary blockades. L
Notwithstanding this trend in belligerent practices (during general war) away from the establishment of blockad
that conform to the traditional rules, blockade continues to be a useful means to regulate the competing interests:
of belligerents and neutrals in more limited armed conflict. The experience of the United States during the
Vietnam conflict provides a case in point. The closing of Haiphong and other North Vietnamese ports,
accomplished by the emplacement of mines, was undertaken in conformity with traditional criteria of
establishment, notification, effectiveness, limitation, and impartiality, although at the time the mining took placd
the term “blockade” was nol used. |

From: pomper__
To: schwartzjb@state.gov; permaah@state gov; baumertka@state.gov; jacobson|@state.gov;

heinemanntb@state.gov; dolanja@state.gov

CC: aswadem@state.gov; sullivandjl@state.gov; pomperse2@state.gov; guarinmf@state.gov;
donoghueje@stiate.gov

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 17:29:30 +0000

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> .
> Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 13:01:59 -0400 |
> From: Schwartz)B@state.gov

> To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; JacobsonL@state.g&v;
HeinemannTB@state.gov; Dolan)A@state.gov _ y :

> CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanDl1@state.gov; pompeL ] |
PomperSE2@state.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov |

> e i

I
.'
> meme- Original Message----- l
> From: Perina, Alexandra H |

- > Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM
> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Hesneménn
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Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn |
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; ’_ : —| Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, B6
Marc F

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> ;

>

|
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B !
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:17 PM |
> To: Geldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Daolan, |JOAnn;
Perina, Alexandra H
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J i
> Subject: RE: I comments on MFA flotilla briefing> |

> eeen- Original Message----- ]

> From: Goldberger, Thomas H ’

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM

> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
Perina, Alexandra H :

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ] !

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA fiotilla briefing> |’

_> =

> —--—-Original Message----- |
> From: Baumert, Kevin A [

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM

> To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Do‘an,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H ' |

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J |

> Subject: Re: L. comments on MFA flotilla briefing> |

= !

= o

1
|
!
i
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r
!

- oy Original Message -----

> From: Jacobson, Linda

> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Doian,
JOANN; Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M |

> Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2010

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

s = i

>
> amen- Original Message ----- I
> From: Baumert, Kevin A l
> To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson,
Linda; Perina, Alexandra H ]
> L6 Aswad, Evelyn M |
|
|

> Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

= —

~
> Kevin
> L/OES

> anres Original Message -----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H
> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Lmda
> Sent: Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010

> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> \

|
|
|

- !
> ==r== Original Message-----

> From: Cunningham, James B
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

> Sent from my” BlackBerry I
> |
. et e Original Message ----- l
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H i
> To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly, Maura;
Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel B Shapfro@nsc eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov> |
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn |
> Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010 |
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|

|
> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> |
> \
> See below from Jonathan pis. l
> |
- Original Message----- |

> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM |

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H |

> Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann,
Thomas B ;

> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing |

- = . -

> -eeen Original Message ----- =.
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B ,
> To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B '
> Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn ‘
> Sent: Mon May 31 09:05:16 2010 !
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing i
> : :

> mmme- Original Message -----

> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

> Cc: Holmstrorn, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L
> Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010

> Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing |

|
= i
s Original Message ----- !

> From:| ¢ - ] B3 DOD-CP

54 1
|
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05135618 Date: 02/21/2013
StateDept004359

BS

B5




UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05135618 Date: 02{21!2013

> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Pdrker
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo
Salvatore A (lst.anbul) Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem);B3 DOD CP

IM; Levm Jan; | |

> Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 1
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing I

>
s . N B3 DOD-CP|.
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlights - [ B3 DODFGI

> - Ongoing Operation

> -~ Two Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I
> - M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L .
> - All ships will be in port by later today

> - 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Kilted
> - 30 Civilians Wounded |
> - 10 IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with "medium" wounds |

> - Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled :

> - Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law becauseiof intent
by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) ,

> = = == e
' = B3 DOD-CP
|
|
|
|
> I
> !
> ----- Original Message-----
> From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) B3 DOD-CP

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM

> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker,

Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;]‘A
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D |

> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’ }

> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing |

> |

> This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from h1e, but
just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from | | who also
spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. g
> |

>Sreported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met with whapg
he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded were
attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wooed instruments, etc. He said the military who boarded were
attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear sltuatson
was one in which actions taken were in self-defense.

>

> Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”. He said all injured being moyed to
Israeli hospital — by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them commrT:J into
Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; move the
people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned
mltlaliy, move as much of into Gaza as promptly as possible. |

T | |
> Earlier this rnorning[___]_Tﬂ'nade the following calls/contacts: R — [ B6
> --Turkish FM and MoD | Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh } He felt the callls w the
55 |
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Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he will handle. Wit}w Pals,
Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With,Fayyad
they discussed primarily need for security cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will
be affected by status of Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla. i
>
> (PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) |
>
b Original Message----- |
> From: Cunningham, James B |
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM
> To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb Jason
B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters John R;| IAmodeL:
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Conne[ly, Maura; Feltman, leffrey D
> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’ ;
> Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing !
> |
> QOur Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashded to get info on amcits as soon as it's available.
UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod. Serry is
trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that assisting deliveries of humanitarian
goods, much of which Is destined for Hamas, is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press
conference, and appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am. :
> Sent from my BlackBerry JI
> i

|

|

Sk Original Message -----
> From: Levin, Jan
> To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc 1; Parker, Andrew C;

B3 DOD-C

Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Ehsa, Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; | B3 DOD-CP

Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusafem) Connelly, Maura Feltman, Jeffrey Di
> Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010 |
> Subject: MFA flotilla briefing |
>

;]briefed foreign

ambassadors at 12:30 local time today.
> |
> Highlights - Iclentification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively to Embassies
as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be processed and escorted to
airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take.
> -- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injuries,
occurred on this ship. |
>--[ told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and were
armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF soldier
nearly beaten ta death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. |

> -- Events took: place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in jntl
waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Hainas.

> |

> Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, tha‘rﬂk you.

Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn more.

The New Busy is not the old busy. Search, chat and e-mail fram your inbox. Get started.
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[RELEASED IN PART B2 DOD-CP,B3 DODFGI,B5,B6|

Law, Rosemary C

From: Donoghue, Joan E
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 4:05 AM
To: Martin, Julie B; Baumert Kevin A; Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz

B; ] ]F'enna. Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, B&l

Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; McLeod, Mary (USUN)
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarln Marc F; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Jonathan

B5|

From: Martin, Julie B

To: Baumert, Kevin A; Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; |

| | Perina, Alexandra H; Jacabson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAn
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H
Sent: Tue Jun 01 03:47:45 2010

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Thanks to all,

o

BS

Thanks, lulie

This email is UNCLASSIFIED,

From: Baumert, Kevin A
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:54 PM

To: Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Ferina, Alexandra H; B&

Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julie
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

~ |B5

Thanks, Kevin

From: Pomper Stephen E
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4:31 PM
To: Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; "pompef " |Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert,

S - - - e e en e e
IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Revieweﬂ

Cevin A; B 3
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
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen’ : } Perina, Alexandra H;
Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn — B6
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; |

l = ~ | Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julie B
Sent: Mon May 31 16:29:33 2010

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

| |
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:10 PM
To: *Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen’; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas
B; Dolan, JoAnn |

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; eandersen@asil.org;
Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> ll

B5

Jon ’
From: Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen {mailto( e B
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:14 PM
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dojan, JoAnn
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; -

Townley, Stephen G i i
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Folks--

B5
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BB

B5

From San Rem rnati Applic A Conflicts at Sea, 12 June 1994

hitp://www.icrc.org/ihl.nsf/385ec082b509e76c4 1256739003e636d/7694fe2016f347e1c125641f002d49¢ce

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

956. The force maintaining the blockade may be stationed at a distance determined by military requirements.

9
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97. A blockade may be enforced and maintained by a combination of legitimate methods and means of warfare|provided
this combination tloes not result in acts inconsistent with the rules set out in this document.

98. Merchant vesisels believed on reasonable grounds to be breaching a blockade may be captured. Merchant yessels
which, after prior warning, clearly resist capture may be attacked.

99, A blockade must not bar access to the ports and coasts of neutral States.
100. A biockade rnust be applied impartially to the vessels of all States.

101. The cessation, temporary lifting, re-establishment, extension or other alteration of a blockade must be declared and
notified as in paragraphs 93 and 94.

102. The declaration or establishment of a blockade is prohibited if:

(a) it has the sole purpose of starving the civilian population or denying it other objects essential for its survival; or
(b) the damage ta the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in relation to the concrete and direct
military advantage anticipated from the blockade.

108. If the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided with food and other objects essential for
its survival, the blockading party must provide for free passage of such foodstuffs and other essential supplies, subject to:

(a) the right to pre:scribe the technical arrangements, including search, under which such passage is permitted; and
(b) the condition that the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of a Protecting Power or a
humanitarian organization which offers guarantees of impartiality, such as the International Committee of the Red Cross.

104. The blockading belligerent shall allow the passage of medical supplies for the civilian population or for the wounded
and sick members of armed forces, subject to the right to prescribe technical arrangements, including search, upder which
such passage is permitted. |

Zones |

| .
105. A belligerent cannot be absolved of its duties under international humanitarian law by establishing zones which might
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
(i) where the geographical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the ports and coasts|of a
neutral State;
(i) in other cases where normal navigation routes are affected, except where military requirements do not permit; and
(e) the commencement, duration, location and extent of the zone, as well as the restrictions imposed, shall be publicly
declared and appropriately notified.

. Lo o
107. Compliance with the measures taken by one belligerent in the zone shall not be construed as an act harmful to the
opposing belligerent,

108. Nothing in this Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to control neutral vessels

and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval operations. !

|
From Commander's Handbook

7.7 BLOCKADE
7.7.1 General
Blockade is a belligerent operation to prevent vessels and/or aircraft of all nations, enemy as well as neutral, from

10
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
7.1.2 Criteria for Blockades
To be valid, a blockade must conform to the criteria in the following paragraphs.
7.7.2.1 Establishment
A blockade mus! be established by the government of the belligerent nation. This is usually accomplished by a
declaration of the belligerent government or by the commander of the blockading force acting on behalf of the belligerent
government. The declaration should include, as a2 minimum, the date the blockade is to begin, its
geographic limits, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircraft to leave the area to be blockaded.
7.7.2.2 Notification
It is customary for the belligerent nation establishing the blockade to notify all affected nations of its imposition.
Because knowledpe of the existence of a blockade is an essential element of the offenses of breach and attempted
breach of blockade (see paragraph 7.7.4), neutral vessels and aircraft are always entitled to notification. The
commander of the blockading forces will usually also notify local authorities in the blockaded area. The form o
the notification is not material so long as it is effective.
7.7.2.3 Effectiveness
To be valid, a blockade must be effective—that is, it must be maintained by a surface, air, or subsurface force ot
other legitimate methods and means of warfare that is sufficient Lo render ingress or egress of the blockaded an:L
dangerous. The requirement of effectiveness does not preclude temporary absence of the blockading force, if such
absence is due to stress of weather or to some other reason connected with the blockade (e.g., pursuit of a '
blockade runner). Effectiveness does not require that every possible avenue of approach to the blockaded area b
covered.
7.7.2.4 Impartiality
A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels and aircraft of all nations. Discrimination by the blockading
belligerent in favor of or against the vessels and aircraft of particular nations, including those of its own or thoset
of an allied nation, renders the blockade legally invalid.
7.7.2.5 Limitations l
A blockade must not bar access to or departure from neutral ports and coasts. Neutral nations retain the right 1o |
engage in neutral commerce that does not involve trade or communications originating in or destined for the
blockaded area. A blockade is prohibited if the sole purpose is to starve the civilian population or to deny it other
objects essential for its survival.
7.7.3 Special Entry and Exit Authorization
Although neutral warships and military aircraft enjoy no positive right of access to blockaded areas, the |
belligerent imposing the blockade may authorize their entry and exit. Such special authorization may be made ’
subject to such conditions as the blockading force considers to be necessary and expedicnt. Neutral vessels and
aircrafl in evident distress should be authorized entry into a blockaded area, and subsequently authorized to
depart, under conditions prescribed by the officer in command of the blockading force or responsible for
maintenance of the blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines). Similarly, ncutral vessels and aircraft engaged in the
carriage of qualifying relief supplies for the civilian population and the sick and wounded should be authorized to
pass through the blockade cordon, subject to the right of the blockading force to prescribe the technical
arrangements, incluoding search, under which passage is permitted.
7.7.4 Breach and Attempted Breach of Blockade
Breach of blockade is the passage of a vessel or aircraft through a blockade without special entry or exit
authorizalion from the blockading belligerent. Attempted breach of blockade occurs from the time a vessel or
aircraft leaves a port or airfield with the intention of evading the blockade, and for vessels exiting the biockaded
area, continues until the voyage is completed. Knowledge of the existence of the blockade is essential to the
offenses of breach of blockade and attempted breach of blockade. Knowledge may be presumed once a blockadg
has been declared and appropriate notification provided to affected governments. It is immaterial that the vessellor
aircrafl is a1 the time of interception bound for neutral territory, if its ultimate destinalion is the blockaded area.
There is a presumption of attempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircraft are bound for a neutral port or hirfield
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
11
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having derived their definitive form through the practice of maritime powers during the nineteenth century. The
rules reflect a balance between the right of a belligerent possessing effective command of the sea to close enem)
ports and coastlines to international commerce, and the right of neutral nations to carry out neutral commerce with
the least possible interference from belligerent forces. The law of blockade is, therefore, premised on a system of
controls designed to effect only a limited interference with neutral trade. This was traditionally accomplished by a
relatively “close-in" cordon of surface warships stationed in the immediate vicinity of the blockaded area.

The increasing emphasis in modern warfare on seeking to isolate completely the enemy from outside assistance
and resources by largeting enemy merchant vessels as well as warships, and on interdicting all neutral commerce
with the enemy, is not furthered substantially by blockades established in strict conformity with the traditional
rules. In World Wars 1 and II, belligerents of both sides resorted to methods which, although frequently referred to
as measures ol blockade, cannol be reconciled with the traditional concept of the close-in blockade. The so-called
long-distance blockade of both world wars departed materially from those traditional rules and were premised if)
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
that conform to the traditional rules, blockade continues to be a useful means to regulate the competing interests
ol belligerents and neutrals in more limited armed conflict. The experience of the United Stales during the
Vietnam conflict provides a case in point. The closing of Haiphong and olher North Vietnamese ports,
accomplished by the emplacement of mines, was undertaken in conformity with traditional criteria of
establishment, notification, effectiveness, limitation, and impartiality, although al the time the mining took placg
the term “blockade™ was not used.

!

From:[ ; I

To: schwartzjb@state gov; perinaah@state,gov; baumertka@state.gov; jacobsonl@state.gov; |

heinemannib@state.gov; dolanja@state.gov

CC: aswadem@state.gov; sullivandjl@state.gov; pomperse2@state.gov; guarinmf@state.gov; ‘
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

> To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; JacobsonlL@state.gov;
HeinemannTB@state.gov; Dolan]JA@state.gov
> CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanD]1@state.gov; pomper |
PomperSEZ2@state.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov

B6

BS

B6

1

>
s Original Message----- '
12 ‘
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
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J;| e~ |Pomper, Stephen E}

Marc F
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Guarin,

s .
> -----Qriginal Message----- |
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B ‘
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:17 PM

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,|{JoAnn;

Perina, Alexandra H
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

> —m-e- Original Message-----

> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM

> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thamas B; Dolan, ]
Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

oAnm;

T -

! S —— —
i Original Message-----

> From: Baumert, Kevin A

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM

> To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dalan,

JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>
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BS

> mwmen Original Message -----
> From: Jacobson, Linda

> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

> Sent: Mon Mayy 31 11:20:32 2010

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

D Original Message -----

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
== =

-
> Kevin ‘
> UOES |
>

> ----- Original Message ----- ]
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H
> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, |Linda
> Sent: Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010

> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

> === Original Message-----

> From: Cunningham, James B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H

> Subject: Re: |. comments on MFA flotilla briefing>
>

> Sent from my BlackBerry

Srmmmr Original Message -----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H
> To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly, Maura;

14
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Schlicher, Ronald L; 'Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov>
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn

. > Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010
> Subject; FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

>

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

> s 2 - -

> mmna- Original Message -----

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

> — |

> —--m- Original Message -----

> From: Goldberger, Thomas H
> To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda l
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L ,
> Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 |
> Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing
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R Original Message -----

> From:| | B3 DOD-CP
> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, i
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R: Amodeo,
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, leffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); ] !
Levin, Jan; | =1 B3 DOD-CP

> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

>
l - B3 DOD-CP .

Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlights - B3 DODFGI

> = Ongoing Operation

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

by fiotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides)

>
_— S B3 DOD-CP

>
> —meee Original Message-----

> From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem)

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM
> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Pérker, -3
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; '
e Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D I B3 DOD-CP
> Cc: 'Dennis_Bi._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov'
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

\
|
|
|
|
|

>
> This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from me, but
just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from who B3 DODFGI

spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am.

>

:»[ —[report:ed that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met with B3 DODFGI
he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded were i
attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boarded were
attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear|situation

was one in which actions taken were in self-defense.

>

> Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”. He said all injured being moved to

Israeli hospital -- by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them coming into

Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; move the

people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned

initially, move as much of into Gaza as promptly as possible.
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>
> Earlier this morning I:made the following calls/contacts: B6

> --Turkish FM and MOD]__ | Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh[ . He felt the calls w the
Turks given the situation were UK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he will handle. With Pals,

Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With| Fayyad
they discussed primarily need for security cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will
be affected by status of Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla.

>

> (PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.)

b |
> -----Original Message----- |

> From: Cunningham, James B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM

> To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb Jason

B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;| \ |Amoclqo, B3 DOD-CP

Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D |
> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’
> Subject; Re: MFA flotilla briefing

s .
> Our Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's available.

UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod. §erry is I
trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that assisting deliveries of humanitarian
goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a preg;s
conference, and appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am.
> Sent from my BlackBerry |
>
B waasn Criginal Message -----
> From: Levin, Jan
> To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc ]; Parker, Andrew C:
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R,!

Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D
> Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010

> Subject: MFA flotilla briefing

>

{._
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
> -- Most violenice occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injurie
occurred on this ship.
> - |told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and Were B6
armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF sagldier
nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives.
> -- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in|intl
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

_|briefed foreiFn B

Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn maore.

The New Busy is not the old busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Get started.
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Law, Rosemary C

From: Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:14 PM
To: Dalan, JoAnn; Pomper, Stephen E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Donoghue, Jean E; Jacobson,

Linda; McLeod, Mary (USUN); Sullivan, David J; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H;
Heinemann, Thomas B; Aswad, Evelyn M

Ce: Harris, Robert K
Subject: RE: Humanitarian flotilla
Attachments: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing; Fw: MFA flotilla briefing; FW: DEF. MINISTER BARAK NEWS

CONF. -- YNET ; MOD Flotilla Brief... ; FW: IDF Spokesperson Announcement-Pistols Found
on Flotilla Activists; FW: IDF Spokesperson Announcement: IDF Forces Met with Pre-Planned
Violence when attempting to Board Flotilla

| have not found full transcript of Israeli briefings in my gueue but here are what appear to be maost relevant frpm
morning

From: Dolan, JoAnn

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:45 AM
To: Pomper, Stephen E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Donoghue, Joan E; Jacobson, Linda; McLeod, Mary (USUN); Sulfivan,
David J; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B; Aswad, Evelyn M

Cc: Harris, Robert K

Subject: RE: Humanitarian flotilla

|
Thanks, Steve, I have been unable to reach Alexandra or Kevin by phone. I have left pho‘e
messages for both but will try them through op center next. I will go through emailsTand
circulate what I have for benefit of addressees. Conference call may be the way to go.! including
Evelyn as she is following HRC angle.

|
----- Original Message----- |
From: Pomper, Stephen E ‘
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2618 11:48 AM
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Donoghue, Joan E; Jacobson, Linda; MclLeod, Mary (USUN); Suliivan,
David J; Baumert, Kevin A; Peprina, Alexandra H; Dolan, JoAnn; Heinemann, Thomas B |
Cc: Harris, Robert K |
Subject: Re: Humanitarian flotilla |

1

Joann just reached me. I haven't tracked this beyond this mornong's traffic and the front
page of the nyt but can help coordinate this afternoon. If somecne could send me any gnalysis
done in the run up last week that would be very helpful. Would it be useful to set up|a call
so that those folks who have been working the issue can pool info re knowledge/work done to
date/etc?

|
----- Original Message ----- I
From: Schwartz, Jonathan B ‘
To: Donoghue, Joan E; Jacobson, Linda; McLeod, Mary (USUN); Pomper, Stephen E; Sullivan,
David J; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Dolan, JoAnn; Heinemann, Thomas B 7
Cc: Harris, Raobert K; Jacobson, Linda
Sent: Mon May 31 11:29:1€ 2816 \
Subject: Re: Humanitarian flotilla |

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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----- Original Message -----
From: Donoghue, Joan E

To: Jacobson, Linda; MclLeod, Mary (USUN); Pomper, Stephen E; Sullivan, David J; Schwartz,

Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Dolan, JoAnn; Heinemann, Thomas B
Sent: Mon May 31 11:21:26 2018
Subject: Re: Humanitarian flotilla

----- Original Message -----
From: Jacobson, Linda

To: McLeod, Mary (USUN); Pomper, Stephen E; Sullivan, David J; Donoghue, Joan Ej Schw&rtz,

Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Dolan, JoAnn; Heinemann, Thomas B
Sent: Mon May 31 10:85:35 2618
Subject: Re: Humanitarian flotilla

Including others working on this.

----- Original Message -----
From: MclLeod, Mary (USUN)

To: Jacobson, Linda; Pomper, Stephen E; Sullivan, David J; Donoghue, Joan E; Schwartz
Jonathan B 1
Sent: Mon May 31 89:57:46 2016 |
Subject: Humanitarian flotilla ’

All--Assume you all are working on this. I know Todd and Harold are in Kampala and b%

s

aren’t working. I am rushing back to NYC to try to make the SC meeting, currently scheduled

for 1. Anticipate much interest in legal issues focused on Israeli claims they were 3
in self-defense and that the flotilla was violating international law.

cting
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Law, Rosemary C

From: Grubb, Jason B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 7:038 AM

To: Sindle, James M; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; 'Sergio_L.
_Aguirre@nss.eop.gov'; Holmstrom, Todd C; ‘Eric.Lynn@osd.mil'; Waller, Robert P;|Rana,
Gautam A;rf A L ‘Patrick.Antoniefti@osd.mil'; 'Daniel B. ! B3 DOD-CP|
_Shapiro@nss.eop.gov’; Prem_G._Kumar@nss.eop.qov'; ~|Hickey, Mary
E; Schwartz, Jonathan B; 'joe.ramirez@eucom.mil'] 4t}
‘mike.holmes@osd.mil’; Timothy.P.Connors@uscg.mil’; Sievers, Marc J; Dolan, JoAnn;
Bernier-Toth, Michelle; Giauque, Jeffrey G; Frelich, Karlene H; Connelly, Maura; Harris,
Robert K; Mortiock, David JL; Rudman, Mara; Waters, John R; Marchese, Gregory M; Pelton,
Erin; Gutman, Bonnie S; Greene, Elisa; Harutunian, Ruben; Levin, Jan; Roberts, Kristi (Tel
Aviv); Reisser, Wesley J; Parker, Andrew C; .

Subject: FW: DEF. MINISTER BARAK NEWS CONF. -- YNET

From: Blaukopf, Ruth B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:53 PM
To: BARON Desirée; Garcia, Dennis.J; KAPLAN Crystal ; Burnett, David R; Frelich, Karlene H; Giauque, Jeffrey G;
Goldberger, Thomas H; Hale, David M; Harden, Dave; Hertzberg, David A; Holmstrom, Todd C; Irwin, Matthew T
(lrwinMT @state.gov); Jacoby, Julia I; Khoury-Kincannon, Sahar; Knopf, Payton L; Lentz, Andrew N; Marc Sievers; Mayo,
Iris J; Reisser, Wesley J; Roberts, Kristi (Tel Aviv); Sachar, Alon (NEA/IPA); Sindle, James M; Waters, John R; Alan Holst;
Grubb Jason; Levin, Jan (Levinl@state.gov); Michael Honigstein; Michaels, David G (MichaelsDG@state.gov); Nelson Tim
Subject: DEF. MINISTER BARAK NEWS CONF. -- YNET .... Jason pls note

YNET 13:23 , 05.31.10 ‘
Barak: Sail's organizers responsible for deadly raid ‘

Defense minister, IDF chief of staff and Navy commander explain Israeli considerations following takeover of aid ships sailin? to Gaza,
which left at least 15 pro-Palestinian activists dead. 'We regret the casualties, but the sail's organizers are fully responsible’ |

Attila Somfalvi [

Defense Minister Ehud Barak said Monday that the organizers of the fiotilla to Gaza were responsible for the deadly Israel D?fense
Forces raid of the ships, which left at least 15 pro-Palestinian activists dead and dozens injured.

Speaking at a joint press briefing with IDF Chief of Staff Gabi Ashkenazi and Navy Commander Eliezer Marom, Barak said, We
express our regret over the injuries, but the sail's organizers and its participants are fully responsible.”

He added that a viokent incident took place on only one of the six ships involved in the sail.
*The State of Israel appealed to the organizers before the ships set sail and during the sail and invited them to arrive at the Ashdod Port
and transfer the aid to Gaza after security checks,” he said. "All of our appeals were turned down. The soldiers were atlacked after

arriving at ane of the ships. Some were injured by serious physical violence on the part of the protestors.

"I am familiar with these types of operations and their possible developments, and | am familiar with the units which operated and with
their commanders. They are the best of our people,” the defense minister explained.

“In light of the life-threatening situation, the soldiers were forced to use crowd dispersal means and firearms,” he said, adding that some
of the casualties were killed by firearms. According to Barak, 10 soldiers were injured in the incident, some from firearms anq some
from cold arms. |

“The IHH organization, which was behind these unruly ship, is a violent and radical organization acting under the cover of humanitarian
activity," Barak argued.

|
“This is the time for responsibility and | call on everyone to act with restraint and common sense and not let an anarchistic organization
and radical elements seeking to undermine the public order to take advantage of this unfortunate incident for violence.” !

'Crowd dispersal equipment wasn't enough'
L
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Law, Rosemary C

-----

Original Message

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B

Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Donoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Mon May 31 ©9:85:16 201@

Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM
To: Goldberger, Thomas H
Ce: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A, Perina, Alexandra H;
Heinemann, Thomas B
Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing
Attachments: Legal Aspects.ppt
—_— y PR B |
Jon [

Jon

_____ Original Message

From: Goldberger, Thomas H

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L
Sent: Mon May 31 ©8:24:80 281e

Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing
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----- Original Message ----- ]
From: | ] ,J B3 DOD CP
To: Cunningham, James | B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Manc J;

Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters,
John R; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura, Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara

(Jerusalem); | | - | Levin, Jan,[ =

Sent: Mon May 31 @8:88:22 2018 J
Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing ‘

l ' B3 DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific HigHl:B3 DODFGI
- Ongoing Operation |
- Twe Ships in Ashdod to include the CHALLENGER I
- M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1780L and 1868L
- All ships will be in port by later today
- 10-14 Civilians Seriously Injured or Killed
- 30 Civilians Wounded
- 1@ IDF wounded to include 1 serious and 1 with “medium” wounds
- Turkish Ambassador to Israel recalled
- Interaction occurred approx 76 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law
because of intent by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) 1

|
|
|
|
----- Original Message----- 1
From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) 1
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 2:46 PM

To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, lames F; Sievers, MaJc I3

Parker, Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Wat rs,

John R; | | Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, JeB3 DOD-CP.
D

Cc: 'Dennis_B. _Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; ‘Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’

Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard
from me, but just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from __1 B6
[ who also spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am.

[ |reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met
with what he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live firg.
Military who boarded were attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood 1nstruments,|etc
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
reports have them coming into Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. |There,
they will need to ID the bodies; move the people either to return them to home countries
rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned initially, move as much of into Gaza as
promptly as possible.

Earlier this morning _Jmade the following calls/contacts: B6&
--Turkish FM and MoDI ] Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh He felt the

calls w the Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and|how he

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

(PIC seems to be on track/geing forward. Some events may be affected by it.)

----- Original Message-----

From: Cunningham, James B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2018 1:38 PM

To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew ﬁ;

Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisz; Marchese, Gregary M; Waters, John R;

|i] Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; FeltB3 DOD-CP
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
problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press conference, and appears to have sToken'to
Davotuglu this am.

Sent from my BlackBerry \

----- Original Message ----- l

From: Levin, Jan 1

To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker} Andrew
C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Sc ilereth,
Frank G; Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman,
Jeffrey D

Sent: Mon May 31 13:26:31 2010
Subject: MFA flotilla briefing

briefed ‘B6

foreign ambassadors at 12:3@0 local time today.

Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proagtively

to Embassies as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be
processed and escorted to airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. ]
-- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known,'all

injuries occurred on this ship.

e = told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for soardars and B6
were armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding p#rty.

One IDF soldier nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives.
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-- Events took place in international waters. TIsrael asserted it had the legal right to
intercept in intl waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed cenflict
between Israel and Hamas.

Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank
you. '
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RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD-CP,B3

Law, Rosemary C

DODFGI,B5,B6 .
From: MclLeod, Mary (USUN) '
Sent: Tuesday, June 01, 2010 8:32 AM
To: Martin, Julie B; Donoghue, Joan E; Baumert, Kevin A; Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad| Evellﬂ» hJi
Schwartz, Jonathan B;| ~|Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobs
Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

- — |

From: Martin, Julie B |
To: Donoghue, Joan E; Baumert, Kevin A; Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; '
[ _ X §i | Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; HeinemaAn,
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; McLeod, Mary (USUN)

Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H
Sent: Tue Jun 01 05:10:54 2010

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

From: Donoghue, Joan E
To: Martin, Julie B; Baumert, Kevin A; Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; T
}
i

| Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Heinerann,

Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; McLeod, Mary (USUN)

Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H
Sent: Tue Jun 01 04:04:41 2010

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

i
Cd someone send the SYG statement please? Thanks. _- }
H
I

From: Martin, Julie B .
To: Baumert, Kevin A; Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; B6|
: Perina, Alexandra H; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H
Sent: Tue Jun 01 03:47:45 2010

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Thanks to all.

'REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
12
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BS

——_ 1

; Thanks, Julie

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

From: Baumert Kevin A ;
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:54 PM B
To: Pomper, Stephen E; Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra |H; B
Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; DoIan, JoAnn i
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julie B
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA fletilla briefing>

BS

Thanks, Kevin

me. Pomper, Stephen E - l
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4:31 PM l
To: Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B; | ~|Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin Af
Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, JquF B
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

removing non L address

From: Aswad, Evelyn M "
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; ‘Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen’ [ _ _ - | Perina, Alexandra H; B&
Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson; Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; —y |

J; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julie B :
Sent: Mon May 31 16:29:33 2010 |
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Looping in Mariano & Julie. EA

4
|

Frnm. Schwartz Jonathan B
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:10 PM
To: 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen’; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thoma
B; Dolan, JoAnn |
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; | ‘
Townley, Stephen G =S
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> J
13

B6
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Jon

From: Stephen 8 Betsy Pomper;’Andersen‘

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:14 PM
Townley, Stephen G
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA fiotilla briefing>

Folks--

DUS—

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dofan,’ JoA
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; |

nn
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Steve

http: Jerc.org/inl.nsf/385ec082b508e76c4 1256739003e636d/7694fe2016f347e1c1256411002d49¢ce |
Blockade | 4

93. A blockade shzall be declared and notified to all belligerents and neutral States.

94, The declaration shall specify the commencement, duration, location, and extent of the blockade and the period qvithip
which vesseis of neutral States may leave the blockaded coastline. '

95. A blockade must be effective. The guestion whether a blockade is effective is a question of fact. ]
|

96. The force maintaining the blockade may be stationed at a distance determined by military requirements. '

=l

97. A blockade may be enforced and maintained by a combination of legitimate methods and means of warfare prowdet
this combination dioes not result in acts mcuns;stent with the rules set out in this document. :

98. Merchant vessels believed on reasonable grounds to be breaching a blockade may be captured. Merchant vessgls
which, after prior warning, clearly resist capture may be attacked.

99. A blockade must not bar access to the ports and coasts of neutral States,

100. A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels of all States.

101. The cessation, temporary lifting, re-establishment, extension or other alteration of a blockade must be deglared and
notified as in paragraphs 93 and 94. =

102. The declaration or establishment of a blockade is prohibited if:

(a) it has the sole purpose of starving the civilian population or denying it other objects essential for its survival; or
(b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in relation to the concrete and direct
military advantage anticipated from the blockade. :

103. If the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided with food and other objects essential foJ
its survival, the blockading party must provide for free passage of such foodstuffs and other essential su ppllES], sub;ect lib

(a) the right to presicribe the technical arrangements, including search, under which such passage is permitted; and- g
(b) the condition that the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of a Protectin Power of a
humanitarian organization which offers guarantees of impartiality, such as the International Committee of the Red Cross.

104. The blockading belligerent shall allow the passage of medical supplies for the civilian population or for the wouhd
15 ’
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and sick members; of armed forces, subject to the right to prescribe technical arrangements, including search,
such passage is permitted.

Zones

105. A belligerent cannot be absolved of its duties under international humanitarian law by establishing zones
adversely affect the legitimate uses of defined areas of the sea.

106. Should a belligerent, as an exceptional measure, establish such a zone:

(a) the same body of law applies both inside and outside the zone;

undef wh%ch
|

which miéht

(b) the extent, location and duration of the zone and the measures imposed shall not exceed what is strictly reguired by‘

military necessity and the principles of proportionality;
(c) due regard shalll be given to the rights of neutral States to legitimate uses of the seas;

(d) necessary safe: passage through the zone for neutral vessels and aircraft shall be provided: sL
sofa

(i) where the geographical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the ports and coa
neutral State;

(i) in other cases where normal navigation routes are affected, except where military requirements do not perinit; and ‘
(e) the commencement, duration, location and extent of the zone, as well as the restrictions imposed, shall be| publicly '

declared and appropriately notified.

107. Compliance with the measures taken by one belligerent in the zone shall not be construed as an act harr
opposing belligerent.

108. Nothing in this Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to control neu
and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval operations.

From Commancdier's Handbook

7.7 BLOCKADE
7.7.1 General

nful ta !hq
|

ral vefsse[s

|
|
|

Blockade is a belligerent operation to prevent vessels and/or aircraft of all natiens, enemy as well as neutral, from

entering or exiting, specified ports, airfields, or coastal areas belonging Lo, occupied by, or under the control of

the belligerent right of blockade is intended to prevent vessels and aircraft, regardless of their cargo, from
crossing an established and publicized cordon separaiing the enemy from international waters and/or airspace
7.7.2 Criteria for Blockades

To be valid, a blockade must conform to the criteria in the following paragraphs.

7.7.2.1 Establishment

enemy nation. While the belligerent right of visit and search is designed to interdict the flow of contraband goods, i
|

Fan

A blockade must be established by the government of the belligerent nation. This is usually accomplished by 4 |
declaration of the belligerent government or by the commander of the blockading force acting on behalf of the belligerq'nl

government. The declaration should include, as a minimum, the date the blockade is to begin, its
geographic limits, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircraft to leave the area to be blockaded.

7.7.2.2 Notification
it is customary for the belligerent nation estabhsh;ng the blockade to notify all affected nations of its impositipn

breach of blockade: (see paragraph 7.7.4), neutral vessels and aircraft are always entitled to notification. The

Because knowledge of the existence of a blockade is an essential element of the offenses of breach and at!empﬁed ‘
|
|

commander of the blockading forces will usually also notify local authorities in the blockaded area. The form|of

the natification is mot material so long as it is effective.

7.1.2.3 Effectiveness
To be valid, a blockade must be effective—that is, it must be maintained by a surface, air, or subsurface force

or |

other legitimate methods and means of warfare that is sufficient to render ingress or egress of the blockaded area '
dangerous. The requirement of effectiveness does not preclude temporary absence of the blockading force, if such {

absence is due to stress of weather or to some other reason connected with the blockade (e.g., pursuit of a
blockade runner). Effectiveness does not require that every possible avenue of approach to the blockaded areg

covered.
7.7.2.4 Impartiality
16

be

|
|
|
I
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A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels and aircraft of all nations. Discrimination by the blockahmg
belligerent in favor of or against the vessels and aircraft of particular nations, including those of its own or those
of an allied nation, renders the blockade legally invalid.

7.7.2.5 Limitations

A blockade must not bar access Lo or departure from neutral ports and coasts. Neutral nations retain the right
engage in neutral commerce that does not involve trade or communications originating in or destined for the
blockaded area. A blockade is prohibited if the sole purpose is (o starve the civilian population or 1o deny it other
objects essential for its survival.

7.1.3 Special Entry and Exit Authorization

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

(=]

maintenance of the blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines). Similarly, neutral vessels and aircraft engaged inf the |
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

has been declared and appropriate notification provided to affected governments. It is immaterial that the vessel or |

aircraft is at the lime of interception bound for neutral territory, if its ultimate destination is the blockaded area.

There is a presumption of attempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircraft are bound for a neutral port pr airfiel

serving as a point of transit to the blockaded area. (Capture of such vessels is discussed in paragraph

7.10.) ;
7.7.5 Contemporary Practice

The criteria for valid blockades, as set out above 1n paragraph 7.7.2, are for the most part customary in nature
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

controls designed to effect only a limited interference with neutral trade. This was traditionally accomplished by a '

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
rules. In World Wars I and II, belligerents of both sides resorted to methods which, although frequently referred to
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
cruise missiles, have rendered the in-shore blockade exceedingly difficult, if not impossible, to maintain duri
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
Vietnam conflict provides a case in point. The closing of Haiphong and other North Vietnamese pors,
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
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From: pomper

To: schwartzjb@state.gov; perinaah@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; jacobsonl@state.gov;
heinemanntb@state.gov; dolanja@state.gov

CC: aswadem@state.gov; sullivandj1@state.gov; pomperse2@state.gov; guarinmf@state.gov;
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

> To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; JacobsonL@state,

> CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanD]J1@state.gov; | - -" | B5
PomperSE2@state.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov ol
e S| Mgesttert ISF
B5
5 o
> jon
> ‘
> mmmes Original Message----- |
> From: Perina, Alexandra H ﬂ
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM |
> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Hememanﬁ, q
Thomas B; Dolan JoAnn = b !
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; | Fomper, Stephen, E; Guarla'\ B6
Marc F " i '
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> 1
-
P = Nam——Y
B5
) e N ™ S — i c— |

18

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141617 Date: 02/21/2013

StateDept004386




UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141617 Date: 02/21/2013

5 —a¥)

>
s Original Message-----

> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:17 PM

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacebson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dola
Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

> Subject: RE: L. comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

>

n, JoAnn;

>

> = Original Message-----

> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM

> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn;

Perina, Alexandra H
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

>
> e Original Message-----

> From: Baumaert, Kevin A

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

B s Original Message -----

> From: Jacobson, Linda

> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

> Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2010

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

>
> ----- Original Message -----
> From: Baumert, Kevin A

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacpbson,

Linda; Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

> Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>
>

Dolan,

= R
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{

> Kevin

> L/OES

>

> weene Original Message -----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H
> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda
> Sent: Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010
> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> I

> i
BT PEN L Y DV ORGP W T T Wt ot oy -7 S . R W L P 1L RS SN oo, ) L_I

Fpaade Original Message-----

> From: Cunningham, James B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM

> To! Goldberger, Thomas H

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA fiotilla briefing> {
= : S l

> Sent from my BlackBerry

>

b Original Message ----- l
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly Mauraj]
Schlicher, Ronald L; '‘Daniel_B. Shaprro@nsc eop.gov’ <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov>
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn

> Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010

> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> ‘
> .

> See below from Jonathan pls.
>
B el Original Message----- '

> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM
> To: Goldberger, Thomas H :
> Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Hememann,
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

>

> menme Original Message -----

> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda

> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L
> Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010

> Subject: FW: MFA fiotilla briefing

B5 |

----- Ortglnal Message -----
> Fromu: |_ oy

> To: Cunnmgham James B Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J;
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;
Salvatore A {Ist.-anbul); Connelly, Maura; Feitman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Burge
J; Murphy, Michael P; Levin, Jan;|

> Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010

> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

> A ut —r— l—

B3 DOD-CP
Parker, ‘

Amodeo

sS, R}Ch; rd
i

|
B3 DOD-CP

Many of the details briefed have already been prowded via other means. Specnrc Highlights -
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

|
|
|

- Interaction occurred approx 70 NM from coastline. IDF confident in International Law because of mtent

by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides)

l

|
i

=l
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>

> me=en Original Message-----

> From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem)

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM

> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J{

Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R]

| _|Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D
> Cc: 'Dennis_|B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov’; ‘Dshapiro@who.eop.gov'

> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing

>

just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from |

spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am.
>3
reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met

attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who bog

Parker

> This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from rné, but
| who also BB

‘B3 DOD-CP

Ry
%)
|

B3 DOD-CP

with, what B6

he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded wete
rded’'were

attacked by doxzens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation

was one in which actions taken were in self-defense.
>

> Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”. He said all injured being rnoved to
ing into
ve the

Israeli hospital — by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them com
Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; mg

people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as plaqned

initially, move as much of into Gaza as promptly as possible.
>

> Earlier this mornind__ made the following calls/contacts:
> --Turkish FM and MoD ; Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh :| He felt the ¢

i

| Bs

alls w the

Turks griven the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is_______|and how he will handle. With HaI51

in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With

they discussed primarily need for security cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about hov\
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

> To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grub

b, Jason

this. wnl[

9

B; NEA- IPA—DL Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; | Amodeo, 53 DOD-CP

Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem) Connelly, Maura, Feltman, Jeffrey D

> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov'

> Subject: Re: MFA fiotilla briefing

>

> QOur Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's
UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod.

goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a pn
conference, and appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am.
> Sent from my BlackBerry

ess

22

available.
Serry i
trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that assisting deliveries of humanitarian |
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|.
> From: Levin, Jan B3 DOD-CP
> To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker. Andrew C;:

Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; -
Amodeo, Salvatare A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey

> Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010

> Subject: MFA flotilla briefing B3 DODFGI
>

as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be processed and escorted to
airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take. T
> -- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently knowés“ﬁaﬁi:‘bi‘.

I

I
> i
> Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively to JEmhassiFs
occurred on this ship. ‘

> -- [told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders andl.were
armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF soldier
nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives. |
> -- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in intl |
waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Hamas. |
> [
> Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank Wm.{.
|

i
Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn more.

The New Busy is not the old busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Get started. |

|
|

23
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Law, Rosemary C

From: Pomper, Stephen E

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4:31 PM i} :

To: Aswad, Evelyn M; Schwartz, Jonathan B:} Perina,
Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Uolan, JoAnn

Cc: Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Towniey, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano
H; Martin, Julie B

Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

removing non L address

From: Aswad, Evelyn M
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen’ < | Perina, Alexandra H;
Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
Cc: Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;| |
<eandersen@asil.org>; Townley, Stephen G; Banos, Mariano H; Martin, Julie B
Sent: Mon May 31 16:29:33 2010

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Looping in Mariano & Julie. EA

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:10 PM
To: 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen’; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas
B; Dolan, JoAnn J‘

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; eandersen@asil.org;:
Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

lon

From: Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen |
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:14 PM ; : L
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Pering, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;L |
Townley, Stephen G
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]

— At R T e Fa
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Folks--

B6

From San Rem¢ Manual on International faw A

http://www.icrc.org/ihl.nsf/385ec082b503e76¢41256739003e636d/7694fe2016f347e1¢1258411002d48ce

Blockade

93. A blockade shall be declared and notified to all belligerents and neutral States.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No.
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94. The declaration shall specify the commencement, duration, location, and extent of the blockade and the peripd within
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
this combination cloes not result in acts inconsistent with the rules set out in this document.

98. Merchant vessels believed on reasonable grounds to be breaching a blockade may be captured. Merchant vessels
which, after prior warning, clearly resist capture may be attacked.

99. A blockade muust not bar access to the ports and coasts of neutral States.
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
(a) it has the sole purpose of starving the civilian population or denying it other objects essential for its survival; gr

(b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in relation to the concrete and direct
military advantage: anticipated from the blockade.

103. If the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided with food and other objects essqntial for
its survival, the blockading party must provide for free passage of such foodstuffs and other essential supplies, slubiecl to:

. y |
(a) the right to prescribe the technical arrangements, including search, under which such passage is permitted; and
(b) the condition that the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of a Protecting Power or a
humanitarian organization which offers guarantees of impartiality, such as the International Committee of the Red Cross.

104. The blockading belligerent shall allow the passage of medical supplies for the civilian population or for the wounded
and sick members of armed forces, subject to the right to prescribe technical arrangements, including search, utTder which
such passage is permitted.

Zones

105. A belligerent cannot be abselved of its duties under international humanitarian law by establishing zones winich niight
adversely affect the legitimate uses of defined areas of the sea.

106. Should a belligerent, as an exceptional measure, establish such a zone;

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

(d) necessary safe: passage through the zone for neutral vessels and aircraft shall be provided:
(i) where the geographical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the ports and coasts pf a
neutral State;
(i) in other cases where normal navigation routes are affecled, except where military requirements do not permit; and
(e) the commencement, duration, location and extent of the zone, as well as the restrictions imposed, shall be publicly
declared and appropriately notified.

107. Compliance with the measures taken by ane belligerent in the zone shall not be construed as an act harmfyl to the
opposing belligerent.

108. Nothing in this Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to control neutral vessels
and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval operations. )

12
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Erom Commander’'s Handbook
7.7 BLOCKADE

7.7.1 General

Blockade is a belligerent operation to prevent vessels and/or aircraft of all nations, enemy as well as neutral, from
entering or exiting specified ports, airfields, or coastal areas belonging to, occupied by, or under the control of #
enemy nation. While the belligerent right of visit and search is designed to interdict the flow of contraband goods
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

A blockade must be established by the government of the belligerent nation, This is usually accomplished by a
declaration of the belligerent government or by the commander of the blockading force acting on behalf of the helligerent
governmenl. The declaration should include, as a minimum, the date the blockade is to begin, its

geographic limits, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircraft to leave the area o be blockaded.
7.7.2.2 Notification

It is customary for the belligerent nation establishing the blockade to notify all affected nations of its imposition,
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

To he valid, a blackade must be effective—thal is, it must be maintained by a surface, air, or subsurface force o
other legitimale rnethods and means of warfare that is sufficient to render ingress or egress of the blockaded arep
dangerous. The requirement of effectiveness does not preclude temporary absence of the blockading force, if such
absence is due 1o stress of weather or to some other reason connected with the blockade (e.g., pursuit of a
blockade runner). Effectiveness does not require that every possible avenue of approach to the blockaded area be
covered.

7.7.2.4 Impartiality
A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels and aircraft of all nations. Discrimination by the blockadipg
belligerent in favor of or against the vessels and aircraft of particular nations, including those of its own or thos
of an allied nation, renders the blockade legally invalid.

7.7.2.5 Limitations

A blockade musl not bar access to or departure from neutral ports and coasts. Neutral nations refain the right to
engage in neutral commerce that does not involve trade or communications originating in or destined for the
blockaded area. A blockade is prohibited if the sole purpose is to starve the civilian population or to deny it othe
objccts essential for its survival.

7.7.3 Special Eniry and Exit Authorization .
Although neutral warships and military aircraft enjoy no positive right of access to blockaded areas, the f
belligerent imposing the blockade may authorize their entry and exit. Such special authorization may be made |
subject to such conditions as the blockading force considers to be necessary and expedient. Neutral vessels and |
aircraft in evident distress should be authorized entry into a blockaded area, and subsequently authorized 1o
depart, under conditions prescribed by the officer in command of the blockading force or responsible for
maintenance of the blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines). Similarly, neutral vessels and aircraft engaged in the
carriage ol qualifying relief supplies for the civilian population and the sick and wounded should be authorized 10
pass through the blockade cordon, subject to the right of the blockading force to prescribe the technical
arrangements, including search, under which passage is permitted.

7.7.4 Breach and Attempted Breach of Blockade

Breach of blockade is the passage of a vessel or atrcraft through a blockade without special entry or exil
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
aircrafl is al the time of interception bound for neutral territory, if its ultimate destination is the blockaded area.
There is a presumption of attempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircraft are bound for a neutral port or dirfield
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
controls designed to effect only a limited interference with neutral trade. This was traditionally accomplished by
relatively “close-in* cordon of surface warships stationed in the immediate vicinity of the blockaded area.

The increasing emphasis in modern warfare on seeking to isolate completely the enemy from outside assistance
and resources by targeting enemy merchant vessels as well as warships, and on interdicting all neutral commerce
with the enemy, is not furthered substantially by blockades established in strict conformity with the traditional
rules. In World Wars I and II, belligerents of bath sides resorted to methods which, although frequently referred jo
as measures of blockade, cannot be reconciled with the traditional concepi of the close-in blockade. The so—calleg
long-distance blockade of both world wars departed materially from those traditional rules and were premised in
large measure upon the belligerent right of reprisal against illegal acts of wartare on the part of the enemy.
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
that conform to the traditional rules, blackade continues to be a useful means to regulate the competing interests
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
the term “blockade” was not used.

W

From: . e v B6
To: schwartzib@state.gov; perinaah@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; jacobsonl@state.gov;
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

> From: SchwarlzlB@state.gov

> To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; JacobsonL@state.g?v;
HeinemannTB@state.gov; Dolan]A@state.gov

> CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanD]1@state.gov;| = |
PomperSE2@stalte.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov

>

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141744 Date: 02/21/2013
StateDept004396




UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141744 Date: 02/21/2013

> a-ame Original Message-----

> From: Perina, Alexandra H

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM

> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinem
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E;
Marc F

ann,

Guarin,

> Subject: RE: |. comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

e =S

>

P = Original Message-----

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

-, —

> —---- Original Message-----

> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM

> To: Baumert, Kevin A: Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,
Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

> Subject: RE: . comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

- = = — -

JoAnn;

loAnn;
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> ----- Original Message-----

> From: Baumert, Kevin A

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM
> To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dd
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

lan,

> —meee Original Message -----
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
>

>
> meee Original Message -----
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

>

Ploras Original Message -----

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

il L i

|

> ---e- QOriginal Message-----

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

>

> ===-- Original Message -----
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
>

> —m-e- Original Message----~

> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H

> Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinem
Thomas B

Maura;

ann,

> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing

= == 1

> —ee- Original Message -----

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

> ——mm- Original Message -----
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
> _
L B5
>
> Original Message -----
> From:| = il B3 DOD-CP
> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc 1; Parker,
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo,
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem);[
e e | Levin, Jan;| |

> Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010
> Subject: RE: MFA fiotilla briefing
>

B - . ) _ B3 DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific Highlights - B3 DODEGI
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

>
> emman Original Message-----
> From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem)
> Sent; Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM
> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc 1; Parker,
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;E

Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D [ B3 DOD-CP
> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who,.eop.gov’
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing
>
> This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from me, but
just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from | who also B6
spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. -
>
> reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met with what B6
he gescribed as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded were
attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boarded were
attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation
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was one in which actions taken were in self-defense.

>

> Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 “maybe more”. He said all injured being mojed to
Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them coming into
Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; move the
people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned
initially, move as much of into Gaza as promptly as possible. 86
>

> Earlier this morning made the following calls/contacts:

> --Turkish FM and MoD } Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh@ He felt the calls w the
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

>

> —-ee- Original Message-----

> From: Cunningham, James B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM

> To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb,|Jason
B: NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters John R; J]Amode b, B3 DOD-CP
Salvature A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D 5
> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc,eap.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’

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

> To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andre
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; =
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D
> Sent; Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010

> Subject: MFA flotilla briefing

-

e

“B3 DOD-CP §

>
> Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time, MFA will reach out proactively to E
as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be processed and escorted
airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take.

> -- Most violence occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injuries
occurred on this ship.

>+ lold Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and W

armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF sg
nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives,

intl
waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Hanfnas.
>

> -- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in
> Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank you.

rln bassies
to

ere B3 DODFGI

Idier
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
Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4:20 PM

To: Dolan, JoAnn; Schwartz, Jonathan B; } Perina, Algxandra H;

-Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; manm, Imomas B
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; Townley, S
Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Rmoving a non UG family-member address that wound up on this chain.

tephen G

From: Dolan, JoAnn
To: Schwarlz, Jonathan B; 'Stephen & Betsy Pornper/Andersen'| | Perina, Alg
Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B ) .

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E;

[ ~ | Townley, Stephen G I

‘Sent: Mon May 31 16:16:35 2010
Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

xandra H;

From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 4:10 PM

To: 'Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen'; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann,
B; Dolan, JoAnn

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; eandersen@as
Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Thomas

l.org;

Jon

IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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From; Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen|

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 3:14 PM B6
To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dojan, JoAnn
Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghue, Joan E; L )

Townley, Stephen G

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Folks--

Here is a quick summary of where we seem to be on the grabbag of issues relating to the Israeli action off
of Gaza (please jump in/correct as appropriate): T

Sleve

Em_gggm anual on International Law Applicable to Armed C i at Sea, 12 June 1994
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

95. A blockade must be effective. The question whether a bleckade is effective is a question of fact.
96. The force maintaining the blockade may be staticned at a distance determined by military requirements.

97. A blockade may be enforced and maintained by a combination of legitimate methods and means of warfare Trcwided
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

101. The cessation, temporary lifting, re-establishment, extension or other alteration of a blockade must be declﬁred and
notified as in paragraphs 93 and 84.

102. The declaration ar establishment of a blockade is prohibited if:
(a) it has the sole purpose of starving the civilian population or denying it other objects essential for its survival, or

(b) the damage to the civilian population is, or may be expected to be, excessive in relation to the concrete and direct
military advantage: anticipated from the blockade.

103. If the civilian population of the blockaded territory is inadequately provided with food and other objects essintial for
its survival, the blockading party must provide for free passage of such foodstuffs and other essential supplies, subject to:

(a) the right to prescribe the technical arrangements, including search, under which such passage is permitied; and
(b) the condition that the distribution of such supplies shall be made under the local supervision of a Protecting Power or a
humanitarian orgenization which offers guarantees of impartiality, such as the International Committee of the Red Cross.

104, The blockading belligerent shall allow the passage of medical supplies for the civilian population or for the wounded
and sick members; of armed forces, subject to the right to prescribe technical arrangements, including search, upder which
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
military necessity and the principles of propaortionality;

(c) due regard shaill be given to the rights of neutral States to legitimate uses of the seas;

(d) necessary safe: passage through the zone for neutral vessels and aircraft shall be provided:
(i) where the geographical extent of the zone significantly impedes free and safe access to the ports and coasts of a
neutral State;
(il) in other cases where normal navigation routes are affected, except where military requirements do not permit; and
{e) the commencement, duration, location and extent of the zone, as well as the restrictions imposed, shall be publicly
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declared and appropriately notified.

107. Compliance with the measures taken by one belligerent in the zone shall not be construed as an act harmfu
opposing belligerent.

108. Nothing in this Section should be deemed to derogate from the customary belligerent right to control neutra
and aircraft in the immediate vicinity of naval operations.

From Commander's Handbook

7.7 BLOCKADE,
7.7.1 General

i to the

vessels

Blockade is a belligerent operation to prevent vessels and/or aircraft of all nations, enemy as well as neutral, from
entering or exiting specified ports, airfields, or coastal areas belonging Lo, occupied by, or under the control of an

enemy nation. While the belligerent right of visit and search is designed to interdict the flow of contraband goods,

the belligerent right of blockade is intended to prevent vessels and aircraft, regardless of their cargo, from
crossing an established and publicized cordon separating the enemy from international waters and/or airspace.
7.7.2 Criteria for' Blockades

To be valid, a blockade must conform to the criteria in the following paragraphs.

7.7.2.1 Establishinent

A blockade must Ibe established by the government of the belligerent nation. This is usually accomplished by a

declaration of the belligerent government or by the commander of the blockading force acting on behall of the belhigerent

government. The declaration should include, as a minimum, the date the blockade is to begin, its
geographic limits, and the grace period granted neutral vessels and aircraft to leave the area to be blockaded.
7.7.2.2 Notification

It is customary for the belligerent nation establishing the blockade to notify all affected nations of its imposition

Because knowledge of the existence of a blockade is an essential element of the offenses of breach and attempled

breach of blockade (see paragraph 7.7.4), neutral vessels and aircraft are always entitled to notification. The
commander of the blockading forces will usually also notify local authorities in the blockaded area. The form o]
the notification is not material so long as it is effective.
7.7.2.3 Effectiveness

Ta be valid, a blockade must be effective—that is, it must be maintained by a surface, air, or subsurface force o1

other legitimate methods and means of warfare that is sufficient to render ingress or egress of the blockaded area
dangerous. The requirement of effectiveness does not preclude temporary absence of the blockading force, if such

absence is due to stress of weather or to some other reason connecled with the blockade (e.g., pursuit of a
blockade runner). Effectiveness does nol require that every possible avenue of approach to the blockaded area b
covered.

7.7.2.4 Impartiality
A blockade must be applied impartially to the vessels and aircraft of all nations. Discrimination by the blockadin
belligerent in favor of or against the vessels and aircraft of particular nations, including those of its own or thoseg
of an allied nation, renders the blockade legally invalid.

7.7.2.5 Limitations

A blockade must not bar access Lo or departure from neutral ports and coasts. Neutral nations retain the right to
engage in neutral commerce that does not invelve trade or communications originating in or destined for the

blockaded area. A blockade is prohibited if the sole purpose is 1o starve the civilian population or to deny it othgr

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
depart, under conclitions prescribed by the officer in command of the blockading force or responsible for

maintenance of the blockading instrumentality (e.g., mines). Similarly, neutral vessels and aircraft engaged in llrc
1o

carriage of qualifying relief supplies for the civilian population and the sick and wounded should be authorized
pass through the blockade cordon, subject to the right of the blockading force to prescribe the technical
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arrangements, including search, under which passage is permitted.

7.7.4 Breach and Attempted Breach of Blockade

Breach of blockadle is the passage of a vessel or aircraft through a blockade without special entry or exit
authorization from the blockading belligerent. Attempted breach of blockade occurs from the time a vessel or
aircraft leaves a port or airfield with the intention of evading the blockade, and for vessels exiting the blockaded
area, continues until the voyage is completed. Knowledge of the existence of the blockade is essential to the
offenses of breach of blockade and atiempted breach of blockade. Knowledge may be presumed once a blockade
has been declared and appropriate notification provided to affected governments. It is immaterial that the vessel pr
aircralt is at the time of interception bound for neutral territory, if its ultimate destination is the blockaded area.
There is a presumjption of attempted breach of blockade where vessels or aircraft are bound for a neutral port or airfield
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
rules reflect a balance between the right of a belligerent possessing effective command of the sea to close enem
ports and coastlines to international commerce, and the right of neutral nations to carry oul neutral commerce with
the least possible interference from belligerent forces. The law of blockade is, therefore, premised on a system of
controls designed to effect only a limited interference with neutral trade, This was traditionally accomplished by|a
relatively “close-in™ cordon of surface warships stationed in the immediate vicinity of the blockaded area.

The increasing emphasis in modern warfare on seeking to isolate completely the enemy from outside assistance
and resources by targeting enemy merchant vessels as well as warships, and on interdicting all neutral commercg
with the enemy, is not furthered substantially by blockades established in strict conformity with the traditional
rules. In World Wars I and 11, belligerents of both sides resorted to methods which, although frequently referred |to
as measures of blockade, cannot be reconciled with the traditional concept of the close-in blockade. The so-callegd
long-distance blockade of bath world wars departed materially from those traditional rules and were premised in
large measure upon the belligerent right of reprisal against illegal acts of warfare on the part of the enemy.
Moreover, developments in weapons systems and platforms, particularly submarines, supersonic aircraft, and
cruise missiles, have rendered the in-shore blockade exceedingly difficult, if not impossible, to maintain during
anything other than a local or limited armed conflict, Accordingly, the characteristics of modern weapon systems
will be a factor in analyzing the effectiveness of contemporary blockades.
Notwithstanding this trend in belligerent practices (during general war) away from the establishment of blockades
that conform to the traditional rules, blockade continues to be a useful means to regulate the competing interesl's|
of belligerents andl neutrals in more limited armed conflict. The experience of the United States during the '
Vietnam conflict provides a case in point. The closing of Haiphong and other North Vietnamese ports,
accomplished by the emplacement of mines, was undertaken in conformity with traditional criteria of
establishment, notification, effectiveness, limitation, and impartiality, although at the time the mining ook placg
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

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flatilla briefing>

Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 17:29:30 +0000

Marc Guarin is going to log in and weigh in on this question. I also reached out to JCS legal to seq if they
have a Navy lawyer we can talk to. Have taken Tom G off this chain for the moment. Steve

> Subject: RE: L. comments on MFA flotilla briefing>
> Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 13:01:59 -0400
> From: SchwartzlB@state.gov
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> To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.qgov; JacobsonL@state.gpv;

HeinemannTB@state.gov; Dolan]JA@state.gov

> CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanD]1@state.gov; |
PomperSE2@state.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov —— -

>

> Thanks Alexandra.r

> ----- Original Message-----
> From: Perina, Alexandra H
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM

> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann,

Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn e B
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; ; Pomper, Stephen E;
Marc F

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

s = Sm—————

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

> -----Original Message-----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H
26

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141746 Date: 02/21/2013

StateDept004408

B6

BS

BS




UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141746 Date: 02/21/2013

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM
> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, )
Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

OANN;

D Original Message-----

> From: Baumert, Kevin A

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM
> To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Do
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ]

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

Y o —

b Original Message -----
> From: Jacobson, Linda

> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; O
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

> Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2010

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

gl e =

olan,

| |

> —-me- Original Message -----
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

>

o i Original Message -----
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

e it A S
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> --mes Original Message-----

> From: Cunningham, James B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 10:47 AM

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>
> i

> Sent from my BlackBerry

> —mmee Original Message -----
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

> = L
> Tom -

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
>
_ > Alexandra/Toim -Are either of you in a position to assist L/OES?

—

—_—

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141746 Date: 02/21/2013

StateDept004410

B5




== UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05141746 Date: 02/21/2013 —
B5
5 -
> Jon
>
> mmre Original Message -----
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H
> To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L
> Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010
> Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing
>
> Sorry, but could we get quick reactions to this? ‘ B5
S e
>
> -meem Original Message -----
> From| | B3 DOD-CP
> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; leffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker,
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; AZwodeo,
Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem);| |
|M; Levin, Jan; |
> Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010
> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing
>
L = : B3 DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have already been prowded via other means. Speuﬁc H:ghllghts - B3 DODFGI
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
by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slldes)
3 £ B3 DOD-CP
i
} .
P Original Message-----
> From: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem)
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 2:46 PM
> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker,
_Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;
Amodvo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura, Feltman, Jeffrey D B3 DOD-CP
> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov'
> Subject; RE: MFA flotilla briefing
>
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> This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from me, but
just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from| = | who also B6
spoke with the IUN's Serry, among others, this am. P
> —_—
> reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met w(th what B
he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded were
attacked with kinives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boarded were
attacked by dozens; He indicated that somne of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear|situation
was one in which actions taken were in self-defense.
>
> Current estimates of those killed from fiotilla 14-15 "maybe more”, He said all injured being moved to
Israeli hospital - by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod {(some reports have them coming into
Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; movs?the
people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planne?
initially, move as much of into Gaza as promptly as possible.
>
> Earlier this morning |made the following calls/contacts: B6
> --Turkish FM and MoD } Erakat, Fayyad, and Hussein al Sheikh| | He felt the cal|s w the
Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and hew he will handle. Witp Pals,
Erakat in particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With|Fayyad
they discussed primarily need for security cooperation, keeping things calm. Concern about how this will
be affected by status of Israeli Arab Islamic leader on board the flotilla.
>
> (PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.)
>
e st Original Message-----
> From: Cunningham, James B
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:38 PM
> To: Levin, Jan; Operations Center; leffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrew C; Grubb/ Jason
B; NEA-IPA-DL: Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, JohnR;| —— JAmode‘o, B3 DOD-CP
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
A Original Message -----
> From: Levin, Jan
> To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc J; Parker, Andrgw C;
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;| B3 DOD-CP
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey [ '
> Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010
> Subject: MFA flotilla briefing
>
‘ B3 DODFGI
—— = - —
> Highlights - Identification of dead and wounded taking time. MFA will reach out proactively to Embassies
as IDs are done, with location and status of citizens. The uninjured will be processed and escorted to
airport for deportation. Unclear how long this will take.
> -- Most violenice occurred on ship Mavi (Blue) Marmara. As far as is currently known, all injuries
occurred on this ship.
> F:old Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and wereg3 DODFG|
30
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armed. Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF soldier
nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives.
> -- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept in fintl

waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Hamas.
>

> Ambassador (Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, thank you.

Hotmail has tools for the New Eusy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn more.

The New Busy is not the old busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Get started.
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Declassify on: 06/04/2020

Bowers, Allyson M ' \Z'j 7

From: Sindle, James M

Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 10:43 AM

To: Gaza Flotilla Monitoring Group

Subject: FW: PM 4 JUN 10 - FREE GAZA MOVEMENT (FGM) FLOTILLA UPDATE -WAVE #2
(SITREP #9) (SECRET)

Attachments: Free Gaza Movement Flotilla Update PM 4 Jun 10.ppt; GAZA FLOTILLA AFTERMATH -
SITREP 3.doc

RELEASED IN PART B3 A
DOD-CP,B1,B5,1.4(D),1.4(C),B6

The latest locations of the Israeli SAARs and Rachel Corrie.

1.4(C)
B1 |
From: N ﬂ B3 DOD-CP
Sent: Friday, June 04, 2010 10:Z28 AM B6
To: Gardner, John D. LTG; john.allen@centcom.smil.mil
Ce[ |
B3 DOD-CP
B6
Subject: PM 4 JUN 10 - FREE GAZA MOVEMENT (FGM) FLOTILLA UPDATE - WAVE # 2 (SITREP #9) (SECRET)
LRE‘VIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
Classification: SECRET//REL TO USA, AUS, CAN, GBR
Good afternoon LTG Gardner / LtGen Allen
1.4(C)
B1
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1.4(C)
B1
Current Situation:
1. Free Gaza Movement (FGM) “Freedom “Flotilla — Wave # 2 (reduced to a single ship)
. 1.4(D)
F1
- Open source reporting indicates RACHEL CORRIE has no plans to i i in Gaza and
ﬁg; not intend to resist, should Israeli forces attempt to bc]:ard. ;‘14(0)
- 1.4(C)
B1
Essgmeﬁ:[
0 1.4(C)
B1
)
2. Israeli Defense Force (IDF)
Naval Activity:
- |
1.4(C)
B1
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V/R, Larry

B6
B3 DOD-CP

Attachment Classification: SECRET
Attachment Caveats: NOFORN
Classification: SECRET/REL TO USA, AUS, CAN, GBR
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T3>

[RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD-CP,B1,1.4(D),B6,1.4(C)

Bowers, Allyson M

From: Yoo, Donny H

Sent: Thursday, June 30, 2011 4;59 AM

To: Eussen, Matthew M; SES-O_OPS-WatchTeam

Cc: NEA-IPA-DL; Silverman, Robert J; Levin, Jan X; Grubb, Jason B; Berns, David B
Subject: RE: "FREEDOM FLOTILLA II" GAZA AID CONVOY UPDATE (SITREP #7) (SECRET)
Mr. Eussen,

Many thanks for these very helpful emails.

Thanks,
Donny Yoo

From: Eussen, Matthew M

Sent: Thursday, June 30, 2011 4:15 AM

To: SES-O_OPS-WatchTeam

Cc: NEA-IPA-DL; Silverman, Robert J; Levin, Jan X; Grubb, Jason B; Berns, David B
Subject: FW: "FREEDOM FLOTILLA 11" GAZA AID CONVOY UPDATE (SITREP #7) (SECRET)

Additional information.
Respectfully-
-Matt

This document is UNCLASSIFIED//NOFORN when separated from SECRET//NOFORN attachment(s).

Sensitivity: Sensitive
Classification: SECRET/INOFORN
Derived From: previous msg in thread.
Declassify On: 2021/06/30

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer

From: | B3 DOD-CP
Sel||t: Wednesday, June 29, 21011 7:42 AM B6
To:
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B3 DOD-CP

B6

Subject: "FREEDOM FLOTILLA II" GAZA AID CONVOY UPDATE (SITREP #7) (SECRET)
Classification: SECRET
Caveats: NOFORN

Good morning J2 —
' | : 1.4(C)
. B1

|
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eauest all i ease feed updates to USEUCOM theater all-source fusion analysis center at
This will help to ensure accuracy, timeliness, relevancy, and dissemB3 DOD-CPyr
- B6

Convention: Blue is new.

—1.4(D)
B1

(U) The international “Freedom Flotllia Il (FF2) — Stay Human" will include 10 ships, at least two of which are cargo
boats carrying aid, while the rest are passenger ships carrying hundreds of people, among them, politicians, MEPs,
writers, religious faith representatives, people of arts and culture and activists. Press releases indicates many TV crews
will be also on board (CNN, NBC, Al-Jazeera, et al) as well as journalists sent by various world media and newspapers.
*Stay Human" was selected in honor of 36-year old ltalian pro-Palestinian activist Vittorio Arrigoni, who was killed 14 Apr
2011 after being kidnapped in Gaza City by Salafist radicals.

SITREP follows:

1.4(C)
1.4(D)
B1
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(U) Political Developments:

- (U) On 28 Jun, Israel Defense Ministry proposed confiscating the ships that attempt to break the naval blockade to
Gaza, a move aimed at deterring future fiotillas. Israell press reporting indicates IDF claims they have intelligence
showmg some flotilla participants are planning to use violence and possibly chemical weapons against the troops. Fletilla
members claim this is an attempt to justify IDF violence. {Source: Jerusalem Post)

1.4(C)
1.4(D)
B1

- (U) On 27 Jun, the Israeli “Lawfare” Group took responsibility for lodging the complaint against flotilla ship AUDACITY
OF HOPE. Free Gaza Movement (FGM) organizers and AUDACITY OF HOPE passengers believe the complaint was
frivolous and are now confident the Greek government will allow them to depart Greece.

- (U) On 27 Jun, the “Freedom Flotilla Il (FF2) — Stay Human" press conference occurred in Athens but no specific ship
names, departure: dates, launch times, or rendezvous date, time, or area were revealed. Organizers also withheld the
length of time the flotilla would remain at the rendezvous area before heading south. In short, FF2 spokespersons stated
the flotilla will press forward with their departure plans despite Israel’'s warnings.

- (U} ©n 27 Jun, after two days of closed-doors meetings, the Israeli ministers committea on security affairs voted in favor
of the navy plans to stop the FF2 flotilla from breaching the israeli-imposed naval blockade on the Palestinian territory,
giving the army authority to use "all necessary means" during the operation. The Israeli cabinet has ordered Israeli troops
to operate with "maximal restraint and avoid clashes with activists on board the vessels.”

-(U) On 22 Jun, US STATE Dept warned US citizens against taking part in the fiotilla and to avoid all travel to the Gaza
Strip, citing threats to themselves as well as US interests. (STATE)

(S//REL TO USA, GBR) Israeli Defense Force (IDF)
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1.4(C) |

1.4(D)
B1

{S) US Navy Forces

V/R,

Attachment Classification: SECRET
Attachment Caveats: NOFORN
Classification: SECRET

Caveats: NOFORN

1.4(C)
1.4(D)
B1

B3 DOD-CP
B6

B3 DOD-CP
B6
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RELEASED IN PART B3 DOD-CP,B3 |
Law, Rosemary C DODFGI,B5,B6 |

From: Stephen & Betsy Pomper/Andersen| : ] ! B

Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 1:29 PM

To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Perina, Alexandra H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; quemann
Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn I ;

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; Pomper, Stephen E; Guarin, Marc F; Donoghué Joan E

Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla bneﬂng:-

Marc Guarin is going to log in and weigh in on this qﬁestion. I also reached out to 1ICS legal to see if they
have a Navy lawyer we can talk to. Have taken Tom G off this chain for the moment. Steve ‘

|
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> |

> Date: Mon, 31 May 2010 13:01:59 -0400 |

> From: Schwartz]B@state.gov

> To: PerinaAH@state.gov; GoldbergerTH@state.gov; baumertka@state.gov; JacobsonL@state.gbv;
HeinemannTB@state.gov; DolanJA@state.gov |

> CC: AswadEM@state.gov; SullivanD]1@state.gov; pornper_andersenq i
PomperSE2@state.gov; GuarinMF@state.gov |

> (]

B6

BS5.

> jon |
p S Original Message----- !

> From: Perina, Alexandra H |

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:56 PM

> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Goldberger, Thomas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Hememann

Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn |

> Cc: Aswad Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J; | Pomper, Stephen E;l Guarin, B6
Marc F
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> |
= |

BS

= ——— == . = [
REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer| ‘

I
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i

>

— a

i
> ; lI
]
I
|

" B5S

> -----Original Message-----

> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 12:17 PM

> To: Goldberger, Thornas H; Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan,]JoAnn,
Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ] |

> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> |

- ;
> - Original Message----- '
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H i
> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:40 AM |
> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Jacobson, Linda; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnnN;
Perina, Alexandra H l
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David ] |
> Subject: RE: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> |
> 1

T et - = .

>
> -----Qriginal Message-----

> From: Baumert, Kevin A

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 11:34 AM
> To: Jacobson, Linda; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Sullivan, David J |

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing> :

>

>
> ----- QOriginal Message -----
> From: Jacobson, Linda .
> To: Baumert, Kevin A; Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; D?olan,
JoAnn; Perina, Alexandra H 0
> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M !
> Sent: Mon May 31 11:20:32 2010 |
> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA fiotilla briefing> |

>

b Original Message ----- !

> From: Baumert, Kevin A |

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson,
Linda; Perina, Alexandra H J

> Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M

> Sent: Mon May 31 11:18:29 2010

> Subject: Re: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

|
> i
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|
N BS

> Kevin i

> L/OES

> I

> wumen Original Message ----- |

> From: Goldberger, Thomas H i

> To: Schwartz, Jonathan B; Baumert, Kevin A; Heinemann, Thomas B; Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda
> Sent: Mon May 31 10:50:27 2010 |

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

> - — — _—

“SENTTrom my BlackBerry = I —
> |
> ----- Original Message ----- |

> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> To: Cunningham, James B; Hale, David M; Feltman, Jeffrey D; Rubinstein, Daniel H; Connelly, Maura;
Schlicher, Ronald L; '‘Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov' <Daniel_B._Shapiro@nsc.eop.gov>

> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Jacobson, Linda; Dolan, JoAnn

> Sent: Mon May 31 17:37:00 2010

> Subject: FW: L comments on MFA flotilla briefing>

>
>
> mamen Original Message-----

I
|
|
> See below from Jonathan pls. |
I
|

> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B

> Sent: Monday, May 31, 2010 9:13 AM i

> To: Goldberger, Thomas H i

> Cc: Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Dolan, JoAnn; Baumert, Kevin A; Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann,
Thomas B !

> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing |

> _ 1

> Jon

13

|
UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05140888 Date: 02/20/2013

StateDept004424



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No, F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05140888 Date: 02/20/2013

|
> —=-m- Original Message ----- |
> From: Schwartz, Jonathan B 1
> To: Perina, Alexandra H; Heinemann, Thomas B ;
> Cc; Baumert, Kevin A; Harris, Robert K; Danoghue, Joan E; Dolan, JoAnn |
> Sent; Mon May 31 09:05:16 2010 !
> Subject: Fw: MFA flotilla briefing ;
> —_— |

B5

D Qriginal Message ----- |
> From: Goldberger, Thomas H

> To: Dolan, JoAnn; Jacobson, Linda |
> Cc: Holmstrom, Todd C; Schwartz, Jonathan B; Knopf, Payton L |
> Sent: Mon May 31 08:24:00 2010 P
> Subject: FW: MFA flotilla briefing |

‘ B5

> |
> e Original Message ----- B3 DO‘D"CP

> From: |

> To: Cunningham, James B; Levin, Jan; Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Sievers, Marc J; Parker
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; Amodeo,
Salvatore A (Istanbul} Connei[y, Maura; Feltman, ]effrey D; Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem),l

|M; Levin, Jam;| i

> Sent: Mon May 31 08:08:22 2010 |

> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing 1

>

| B3 DOD-CP
Many of the details briefed have already been provided via other means. Specific HighlightB3 DODFGI
> - Ongoing Operation \

\ > - Two Ships in Ashdad to include the CHALLENGER I
> - M/V MAVI MARMARA expected in port between 1700L and 1800L

> - All ships will be in port by later today ! :
|
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
by flotilla to breach the blockade. (See Attached Slides) \
>

B3 DODI—CP

> V/R, |
14 i
|

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
Andrew C; Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R: | 1
I Amodeo, Saivatore A (Istanbul); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D B3 POD -CP
> Cc: 'Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov'; 'Dshapiro@who.eop.gov'

> Subject: RE: MFA flotilla briefing !

|
: i ' |
]
I

> [
> This may largely repeat at this point what is out in other places and/or others have heard from me, but

just to assure that various reporting lines have same info, this is from ho also B6
spoke with the UN's Serry, among others, this am. T\(

>

[reported that when Israeli soldiers boarded the main deck of the main ship, they met Vilth what B6
he described as clearly planned active/armed resistance, including live fire. Military who boarded were
attacked with knives, sharpened metal and wood instruments, etc. He said the military who boarded were
attacked by dozens; He indicated that some of the soldiers were stabbed and slashed. Made clear situation
was one in which actions taken were in self-defense. I
> I
> Current estimates of those killed from flotilla 14-15 "maybe more”. He said all injured being rnmved to
Israeli hospital — by helicopter. He said ships coming into Ashdod (some reports have them comu?g into
Haifa). At Ashdod, he and others will meet the ships. There, they will need to ID the bodies; mave the
people either to return them to home countries rapidly and/or detain; ID the cargo and as planned
initially, move as much of into Gaza as promptly as possible. ,
>
> Earlier this morning he and| made the following calls/contacts: f B6
> --Turkish FM and MoD Erakat, Fayvad, and Hussein al Shelkh[ He felt the calls w the
Turks given the situation were OK, but the concern clearly is Erdogan and how he will handle. WJh Pals,
Erakat||n particular, they discussed extent to which levels of rhetoric could be kept in check. With Fayyad
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
B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Elisa; Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R;[ |[Amodeo,
Salvatore A (Istanbul), Rudrnan, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman, Jeffrey D B3 DOD CP
> Cc: '‘Dennis_B._Ross@nsc.eop.gov’; '‘Dshapiro@who.eop.gov’
> Subject: Re: MFA flotilla briefing t
>
> Qur Consular people are in contact with MFA and Ashdod to get info on amcits as soon as it's ayailable.
UN had been approached be COGAT last week to help in forwarding cargo from ships in Ashdod. Serry is
trying to send a couple of observers to Ashdod, has told cogat that assisting deliveries of humanitarian
goods, much of which is destined for Hamas, is problemmatic but he'll see. Barak just gave a press
conference, and appears to have spoken to Davotuglu this am. |
> Sent from my BlackBerry
# |

15 !

> |

> (PIC seems to be on track/going forward. Some events may be affected by it.) |

>

> —meem Original Message----- l
l

|
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I
w— QOriginal Message ----- B3 L?OD -CP
> From: Levin, Jan |
> To: Operations Center; Jeffrey, James F; Cunningham, James B; Sievers, Marc ]; Parker, Andréw C;
Grubb, Jason B; NEA-IPA-DL; Greene, Ehsa Marchese, Gregory M; Waters, John R; |
Amodeo, Salvatore A (Istanbul); Rudman, Mara (Jerusalem); Connelly, Maura; Feltman Jeffrey D
> Sent: Mon May 31 13:20:31 2010
> Subject: MFA fiotilla briefing
> 1
> MFA DG Yossi Gal and IDF Col.| A] briefed foreign BG’
ambassadors at 12:30 local time today. ) = '
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
> -- Col, told Ambassador that activists on Mavi Marmara were prepared for boarders and were B6
armed, Unclear if they had firearms in advance or took them from IDF boarding party. One IDF saldier
nearly beaten to death with metal bar. Activists also had knives.
> -- Events took place in international waters. Israel asserted it had the legal right to intercept |r|. intl
waters because there is a miltary blockade under the law of armed conflict between Israel and Hamas.
> i
> Ambassador Cunningham requests that Embassy Tel Aviv clear Dept guidance on this issue, th?nk you.

]
Hotmail has tools for the New Busy. Search, chat and e-mail from your inbox. Learn more. | I

16
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| L,

Bowers, Allyson M

From: Sindle, James M >

Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 8:42 AM

Tt » Gaza Flotilla Monitoring Group

Subject: FW: 3 JUN 10 - FREE GAZA MOVEMENT (FGM) FLOTILLA UPDATE - WAVE # 2 (SITREP
#6) (SECRET)

Aftachments: Free Gaza Movement Flotilla Update_3 Jun 10.ppt; 20100604_TUR_IHH.ppt

[RELEASED IN PART B1,83 DOD-CP,1.4(A),B6,1.4(C)|
Interesting that Rachel Corrie heading to Alexandria, Egypt.

From: Stein, Lawrence ]. CAPT [mallto:Lawrence.Stein@jac.eucom.smil.mil] B3 DOD-CP
Sent: Thursday, June 03, 2010 12:36 AM
To: Gardner, John D. LTG

EE._] __Jl B6

SECR 1.4(A)
: o " B1

Good morning LTG Gardner-

[Classification Extended on : 02/19/2012 ~ Class: SECRET ~ Authority: DSCG 11-1 ~0 Declassify on: 06-02-2025

Situation Update:

1.4C)
B1

[I_!EVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
1
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By

Schaefer, Courtney

From: ' Warlow, Molly

Sent: Thursday. February 17, 2011 10:08 AM

To: McHenry, Teresa; Warner, David [RELEASED IN PART BB]
Cc: Hammer, Timothy, Schaefer, Courtney

Subject: RE: Meeting re Furkhal Dogan

| would recormmend dalng it with State — don’t want ta have them playing one against the other, plus | would want to
know what state says, and I think this more a foreign reJations than legal Issue at this point. Wauld you be willing to

attend?-

Mally

Sent. Wednesday, February" 16 2011 6 31 PM . i f’hup
2

To: Warlow’ Moliy, WEII‘I'IEI’, David- - - e e emE AR e mmre w4 eemeert W4 o B eerm e b oaeme s 0% e e e e s
Cc: Hammer, Timothy; Schaefer, Courtney _ IDPT
Subject: Re: Meeting re Furkhat Dogan . .

| inctined to think we shid mest. Don't have strong preference re whether doj does w state, or we do separately ' \

T
.  E— ' )
From: Wariow, Molly ) wIE
To: Warner, David; McHenry, Teresa e |
Cc: Hammet, Tlmothy ~p5 My J
—Senk-Wed-Feb-16-13:34:23-2011 - -1 2
. ¥

Subjact: RE: Meeting re Furkhat Dogan

Or Joln thelr meeting?

From Warner, Davld
Sent: Wednesday, February 16, 2011 1:21 PM

To: McHenry, Teresa; Warlow, Molly

Cc: Hammet, Timothy

Subject: Fw: Meeting re Furkhat Dogan i

- Mollyuand.Terasa, State .is.taking.the.meetlng.wirh-Dogan.-They.are.rrrsl;irré'_a'bé.ﬁt o.u‘r_.intérrtic“rrjrév.ré:_hls_ pro'po'éed .rnee!ing: L
with us and whether we want to attend their mesting, With State taking the meeting, do we want to decline the mesting
him perhaps pravide a talking point that speaks to the lack of Jurisdiction under US law? David

From: Wison, Kathleen A <WilsonkA2@state gov> : - Mﬂ_@_@ﬁl
—~+-Tor-McDonough; PatrictaE-<McPonoughPE@staie;goy>;-Hammer; Fimethy;-Warner-David
Sent: Wed Feb 16 12:24:47 2011
Subject: RE: Meeting re Furkhat Dogan |

J .. B5
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From: McDonough, Patricia E

Sent: Wednesday, February 16, 2011 12:22 PM

To: Hammer, Timothy; 'Warner, David'; Wiison, Kathleen A
Subject: Meeting re Furkhat Dogan

Tim, David -

BS

Best,
Trish .

Patricia E. McDonough

« Il Attorney-Adviser

US Department of State

Office of the Assistant Legal Adviser, Law Enforcement and Intelligence (L/LEI)

| Tel: 202-647-6194

This emall is UNCLASSIFIED:~ ——
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Schaefer, Courtney : : BF
.——-—-—""'__.""'
From: McHenry, Teresa
Sent: . Friday, February 18, 2011 1:03 PM
To: Warlow, Molly; Warner, David J Z
Cc: . Schaeafer, Courtney; Swartz, Brucs; Weinsteln, Jason
Subject: FW: DOS meeting re: Dogan
Lets discuss . :
This ]
t ] ' )
From: McDonough, Patricia E [mailto:McDonoughPE@state, gov]
Sent: Friday, February 18, 2011 11:56 AM
— +Tor-Warner,-David;-McHenry,-Teresa ,{ﬂp_ !
Cc: Wilson, Kathlzen A i “{H’
Subject' oS meeting re: Dogan S TN
Teresa, Davld-— : ST T T
"""" THavE jlist BeaAtinformed that the"D0Smeeting with*Mr."Dogan and-his.counsel-ls-not-going:tobe-opento-includera-B Ol v,
representative. | had previously been asked to see If DOJ would be Interested In attending that meeting on Wednesday, i
but the office that has been tasked with halding thls meeting plans to conflne the meeting to DO5 consular matters, |
Thus, the current thinking Is that a DOJ representative should not attend the DOS meeting ~rather, if DOJ meets with
Mr. Dogan and counsel, such a meeting should be separate, .
} am sorry for the confusion on this issuel 1just learned of this development this morning. | am happy to discuss — : i
clearly there has been an evalution of thinking on this end and | do hat know whether that will change again. { '
Best,
Trish '
Patricia E. MeDonough ! '
Attorney-Adviser t :
US Department of State !
. Office of the Assistant Legal Adviser, Law Enforoement and Intellience (I/LEI) |
. Tel.._ 262 YTy . e e+ ta et e e et e e . — .__,______;___M____i
X !
[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Charles Daris, Senior Revieweﬂ !
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McHenry, Teresa . .

SBU

From: McDonough, Patrlcla E {[McDonoughPE@stata,gov)

Sent: o Tuesday, February 22, 2011 6:06 PM

To: Warner, David; McHenry, Teresa

Subject: FW. Haaretz - Father of teen killed in Gaza fiotilia raid seaks American justice ;

David, Teresa — From the Turkey desk - you may wish to review (or pass to people attending the Dogan meeting at DOJ
tomorrow) for information purposes, if you have not seen these already,

Best,
Trish

This emall is UNCLASSIFIED,

From: Gregonis, Meghan E -

Sent: Tuesday, February 22, 2011 6:05 PM

To: McDonough, Patricia E

Subject: Haarefz - Father of teen Kkilled in Gaza flotilla raid seeks Amerlcan justice

Trish,
Below see alink to the NYTimes article from this summer and further below there’s a Haaretz article from today. DOJ
might want to review these In advance of the meeting, if they haven't done so already,  Thanks,

Meghan

Meghan Gragonis » Sanlor Turkey Desk Offlcer « Dffice of Snuthern European Affalrss 15 Department of State
2201 € St, NW Rm 5511 Washington, DC 20520 | 8 202.647.9749 | IBI _GregonisMEmstale. 20y

Jwww.nytimes.comf2010/07/27/opinion/27iht-edcohen.htmivscp=18s¢g=roger+cohen+dogan&st=nyt

ustice-1,3450

*«  Published 15:36 22.02.,11
s Llatest update 15:36 22.02.11

By Natasha Mozgovaya

Father of teen killed in Gaza flotilla raid seeks American
justice

‘Like the othér people on board the Mavi Marmara, says Professor Ahmet Doﬁan,'

'we did not expect Israelis to attack the ship in the middie of the night.'

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Charles Daris, Senior Revieweﬂ
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.DJd you see the video of IDF soldiers belng attacked on the Mavi Marmara? Did it not look like a )‘Dj'ﬁ}f’
provocation to you? ‘

"If these were really dangerous people, Instead of throwing away the'weapons that they captured from
the soldiers, they could have used them and killed the soldiers. When the hellcopters were tied to the ship
with ropes so that the soldiers could scale down, they could have pulled them down, but they let them

| go," says Dodan.

: ' "Have you ever Imagined what It would be like to be in thelr shoes, belng set upon by commandos at the
crack of dawn? I think that the Israelis were the ones that wanted a provocation,”

Dodan says he has nothing agalnst Jews or Israel.

"The Turks accepted Jews that were expelfled from Spain, Jews that fled the Second World War. That was
Furkan's bellef. If Jews were Hving under an oppressive regime, he would have jolned a flotiila to aid |
" them: When I"stUdled in the 1Sy T"had a ot of Jewish-friends; I -never-had-anything-against-them;" —-~——=em.

"My aplnlon of the Israell people has not changed, but I want those responsible far my son's death to face -
© jlistice. Regardiéss of who I5 Téspoiisible, INCIUdiAg army cormmanders and the ‘pollticlans thatsend them: -~ -+ |
And if the State of Israel has self-respect, it must admit its mistake," says Dodan. "I would appeal to an '
Israell court in a guest for justice, but I no longer belleve that Israeli justice Is impartial.” :
' Dogan says that no Israeli has made any effort to contact him since the flotilla. "No government official i
and no peace activist. [ was quite surprised by it, because I am sure that there are many people In Israel :
that do not agree with the policles of their government,” he says. "I expected more solidarity,”

"Twice we were contacted by the American Embassy, once regarding the death certificate, and a second i
time the ambassadar called to express his condolencas, two months after the incldent." He has two more
! grown childrer, a boy and a girl. "I don't know if there are words that can express what they feel,”

He recelved advice on how to deal.with the U.S. government and the names of possible contacts from the

parents of Rachel Corrle, the International Solldarity Movement activist that was killed by an Israell

bulidozer in Gaza. They met once in Istanbul and plan to meet again during Dogan's upcoming visit in the
I u.s. ‘ '

“They told me who to talk to and what steps to take, They also told me that It won't be easy."

Dogan says that he has still not received the clothes that his son was wearlng when he was killed, nor his
video camera with which he filmed what happened on the ship.

"If Israel Is so certaln of its righteousness, I call upon it to stand trial at the International court in the
Hague and provide its explanations,” says Yugur Sevgill, Dogan's lawyer.

SBU ‘ .
This ernail is UNCLASSIFIED.
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From: McDonough, Patricla E [malito:McDonoughPE@state.gov]

Sent: Wednesday, February 23, 2011 11;52 AM
To: Warlow, Molly

Subject: FW: READOUT of meeting with Prof, Dogan (Feb 23)

" Privacy/PIl

i 2ttt s 2n

-’TSubject:+W:-REABOBT*of“meetlngwithProFrBogm. {Feb-23}

This email is UNCLASSIFIED,

From:; Baily, Jess L

Sent: Wednesday, February 23, 2011 11:48 AM
To: McDonough, Patricla E

Cc: Gregonls, Meghan E

Y7

#

PP

j&%grf

This just come in. Jess

Privacy/PI|
This emait is UNCLASSIFIED,
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From: Pettlt, James D
Sent: Wednesday, February 23, 2011 11:41 AM

To: Schnier, David M; Riley, Robert J; Miller, Andrew T; Gregonis, Meghan E
Cc: Baily, Jess |; Mokhtarzada, Homeyia N; Baez, Alejandro X; Kaidanow, Tina 5; Eilts, Colin C; Richter, Kim B; Sutphin,

Paul R; Flood, Colleen B

Subject: READOUT of meeting with Prof. Dogan (Feb 23)

1]
|
H
i
1
i
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{Please feel free to forward as necessary)
Participants:

DOS

Jim Pettit [DAS for CA/OCS)

Kirn Richter [OCS/ACS/NESCA)
Colleen Flocd {OCS/PRI)

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Charles Daris, Senior Reviewer|
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Colin Eilts (NEA/IPA) ),/f@;j( l

Dogan Party j )’}

Prof. Ahmet Dogan
Katherine Gallagher [attorney, Center for Constitutional Rights)
Ugur Sevgill {attorney/inlerpreter}

Mesting was held at 10:00 a.m. in CA front office on Feb, 23, 2011.

| just want to share my general impressions - others were toking.notes If addressees need more detall,

| expressed condolences fo Prof. Dogan on the loss of his son. | told him that CA places a high priority
on assisting the next-of-kin when a U.S. citizen dies abread. He Inifially stated that he had ne contact
with the embassy after his sen's body arived in Turkey. |recounted dates and names of individuals
from our embassy in Ankara (lncludlng the Ambassador) who were in fouch ‘with him-in the first few "
days. He eventuglly qualified his initial assertion by stating that the embassy has not provided any
information. i

There were repeated cdlls for a USG invasligation. 1 told them that the USG does not as arule
conduct investigations overseas, but must rely onlocal jurisdictions. In this Instance, we were
awaiting the findings of the UN SYG inquiry panel {Paimer Commission}, which would be based on

" independent investigations of the Gaza Fiotilia incident by the governments of both Turkey and

Israel. | was queried as to why we did not accept the findings of the earlier.UNHRC report and why
the USG was crifical of that reporl, Ireplied that we were seeking a more balanced and better

Irformed study, nofing That the TNHRC'S mdndare hiad been somewhnat Unclgar and e

investigation & bit "rushed.” | |

The meeting was generally friendly, although Ms. Gallagher got a bit aggressive with her questioning
toward the end, asking who/when/how we engaged with the Israelis on this issue, whether we had
asked for an apology, efc. My response was aiways "we're walting for the UN report.” '

Ms. Gallagher also pressed on the autopsy report, saying that it clearly showed summary execution of
protesters and of Furkan. | told her | had seen the autopsy report and cgreed that it seemed to
evidence gunshots at close range, but that the characterization of the cause.of death being
"surnmary execution” was a call that would have 1o be made by experts who could determing the

context,

| apologized for the delay in issuance of a Consular Report of Death, explaining that such documents
are issued on the basis of a death report Issued by local authorities and not just on the autopsy

report.

The group is meeting with DCJ later today. | did say that there were circumstances under which the
USG ({Including the FBl} could and would assist In investigatlon, of crimes against U.S. cifizens overseas,
but that whether this incldent fell within those narrow parameters would have to be determined by

DOJ.

Ms. Gallagher pointed out that the Israeiis have yet to retumn the video camera taken from Furkan
and insisted that this needed to be retuined both because 1} it was the property of a deceased U.S.

2
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»

citizen and 2} it could have crucial evidentlary/forenslc value to the ongoing investigalion. | agreed A%ﬁ{’
and we committed to ask for an update from our embassy InTel Aviv on efforfs to locate and return

this item,

| did make the point that we have been in frequent contact with the israelis on this matter, most
recently on February 15,

At the end of the meeting, | told Prof. Dogan that he was always entitled to aresponse when he
asked for information from the Depariment or our posts ond that he should let me know personally if
he was not receiving requested information. At the same time, | pointed out that many previous
inquiries on his bshalf to our embassy in Ankara were made by third parties who had no clear
relationship to him {citing the Privacy Act). | added that our consuiar staff in Ankara would be happy

to meet with him upon reques’r

Let me know if you have questlons. I'll be back in the office on March 1.

Privacy/Pll
This emall is UNCLASSIFIED,
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L—"" Text ISRAEL

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS | 1d: LEBANON
REDACTED

» RELEASEDIN FULL

UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED NAEIONS

June 10, 2010

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE DEPUTY PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE
SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

FROM: POL — Jeff Delaurentis
SUBJECT: Meeting with Isracli MFA Deputy DG, 10, Eviatar Manor and BG|Yossi
Heymann, Friday, June 11, 4:00 p.m., USUN

Background

Issues/Talking Points

buaﬂuﬁlla:j B ) : - - .

[ Israeli Foreign Minister Lieberman told Ambassador Rice that the Israelilcabinet would
likely make a decision on an investigation on Sunday, June 13.| ‘

e e L]

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer|
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— S — — — — - _ e —

s We expect your government to conduct a prompt, impartial, credible and tran parent
investigation conforming to international standards that gets to all the facts sutrounding the
tragic incident. We are open to different ways of assuring a credible investigation, including
international participation.

Lebanon/resolution 1701:[_'

‘Ghajar|

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED
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(Low side)

AW 06-8-10 Mte with Isr MFA Dep DG Manor and BG Hevmann.doc

Drafted: POL: ASchedlbauer
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RELEASED IN FULL]

Participants
Israel United States
M. Eviatar (Evi) Manor, Deputy Director General Ambassador Wolff
for International Organizations, MFA. " JeffDeLaurentis (t)
Brigadier General Yossi Heymann, Head of Strategic Ellen German
Division, IDF Amy Schedlbauer (notetaker)

Ambassador Gabriela Shalev
Ambassador Danny Carmon
Haim Waxman, Deputy Perm Rep-designate
(will replace Ambassador Carmon in mid-August)
Inbal Eshed, Adviser

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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RELEASED IN FULL]
The White House :
Oﬁice of the Press Sccretary

For Immediate R;elease e
June 09,2010

gamg{ncﬁmmembnthaﬁse_fa“arate’ly T 'don’t want t frof the tap i dfhere Sn for
=9 N ﬁerour -5

vadﬁCQVcMIOﬁ' ithis' miended:
thithe: andPénme I;dxgrstw“ﬂwﬁn 12V¢ been engaged.

;umﬂro i '
But obviously fhieré iSalor
soluition m“ﬂiébﬁddlflia.sf‘

l

=
L 8]

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Seni
'Rewewer

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Depariment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307620 Date: 05/03/2013

StateDept004444
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In the meantime, the United States -- which is already the biggest humanitarian aid donor in
Gaza -- is going to be announcing an additional $400 million in assistance for housjng, school
construction, business development — ‘not only in Gaza, but also in the West Barnk, because we
think'it's unportant for us to reafﬁrm qnce agam our comtment to improving the. da‘y‘-toad_ay
lives of ordinary Palestinians.. 03 '
Now, what we also dxscussed, though, and whaI we WJll contmue to work on over themext-
several months is the fact that riot ‘onlyis the status quo with respect to Gaza unsustdinable, the
status quo with respect to the M:ddle East is unsustamabls It is. umc forus to go alfe d an,d move
forwa.rd ona two-state soluhon ’that i

that both srdes havetoacreateig‘n l'sgj _
actual brealdhmugh And‘*tha 2

can make%rgmﬁcént progress hefore the en
So Ljust wanl 10 let Presxdent Abbas tha

a rcsoiﬁtmn of

‘e will'c as the
Israehs tor resol _e:ﬂns in a_wa__ that gaod for the chlld.ren ancl ﬁ.tmre generatmns both in Ismel
and in a futuré Palestine. el - i
So tha.nk ‘you very much.

PRESIDENT ABBAS: (As' translated) Tha.nk you, Mr, Pres1dent And we, Lndccd, 'Havcjusft )
held Very important discussions that’ touchcd on the pohttcal process as well'as the wery,
important latest development that happened in Gaza.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307620 Date: 05/03/2013
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Of course we value and deeply appreciate all the efforts of the: United States, as well as the effort
of President Obama, and all the assistance and help for pushing forward the econpmic and
security levels. And we havc reashcd a sansfactory plcture of the economic and $ecurity levels,
Yet we are determmed to  keep pushmg forward i in uur eEEorts to: bnng it up to th next level.

push forward the political process as-soon as poss1ble AndI. assert: and Iaﬁim: that we ‘will nat
give up on this endeavor ahead 'of us, because, it is in- our’ mterqwt, jtin the interest
interest of the world, and also, most of all; iii the inferest of the United States.
We know that time is of essence; wa]mow that ‘we must fiof. miss th:s ‘opportunity.
the importance of bringing about peace and secm:ity in the region.- " _
And [ would like to thanki’resﬂent QObama for the -support that he. will gwe to (Gaza
have just talked abiout thatnow. Thisisa peé' 'gnai of the. Umtefi States tha
States cares about the suﬁ‘enng of the: people
people; .. -

And'we also see the need to 1ift the lsrach snegc
the crossings, and the need to let building ‘materi
necess:nes go- 1m0 lhe P.alestlman pcople- $ it

’Floulla, or tlm’Freedpm Fleet s
And 1say in fzont of you Mr. Presnd

;ﬁﬁ said is é;éﬁnaal mhci-astof the U:_uf .!Shth'

; ”%g&d 5
PRBSDENJ‘ @BAMSA We,gqt time for, Iw%
goi ' ters;

]?RESIDENT GBAMA ..Yes, 80 jus
Q You'renot:gaing to: answer anyhng
PRESIDEEW-GBAMA In do thiat at the S I
Q “-Okay. D:d Pnes:dent Abbas asE you' ' I3 G’az_fa aid »
n ns? And do you-
suppurl Isracl‘s msnstence on dqmg aﬂoﬁllé mVEsnggman onits OWU, perhaps with some foreign
involvement, or are you in favor: of the UN. proposal for a completely independent inquiry?
PRESIDENT OBAMA: Well; let me take the second questmn first:. What the UN.-Security -
Couticil called for was a‘crédible, transparent mvestlganon that met mtemathnal st_andardé._z,A_nd"

e meant what we said; that's what we expect. . - TEs
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I think eyerybody -- people in Israel, people in Turkey, people within® ‘the Palestini Territories,
certainly people here in‘the Unitéd States -- want to know the facts of this tragedy, what led to it,
how can we prévent it in the future. And I think I've said to the Tsrae]xs directly and certainly my
team has commnmca.tedthe fact that itisin IsraeT‘s,mTereSt to make sure that Werybocljr knows
exactly how this happened so that we doq't see thes ds of’ events occulﬁng again. And we
.-;xpect that the standard that was called for in ﬂie g;:unty Council tobe'met. [« - .
With respect’to the issue of taking a tougher life; T+think President Abbas and 1 spefit most of our
time discussing how do we solve the problem. Onc of the things that we see is that|so often
rhetoric when it comcs to issues in the Middle East. ouistnp actually solvmg issues.| And our
conversation was focused on how do we actually aIlow more goods, more-services juto Gaza?
How do'we allow busm.csses to thrwc'? How ca.n wa pet conﬁtruchon movmg? Ho v can we put
people to werk in Gaza? . G ;

- dire 1 'y The UrutedS es malroady
% . I nh“' ‘Eh't -l :

ﬂunl( thf:Israehs hava come fo wapgglm that= % % “
The quesﬁnn'uow is how do we create-a dxff&reﬂ,t ﬁ-am

million, what mechanismi = whis gq:ﬁgm distribuite
beeq a problem regardmg tha_ moncy‘ 2

talks, ‘Weare worklng in order to. malce progress Pn:suient Obama is kamg for that to see
progress: And we - this is ‘what we have. .
PRESIDENT OBAMA: With respect to the aid’ lo G’aza, 1’ ll.let my team give you the detmls in’
terms of iow that will be administered and-how the money will begin to flow.
‘With respect to the broader issue of lifting the blockade, as 1 said before, I think the key'here is
making sure that Israel’s security needs are met, but that the needs of people in Gaza are also
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met. And it seems fo us that there should be ways of focusing na:tuwly on’ amns _ ipments,

rather than focusing in a blanket way on stoppmg evcryﬂnng and thcn in ap:ec Tie: Way
allowing thmgs into Gaza.: : 5 %
So if We can geta new conceptual ﬁameWerk and "Il be ta]kmg to my:Em'op.' _ counterparts

as well as Egypt and Tsrael and the Palesnmanuthomy - xt seems to mc that we should be able

tomkqwhathasbaenauagedy ind turm:it i Lwherelwesm
Gaza are ; a‘cmallyd"u'eétly ifnpro :

But let me. make thjs ﬁna} pomi, '_th this mbl,em isto

3 Teas b 0 3
c.uk;. Sumany of the
ved ﬁ'ns broa.de:r

1221 PM.BBT 54
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79 United Nations Pluza
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July 28, 2011

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTATIYE
SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED
FROM: POL — Ellen Germain, Acting

THROUGH: EXEC — Ambassador DiCarlo

SUBJECT: Meeting with Malcolm Hoenlein, Executive Vice Chairman of the Conference of
Presidents of Major Jewish Organizations; Monday, August 1; IO:TO a.m.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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Flotilla/Palmer report: The efforts in early July to launch a second flotilla to Gazg fizzled, as did
simultaneous efforts to create an “air flotilla.” The Greek government was helpful in refusing
permission for vessels to sail to Gaza, and the one French vessel that did finally sailjon July 19 was
peacefully intercepted by the Isracli Navy. Israel detained activists who arrived by air at Ben

Gurion airport on July 8.

The Israeli press has reported that release of the Palmer report will be delayed until August 20, at
Israel’s request, and Israeli DPR Waxman confirmed to us that the report will be delayed until
August 22. News reports say the Israeli-Turkish talks are deadlocked over the issue of an Israeli
apology to Turkey for the May 31 incident. In his statement during last week's open debate on the
Middle East, the Turkish DPR said Israel must apologize and pay compensation, otherwise there
will be no normalization of diplomatic relations.

F RAISED ISSUES:

G S
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UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED

140 East 45® Street
NEW YORK, N.Y. 10017-3505

June 11, 2010
MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

FROM: POL — Jeff DeLaurentis

THROUGH: EXEC — Ambassador Wolff

SUBJECT: Security Council Briefing/Consultations on the Middle East, June
Security Council Chamber/Consultation Room

BACKGROUND;
Assistant Secretary-General for Political Affairs Oscar Fernandez-Taranco will li
Council on events in the region since the Council’s last regular meeting on the Mi

NATIONS

5,2010,

cely brief the
ddle East on
the issuance of

May 18 and the Council’s emergency meeting on the Middle East on May 31 and
the Presidential Statement. He will likely review the events of May 31 and what

as happened

subsequently. He may touch on the Secretary-General’s consultations with varioys parties on an
investigative mechanism. The most recent public comment from the Secretary-General’s office
on the investigation came on June 8 from his spokesman: “We have been asked since yesterday
about reports that [srael may reject any international investigation into the 31 May incident
involving the flotilla. First, we have not yet received an official response from Isrzel, We would

like to underscore the Secretary-General's considered view that credible internatia
involvement is crucial to a prompt, credible, impartial and transparent investigatid
in the Security Council's Presidential Statement of 1 June. The Secretary-General
that Israel is still considering how and if to bring an international element into the
process.” Fernandez-Taranco should also highlight that the proximity talks betwe
Palestinians continued during the May 31 crisis.

nal

n, as called for
understands
investigative
en Israelis and

S

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED
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The talking points for Tuesday’s consultations have been fully cleared within the[Department

and by the NSC. There has not yet been a formal Israeli government announcement of its plans
for a national (non-IDF) investigation. Such an announcement could come on Sunday, June 13,

as Foreign Minister Lieberman mentioned to you, and Washington and USUN may want to

update the remarks with revised language to reflect the announcement. The remarks also only

contain general language on the need for a new mechanism for Gaza. If there is dgreement with
the GOI before the meeting on Tuesday, revised language could be included.

Until we have formal announcement of an Israeli national investigation and/or a pew mechanism
for Gaza, here is the current NSC guidance:

e AS WE'VE SAID FROM THE BEGINNING, we support an Israeli-led invegtigation into
the flotilla incident that is prompt, credible, impartial, and transparent.

= We are open to different ways of ensuring the credibility of this Israeli-led inyestigation,
including international participation, and have been in intensive talks with our Israeli partners
in the past few days on how to move forward.

» Weknow of no resolution that will be debated at the UN on the flotilla invest)gation next
week.,

Attachment: Draft talking points for consultations
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S, Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307622 Date: 05/03/2013

StateDept004455



UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307622 Date: 05/03/2013

(Low side)
tultations

LALIBS\POLSEC\Schedlbauer\Bilateral Mtg Memoes\SER 15 June SC ME cons

Drafted: POL: ASchedlbauer

Cleared: POL: EGermain ok

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Depariment of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307622 Date: 05/03/2013

StateDept004456




™ UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307626 Date: 05/03/2013

JRELEASED IN FULL

et e e sl S b

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED UNSC Middle East Consultations
Talking Points

June 15, 2010

Thank you, Mr. President, and thank you, Assistant Secretary-General Fernandez-Targnco, for your
briefing. ETJ

N e =y
On June 1, the President of the Council issued a staterment in reaction to the incident involving the
convoy sailing to Gaza, expressing on behalf of all Council members our deep regret at the loss of life
and injuries, and our condolences to the families. The Council condemned those acts which resulted

in these casualties, and called for a prompt, impartial, credible and transparent investigation
conforming to international standards. l

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: _Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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Thank you Mr. President.

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307626 Date: 05/03/2013

StateDept004458




UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307536 Date: 05/03/2013

[RELEASED IN FULL| NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS BhREL
[REDACTED

UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED NATIONS

June 10, 2010

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE
SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

FROM: POL — Bill Grant

THROUGH: EXEC — Ambassador DiCarlo

SUBJECT: Your meeting with IDF Intelligence Director Major General Aviv|Kochavi, your
office

Background

TTis 15 an opportunity {0 ask for the latest [DF assessments of a second Gaza ﬂorrila.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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the other system) of yesterday’s meeting in Washington is our most up-to-date infgrmation.
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« What are the IDF’s plans for handling a possible second Gaza flotilla?
I

S N S S {ﬁ__i_________
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BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTAT

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

FROM: POL - Bill Grant
THROUGH: EXEC — Ambassador DiCarlo

June 10, 2010

VE

SUBJECT: Your meeting with Israeli ambassador to the United States, Michz‘el Oren, June

13, your office

Background

“Orenis also likely to want to discuss|

‘Gaza flotilla follow-up)

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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Gaza flotilla: Turkey has again presented a resolution in Geneva on the follow-up to the Human
Rights Council's fact-finding mission on the May 31, 2010, flotilla incident. We will again vote
no, most likely in complete isolation. The new resolution requests that the SYG hzke into
consideration the conclusions contained in the report of the HRC fact-finding Mission and drops
positive language on the Palmer panel, which Turkey had included in prior HRC resolutions on
the incident. The Turkish press has reported that the draft Palmer report says the Israeli blockade
of Gaza does not breach international law, and that Turkey is threatening to pull out of the panel

unless the report changes.

¢ We're grateful to those who have issued statements discouraging activists from
attempting another flotilla to Gaza, including the SYG. We remain committed to
working together with Israel to further expand the flow of reconstruction material and
exports, with appropriate safeguards.

® Asevidenced by recent terrorist attacks, Gaza militants possess and continge to seek
advanced weapons and Israel has legitimate security concerns.

e (Ifraised - Palmer panel) The- SYG told the press on June 6 that the Palmer Panel will
report sometime in July, but that no exact date has been set as the panel’s work is

ongoing. |
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140 East 45™ Street
NEW YORK, N.Y. 10017-3505

July 19, 2010

STINE
EL
LE EAST

UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED NATIONS

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE FOR SPECIAL

POLITICAL AFFAIRS

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

FROM: POL - William Grant
SUBJECT: Security Council Briefing/Open Debate on the Middle East, July 21

BACKGROUND: :

, 2010

Under Secretary-General for Political Affairs Pascoe will brief the Council on events in the
Middle East since the June 15™ briefing by UN Middle East Special Coordinator Robert Serry.

In June the Secretariat briefing focused on events in Gaza, in the wake of the May

31 Gaza

flotilla incident. The June briefing occurred before Israel’s new policy on access for goods into

Gaza was announced on June 20. The U.S. statement at this meeting will be the fi
remarks on the Gaza flotilla incident since the June 13 White House statement, frof
remarks are largely drawn.

Regarding the flotilla incident, Serry noted that, “The SYG has taken note of Israe
announcement [of its own investigation] and recognized that a thorough Israeli iny
important and could be consistent with the SYG’s own proposals for an internatior
two combined would fully meet the international community’s expectation fora ¢

rst public U.S.
m which your

s
estigation is
al panel. The
edible and

impartial investigation. The 8YG’s proposal is not incompatible with domestic inquiries; in fact,

the two approaches are complementary, so his proposal, accordingly, remains on

e table.”
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UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED NATIONS

140 East 45" Syreer
NEW YORK, N.Y. 10017-3505

October 15, 2010
BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASS [FIED

FROM: POL - Bill Grant
THROUGH: EXEC — Ambassador Anderson
SUBJECT: Security Council Briefing/Open Debate on the Middle East, Octobgr 18, 2010

BACKGROUND:

- . |
F__ __ | Wedon’texpect a Secretariat update on the Gaza flotilla panel, although
Turkish victims’ families appealed to the ICC prosecutor on the issue this week.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior |
Reviewer
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Remarks by Ambassador Susan E. Rice,
U.5. Permanent Representative
To the United Nations,
At an Open Security Council Debate
On the Middle East
Qctober 18, 2010

Thank you, Mister President, and thank you, Under Secretary-General Pascoe, for your heipful
briefing today.

Mr. President, last month, Israeli and Palestinian leaders took the momentous step of returning
to direct talks. The core issues of this longstanding and tragic conflict will not be easily resolved.
Direct talks are the path for the parties to reach a solution that resolves all issuefs, ends all
claims, and establishes a viable state of Palestine alongside a secure state of Israel, as a key part
of a comprehensive peace among Israel and all of its neighbors.

The United States will continue to be a vigorous and steadfast partner in this vital effart. We are
warking closely with both sides to allow these negotiations to continue. So we were
disappainted by the announcement of new tenders in East Jerusalem on Octobey 14, which was
contrary to our efforts to resume negotiations. We have long urged both parties|to avoid actions
that could undermine trust, including in Jerusalem, and we will continue to do sg as we work to
make progress toward Middle East peace. Ultimately, however, forging a lasting and just peace
will depend on [eadership, vision, and courage from the Israelis and the Palestinigns.

As President Obama has noted, we have urged Israel to extend the settlement moratorium,
which we believe makes sense as long as constructive talks are underway. As wJ continue to
urge Prime Minister Netanyahu 1o institute another moratorium, we also urge President Abbas
to resume negotiations, which remain the only way to reselve the conflict's most| difficult issues
and give the Palestinians the dignity of an independent state of their own.

We know that many obstacles lie ahead. We know that attempts to move towarij lasting peace
may be met by rejectionists and terrorism. But we must not let the forces of violénce and
despair determine whether Israeli and Palestinian children will live in peace or languish in
conflict. We must press forward together toward our commeon goal of a comprehensive Arab-
Israeli peace including a two-state solution, with Israel and Palestine living side by side in peace
and security. That goal is in the interests of Israelis, Palestinians, the United States, and all those
who seek to maintain international peace and security. Those in the region who want a
Palestinian state should do all they can to support the parties’ efforts to bring abdut a just and
lasting peace. And those around the world who seek an end to this bitter conflict;should
support these efforts and do nothing to undermine them.

Mr. President, let me turn to the situation in Gaza. We continue to view the situation there with
concern, Israel’s July 5 announcement was an important step in improving the flow of goods
and material into Gaza. That progress is continuing several months later, and we encourage the
Government of Israel to take further steps to expand trade in both directions, consistent with its
security needs. All those wishing to deliver goods should do so through the expanded

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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established channels to ensure that Israel's legitimate security needs are addréssed even as the
Palestinians’ humanitarian needs are met.

Let us also remember the Israeli soldier Gilad Shalit, whom Hamas abducted in|2006 and who
remains In captivity. We call again for his immediate release.

In its June 1 presidential statement on the flotilla incident, the Council called for a prompt,
impartial, credible, and transparent investigation conforming to international standards, We
commend the Secretary General’s constructive initiative in convening a panel that will receive
and review the results of Israel and Turkey’s investigations. We welcome the spirit of
cooperation that this panel represents and continue to regard it as the primary gnd most
appropriate method for the international community to review the incident.

Mr. President, let me conclude by touching on the situation in Lebanon. The Unjted States
remains firmly committed to Lebanan's sovereignty and independence, and theyefore to the full
implementation of Resolutions 1559, 1680, and 1701. We continue to be gravely concerned
with attempts by foreign players to undermine Lebanon's independence, endanger its stability,

threaten international peace and security and the lives of innocent civilians on
Blue Line.

Finally, let me turn to the Special Tribunal for Lebanon. On October 6, the Secretary-General
rightly and unequivocally noted that the Tribunal is an independent body, with g clear mandate
from the Security Council to uncover the truth and end the era of impunity for political
assassinations in Lebanon. The Tribunal is an independent judicial entity; its work is not a
matter of politics but of law. The Tribunal is fulfilling its independent judicial mapdate under
this Council's Resolution 1757, at the request of the sovereign government of Lebanon. We
completely endorse the Secretary-General's statement that the Tribunal’s effortg must go
forward without interference. Efforts to discredit, hinder, or delay the Tribunal'g work should
not be tolerated, and those who engage in them do not have the interests of Lebanon or justice
at heart.

Thank you, Mr. President.
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UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED NATIONS

140 East 45" Street
NEW YORK, N.Y. 10017-3505

August 16, 2010

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE ALTERNATE REPRESENTATIVE FOR
SPECIAL POLITICAL AFFAIRS

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

FROM: POL - Ellen Germain, Acting
SUBJECT: Security Council Briefing/Open Debate on the Middle East, August|17, 2010

BACKGROUND:
Assistant Secretary-General Oscar Fernandez-Taranco will brief the Council on events in the
Middie East since the July 21 briefing by Under Secretary-General for Political Airairs Pascoe.

- el - =T NR)

The Council welcomed the August 2 announcement by the SYG of the formation ¢f a panel of
inquiry on the Gaza flotilla incident of May 31* with a press statement (Attachment A). Council
members may probe Fernandez-Taranco for additional information about the pane| as the
Secretariat has carefully restricted information flow in the wake of last week’s confusion over
the panel’s work when the press asked questions about summoning Israeli soldiers|to testify.

U.S. draft remarks are attached (Attachment B).

Attachment:
A) August 4 Council Press Statement
B) U.S. talking points

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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SECURITY COUNCIL PRESS STATEMENT ON PANEL OF INQUIRY ON 31 MAY FLOTILLA
INCIDENT

The following Security Council press statement was read out on 3 August by Council| President Vitaly
Churkin (Russian Federation):

The members of the Security Council welcomed the establishment by the Secretary-General of the
United Nations of the Panel of Inquiry on the flotilla incident of 31 May 2010.

The members of the Security Council look forward to a successful implementation by the Panel of its
mandate, as announced by the Secretary-General as based on the statement of the President of the Security
Council of 1 June 2010, which called for a prompt, impartial, credible and transparent investigation conforming
to international standards.

The members of the Security Council welcomed the commitment of Israel and Turkey to provide full
| cooperation to the Panel.

IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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Talking Points for Ambassador Brooke D. Anderson,
U.S. Alternate Representative
For Special Political Affairs,
At Security Council Consultations on
The Middle East
August 17, 2010

e Thank you, Mr. President, and thank you, Assistant Secretary General Ferhandez-
Taranco, for your briefing.

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]
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I :

e Mr. President, the United States has welcomed the Secretary-General's arjnouncement
of the establishment of a panel regarding the May 31 flotilla incident. As we have i
emphasized before, the panel is not a substitute for national investigations.

e
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e Thank you, Mr. President.
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LEBANON

UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED NATIONS

INON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
[REDACTED

June 14, 2010

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE
SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

FROM: POL — Jeff Delaurentis

THROUGH: EXEC — Ambassador Wolff

SUBJECT: Meeting with Israeli Foreign Minister Avigdor Liberman, Tuesday,/ June 15, 2:30
p-m., USUN

Background

Foreign Minister Liberman is traveling to New York with Deputy Foreign Minister Danny
Ayzlon, whom you met in April. Liberman will brief the Israeli Missions in North
America about the Gaza flotilla (aka Mavi Marmara), the proximity talks, and call§ to review

Israeli actions under international legal regimes — what Israel has termed a “lawfare® campaign.

NR

Talking Points

Gaza Flotilla: Liberman has been quoted by the Israeli press as supporting an international
component to investigating the events related to the Mavi Marmara. He said “We|have excellent
jurists .., one of whom will be willing to take it on himself, and if they want to include an
international member of some sort in their committee that's all right too". According to press
reports, Israel 15 expected to announce a state panel to investigate the incident with international
participation. Turkish officials have not yet reacted.|

o

The OIC and NAM in New York have criticized Israel’s actions regarding the MaLi Marmara.
The OIC statement from 4 June refers to “Israeli military aggression” and alleges an “explicit act
of piracy” under the UN Convention on the Law of the Sea. The OIC statement called for an

-3
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“impartial, credible, transparent, and independent international investigation in acgordance with
international standards led by the UN Secretary-General.” The statement also reiterates demands
for accountability related to the Goldstone Report.

= [nthe wake of the Mavi Marmara incident, it is important to show progress on|addressing
Gaza access. The NSC statement of June 4 notes that we are working with Israel, the
’ Palestinian Authority and international partners on “new procedures for delivering more
goods and assistance to Gaza, while also increasing opportunity for the peoplelof Gaza and
preventing the importation of weapons. The current arrangements are unsustajnable and
must be changed.”
e UN partners, especially UNRWA, continue to experience delays and hurdles importing the
quantities and range of goods needed to complete projects. As we expand overall access, |
hope that you will help ensure that they have the access they need through the crossings.
While many of the goods UNRWA needs are available in Gaza as a result of the tunnel
economy, the UN is not purchasing those goods.
= Whenever there is a change in the status quo in the West Bank, Gaza, or Jeru
reverberates in New York and often negatively affects the atmosphere.
‘ e OF course, we remain mindful of Israel’s security needs and will never ask that Israel take
steps that contravene those needs.
s We also remind mindful that Gilad Shlait remains captive in Gaza and continue to call for his
immediate release. As we continue down this path, the cause of his release has not been
forgotten.

Peace efforts:|

lem, it
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o President Abbas has rejected calls to suspend the proximity talks after the Mavi Marmara
___incident. We believe he is sincere and dedicated to neace.

Ghajar:| - ]
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“ Lawfare”: Liberman will want to discuss calls to review Israeli actions under international
legal regimes. The Swiss appear to be moving forward on consultations on converjing a meeting
of the High Contracting Parties of the Fourth Geneva convention as called for by General
Assembly and Human Rights Council (HRC) resolutions on Goldstone follow-up. |Before the
Gaza flotilla incident, the Swiss were working on a paper to circulate on possible tppics of
discussion for such a meeting. The final HRC resolution on the Gaza flotilla asked the
independent international fact finding mission to investigate violations of “internatjonal law,
including international humanitarian and human rights law, resulting from the Isragli attacks on
the flotilla of ships carrying humanitarian assistance.”

= We have stood firmly against the counterproductive recommendation to conveie the High
Contracting Parties to the Fourth Geneva Convention as called for in the Goldstone Report
and in subsequent follow-up UN action.

(If raised) SCUD Transfers: __
]
_(If raised) NPT: ) ; |
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Attachment:
1) Participants list

2) Security Council PRST on Gaza Flotilla
3) HRC resolution on Gaza Flotilla
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Participants

Israel United States

Deputy PM and Foreign Minister Avigdor Lieberman Ambassador Rice

Deputy Foreign Minister Daniel Ayalon Ambassador Wolff

Israeli Ambassador to the US Michael Oren Deputy Pol Counselor Germain
Ambassador Gabriela Shalev PolOff Masilko (notetaker)

Ambassador Daniel Carmon

Politizal Counselor Amir Weissbrod (notetaker)
Yitzhak Bachman - Chief of policy staff to the FM
Sharom Shalom- Chief of staff to the FM
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LALIBS\POLSEC\Masilko\SER Meeting Memoes\SER June-8-2010 Mtg w Israeli FM
Liberman.doc
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RELEASED IN FULL
Non-Relevant
Excised
UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED NATIONS
June 9, 2010

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE
SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED
FROM: POL ~ Bill Grant

THROUGH: EXEC - Ambassador DiCarlo
SUBJECT: Your meeting with AJC Executive Director David Harris, June 13 your office

Background

| Harris is also likely to want to discuss Palestinian reconciliatibn,
developments on| Daza flofilla follow-up, and Syria. |

=

- L
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Gaza flotilla: Turkey has again presented a resolution in Geneva on the foIIow-uJ to the Human
Rights Council's fact-finding mission on the tragic May 31, 2010, flotilla incident. ’We will

again vote no, most likely in complete isolation. The new resolution requests that the SYG take
into consideration the conclusions contained in the report of the HRC fact-finding MESSion and
drops positive language on the Palmer panel, which Turkey had included in prior HRC
resolutions on the incident. The Turkish press has reported that the draft Palmer report says the
Israeli blockade of Gaza doesn’t breach international law, and that Turkey is thrcalgening to pull
out of the panel unless the report changes. i

* We're grateful to those who have issued statements discouraging activists from
attempting another flotilla to Gaza, including the SYG, We remain committed to
working together with Israel to further expand the flow of reconstruction material and
exports, with appropriate safeguards.

e As evidenced by recent terrorist attacks, Gaza militants possess and continie to seek
advanced weapons and Israel has legitimate security concerns.

= (If raised - Palmer panel) The SYG told the press on June 6 that the Palmer Panel will
report sometime in July, but that no exact date has been set as the panel's w]ork is

ongoing. l
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Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)
From: Arbogast, John R
Sent: Monday, Navember 14, 2011 2:41 PM
To: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Schaat, Kenli A (OES)
Cc: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Norman, Cherith (USUN)
Subject: LOS resolution, etc.
Ciassification: UNCLASSIFIED
SensitivityCode: Sensitive
Dear Elizabeth & Kenli — a few items on this:
B 122bis “flotilla” para: Mark will be back to you on this.

Many thanks/best regards, john

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED.
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Progress Reporti to the Secretary-General
Secretary-General’s Panel of Inquiry

on the 31 May 2010 Flotilla Incident
Sei:tember 2010

Sir Geoffrey Palmer, Chair
President Alvaro Uribe, Vice-Chair
Mr. Joseph Ciechanover Itzhar

Mr. Suleyman Ozden Sanberk
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Summary
1. This document provides a progress report to the Secretary-General, Ban Ki-
moon, from the Secretary-General’s Panel of Inquiry on the 31 May 2010 Floilla
incident. Upon establishing the Panel, the Secretary-General requested a progress

report by 15 September 2010,

2, The introduction outlines the steps that preceded the decision by the Secretary-
General to establish the Panel of Inquiry. The report then outlines the Panel’s| first
meeting, a summary of the backdrop to the Panel’s work, and a description oflthe

Panel’s approach to its task and intended programme of work.
Introduction
& The Security Council received a briefing on the incident from

Mr. Oscar Fernandez-Taranco, Assistant Secretary-General for Political Affaits, on
31 May 2010. He gave the following account to the Security Council of the facts as

understood at that time (S/PV.6325):

“In the early hours of this morning, Israeli naval forces boarded a six-
ship convoy that was heading towards Gaza. The stated purpase of the
convoy was to deliver humanitarian aid to Gaza and to break the [srael]
blockade on Gaza. The convoy was reportedly carrying a range of
educational, medical and construction materials and approximately 700
activists, citizens of a number of countries. Among their numbers werg

reportedly members of Parliament from several countries.

“In the lead-up to today’s events, the Israeli authonties conveyed their
intention, both publicly and through diplomatic channels, not to allow the

convoy to reach Gaza. The Israeli authorities stated that, should the copvoy

i Rev. 2
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-the convoy. This reportedly took place 40 nautical miles off the coast

proceed contrary to these warnings, they would divert the convoy 1o af

port, inspect the cargo, facilitate the entry of only those goods that are flowed
a

into Gaza, in accordance with Israel’s blockade, and deport those on b

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307810 Date: 05/03/2013

Israeli

rd.

“The organizers of the convoy indicated their intention to proceed with

their convoy and to attempt to deliver their full consignment of cargo tp Gaza

and to break the blockade. A committee of persons organized by the dg facto

Hamas authorities in Gaza was formed to receive the convoy.

“Several Governments with nationals on board the vessels urge

restraint on all sides and indicated to the Israeli authorities their utmost

="

concern that their nationals be protected. The Secretary-General’s spokesman

warned on Friday that all involved should act with a sense of care and

responsibility and work for a satisfactory resolution.

“The convoy was due to reach Gaza today. According to the Isfaeli

authorities, Israel’s naval forces conveyed directly to the convoy duriné the

early hours this morning that it would not be allowed to reach port in G

However, the convoy proceeded towards Gaza.

aza.

“At approximately 4 a.m. local time, the Israeli navy acted to ilercepr

international waters and involved Israeli military personnel boarding th

vessels, supported by naval ships and helicopters. Israeli forces took cc

(1]

ntrol

of all six vessels. However, there was serious violence on the main passenger

vessel, a Turkish-registered ship named Mavi Marmara, We have also seen

media reports of violence related to a Greek-registered ship, the Sfendo

a result of this violence, according to the latest information, at least 10

3 Rev. 2
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were killed and at least 30 injured, while at least six Israeli military personnel

[y]

were injured. There are no final confirmed casualty figures at this stage.

“Given the circumstances, ir is not possible to state definitively the
sequence or details of what happened. The Israeli Governmenl has stated that
the demonstrators on board used knives and clubs against Israel Defense
Forces (IDF) naval personnlel and possibly live fire, and that a weapon|was
grabbed from an IDF soldier. Given that those who were on board the|ships
are now in Israeli custody, including reporters who were travelling with the
convoy, and had their transmission equipment confiscated by the boarding
Israeli forces, further information from the organizers of the convoy has been
minimal since this moming. We have no independent information on what

transpired.

“According to Israeli statements, the seriously injured were
subsequently evacuated by helicopter to hospitals in Israel. All of the 1hips
have arrived under escoﬁ at the Israeli port of Ashdod. An Israeli Ministry of
Foreign Affairs spokesman has stated that all international persons from the

vessels will be deported.

“Israeli authorities have expressed regret about the casualties byt
blamed the activists for the violence. President Abbas has condemned |srael’s
actions and the killing of the activists, and declared three days of mouming in
the occupied Palestinian territory. There have been widespread regionll and
international expressions of alarm and concern at the bloodshed, as well as
diplomatic demarches seeking a full explanation from the Israeli authorjties.

There have been protests in Gaza, the West Bank, Israel and several regional

capitals,

4 Rev. 2
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“The Secretary-General stated earlier today in Kampala that heli

shocked by the killing and injury of people on the boats and condemned the

violence. He called for a full investigation to determine exactly how th
bloodshed took place and stressed that Israel must urgently provide a fu

explanation.

“At the Secretary-General’s direction, Special Coordinator Robert

Serry, along with Filippo Grandi, the Commissioner-General of the Uni

Nations Relief and Works Agency for Palestine Refugees in the Near East,

have been actively engaged on the ground since the crisis broke (o urgg
restraint and an end to the violence, and to coordinate with all relevant

in the aftermath of this tragedy.”

4, The Panel is not endorsing that statement of facts. It is simply reciting

contextualise the subsequent steps that led to the establishment of the Panel.

5. On 1 June 2010, the President of the Security Council made a statement on

behalf of the Council in connection with the Council’s consideration of the item

entitled “The situation in the Middle East including the Palestinian question™
(S/PRST/2010/9). Parts of that statement are relevant to the Panel’s inquiry. |

are as follows:

“The Security Council deeply regrets the loss of life and injuries

resulting from the use of force during the Israeli military operation in
international waters against the convoy sailing to Gaza. The Council, in
context, condemns those acts which resulted in the loss of at least ten ¢

and many wounded, and expresses its condolences to their families.

5 Rev. 2
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6.

Process, Mr. Robert Serry, briefed the Security Council on the situation in the

East. Among other things he said (S/PV.6340):

-
I

concerning the Panel in the following terms:

“The Security Council requests the immediate release of the shi

well as the civilians held by Israel. The Council urges Israel to permit

consular access, to allow the countries concerned to retrieve their deceal;w:d

and wounded immediately, and to ensure the delivery of humanitarian
assistance from the convoy (o its destination.

“The Security Council takes note of the statement of the UN Seq

NS as

11l

cretary-

General on the need to have a full investigation into the matter and it calls for

a prompt, impartial, credible and transparent investigation conforming to

international standards,”

On 15 June 2010, the UN Special Coordinator for the Middle East Peag

“In its 1 June Presidential Statement (S/PRST/2010/9), this COLlnCiI

called for a prompt, impartial, credible and transparent investigation
conforming to international standards. The Secretary-General held

consultations with the permanent members of the Security Council and

[4]

Middle

a host

of other concerned parties on the modalities to comply with the Councif’s call.

In this context, he has proposed an international panel under the aegis qf a

third party seen as impartial and in which both Turkey and Israel actively

participate. He has briefed the leadership of both Turkey and lIsrael.”

On 2 August 2010, the Secretary-General made a public announcement

“For the past two months, I have engaged in intensive consultat

on

with the leaders of Israel and Turkey on the setting-up of a Panel of Inquiry on

6 Rev. 2
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advised the President of the Security Council of his decision concerning the Panel,

saying among other things:

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307810 Date: 05/03/2013

the flotilla incident of 31 May. Today [ am very pleased to announce the

launch of the Panel. This is an unprecedented development.

“I thank the leaders of the two countries with whom [ have chged in

last minute consultations over the weekend, for their spirit of compro

forward looking cooperation.

“The Panel will be led by eminent personalities: former Prime Minister

of New Zealand, Mr. Geoffrey Palmer as Chair and the outgoing Presi "Ient of

Colombia, Mr. Alvaro Uribe as Vice-Chair. The Panel will have two

additional members, one each from Israel and Turkey. It will begin its work

on 10 August and submit the first progress report by mid September.

“I hope the Panel will fulfil its mandate based on the Presidential
Statement of the Security Council and with the fullest cooperation of the

relevant national authorities of the two countries. It will also give me

recommendations for the prevention of similar incidents in the future. I also

hope that today's agreement will impact positively on the relationship hetween

Turkey and Israel as well as the overall situation in the Middle East.”

On the same day as his public announcement, the Secretary-General formally

“| hope the Panel will discharge its responsibilities with the fullest
cooperation of the relevant national authorities of the two countries. It will

also give me recommendations on the prevention of similar incidents in the

7 Rev. 2
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future. I further hope that this will impact positively on the overall Turkey-

Israel relationship and the situation in the Middle East.”

9. The Secretary-General also thanked the leaders of Turkey and lsrael fﬁ:r “their

spirit of compromise and forward-looking cooperation”.

10.  The Secretary-General appointed Sir Geoffrey Palmer as the Chair of the
Panel and President Alvaro Uribe as the Vice-Chair. Israel identified, and the
Secretary-General appainted, Mr. Joseph Ciechanover as the member from Israel.
Turkey identified, and the Secretary-General appointed, Mr. Suleyman Ozden

Sanberk as the member from Turkey.

11.  The Security Council issued a press statement on 3 August 2010 in response (o
the Secretary-General’s announcement (SC/10001), which “welcomed the

establishment™ of the Panel and noted that:

“The members of the Security Council look forward to a successful
implementation by the Panel of its mandate, as announced by the Secrefary-
General as based on the statement of the President of the Security Council of 1
June 2010, which called for a prompt, impartial, credible and transparent

investigation conforming to international standards.

“The members of the Security Council welcomed the commitment of

Israel and Turkey to provide full cooperation to the Panel.”

The Panel’s First Meeting

12, On 10 August 2010, the Panel convened in New York. [t met for two fyll
days on 10 and 11 August. During that time the Panel met with the Secretary-General.

He referred to the “unprecedented and critical” nature of the task facing the Panel. He

8 Rev. 2
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made reference to the methods of work that are discussed later in this report. He
encouraged the Panel to pay close attention to both aspects of its remit: first, to
examine and identify the facts, circumstances and context of the Flotilla incident;

second, to consider and recommend ways of avoiding similar incidents in the future.
He stressed the importance of the Panel’s main task to review the reports of national

investigations into the incident.

13.  The Secretary-General stressed the need for the Panel to work as one team. It
would be supported by the United Nations Secretariat. He sought a first progress
report from the Panel by 15 September 2010. The Secretary-General expressed the
hope that the Panel would have a positive impact to improve the friendly relatjionship
between Israel and Turkey and assist with the situation in the Middle East. He
counted on the leadership and commitment of the Panel members and he wantgd to

achieve a way forward.
Relationships

14.  The Panel will examine and identify the facts, circumstances and contejxt of
the 31 May incident. In doing so, it is conscious of the deterioration in the

relationship between Israel and Turkey that appears to have resulted from the
incident. This deterioration has wider implications for the situation in the Middle
East as well as bilateral relations between Turkey and Israel. While these
consequences are beyond the Panel’s frame of reference to report upon, they do make

up an important part of the context in which the Panel’s work takes place.

15. It is for reason of context that we provide here a brief overview of the relations

between Israel and Turkey, and we are particularly concerned in this short analysis to

9 Rev. 2
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point out the importance of the economic relations and the consequences that mpy

ensue if they are not repaired.

16.  Israel and Turkey have built over the years a strong and dynamic trade,
diplomatic and military cooperation alliance, which has contributed to the econpmic
performance of both nations. In 1949, Turkey became the first Muslim majority
country to recognize and engage in diplomatic relations with Israel, creating a positive
environment for the structuring of a long term bilateral agenda. Since then, eagh
decade has presented constructive evolutions in different fields, and as of today,

Turkey represents Israel’s largest market in the region.

17. In the late fifties (1958-1959), Israeli Prime Minister David Ben Gurior{ and
his Turkish equivalent Prime Minister Adrvan Menderes developed a framework of
cooperation that increased bilateral military and intelligence exchange that hasbeen
the basis for the construction of trust among both States’ highest officials. The
evolution of the 1950°s alliance helped increase trade, reaching in 1990 a marjina]

level of commercial exchange close to US$170 million dollars,

18. During the 1990’s, Israeli-Turkish relations became mare active than eyer. In
1992 both countries formalised the “Parameters for military cooperation” defining all
the areas and protocols to be followed in the provision of combat and intelligence

equipment. In 1993 the Turkish-Israeli Business Council was created to prompte

cross border investment and trade, and developed into a vigorous match-making
organization and business information provider for corporations, investment firms and
project developers.

19.  Throughout 1994 another important milestone took place when a cultu1ral

exchange cooperation agreement was signed, increasing the number of artistig

10 Rev. 2
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performances, museum exchanges and travelling exhibits, and symposia between both
nations. The impact of such initiatives strengthened ties between business leaders,

academic organizations and government officials and in 1995 Israel publicly
supported Turkey’s plans to enter the European Union, expressing the substantial

contribution that this mechanism would bring to relations within the Mediterranean.

20.  Between 1996 and 1997 Israel and Turkey negotiated, signed and ratified a
Free Trade Agreement, making Turkey the first Muslim majority country to develop a
mechanism of this nature with Israel. The results of this accord can be describied in
different ways by highlighting that in 2000 both countries signed a protocol fof
various irrigation projects in Turkey valued above US$500 million, that in 2001 a
scientific cooperation memorandum of understanding was agreed, that more than
300,000 Israeli tourists visited Turkey in 2003, that in 2004 the Magnavat Agreement
was signed for Israel to import an annual amount of S0 million water cubic meters for
a period of twenty years, and that in 2005 bilateral trade amounted to US$2,000

million, 13 times the existing trade in 1990.

21.  Today Turkey is Israel’s eighth largest trading partner, while Israel represents
Turkey's 17" largest market. During the first semester of 2010 and despite the recent
diplomatic tensions, bilateral trade has increased 40% compared with 2009 and it is

expected to surpass the record number of US$3,000 million reached during the

previous year.

22.  The normalization of both countries” diplomatic relations after the incident
that took place on 31 May 2010 is vital for the continuation of this strategic ang

prosperous relationship.

11 Rev. 2
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23.  Against the backdrop of relations between Turkey and Israel, the m

two countries and a concerned state of public opinion in both countries. The Fanel is
highly conscious that nine people have died in the incident. Precisely how an
they died remains at issue between the nations and there needs to be some rati

understanding of what occurred. Those are the questions with which the Pane]l is

concerned. The Panel hopes further that in addressing these questions, its wo

contribute to create a better environment with respect to the broader situation

Middle East.

The Panel’s Approach fo its Task

Summary of the Panel’s Tasks

24. The Secretary-General has asked the Panel to focus and organize its work
around four elements. The first and foundation requirement is to receive and feview

interim and final reports of national investigations into the incident that occunied an

31 May 2010,

25.  The dates by which these reports become available to the Panel will beja
material consideration in determining the precise timetable for the Panel’s work. The
Panel will strive to submit its final report to the Secretary-General within six months
from the first meeting of the Panel, taking into account the progress of the natipnal

investigations. Any adjustment to that timetable will be in the hands of the Secretary-

General, depending on the progress of the Panel’s work.

26.  The second step of the Panel’s work will be to request such clarificatiops and

information as it may require from relevant national authorities. What clarifications

12 Rev. 2
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powers or the required capacity to conduct criminal investigations or to comsz]

people to give evidence. Itis a review inquiry.

32.  What the Panel can do is:
= receive and review reports of national investigations into the incident;

s request such clarifications and information as it may require from releyant

national authorities;
= examine and identify the facts, circumstances and context of the incident; and

= make findings and recommendations.

33.  There are important parameters within which the Panel must work and|these
parameters need to be understood clearly from the outset in order to avoid
misunderstandings later. The Panel cannot receive unsolicited information frgm
| persons and organisations who may wish to supply it. Nor can the Panel apprdach

mdividuals and organisations directly.

34.  Any clarifications or information from Israel or Turkey that the Panel

considers necessary to complete its inquiry will be sought through Points of Cpntact

designated by those two States. Those Points of Contact have now been designated

and formally notified to the Inquiry as follows:

Israel: Ambassador Yossi Gal, Director-General of the Ministry of Foreign

Affairs of the State of Israel

Turkey: Ambassador Mithat Rende, Director General for Multilaleral

Economic Affairs at the Ministry of Foreign Affairs

14 Rev. 2
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“unprecedented”. Literally that means there is no precedent for it. Thus, analogies to
other United Nations panels established with a different frame of reference are|not

apt. This Panel is unique and its methods are similarly unique.

39.  The method for obtaining information does not restrict the findings and
recommendations the Panel may decide to make. The Panel canand will exn.nLine and
identify the facts, circumstances and context of the incident. Itcan and will
recommend ways of avoiding such incidents in the future. It can and will report its
findings and recommendations to the Secretary-General. Upon the nature of those

findings and recommendations, it is futile to speculate at this stage. Suffice it fo say

the level of international concern that has been expressed concerning the incident

under review has been high. The Panel has the means available to it to respon
concern and carry out a review that will give the Secretary-General some mate

will allow him and the international community as a whole to address the issug

d to that

rial that

w

raised.

40.  The Pane! has discussed, but at this stage taken no decisions, as to whegher it

is authorized or whether it is necessary for Members of the Panel to visit Israel and

Turkey in the process of its work. It was considered that the benefit of such visits
may become clearer once the Panel has had the opportunity to receive and re:iw

interim and final reports of national investigations into the incident.

Staffing and Administrative Support

41.  The United Nations will provide Secretariat services to the Panel and will

arrange for the provision of necessary administrative, logistic and security support,

16 Rev. 2
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Prime Minister Netanyahu and Defense Minister Barak. The Turkel Commission fhas requested
that the (Turkish) Captain of the Mavi Marmara testify as well.

e The draft Turkish resolution in Geneva on follow-up to the Fact-Finding Missjon on the Gaza
flotilla incident could extend discussion of the legality of Israel’s actions on May 31.

= The FFM’s language, tone, and conclusions were unbalanced.

= We continue to hope that Israel and Turkey will move beyond the recent strains in their
historically strong bilateral relationship and urge you to do what you can to move ahead.

* Wecontinue to regard the SYG’s panel as the primary method for the intemnational
community to review the flotilla incident, and we continue to await the outcome of the
Turkel commission.

SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED
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N

' [RELEASED IN FULL] NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

Talking Points for Ambassador Brooke D. Anderson,
U.5. Alternate Representative
For Special Political Affairs,
At Security Council Consultations on
The Middle East
September 17, 2010

¢ Thank you, Mister President, and thank you, Special Coordinator Serry, for your briefing.

IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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i ISRAEL
LEBANON
; PALESTINE
MIDOLE EAST

RELEASED IN FULL|

NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS
REDACTED

UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED NATIONS

120 BasL 45" Sireet
HEW YORK, MY 100173505

September 16, 2010
BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE
ITIV Un SIFIED
FROM: POL - Bill Grant

THROUGH: EXEC - Ambassador Anderson
SUBJECT: Security Council Briefing/Consuliations on the Middle East, September 17, 2010

-

BACKGROUND: i ;

Special Coordinator Serry will brief the Council on events in the Middle East since the August .
15 briefing by Assistant Secretary-General Fernandez Taranco, followed by closed consuliations. !

We expect z positive briefing from the Secretariat. On September 15 the SYG released 2 factual
statement to the press on the interim report of the Gaza flotilla panel of inquiry (attachment A).
The U.S. draft remarks coniain contingency guidance on the panel of inquiry, should we choose
to use il (attachmeni B), USUN propased changes to DC’s draft are shown as track changes.
The Human Rights Council report of its fact-finding mission on the flotilla is unlikely to be
released before tomarrow's consultations.

Turkey, as Council president, will speak last. We are not clear 1o whal extent Turkey will use & " T Yo, o

the meeting lo highlight the Gaza flotilla panel of inquiry interim report. Dther Council e 4
members, most notably Mexico, have consistently called for follow-up briefings to the Council T et
on the panel's work, ¥

e 1 gg;hmgl : !
A) Gaza flotilla panel of inquiry: SYG Seplember 15 Press Statement

B) Draft U.S, talking points

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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Introduction

1. This document provides a progress report to the Secretary-General, Ban Ki-moon,
from the Secretary-General’s Panel of Inquiry on the 31 May 2010 Flotilla Incident. [Upon
establishing the Panel, the Secretary-General requested a progress report by 15 September

2010.

2, The Panel was established by the Secretary-General on 2 August 2010. The

Secretary-General appointed Sir Geofirey Palmer as the Chair of the Panel and Pn:sﬁcnt
d,

Mr. Joseph Ciechanover as the member from Tsrael. Turkey identified, and the Secratary-

Alvaro Uribe as the Vice-Chair. Israel identified, and the Secretary-General appoirn
General appointed, Mr. Sileyman Ozden Sanberk as the member from Turkey.

3 This report outlines the Panel’s decisions at its first meetings and sets out the
Panzi’s agreed approach to its task.

The Panel’s First Meeting

4. On 10 August 2019, the Panel convened in New York. It met for two full days on
10 and 11 Auvgust. During that time the Panel met with the Secretary-General. He referred
to the “unprecedented and critical” nature of the task facing the Panel. He made nce
to the methods of work that are discussed later in this report. He encoaraged the Panel to

pay close attention to both aspects of its remit: first, to examine and identify the fac
circumstances and comtext of the Flotilla incident; second, to consider and recommend

ways of avoiding similar incidents in the future. He stressed the importance of the Ppnel’s

main task to review the reports of national investigations into the incident.

A The Secretary-General siressed the need for the Panel to work as one team. Tt

would be supported by the United Nations Secretariat. He sought a first progress report
from the Panel by 15 September 2010. The Secretary-General expressed the hope that the
Panel would impact positively on the relationship between Israel and Turkey and assjst

with the overall situation in the Middle East.. He counted on the leadership and
commitment of the Panel members and he wanted to achieve a way forward.
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The Panel's Methods of Work

13.  The Panel has arrived at some conclustons about #s functions and methods of
that will guide its approach to its task. The Panel is not a court. Courts adjudicate on
disputes and in criminal cases adjudicate on criminal liability. The Panel is not
empowered to adjudicate. Neither does the Panel have the necessary powers or the
required capacity to conduct criminal investigations or to compel people to give evide

14.

The Panel will:

and Turkey;

where it considers that it requires further information, clarifications or meetin
from Israel or Turkey, make such request to the points of contact designated
those States;

where it considers it necessary to obtain information from other affected States
may request such information through appropriate diplomatic channels;

in the light of the information so gathered, examine and identify the facts,
circumstances and context of the incident and make findings and
recommendations.

I53.  There are important:parameters within which the Panel must work and these
parameters need to be understood clearly from the outset in order to avoid
misunderstandings later. The Panel cannot receive unsolicited information from persq
and organisations who may wish 1o supply-it. Nor can the Panel approach individuals
organisations except through the Points of Contact.

16.  Any clarifications or information from Israel or Turkey that the Panel conside;
necessary to complete its inquiry will be sought through Points of Contact designated
those two States. This may include a request for 2 mecting with the Point of Contact.
Those Points of Contact haye now been designated and formally notified to the Inquir
follows:

Israel: Ambassador Yossi Gzl, Director-General of the Ministry of Foreign
Affairs of the State of Israel

Turkey: Ambassador Mithat Rende, Director General for Muitilateral
Economic Affairs at the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Turkey

17
States, it may request such information through appropriate diplomatic channels. Sug
diplomatic channels are understocd to mean the Permanent Missions of such States tqg

United Nations in New York.

Teceive and review reports of national investigations into the incident from Tsfa

o

) e

Where the Panel considers it necessary to obtain information from othcraﬂ”ecﬂed

58 Date; 05/03/2013
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[8.  Such requests for information are the only means available to the Panel 1o recgive

information beyond the reports of national investigations. The Panel’s requests will
specify the questions or issues en which information or clarification is required.

Meetings with Points of Contact

19.  The Panel discussed its approach to meetings with the Point of Contact. The Panel
will not meet with Non-Governmental Organisations or other individuals. Any meetings will

be according to the following procedure:

a. The Panel will receive both countries® (Turkey and Israel) interim and final feports

through the Points of Contact.

b. Once the Panel has reviewed both interim and final reports it may request
information or clarifications from the Point of Contact.

c. The Point of Contact will receive the questions and clarifications and may:

1) Provide written or oral answers and clarifications; or

ii) Suggest a2 meeting with a Civil Servant who can provide answers an
clarifications to the specific questions in the Panel’s request. When mz¥1
such a suggestion the Point of Contact will indicate the name of the Ci

- Servant and the specific question that he or she will address. In this ins

the four members of the Panel will unanimously decide whether or not o

authorize the meeting with the Civil Servant.

E"_.

ce,

d. All writicn and oral answers and clarifications provided by the Point of Contact or

Civil Servants will constitute part of each country’s interim and final reports.

20. It needs to be appreciated that the Panel’s method is the diplomatic method of
obtaining information - not the adversarial method, or the inquisitorial method or
independent fact-finding of the type that other United Nations panels have carried out.
This Panel is unique and its methods are similarly unique.

21.  The method for obtaining information does not restrict the findings and
recommendations the Panel may decide to make. The Panel can and will examine and
identify the facts, circumstances and context of the incident. It can and will recomm
ways of avoiding such incidents in the future. [t can and will report its findings and
recommendations to the Secretary-General. Upon the nature of those findings and
recommendations, it is futile to speculate at this stage. Suffice it to say the level of
intemational concern that has been expressed concerning the incident under review
been high. The Panel has the means available to it to respond to that concern.
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United Nations €22 Nations Unies
HEADQUARTERS - SIEGE NEW YOREK, NY 10017
TEL.Z | (212) 963,1234 = FAX! | (212) PE3.4879

REFERENCE:

8 September 2010

RELEASED IN FULL

Excellency,

I am writing to you on behalf of the Panel of Inquiry on the 31 May 2010 Flotilla
Incident. The Panel has met on two occasions, on 10-11 August and 2-3 September. You
had requested that the Panel submit a progress report to you by 15 September. This report
has now been completed and is attached. The work of the Panel is going well and has
continued in a constructive tone. The Panel agreed to reconvene from 1 10 3 Decc:: ber to
discuss and review the interim reports submitted by the parties.

Please accept, Excellency, the assurances of my highest consideration.

W

Geoffrey Palmer
Chair of the Pane! of Inquiry
on the 31 May 201 Flotilla Incident

His Excellency
Mr. BAN Ki-moon
Secretary-General
New York

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
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RELEASED INFULL|  NGN RESPONSIVE PORTIONS b~ Text| PALESTINE
REDACTED ; b vy
MIDDLE EAST
UNSC Middle East Consultations
= Talking Points

E June 15,2010

Thank you, Mr. Presient, and thank you, Special Coordinator Serry, for your brieﬁnF

and injuries, and our condolences to the families. The Council condemned those
in these casualties, and called for a prompt, impartial, credible and transparent in
i conforming to international standards.

The Government of Israel took an important step forward on June 14 in approving an independent
public commission to investigate the circumstances of the recent tragic events on d the flotilla
headed for Gaza.

We believe that Israel, like any other nation, should be allowed to undertake an investigation into

events that involve its national security. Israel has a military justice system that mee
standards and is capable of conducting a serious and credible investigation, and the
terms of reference of Israel's independent public commission can meet the standard gf a prompt,

ission and

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer
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I
-,

NR

Thank you Mr. President.
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[RELEASED IN FULL] NON-RESPONSIVE PORTIONS PALESTINE
REDACTED

UNITED STATES MISSION TO THE UNITED NATIONS

140 East 45" Swreet
NEW YORK, N.Y. |0017-3505

January 18, 2011

BRIEFING MEMORANDUM FOR THE PERMANENT REPRESENTATIVE
SENSITIVE BUT UNCLASSIFIED

FROM: POL — Bill Grant
THROUGH: EXEC — Ambassador DiCarlo ‘
SUBJECT: Seourity Council Open Debate on the Middle East, January 19, 2011

BACKGROUND:

Under Secretary-General Pascoe will brief the Council on events in the Middle East since
December 14, followed by an open debate.| NR

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer|
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The U.S. draft statement for the open debate is still being finalized in Washington.| We've
removed points on the Gaza flotilla incident, as [srael’s report will not be submitted to the UN
this week. | ' = ) 4 ]

— e — ———— — SR = —J
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RELEASED IN FULL TO CERTAIN |
PARTIES Requestor Only

centerforconstitutionalrights
on the front lines for social justice

February 16, 2011 T

Ms. Peggy Kerry

NGO Liaison

United States Mission to the United Nations
799 United Nations Plaza

New York, N.Y. 10017

Re:  Meeting Request: Ahmet DoZan, Father of Furkan Dogan, U.S. citizen| killed on the
Mavi Marmara on May 31, 2010

Dear Ms Kerry:

I write on behalf of Ahmer Dogan, the father of Furkan Dogan, the U.S. citizen killed aboard the
Mavi Marmara on May 31, 2010. Mr. Dogan will be travelling to the United States next week
for the purpose of meeting with U.S. government officials to discuss his son's kil*ng and actions
that the United States has taken or can take to assist in seeking justice and accountability for his
son’s death. Mr. Dogan will be in New York on February 24th and would lil%c to meet with
you or representatives from your Office to discuss his son’s killing and the U.S. response to
it. 1 note that efforts to secure a meeting for Mr. Dogan with representatives of the United States
Embassy in Ankara, Turkey have been unavailing, prompting him to make this trip to the United
States. See Enclosure A.

As you may be aware, 19-year old Furkan Dogan was among the sixteen Uniteq States citizens
who were part of the flotilla, including five who were on the Challenger I, a \U.S.-registered
vessel. At the time of his death, Furkan Dogan was only a U.S. citizen, (and not a dual citizen
with Turkish citizenship) baving previously renounced his Turkish citizcnship[LFurkan Dogan
was shot five times, including twice in the head, once in the back, in the left leg and foot. All of
the entry wounds were to the back of his body, except the shot to his face, which was delivered
at point-blank range. See Enclosure B. An English-translation of the autopsy report for Furkan
Dofan is attached. See Enclosure C.

In addition, United States citizens were beaten, and their property, which incliudes video and
photographic evidence, was seized and appropriated by Israel and has not been returned. The
U.S. passengers have urged the State Department to assist in securing the return of their property
and safeguarding evidence for a criminal investigation. See Enclosure D. The v]:vidcncc which
was seized by the Israeli government and remains in its possession includes the video-camera
Furkhan Dogan was holding at the time that the Israeli commandos rappe!!ed| onto the Mavi
Marmara, ]

o T I
REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer
— — tt6broadway, 7 ik york, ny 10012
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Meeting Request: Ahmet Dogan
February 16, 2011
Page 2 0f 2

1 appreciate your urgent attention to this matter and look forward to your prompt response.
Please feel free to contact me at 212-614-6445 or kgallagher@ccrjustice.org if| you have any
questions or need any additional information.

Sincerely,

Katherine Gallagher
Senior Staff Attorney

Encl. A. Letters exchanged between the Elmadag Law Office and
the Embassy of the United States — Ankara

B. Excerpt from the United Nations Human Rights Council Report Fact-Finding
Mission on the Flotilla Attack, September 27, 2010, A/HRC/15/21

C. Autopsy Report for Furkan Dogan

D. Letter from U.S. passengers, including Ahmet Dofan to
Secretary of State Clinton, October 6, 2010

666 broadway, 7 i1, new york, ny 10012
1212 614 5464 £ 212 614 6499 www.CCRjustice.org
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Enclosure A
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THE UNITED STATES OF AMERICA EMBASSY, ANKARA-TURKEY

Douglas A. SILLIMAN
Tox Deputy Chief of Mission
Atatiirk Bulvan 110

Kavakhdere, 06100 Ankara - Tiirkiye
d@state.gov

No:  HUKMEK-01-10-28

Subject: Formal request for information about the USA citizen FURKAN DOGAN
whom he was killed on 31 May 2010 by the [sraeli attack on Freedom Gaza
Flotilla while it was in the international waters.

Date : 7.09.2010

Dear Sir DEPUTY CHIEF OF MISSION

At the outset allow us to introduce ourselves. We, Elmadag Law Office, are the Legal Repfesentatives of
each victim of the 31 May Gaza Flotilla Incident who hold Turkish Citizenship. Our role is(to pursue the
rights of the each victim in accordance with remedies available under international law, inter alia United
Nations, International Court of Justice and International Criminal Court, and exhaust gvery possible

international legal remedy.

On the day of May 31 when the aforementioned attack has occurred, 9 awvilians w:f killed with
gunfire. Among them one of the deceased people was Furkan Dogan, having Tur h origin and

1

holding the USA citizenship. His dead body was sent to Turkey after the attack. His autopsy report

|stanbul Dinya Ticarer Merkezi (IDTM) A-1 Blk. N:61 - Yesilkdy - |stanbul, TORRIYE www simadeghukuk com
Telefon - #30 (0] 212 465 88 65 Faks - +50 () 212 46S BB 69 Into@etmadaghukuk.com
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prepared by the Forensic Medicine Institute and his family took his body and buried in the city of

Kayseri.

Elmadag Law Office is the representatives of his Family for the fact that they werp victim and

complainant since their son was shot.
Based on the foregoing;

On behalf of the Dogan Family, we respectfully request from the authority of the United States
Government to act the legal and diplomatic remedies for Furkan Dogan's death, we therefore

request the US Embassy in Ankara to inform us about the aforesaid situation further and have a

meeting.
Sincerely,

Att. RAMAZAN ARITURK

EK-L 30.07.2010 Tarihli, Kayseri 8. Noterliginden 28678 Yevmiye No'lu

sayis- 2-
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Vekiletname - Vekil: Ahmet Dogan
EK-II: 17.06.2010 Tarihli, Furkan Dogan’a ait Otopsi Raperu - Adli Tap Kurumu Bagkanlifs
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Embassy of the United Siates of America

Ankara, Ekim 7, 2010

Sayin Avukat Ramazan Antirk,
istanbul Diinya Ticaret Merkezi
A-1 Blk. N: 61 Yesilkoy,

Istanbul

Sayin Aritirk,

Amerikan Biiylkelgiligi Maslahatguzari Douglas A. Silliman’a géndermis oldugunuz 1»10-20110 tarihli
yaziniza cevaben Maslahatgiizar adina bu mektubu yazmaktayim.

Géndermis oldufunuz yaz tarafimiza ulagmigtir,

Baskonsolos

Amerikan Bilyikelgiligi

Ankara
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Embassy of the United States of America

Ankara, Septeqmber 7, 2010

Dear Att. Ramazan Ariturk,
Istanbul World Trade Centre
A-1 Block No:61 Yesilkoy,

Istanbul

Dear ARITURK,

| am writing on behalf of the United States Charge d'Affaires Douglas A. Silliman in respgnse to letter
he received dated 1/10/210.

We have received your letter.

Regards,
Richard Appleton
Consul General
Embassy of the United States

Ankara
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United Nations _ Amrensnn
% General Assembly ; Disir.: General
27 September 201¢
Original: English

Human Rights Counecil

Fifeenth session

Agenda item |

Organizationzl and procedural matters

Report of the international fact-finding mission to investigate
violations of international law, including international
humanitarian and human rights law, multing from the
Israeli attacks on the flotilla of ships carrying humamtnnml
assistances

. Summary .

This report was prepared by the fact-finding mission established by the Hu
Rights Council in resolution 14/1 of 2 June 2010 to investigate violations of internatiofal
law, including internatiorial humanitarian law and humsn rights Taw, resulting from the
interception by Isreell forces of the humeniterian aid flotilla bound for Geza on 3]
2010 during which nine people were killed and many othets injured.

The report sets out background information relating 1o the interception of the ﬂotlha
a3 well ag the applicable international law. [

The fact-finding mission conducted interviews with more than 100 wilnesses in
Geneva, London, Istanbul and Amman, On the basis of this testimony and other
information received, the Mission was able to reconstruct a picture of the circumstang
J sutrounding the interception on 31 May 2010 and its afiermath. The report presents &

Tactual description of the events leading up to the interception, the interception of each of
the six ships in the flotilla as well as a seventh ship subsequently intercepted on 6 J
2010, the deaths of nine passengers and wounding of many others and the detention »[:f

passengers in lsrael and their deportation.

The report contains & legal anelysis of facts as ddermimd by the Mission with a
view to determining whether violations of internstional law, including international
humanitarian and human rights law, took place.

The fact-finding mission concluded that a series of violations of international law,
including international humaniterian and human rights law, were committed by the Isracli
forces during the interception of the flotilla and during the detention of passengers in Isragl
prior to deportation,

¥ Late submission.

|
|
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board the vessels by force. This belief persisted among many less-experienced passengers
right up to the moment of the interception, notwithstanding the precedent of the Spirit
Humanity in 2009, Many passengers told the Mission that they did not really believe th
the Israclis would attempt 10 board until the first boats approached the Mavi Marmara
the moming of 31 May. _

Preparation and. p!annj;'w on the Mavi Marmara

59., The full realization thal the Isrselis were serjous about commandeering the ﬂolilh?
spread through the passengers on the Mavi Marmara during the course of 30 May. There i
clear evidence that some people on board the Mavi Marmara, including senior IHH leader:
were prepared actively to defend the ship against any boarding attempt. Video eviden
shows & meeting of about 50 to 100 passengers on the ship on 30 May at which the IH
President and a number of other prominent passengers spoke with some bravado abou
preventing an Isracli takeover of the ship. The pressure of the water hoses was seen bein
tested on the decks the day before the interception.

100. Following radio communication with the Israeli Navy and the sightings of the Isracli
vessels, it hecame apparent thal a boarding of the ship wes an imminent reality. Passengs
were instructed-to put on their life jackets. Although there does not seem to have been ?
coordinated plan involving all passengers, some individuals grouped together with t
intention of defending the ship. There is little evidence of any unified ‘command
coordinate the defence of the ship.

101. During the night of 30 to 31 May, some passengers took electric tools from ¢
ship's workshop, which was not kept locked and sawed sections of railings into lengths
approximately one and a half meires, apparently for use as weapons. Lengths of
chains from between the railings were also removed. When the ship's crew discovered thi
the lools were confiscated and locked iniheradinmnmtlwbridge.Anmbu‘ofﬂF
passengers were also provided with ges masks to counter the effects of 1ear gas. However,
the. Mission notes that the ship's standard fire-fighling equipment would have includet
hreathing apparatus. Furthermore, the fact that some passengers engaged in last mi
efforts to. fashion rudimentary wespons shortly prior to the interception confirms
findings of the Mission that no weapons were brought.on board the ship.

Preparation and planning on the Challenger 1, Sfendonl, Eleftheri Mesogios and the
Rachel Corrie

102. Passengers and crew on the Challenger I underwent training in passive resistance
techniques, non-violence and what to do if detained in 1srael (including contacting a lawy:
before embarkation), ‘Witnesses said discussions took place In-advance amongst
passéngers on how ta respond o an Israeli attempt to board the ship during which the

had ingisted that-there. should be no attempts to repel boarders with physical force,
captaln .and crew opposed a suggestion that acoess to the bridge should be blocked, "E

was feared this would incense the soldiers. The intention, according to witnesses, was

show a symbolic resistance lo the soldiers sufficient to demonstrate that the boarding wi
unwanted. The planned response to a boarding of the Challenger | was in part informed

the experience of some of the passengers on previous boats which had been intercepted

the lsraclis,

103. Wilnesses sboard the Svendoni and the Eleflher! Mesogios confirmed simi
discussions aboard their vessels. On the Elefther! Mesogios, it was.zlso decided that
hoses could be misconstrued es weapons and hence should mlbcuazd.OnﬂnSﬁndw‘ﬁ,
passengers intended 1o sit on the decks and slow down any altempt to take control of
bridge through passive resistance.
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104, - The passengers on boerd the Rachel Corrie agreed and notified the Israclis before
boarding that no resistance would be offered to the Israeli forces.
Preparation and plannirg on the Gazze I and Defne ¥

I 105. There is no information to suggest that any specific preparations were mlde by
crew or passengers of Gazze/ and Defne ¥ to defend against a possible boarding.

B. The interception of the Gaza flotilla by the Israeli Navy on 31 May 201

1. Futul ﬂmrlptlun and Ilmung;
IIJﬁ The Mission fmmd the following factsm have begn established to-its satisfaction.

(a Confacrabcbvun the l.va!!i Navy arid the \eudx ofﬂwﬂo&ﬂn

107. The flotilla lcR the rendczvous point at 1554 hours on 30 May 2010 and proceeded
In 2 south-westerly direction on course 222 degrees, This course was altered fo 185 degress,
spproximately due south, at 2330 hours upon drawing level with the coast of Israel and in
order to maintsin B course roughly parallel to the coast. The flotilla mainteined a distance ‘E

70 nautical miles from the cosst since a NAVTEX (Navigational Telex) mdvisory had
wamed that the Isracli military were conducting exercises up to 68 nautical miles from
coast.

L0B.. - The first radio contact with the Isracli Navy was at approximately 2230 hours.
vessel was contacted by the Isracli Navy, ane after the other, on'Channel 16 and
to switch to an slternative chennel, Each vesse! refused to switch in order that
conversation could be monitored by all shipping. ‘The Isracli Navy requested each vessel
identify itself and state its destination. It then wamed each vessel, with some variations, |it
was approaching an area of hostilitles which is under a naval blockade, thai the G
meritime area is-closed to all vessels and that they must change course to deliver
supplles to the Port of Ashdod In Israel. In some of the messages, the captain of each

was warned that he would be held personally responsible for any consequences of a fai

to comply with the Tsraeli request. The Isreeli Navy's contacts were similar 1o those in
relation o previous Free Gaza Movement efforts to enler Gaza by sea.

109. In response, the captains of the various vessels stated that their destination was Gar.u
and the purpose was to deliver humanitarian eid. They also ssserted that the Israeli [

did not have the right to order the vessels to change coursé and that the blockade referred
was lllogal. A representative of the Free Gaza Movement spoke to the Israelis on behalf bf
the whole: flotilla, reiterating that the passengers were unarmed civilians deliveri
humanitarian aid and that none of the ships that should be considered as any form of

lo Israel. At no stage was a request made by the Israeli Navy for the cargo to be i
Contacts with the Israeil Navy continued until eround 0200 hours when communicati
equipment was jasmmed: by the lsraeli forces, cutting them off to_all exterral
commuhnications. However, the vessels in the flotilla were able to maintain contact with
another via handheld two-way radios.

110. *In early June 2010, audio recordings were released by the Israsll authorities of
apparent exchanges between the Israeli Navy and the Defre ¥ which included insulting
referénces by unknown persons referring to “Auschwitz" and the 11 September 2001

on the World Trade Centre in New York. However, the Mission is not satisfied that the
recordings are authentic, nor hes the Government of [srael made this material availablejto
the Mission for appropriate examination. The Mission was given positive evidence that
such statements were made by mnyone involved in communications on the flotilla,
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helicopter and the first group of soldiers descended. The Mission does not find it plausible
that soldiers werz holding their weapons and firing as they descended on the rope.
However, it has concluded that live 2ammunition was used from the helicopter onto the top
deck prior fo the descent of the soldiers.

115. With the available evidence it is difficult to delincale the exact course of events on
the top deck between the time of the first soldier descending and the Isrieli forces securi
control of the deck. A fight ensued between passengers and the first soldiers to descel
onto the fop deck that resulted in at least two soldiers being pushed down onto the brl
deck below, where they were involved in strupgles with groups of passengers w
atiempted to take their weapons. The equipment jacket of et least one soldier was remov
a8 he wes pushed over the side of the deck. A number of weapons were taken from th
soldiers by passengers and thrown inlo the sea: one weapon, a 9-mm pistol, was unloa
by & passenger, o former U,S. Marine, in front of witnesses and then hidden in another par
of the ship in an attempt to relain evidence, )

116. A number of the passengers on the top deck fought with the soldiers vsing their fists,
sticks, metal rods and Knives.” At least one of the soldiers was stabbed with a knife or othef
sharp object. Witnesses informed the Mission that their objective was to subdug and disarm
the soldiers so that they could not harm anyone. The Misslon is satisfied on the evidence
that et least two passengers on-the bridge deck also used handheld estapults to propel smal
projectiles at the helicopters, The Mission has found no evidence to suggest that any of the
passengers used firearms or that any fircarms were laken on board the ship. Despit
requests, the Mission- has not received any medical records or other substantiat
information from the Israeli authorities regarding any fireerm injuries susieined by soldierf
participating in the raid. Doctors examined the three soldiers taken below decks and n
firearm injuries were noted, Further, the Mission finds that the [sraeli accounts
inconsistent and contradictory with regard to evidence of alleged firearms injuries to [sraeqi
soldicrs that it has to reject it.™ |

(i)  Deaths of'9 passengers and wounding of at least 50 other passengers ’

117. During the operation Io secure control of the top deck, the lsraeli forces landeL
soldiers from three helicopters over & 15-minute period.” The Isreeli forces used paintbal
plastic bullets and live emmunition, fired by soldiers from the helicopter above and soldie s
wha had landed on the top deck. The use of live ammunition during this period resulied i
fatal injuries to four passengers,” and injuries ta et least 19 others, 14 with gunshot
wounds, Escape points to the bridge deck from the top deck were namrow &nd restricted-
such it was very difficult for passengers in this area to avoid being hit by live rounds. At

% 'The Mission hes found no evidence of knives being taken on board by passengers except for one
traditional ceremonial knife. However, the Mavi Marmara had six kitchens, each of which was
stocked with usual culinary knives. ’

" I his testimony to the Turkel Committce, held in Israel on 13 August 2010, Chief of Qeneral Stafl
Ashkenazi refers to one soldier being “shot in his abdomen by one of the activisis” and thet “in (he
course of the battle, five soldiers [were] wounded by stabbings, blows and shooting”™. Howeves, at the
urgent debate of the Human Rights Council held during its fourteenth session, on | June 2010, the g
Permanent Representative of Israel stated that passengers “shol two Isracli scldiers™. In contrast, in
the Staie"s response at the habeas corpus hearing, held on 2 June 2010 (pelition HCJ 4913/10 before
the Supreme Court in Jerusalem, sitting as the High Court of Justice; unofficial transtation), no
specific reference was made to any Israeli soldiers being shot.

™ In his testimony to the Turkel Committes on 11 Augusi 2010, Chief of General Staff Ashkenazi statsd
that the first helicopter carried 15 soldiers, the second carried 12 soldiers and the third carried 14
soldiers.

T Fahri Yeldiz, Furkan Dogan, lbrehim Bilgen and Ali Haydar Bengi.
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" One of the soldiers had a superficial wound to the abdomen, caused by a sharp

commander
™ As stated by COGS Asbkenszi in his testimony 1o the Turkel Committee on 1 | August 2010.
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122. A group of up to 20 passengers, some holding sticks and rods and wearing
masks, were located on or around the stairwell Inside the ship. One passenger standing j
inside the door wes shot through the broken portholc in the door by a soldier standing a feb
metres away on the bridge deck outside.

123. During the shootings on the -bridge deck and s it became spparcnt that a large
number of passengers had become injured, Bulent Yildirim, the President of IHH and

of principal organizers of the flotilla, remaved his white shirt which was then used as|a
white flag to indicate & surrender. This does not eppesar to have hed any effect and liye
firing continued on the ship, = | g ;

124, Tsraeli forces moved down to the bridge deck and moved rapidly to take over
bridge room towerds the front of the ship, The doorway and windows of the bridge roo
céime under fire and the captain ordered that the ship's engines be cut. lsraeli soldiefs
entered the bridge room through the dobr and broken window. The crew were made to lle
on the ground at ginpoint. The captain remained standing but was held at gunpoint.

Shootings at the bow deck, the release of the Ismeli soldiers and end of the operation

125. During the initial fighting on the top deck three lsmeli soldiers were taken
control dnd brought inside the ship. While some passengers wished fo harm the soldie
other passengers ensiired that they were protected and sble 10 receive rudimentary medi
tFeatment from doctors on board, Two of the soldiers had received wounds to the

which penctrated to the subcutancous tissue. None of the three soldiers had recei
gunshol injurics, according to doclors who examined them. All three soldiers were in2
of shock and were suffering from cuts, bruises and blunt force trauma.

126. As the seriousness of incidents on the outer decks became apparent, there
growing concern amorig some of the flotilla organisers that holding the captured
mmmmwmmmmwmwmm“hwra
decided that the soldiers should be released and they were taken to the bow of the
deck. Once on the bow deck two of the soldicrs jumped into the sca and were picked up
Israeli boats. The third soidier did not Jump and was rapidly joined by Isracli soldiers w
came down from the top deck. ‘

127. At least four passengers were injured on the bow of the ship, both before and aror
the time that the lsraeli soldiers were relesed. At least two passengers received woun
from live ammunitior, while others recelved injurles from soft baton charges, including o
dootor who was tending to injured passengers.

128, " "The Israeli forces stated that the active phase of the lsracli forces operation
concluded at 0517 hours,” once the ship was under their contro] and the three soldiers
released. During the 45-30 minute operation, nine pessengers were killed, more than 24
passengers had received serious injuries caused by live ammunition and a large number
other passengers had received injurles caused by plastic rounds, soft baton cherges (bean-
bags) and ather means,

b=

1t also sppears that the Jsracli forces were planning lo enter the ship’s cubins in order 10 locate the

three soldiers: In his testimory o the Turke! Commities on 11 August 2010, COGS Ashkenszi stsicd

that o the time when the lsracli forces spotted the three soldiers oa the bow deck: “The force
[was preparing] to rush the passengers’ area in onder 10 locals the missing soldiers ™
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the pathology reports, he received a singie bullet lo his forchesd between the eyes.
_buliet followed a horizontal trajectory which crossed the middle of lhc brain from front 1
back. He would have died instantly.

Cengiz Akyilz and Cengiz Songir
.Cengiz Akytz 41, from Hatay and Cengiz Soriglir, 46, from Izmir, both Turkish mnzenf.
were injured on the bridge deck in close succession by live fire from above. They had

sheltering and were shot as they attempted to move inside the door leading to the stairwell.
_Cmglz.)\kynzmwiveduhotwtheheadmd‘itil'prohblemmdiedhuwﬂy

Thepmboloxytepmmwsfourwwndm wt!urmk.lhw.westmd thigh. Cengiz
received a ningh bullet to the upper central thorax below the neck, shot from a high ang
which lodged in the right thoracic cavity Injuring the heart and sorta, Unsuccessful

A mmndebydoaommidcthuhipb resuscitate Mmthraugh heart massage.

Celin Topguogiu

Gﬁh?opwnglu,aﬁ-ymldmnumfmnmmdbemmm}vedhbdpmg
bﬂnghjmedpmmgminndcmcampmbemaiﬂemmm:lmbﬂtﬁomr
| the bridge deck. He did not die instently and his wife, who was also on board the ship, w

- with him when he died, He was shot by thres bullets. One bullet entered from the top
soft tissyes of the right side of the back of the head, exited from the neck and then Ng

. entered into the thorax.. Another bullet entered the left buttock and lodged in the
pelvis. The. third entered the right groin and exited from the lower back. There
mdmu‘!wmtlmthemcrimmayhmbemm:mhhmorbaﬂmgpmlumwhm
wound was sustained,

Deaths and seriously wounded mm'hqg in unknown locations
Necdet Vildirim

 The location end ciréumstances of the ;hooimg and death of Necdet Yildirim, a 31-year-old
Turkish citizen from Istanbul, remaln-unclear. He was shot twice in the thorax, once
the front and once from the back, The trajectory-of both bullels was from top to bottom.
also received bruises consistent with plastic bullet impact
Wounding of Ugur Suleyman Soylemez (in a coma)
The serious mature of wounds to Ugur Suleyman SOylemez, a-46-year-old Turkish citi
from Ankars, which include at least one bullet wound to the head, have left the victim infs
coma in an Ankara hospital. He remains in & critical condition with a serious head Injury.

(v) Treatment of injured on the Mavi Marmara

129.  Whilst the lsraeli operstion was still under way, efforts were made to tend
wounded passengers.inside the ship by other passengers, amongst whom were around |35

‘ doctors, nurses and others with medical training, including an ophthalmologist

- orthopaedic specialist. Prlor to the attack, the doctors had met and agreed to use the ship's

+ small medical room, but there was no anticipated or preparation for the nature of inuri
that transpired, The limited medicines and lack of appropriate equipment made it
difficult to properly treat wonnded persons, pasticularly those who had received live fi
injurics and required immediate surgery. By the end of the Ismaeli operation more than thi
persons were being trested inside the cabins, primarily in the lower deck in makeshift
surgery areas, twenty of whom were in a critical condition,

*130. The flotilla organizers and other passengers engaged in efforts to request the Jsraeli
forees 1o provide the necessery freatment fo the wounded persons. One organiser used
ship's Intercom 1o request assistance in Hebrew and persons also communicated di

30
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(vi)

through the cabin windows or by placing signs, written in English and Hebrew, in

™ According to the testimoay of COGS Ashkenazi to the Turkel Commities on 11 August 2010, feld

7 Also sccording to the sbove testimony, 31 wounded passengers and 7 wounded Isrseli soldiers were

ship's windows. These attempis proved unsuccessful and it was up 1o two hours before
Israck forces took out the wounded persons. However, the wounded were required to leav
the cabins themselves, or 1aken outside in a rough manner, without apparent concern for
nature of their injuries and the discomfort that this would cause,

131, The wounded pessengers were taken 10 the front of the top deck where they joined

other passengers injured during the operation on the top deck and where the bodies of
persons killed during the operation hed been left, Wounded passengers, including
seriously injured with live fire wounds, were hendouffed with plestic cord handeuffs, wh
were ofien tied very tightly causing some of the injured to lose sensitivity in their
These plestic handeuffs cannot be' loosened: without being cut off, but can be tightened
Many were also stripped naked and then had to wait some time, possibly as long as tw
three hours, before receiving medical treatment. Medical weatment was given 1o & num
of wounded persons on the top deck by the lssaell forces.™

132. Over several hours the wounded passengers wero then airlifted by lsraeli
helicopters from the ship to hospitals in Isracl.” However, some of the wounded remai
mhoudﬁmkadmnkwmofmmwmlwumcdbyiheunmmﬁlimjf
and did not receive appropriate medical treatment until afler the ship’s arrival at the port
Ashdod in Isrec] many hours later.

Scarch and initial detention of Mavi Marmara passengers

133. All other passengers on the Mavi Marmara were taken one by one from the cabin
areas and anto the extenal deck ereas and were searched. The vast majority of

including the ship’s captsin and crew, were then handouffed with plastic handcuffs
forced to kneel on the various decks for some hours. Some women, ciderly men
persons from Western countries were not handcuffed, or were temporerily handcufied
then uncuffed afler 2 relatively short period of time and were then permitted 1o sit on
benches. Most of those kneeling were drenched by water from the blades of the

and were thus slso in wet clothing throughout this period and were very cold. Other
passengers exposed on open decks received serious sun<bum to their skin as a result
many hours exposure: medical reports show that at Jeast 13 passengers received first

bums as & consequence. During the course of the 12-hour journey 1o the port of Ashdod i
Igracl, the passengers were brought inside the ship and allowed to sit on the availabl
seating.

134." In the process of being detained, or while kneeling on the outer decks for several
hours, there was physical abuse of pussengers by the lsraeli forces, including kicking
punching and being hit with the butts of rifles. One foreign correspondent, on board in
professional capacity, was thrown on the ground and kicked and beaten before being
handcuffed, The passengers were not allowed to speak or to move and there were frequant
instances of verbal abuse, including derogatory sexual remarks about the fem
passengers. Pessengers were denied access to toilet facilities or made to wait for len|
periods before being escorted to the toilet and then forced to use the toilet with i
soldiers watching and while handcuffed. Some passengers were in serious discomfort as
resull, while others used makeshift receptacles, such as plastic bottles and others still

surgerics were performed onl4 passengers on board the ship,

sirlifted from the ship wtilizing “spproximately 40 helicopter evacustions™ and ell wounded ad been
evacusied by 1230 houss,

i
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foreed 10 uringte on themselves. The lsracli forces also employed dogs end som
conditions, such as diabetes or heart conditions, were not provided access 1o their regui
medicines, which were teken by Isracli soldiers,

135. The manner in which plastio handcuffs were attached to the wrists of passengs!
meMMMuﬂanimﬁmmw
laraci] soldiers who tightened the plastic handcuffs to an extent that caused pain, swelling,
loss of blogd circuletion in the hends end the loss of sensitivity In their hands and fing
Most pessengers who requested that the handoufls be loosened were ignored or it results
in the handeufis being further tightened, A number of passengers are stlll experiencing
medical problems related to the handeufTing three montha Imer and forensic reports confi
that nt least 54 passengers had received injuries, trunsversal abrasions and bruises, as|a
result of handeuffing on board the Mavi Mamara.

(© MM&CM&W!
136. Passengers end crew on the Challenger /, the smallest and fastest vesscl in the
flotilla, were able to witness the first moments of the essault on the Mavwl Marmara. Once i
became rpperent that the [sraelis intended to commendeer the ships, the decision was meg
for the Challenger 1 to accelerate out of the formation of the flotilla to allow more time R
the journalists aboard 10 transmit news of the assault to the outside world via the boat
satellite Internet connection, which remained in operation, but also in the hope that at less!
one boel might still be able to reach Gaza. The boat was chased by one of the lsresti
corvetit boats which it was unsbic 10 outrun. Eveniually the siarboard engine lost
pressure and the captain, concerned the Israelis might ram the boat, shut down the

137. The boat was infercepted by two Israell boats and a helicopter. Passengers on
hdmﬂuuhnmmum“hmdhddthhﬂhﬂuw&bdm
mmmwmmdmummummnm

resistance technigues 10 resist symbolically the Israeli soldiers boerding the boal.
passengers stood unarmed side-by-side blocking the path of the soldiers. Soldiers
fire with paintbails and rubber bullets as they boarded, hitting and injuring one woman
the face with either a plastic bullet or a paintbell. Another woman was bruised on her
by from rubber bullets.

138. " Once on board, the soldiers moved to take control of the fly bridge.
obstructing access were forcibly removed. On entering the fly bridge, the soldiers were
with no resistance, but a fernale journalist sustained burna on her arms from an electrosho
weapon fired by an Israeli soldier. Witnesses said that the primary concem of the soldigrs
scemed to be the confiscation of photographic equipment and media.

139. The passive resistance offered by the passengers was met with force. One 's
hesd was hit against the deck of the boat and then stepped on by an lsmeeli soldigr.
Passengers were handcuffed very tightly with plastic ties behind their backs, while the
women injured in the face was left unattended.

140. Seversl passengers said that it was clear that the Jrsell soldiers knew who wes
board as they referred to some passengers by neme. A plasticized booklet recovered s
soldier on the Mavi Marmara, and filmed, identified specific passengers on several bosts
with names and phiotographs, including on the Challenger 1.
141. One crew member observed that the soldiers were very young, seemed frightened
towards the passengers. Passengers were handeuffed with plastic ties end denied

the toilet. One elderly man was obliged to urinate in his clothes because he was

#coess 10 the toilet. There was an attempt to forcibly eject one woman from the boat into
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Republic of Turkey
MINISTRY OF JUSTICE
Forensic Medicine Authority
7 June 2010
NUMBER: B0.3.1.ATK.0.11.00,01-101.02-38269/1596
SUBJECT: AUTOPSY REPORT
Name Surname : FURKAN DOGAN
Date of Birth : 20 October 1991
Gender : Male h
Republic of Turkey IDNa  : 600 280 161 48
Matriculation Record : OF USA nationality
Residence 1=
Date of Finding Dead : 31 May 2010
Place of Finding Dead : Mavi Marmara Ship
Autopsy Requested by : Bakirkdy Public Prosecution Office
Date/Number : 02 June 2010 -66833
Autopsy Held At : Forensic Medicine Authority Morgue Specialization Offjce
Autopsy Date and Time : 03 June 2010 - 03.40
Public Prosecutor : A. Cemil Talashoglu
Doclors under Oath : Dr. M. Ozbay, Dr. i. Uztin, Dr. G. $irin, Dr. M. Akgtll
Observer : Lawyer Okan Kadir Bektagoglu (Bar Association Registry No:
38727)
EXTERNAL EXAMINATION

It has been seen that the naked body wrapped up in a sheet and taken out of the brown en coffin
on which there is a label numbered 3/0584, has been washed up, that it had a white plaslic label with
some notes in Hebrew and a paper label with yellow color reading “DVI ISRAEL POLICE — Dental
Examination” on its left hand wrist, with red color reading "DV ISRAEL POLICE - Fingerprinted”,
with green color reading “DVI ISRAEL POLICE — Sampled for DNA", and with white Eo

“DVI ISRAEL POLICE — External Examination”, and with blue color reading “DVI ISRAEL
POLICE — Photographed™ on his right hand wrist, and a plastic label reading 584" on him and that it
had a plastic label reading "584" on its right ankle.

lor reading

In the examination held under scopy, a double fragment fracture of the lefi cruris and metallic parts
with a diameter of 0.1-0.3 mm at that sile, a metallic part of 0.1x0.3 under the skin to the left of
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thorax, and an oval metallic object with a diameter of 1.5-2 cm ai the level of his left|ankle were
observed.
In the circumcised male body with a fair complexion, brown eyes, shorl brown hair] brown-red
moustache-beard, at the age 18-20, with a height of 1.71 cm, a weight of 64 kg; it has begn observed
that rigor mortis has passed, that livor mortis have been formed at locations of the back pf body not
subject 1o compression, and that ridding has started at the lower quadrants of the abdemen|in the form

of yellow green color change.

It has been observed that
1- There were a firearm bullet entrance wound with a diameter of 0.7 cm, with abrasion [ring around
and with flesh wound of 0.6x0.5 cm to the frontal lower section, a flesh wound of 0.6x0/5 cm to the

front lower seclion of the same, and oval powder impresses distribuled at a longiludinal axis of 7 cm

under the right eye,
2- There was a firearm bullet exit wound to the left frontal back in the form of + at dime{]sinns 3x2.5
cm at a distance of 1 cm to the midline,
3- There was a firearm bullet exit hole having a diameter of 1 cm in the form of tear 1.5 bghind the left
ear, and a flesh wound of 0.5 cm near the auricle, on the same line,
4- There was a firearm bullet entrance wound on the right occipital, with a diameter of 0.8 cm wilh
abrasion ring but without shot residues around, 7 cm posterior to the ear,

5- There was a firearm bullet entrance wound with a diameter of 0.8 cm with abrasion ring but without

shot residues around, at the paravertebral region aligned at 45" rib level on the mﬁdiafn line of the
back,
6- There was a firearm bullel exil wound on the right arm 1/3 lower external lateral plane, firearm

bullet exit wound, to the left of the chest, in line with the frontal armpit line and the 5" rib| and 4x1 cm

bruise with a flesh wound under that,
7- On the left foot, 5th finger distal interior, there was a flesh wound of 2x1 due lo passing of the
firearm bullel, and at the bottom of the 4™ finger 1o the bottom external side, in the form] of a split of
0.6 cm, a firearm bullet entrance wound without shot residues,
2- There was a firearm bullet exit wound in the form of star-like laceration with a diameter of 0.7 cm,
2 cm posterior to the origin of the 4™ finger of the left foot base,
9- In left cruris lateral, 1/3 median, there was a firearm bullet entrance wound having a digmeter of 0.7
cm, with abrasion ring bul without shot residues around,
Within the lefl eye internal side, there were bruises on the upper and lower eyelids, there{was a purple
colored bruise at left cruris 1/3 medium frontal side and internal side with a diameter of |6 cm, also at
lefl cruris distal 1o the internal side, upper section of internal malleol, there was a purple colored bruise
with a diameter of 5 cm, and a flesh wound of 05x0.3 cm in the middle of the same, and also in that

region a foreign body that might be a bullet was found under the skin through palpation, and that a
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purple colored bruise of 6x4 cm on the medial left shoulder posterior side with a flesh wound of 1 cm
in diameter at one end.
Anal examination showed no macroscopic pathologic characteristic apart from postmoriem |dilatation.

Baoth hands were determined to involve black-pink-red ink stains on the palmar side.

INTERNAL EXAMINATION
THE HEAD WAS OPENED: The scalp was removed. The regions under the firearm enirils under the
scalp was found to have hemorrhage. Both temporal muscle groups have hemorrhage, and an entry
defect of the firearm bullet without soot, 2 cm below the lambdoid sutura to the right octipital right
side in the calvaria, and a linear fracture line going 3 cm leftward and upward from that point, a

firearm bullet exit defect with external impresses an the outer lamina with a dimension of 2.5x3cm at a

distance of 1 cm Lo the coronal sutura in frontal left medium, that one of the fracture lineﬁ originating
from that point goes 2 cm to the back and comes to an end, that the second goes to the front, that a
fracture line generated by the entry defect of the firearm bullel no 1 and coming from|the firearm
bullet exit wound described in the right frontal bone comes to an end al the point of intersection of
such fracture line were observed. It was observed that there was a 2x1 cm firearm bullet e:L it defect on
the posterior left temporal bone, and a multiple fragmented fracture on the squamous bone thre, that
the broken bone parts showed an elevation of 2-3 mm.
The skull was opened using the fracture lines, the brain and cercbellum were removed,| weighed as
1493 gr. There are widespread subarachnoidal hemorrhage on the cerebellum surfaces|and intense
tissue destruction in the base of skull and left hemisphere, and intense tissue destruction was observed
along the firearm bullet trajectory in their sections. Widespread fracture lines were obJerVed in the
entire base of skull, with multiple fragmented fractures in the left medizl cranial cavity and the frontal
cranial cavity.
In examination of the orbita, nose and mouth cavities, no macroscopic pathologic characterislics were
observed apart from blood smear.
THE CHEST WAS OPENED: Sternal valve was removed. Both lungs were found free. 00 cc blood
was emptied from the left chest cavity. No free liquid or blood was detected in the right(chest cavity.
Pericardial fluid of usual amount and appearance was found in the pericardial cavily.
The hearl was resected, weighed as 285 gr. Anatomic pathology was not monitored. Corgnary arteries
were found uf:en. Left ventricle wall thickness was measured 1,3 cm, right ventricle wall thickness as
0,3 cm, aorta valve periphery as 6,8 cm, mitral valve periphery as 9 cml, pulmonary valve periphery as
6.3 cm, tricuspid valve periphery as 11.7 cm. No macroscopic pathologic cha:actLrislics vrere

observed on the heart valve, cavity and wall tissues and myocardium sections thereof.

The lungs were resected, the right lung was weighed as 285 gr, and the left lung 295 gr| There was a
hole due to the passing of the firearm bullet on the lower lobe upper posterior left lungj and between

upper-lower lobes 1o the front, and intense intra-tissue bleeding along the trajec|‘tory, but no

|
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macroscopic pathologic characteristics were observed in the other areas of the left lung ard the right
lung.

Macroscopic pathologic characleristics were not observed in mediastinal structures.
A fracture was found due to the passing of a firearm bullet from the left 5" rib frontal axillary ling and
left 4" rib paraveftebral line. In the examination held during the scopy, the tiny part of melal observed
near the left of thorax close to the exit wound could not be found in spite of all searches.
In examination of the neck organs, hyoid bane, thyroid cartilage and neck vertebrae were found intacl.
No macroscopic pathologic characteristics were observed in the trachea and esophagus.
THE ABDOMEN WAS OPENED: No free fluid or blood was observed in the abdominal ¢avity.
100 cc semi digested food content was found in the stomach.

The large and small intestines showed no macroscopic pathologic characteristics.
The liver was resecled; weighed as 1157 gr. Its surfaces were smooth and no macroscopif pathologic
characteristic was observed apart from the pale appearance at ils sections.
The spleen was weighed 162 gr.lts surface and sections showed no macroscopig pathologic
characteristics.
The right kidney was weighed 141 gr, left kidney 135 gr. There are fetal lobulation on the surfaces of
both kidneys, and their sections showed no macroscopic pathologic characteristics.
The pelvis wall and soft tissue showed no macroscopic pathologic characteristic.
The bladder was found full.

When the left kruris was dissected, widespread hematoma and tibia as well as multiple fragtures on the
fibule covering 1/3 under cruris were found. The tiny metal fragments detected during in the left cruris
could not be found despite all searches. During the external examination, when an incisiJm was made
to the bruise site described in the left cruris distal in the external examination, one bullet with rifling
marks with deformed jacket, which is partially lost, from within the muscular tissue behind the
internal malleol.

The following were found out:
That the firearm bullet entering from the spot described in no 1 in the external examination broke the

frontal bone and entered the skull, passed through the brain tissue in its course right to lefl and front to

the back, broke the occipital bone, and left the body from the spol described in no 3 inI the external
examination,

That the firearm bullet entering from the spot described in no 4 in Lthe external examinatlon broke the
occipital bone and entered the skull, passed through the brain tissue in ils course right to left and
downward, broke the frontal bone, and left the body,
That the firearm bullet entering from the spot described in no 5 in the external examinatign entered the
thoracic cavity in its course left to right, slightly downward, and back to the front, bror(c the 4" rib

from below the paravertebral line, entered the left lung from the Jower lobe posterior |superior and
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exited at the front from the interlobar region, broke the 5" rib from the left frontal axillapy line, and

left the body,
That the firearm bullet entering at the place described in no 7 in the external examination left the body

passing through soft tissue from the spot described in no 8 in the external examination, without any
bone fracture,

That the firearm bullet entering at the spot described in no 9 in the external examinalion caused
multiple fractures in the tibia and fibula in its course inward and downward, and remainz{l within the
soft tissue al inner malleol upper section.
On examination of the firearm bullet entrance wounds, no subcutaneous shot residue was detected.
Blood sample, nail sample and bone sample were taken with FTA to be kept to do DNA profiling

when necessary.

Skin samples from the skin around the entrance wounds were sent to Physics Specializatipn Office to
seek shot residues (nitrite-nitrate) |
2 blue colored, plastic bags stated to involve clothes were sent lo Physics Spe.cializalio;l Office for
examination.

Biopsy was made from the heart, lung, liver, kidney, cerebellum, peduncle and the brain for
histopathological examination when necessary.

Samples of blood, urine, fat tissue, as well as the stomach and intestines along with its contents were
taken for systematic toxicological analysis and seeking alcohol, soporific-narcotic, and skin wipe
samples were laken to seek explosive products; and were sent to Chemistry Specialization Office.

One bullet obtained was sent to Physics Specialization Office for definition and determination of the
Lype of the shooting weapon.
In the letter by Physics Specialization Office daled 10 June 2010; it was specified that| the persons
were cleaned (washed) 1o whom the skin and subcutaneous tissue paris of 4 boxes 38272 (1599), 2
boxes 38303 (1601), 2 boxes 38249 (1593), 6 boxes 38269 (1598), 5 boxes 38266 (1597), 4 hoxes
38254 (1594), 1 box 38259 (1595), 1 box 38304 (1600), 5 boxes 38263 (1596) belong 1o, and thus that
they were returned to the Morgue Specialization Office without examination,
In the report dated 16 June 2010 and numbered 6150 by the Physics Specialization Office; Lhe
following sent for examination,

1- On the coal with a hood in gray color outside and beige color inside;
A- Qne with a diameter of 0.6 cm on the back side right upper side area (12 cm below|the shoulder
seam, 14 cm to the right arm body seam),
B- One with a size of 2x2 cm in “T™ shape at the front side left edge medium area (10 ¢m below the
armpit joint, 26 cm 1o zipper edge),
2- On the sweat pants with the expression "ADIDAS" an the black colored left pocke

One with a diameter of 0.6 cm on the back side left leg lower edge external area (22 cm to the lowest

4

3

part of the trousers, 1.5 cm to the external side seam),
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October 6, 2010

The Honorable Hillary Clinton,
Secretary of State

United States Department of State
2201 C StNW

Washington, DC 20037

Dear Secretary Clinton,

We, Americans who were aboard the three passenger ships of the Gaza flotilla gver four
months ago and the father of the U.S. citizen killed on the Mavi Marmara, are agpalled at
the lack of any visible, active effort on the part of any agency in our go to
conduct and release an independent investigation of the killing of one and on
other Americans by a foreign military force, the Isracli commandos. We are alsb angered
by lack of any concerted effort by the State Department to secure our possessiorjs. We
appreciate the efforts of junior and mid-level officials, but without the full weight of the
senior leadership of the State Department, the Israeli government will continue fo ignore
OuT CONCerms.

Although our own government has apparently done nothing, the September 27, 2010,
report of the Fact Finding Mission to the Office of the United Nations High
Commissioner for Human Rights (OHCHR) revealed there is clear evidence U.S.
citizen Furkan Dogan and four Turkish citizens were murdered, execution-style with

10 their heads, by Israeli commandos and four other unarmed passengers were
killed with gunshots to other parts of their bodies.

The report reveals that Dogan was filming with a small video camera on the top deck of

. the Mavi Marmara when he was shot twice in the head, once in the back, in the|left leg

I and foot, at point blank range while lying on the ground. The report says Furkhn had

| apparenily been "lying on the deck in a conscious or semi-conscious, state for some time"

[ before being shot in the face. The forensic evidence of "tattooing around the in

; his face,” according to the report indicates that the shot was "delivered at point blank

' range." The report describes the forensic evidence as showing "the trajectory gf the

| wound, from bottom to top, together with 2 vital ebrasion to the left shoulder could
be consistent with the bullet exit point, is compatible with the shot being received while

|
he was lying on the ground on his back."
%what
|
J
l

We want to know if the United States has investigated Furkan’s death, and if
are the results.
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Protecting Israeli actions, particularly the complete reliance on its reports on the acts of
its own military at the expense of American citizens, is an absolute dereliction of the
responsibilities of our government. The State Department has allied itself with y
ignoring its responsibilities to its own citizens. We have been abandoned by our pwn
government, and we demand an investigation of why and how the Department of State
and the American Embassy in Tel Aviv have totally failed in their responsibilities to us.

Finally, if the Israeli government insists that we pay for the eventual return of our
property, we expect that the United States government will deduct the costs from] the $3
billion given to it each year.

Signed:

(o o

Ann Wright has been authorized {o sign this letter on behalf of the following Atherican
citizens and the father of an American citizen

Ahmet Dogan, father of Furkan Dogan
Huwaida Arraf |

Scott Hamann

Janet Koburmn
B Paul Larudee
: Iara Lee
Fatima Mohammadi
Joe Meadors
) Fiachra O Luain
| Edward Peck
I David Schmererhomn
Kathleen Sheetz
Gene St. Ong
Ann Wright

i
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Mission Permanente d'Observatlon
de 'Organisalion de la Conlerence Islamlque
2uprés das Nations Unles

Permanent Observer Mission
of the Organization al the Istamic Confarence
{o the Unjted Nrations

|
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Mew York, 3 June 2010

Statement issued by the Organization of the Islamic Conference (OIC) Group at
the Ambassadorial level on the recent illegel Isracli military aggression against
the civilinn convoy of humenitariar aid ships destined for the Gazar!.s‘tr‘éu

i The OIC Group strongly condemus the illegal, brutal and provosative Istacli aggresLion carried
; out in international waters against the civilian convoy of ships that was catrying vital
humanitarian aid to be delivered by hundreds of international peace and human right,s' activists to
the ocoupied and besieged Gaze Strip. The OIC Group also condemns in the strongest possible
terms the killing and injury of several civilians by the Isracli military forces that attacked the
Tutkish vessel in the humanitarian convoy. The OIC Group conveys its deepest condolences to
the families of those killed in this military aggression and expresses its hopes for the casly
recovery of the wounded. ’
1
The OIC Group siresses that the Israeli military aggression on the civilian convoy of ships
constitutes a flagrant violation of international law, including international humanitarian Jaw and
humen rights Jaw, and also constitutes en explicit act of piracy under the United Nations
Convention on the Law of the Sea. The OIC Group also recells in this repard General Assembly
] resolotion 3314 (XXTX) of 1974 on the “Definition of Aggression”. The |international
! community must undertake all necessary measures to hold Israel eccountable for the perpetration -
. of this condemnable and illegal act. The OIC Group joins the UN Security Council’s calls made

in the Presidential Statement of 1 June 2010, and calls upon the United Nations Secretary-
General to immediately initiate a full, impartial, transparent, independent jand credible
investigation in conformity with intemational standards into the Isracli military aggression and
demands that the perpetrators of this crime to be brought to justice. ]

|
The OIC Group further deplores the Israeli seizure of the civilian peace and human rights
activists, the ships and the humanitarian supplies in the civilian convoy that were intended for the
Palestinian civilian population in the Gaza Strip that continues to suffer gravely under the
inhumane blockade that has been illegally imposed by Israel, the occupying Power, for nearly
three years, impoverishing the Palestinian population, devastating the Palestiniin society and
causing widespread trauma and despair. The OIC Group demands the immediate and
unconditional release of al] of these detained civilians as well as of the ships seized and calls for
the delivery of all of the humanitarian aid and supplics ta the Palestinian civilias'n population in
the Gaza Strip, as intended by the organizers of the convoy. The OIC Group further demands
that full compensation be made, in accordance with international standards, for the loss of lives

130 East 40th Sireet, Sth Floor, New York, NY (0016 J
Tel: (212) 883-0140 Fax: (212) 883-0143 e-mail: oic@un.int [
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|

and injury caused to civilians by this Israeli military aggression on the humenitarian L:nmroy of
ships as well as compensation for all material damages caused. l

The QIC Group reiterates that the [staeli blockade of the Guza Stip oonstitutes( callective
punishment on a massive scope and scale and is tantamount to a war crime against the
Palestinian people. The OIC Group reiterates its firm and unwavering demand for animmediate
end to this unlawful Istaeli blockade of the Gaza Strip and the opening of 2ll crossidg points to
allow for the freedom of movement of persons and goods into and out of the Gaza Strip and to
dllow for unfettered humanitarian access. The OIC Group appeals to the United Nations
Secretary-General to exert all efforts to support the suffering Palestinian people in the Gaza Strip
and calls for urgent action in this regard. Moreover, the OIC Group calls upon all hhmanitarian
orgenizations, including the International Committee of the Red Cross and the Red, Crescent to
insist on access to the besieged civilian population in Gaza, in accordance with the provisions of
intemational humanitarian law, and to expedite the provision of humanitarian aih, including
food, medical, sanitation and fuel supplies, to meet the basic needs of the population

The OIC Group stresses in this regard the urgency of the eniry of all necessary humfa.uita:ian and
civilian goods to the Gaza Strip as well as the entry of reconstruction aterials to allow for the
Jong and unjustly-delayed reconsiruction of the homes, infrastructure, and institutions, including
United Nations facilities that were destroyed by the Istacli occupying forces during the military
apgression against the Gaza Strip from December 2008 to January 2009, In this regard, the OIC
Group also reiterates its demand for accountability and justice for the war crim#s and human
rights violations perpetrated against the Palestinian civilian population during that sraeli military
aggression, as called for by the General Assembly and the Human Rights Council in follow up of
the report of the United Nations Fact-Finding Mission on the Gaza Conflict (Go 1dstrl:ne Report).

The OIC Group calls upon the international community, especially the Security Council, to
uphold its responsibilities with regard to this serious matter in all its aspects. Urgeht action must
be taken to bring an end ta such blatant Israeli impunity and disregard for all norms and
standards of international law. Action must also be takon to bring 2 halt to all other illegal Israeli
practices against the Palestinian civilian population in the Occupies Palcstixliim Territory,
including East Jeruszlem. '

The OIC Group reaffirms the importance of continuing the strong coordination among the OIC,
the Non-Aligned Movement (NAM) and the Arab Group and the nced to contioue the
coordination and cooperation of these groups in order to ensure comprehensive f?llow-up of this
serious and urgent matter, including to ensure the full implementation of the Security Council
Presidential Statement of 1 June 2010, particularly the pursuit of an imphrtial, credible,
trnsparent, and independent international investigation i accordance with international
standards led by the United Nations Secretary-General. ‘
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The OIC Group reiterates its call for an end to the illegal Israeli occupation of the Palestinian
| Tersitory, including Eest Jerusalem, and all other Arab territories occupied since 1967 and for the

realization by the Palestinian people of their inalienable right to-self-determinatign in their

independent State of Palestine, with Al-Quds Al-Shareef as its capital, and the achievpment of 2

just, Jasting and comprehensive peace, including 2 just solution for the plight of the Palestine
: refugess in accordance General Assembly resolution 194,

The OIC Group decides to remain seized of this matter.

I,
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W - |
RELEASED IN FULL /

PERMANENT MISSION OF THE SYRIAN ARAB REPUBLIC
TO THE UNITED NATIONS
820 Second Ave., 15th Floor, New York, N. Y. 10017
Tel: (212) 661-1313
Fax: (212) 983-4439

URGENT

f
[

UN-2010- 245 ||

New York, 4 Junje 2010
|

| have the honor, in my capacity as Chair of the Organization of the Islamic kenference
{OIC)Group in New York, to convey for your valuable consideration a statement that was
endorsed on 3 June 2010 by the OIC Group at the Ambassadorial level on the chent illegal
Israeli military aggression against the civilian convoy of humanitarian aid destined for the Gaza
Strip. ) |

) |
Please Accept, Excellency, the assurances of my highest consideration.

Dr. Bashar Jafafari
Ambassador
Permanent Representative

His Excellency

M. Claude Heller

President of the Security Council
United Nations

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Review_e!__ =

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307523 Date: 05/03/2013

StateDept004575



METUNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. 05307521 Date: 05/03/2013

RELEASED IN FULL]

|

|

The President of the Security Council pre%ents
his compliments to the members of the Council!and has

the honour to transmit herewith, fér their ‘

information, a copy of a letter dated 4 June iOlU from
the Permanent Representative of the Syrian Ar#h
Republic to the United Nations addressed to t#e

President of the Security Council, and its en}:losure.
f

l
l
4 Jur;e 2010

/
|

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior
Reviewer ’
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[@ooL/sooz

06/02/2010 WBD 21:40 PAX 1 212 503 0369 ~=+<+ United Gtates 2
: RELEASED IN FULL]

_~CHAIR OF
THE COORDINATING BUREAU
OF THE NON-ALIGNED MOVEMENT

© NAM/218/2010

The Permanent Mission of the Arab Republic of Egypt to the United Nations, in
its capacity as Chair of the Coordinating Bureau of the Non-Aligned Movement
(NAM CoB), presents its compliments fo the Permanent Missions of Member States

~ to the United Nations, and has the pleasure to enclose herewith a Press Release issued

" by the Chair of the Coordinating Bureau of the Non-Aligned Movement on the Israeli

. military attack on the Civilian maritime convoy caxrymg humanitarian assistance to
the Gaza Strip.

The Permanent Mission of the Arab Republic of Egypt, in its capacity as Chair
of the Coordinating Bureau of the Non-Aligned Movement, avails itself of this
opportunity to renew t0 the Permanent Missions of Member States to the United
-Nations the assurances of its highest consideration.

iREVIEw AUTHORITY Sharon Ahmad, Semor’ :
Reviewer

e Permanent Missions of Member States
.. United Nations
. New York
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|
UN CONFIDENTIAL ‘I
i | =
RELEASED IN FULL
METHOD OF WORK t =
2

Secretary General's Panel of Inquiry on the 31 May 2010 Flotilla Inci:Tent

The panel will receive and review copies of the national investigations into the
incident from Israel and Turkey. !
|

2. Where the panel considers that it requires further information, clarifications jor
meetings from lsrael and/or Turkey, it will make such request to the points of contact
designated by those States. I

3. Where the panel considers it necessary to obtain information from other affected
States, it may request such information through appropriate diplomatic channels.

|
4, The report and any recommendations it may contain are to be agreed by cpnsensus.

Where the members of the panel are unable to reach agreement r
their best efforts

. Ahe report-or itsrecommendations, the Chair and Vice-Chair will use

to try to secure consensus among the members of the panel r

Where, despite the best efforts of the Chair and Vice-Chair, it is nol possible {0 ~
achieve consensus among the members of the panel on a particular elemént ar
recommendation of the report, the Chair and Vice-Chalr will agree on any ‘chh

elernent or recommendation in the report. |
5. The UN Secretariat will provide secretariat services to the panel and wiil arrange for

the provision of necessary administrative, logistic and security suppert, ingluding
transportation and accommodation. =ik
The Archives and Records Management Section will provide records-mariagement
support to the panel. l g
The report of the panel shall be designated unclassified. The panel may attach
confidential annexes 1o its report. § l

The panel shall take the necessary steps 10 ensure that all documents and materials
provided to it on the understanding of confidentiality are marked "third party

confidential™ and that all necessary measures are taken to safequard theqr
|

confidentiality.
|

|

.'

|

o B ] |

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer| f
' i

J

|

r

I
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RELEASED IN UN CONFIDENTIAL f
FULL |

TERMS OF REFERENCE
P ;
The Secretary-General's Panel of Inquiry on the 31 May 2010 Flotilla IrlLr.-ident %
—__,__!___—'—/ -

Establishment of panel [

1. Inthe light of the Statement of the President of the Security Council dated 1 June
2010 (S/PRST/2010/9), the Secretary-General has established a panel of inguiry on
the incident that occurred on 31 May 2010 off the coast of |srael. |

Tasks i '

2 The panel: |

{a) will receive and review interim and final reports of national mvestugahons into the
incident;

(b) may request such clarifications and information as it may re.-qmre from relevant
national authorities.
] |
3. Inthe light of the information so gathered, the panel will: |

(a) examine and identify the facts, circumstances and context of the incid?nt; and

(b) consider and suggest ways of avoiding similar incidents in the future. |

Composition of the panel |
|

5. The panel, 10 be appointed by the Secretary General, will be composed of a Chair, a
Vice-Chair and one member each from Israel and Turkey, with recognizer and

relevant expertise.

4. The panel will prepare a report and submit it to the Secretary-General.

Time Frame ]

6. The panel will hold its first meeting on 10 August 2010 atl United Nations |
Headguarters in New York. It will hold such further meetings as required,in order to
submit a preliminary report by 10 November 2010. After that, it will subrriit periodic
reports until the completion of its work when it will aubml‘t its final report te the

Secretary General. ]
Location
|

7. The panel will be based at United MNations Headquarters in New York. |
Secretariat |

8. The UN Secretariat will provide secretariat services for the panel.

|
LIN CONFIDENTIAL |
S |

[REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer| |

J

i
|
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I
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RELEASED IN PART B§|

Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

From: Ried, Curtis R (USUN)

Sent: Wednesday, October 26, 2011 7:44 PM

To: DiCarlo, Rosemary A (USUN); Grant, William K (USUN); Finerty, Tressa R (USUN); Simonoff,
Mark A (USUN); Horak, Gail R (USUN); Ahmed, Salman (USUN)

Subject: Turkey re GA resolution on flotilla

Classification: UNCLASSIFIED

During his speech at the Middle East debate on Manday, Apakan told the Council that Turkey would use “all available

platforms to refer the matter of Israel’s blockade of Gaza to the IC).” | recently had dinner with i _\
7 government had

| and he said that the Turki

wanted to wait for the Palestinians to resolve their membership issue before pursuing action in the GA, but they were

now tired of waiting. He said we should expect to see a GA resolution on the flotilla/blockade in
refer the matter to the ICJ.

Curtis R. Ried

Political Adviser

U.S. Mission to the United Nations
Office 212-415-4346 Fax 212-415-4415

This email is UNCLASSIFIED.

REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer

1

November that would
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[RELEASED IN PART B3|

Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

From: Banos, Mariano H

Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 10:35 AM

To: Baumert, Kevin A; Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Martin, Julie B

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Guarin, Marc F; Pompian, Shawn M; Dolan, JoAnn; | Jacobson, Linda
Subject: Re: Flotilla

Categories: Working

Hi Mark,

Are you referring to the HRC flotilla report? We've seen the report, which was presented at the HH

C last week, and issued

an intervention which called it "unbalanced."

|

From: Baumert, Kevin A

To: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

Cc: Aswad, Evelyn M; Banos, Mariano H; Guarin, Marc F; Pompian, Shawn M; Dolan, JoAnn
Sent: Thu Sep 30 10:26:28 2010

Subject: RE: Flotilla

Mark — looping in some others here. | _w_t_)qld expect L{HR_IE. in particular, to have access to our T|

. hE X =]

Evelyn, Mariano —anything for USUN’s use?

Thanks,
Kevin

Ps on this. |

From: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 10:15 AM
To: Baumert, Kevin A

Subject: Flotilla

Kevin,

Do you have some talkers/anzalysis on the legality of Israel's “blockade”? We're getting queries
disagree with the recent report (which | have not seen yet!) characterizing the blockade asilleg

Thanksl

— IREVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer]

Mark A. Simonoff

Acting Legal Adviser

U.S. Mission to the United Nations
798 United Nations Plaza

New York, NY 10017

1

4

p here re whether

—
b
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L. [RELEASED IN FART B5|
Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)
From: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES)
Sent: Thursday, September 30, 2010 10:28 AM
To: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)
Subject: Re: Israel (update)
Categories: Working

We just heard from Secretariat that proposal will come up right after mid-morning coftes break.
We shared this info with UK and Israel (we met Ady this AM, she met with coordinator).
CAN will not/not make statement b/c of reasons you suggest.

Thanks,
KnE

e

From: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES)
To: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)
Sent: Thu Sep 30 10:14:59 2010

Subject: Re: Israel

Btw, viadi (secretariaf) just told me he's not sure how this will go down, (1.e. Not sure on timing).

UK just told me EU will unanimously oppose this (not the right place,etc).
UK hoping they can turn this off still, such that Turkey not even table.

AUS will make similar statement opposing. Can will not/nct make statement.
Turkey is here this AM, so perhaps he is thinking he will?? (Eu talking to turkey now)

e ]

All for now, will keep posted.

KnE

B5

From: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES)

Ta: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Schaaf, Kenli A (OES)
Sent: Thu Sep 30 10:06:20 2010

Subject: Re: Israel

She is talking to coordinator now. | just happened to be standing in line next to them all when she

introduce myself when she is done

was introduced. | will

From: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)
To: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES); Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES)
Sent: Thu Sep 30 09:51:04 2010
Subject: Israel

s
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307785 Date: 05/03/2013

$ubject: RE: Please advise— Re: LOS mig today

Think you'll get to that para this afternoon. |

SBU

This email is UNCLASSIFIED--—COriginal Message-—
From: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES)

Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 5:08 PM
To: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

Cc: Kim, Elizabeth AB {OES)

Subject: Re: Please advise— Re: LOS mig today

We'll keep you posted.

Thanks,
KnE

—-- Original Message —-

From: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN|

To: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES)

Cc: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES)

Sent: Wed Sep 29 16:35:03 2010

Subject: RE: Please advise— Re: LOS mig today

Thanks!

For my information:

Mark

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED

--—Qriginal Message—
From: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES)
Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 3:58 PM

To: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Kim. Elizabeth AB (OES); Grant, William K (USUN); Simor]

Donovan, James B (USUN)
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A
Subject: Re: Please advise-- Re: LOS mig today

Thanks, Barbara (and Mark).
2

off, Mark A (USUN):

UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307785 Date: 05/03/2013
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A UNCLAS_SIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307785 Date: 05/03/2013

Wel'll keep you posted. It hasn't come up yet, but prob will this afternoon.

Thanks,
KnE

—— Qriginal Message ——

From: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN)
To: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES); Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Grant, William K (USUN); Simonoff, |
Donovan, James B (USUN]

Cc: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Wed Sep 29 15:51:33 2010

Subject: RE: Please advise— Re: LOS mtg today

Ghost writing for Mark Simonoff -

Our sense is that we should:

Mark A (USUNJ;

Presidential Statement [S/PRST/2010/9) of 1 June 2010;"

---—Qriginal Message—
From: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES)
Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 3:28 PM

To: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Grant, William K (USUN): Simonoff, Mark A [USUN): Donovgn, James B (USUN)

Cc: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Baumert, Kevin A
Subject: Please advise-- Re: LOS mtg today

All,
Secretariat just distributed text:

76bis

"Expresses its deep regrets for the loss of life and injuries resulting from the use of force during the Israeli
military operation in international waters against the convoy sailing to Gaza and in this context condemns
those acts which resulted in the loss of 9 civilians and many wounded os expressed by the Security Council

It prob will come up very soon.

Thanks,
KnE
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~— Original Message —

From: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES)

To: Grant, William K (USUN); Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Donovan, James B (USUN)
Cc: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Baumert, Kevin A; Schaaf, Kenli A (OES)

Seni: Wed Sep 29 15:00:49 2010

Subject: RE: LOS mig foday

Thanks,
Elizabeth

——QOriginal Message—

From: Grant, William K (USUN)

Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 2:28 PM

To: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES): Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Donovan, James B (USUN)
Cc: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN)

Subject: RE: LOS mig today

Mark or Jim or Elizabeth: know anything about this?

Borbara trying fo get info from her sources

This email is UNCLASSIFIED

Bill Grant

Political Minister-Counselor, U.S. Mission to the United Nalions office 212-415-4363 (x44343)

-—Qriginal Message—
From: Masud.Husain@international.gc.ca [mailto:Masud.Husain@international. gc.ca
Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 2:15 PM
To: Grant, William K (USUN)

Subject: RE: LOS mtg today

Bill

We have heard that Turkey may introduce flotilla language in negotiations on the Ld
resolution today. Have you heard this2 What are you guys going to do?

Can you give me a shout
Cheers Masud
Masud Husain

Minister-Counsellor/Ministre-conseiller
Mission permanente du Canada

aw of the Sea
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307781 Date: 05/03/2013

Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Germain, Ellen J (USUN)
Subject: Re: notes from LOS mgt?

Turkey's proposal has not yet been made. Coordinator does not know when it will coj

me up. Turkey asked

if he could bring it up "when the time is right” which we think means they are trying to
The Secretariat will try to give us warning of at least 30 min before it comes up. We w

— Original Message —

From: Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)

To: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Kim., Elizabeth AB (OES); Schaaf, Kenli A (OES)
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Germain, Ellen J (USUN)

Sent: Wed Sep 29 18:03:52 2010

Subject: RE: notes from LOS mgt?

Also send it in writing please.

SBU
This email is UNCLASSIFIED

—~0riginal Message—-—-

From: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN)

Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 6:03 PM

To: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Schaaf, Kenli A [OES); Simonoff, Mark A (USUN)
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Germain, Ellen J (USUN]

Subject: notes from LOS mgt#?

Mark is taking up the issue of getling additional guidance on this issue.

do consultations first.
Il take good notes.

Can someone give me a brief on what happened taday in the meeting (i.e. who spoke. what was said,

etc) either this evening or tomomow a.m. is fine - I'm at 212-415-4190
Thanks,

Barbara

This email is UNCLASSIFIED

-——Qriginal Message——

From: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES)
Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 4:54 PM

To: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Schaaf, Kenli A (QES); Grant, William K (USUN); Simonojf, Mark A {USUN);

Donovan, James B (USUN)
Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Germain, Ellen J (USUN)
Subject: Re: Please advise— Re: LOS mig today

On the margin, Turkey asked for our opinion on their text (which has not yet been infroduced). | told him
we don't think this is the right place for this. He said he doesn't want to cause controyersy. he tried to stick

to earlier language, and is the ANY text to which we could agree?
Please advise.

—— Qriginal Message —
From: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN)

2
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To:Schaatf, Kenli A (OES); Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Grant, William K (USUN}; Simonoff, Mark A (USUN);
Donovan, James B (USUN)

Cc: Baumert, Kevin A; Germain, Ellen J (USUN)
Sent: Wed Sep 29 16:02:14 2010

Subject: RE: Please advise-- Re: LOS mig today

Thanks, the UK legal advisor whom you all know (Doug Wilson) indicated the need fof internal EU
coordination on anything before they can make a statement — that won't happen yntil tomorrow a.m.

I've included Ellzn Germain in this email chain in case anything evolves this afternoor).

| would appreciate good notes on anything Turkey may say during intfroduction of the text so we can use
in sending back fo Washington.

This email is UNCLASSIFIED

—-—QOriginal Message—-—

From: Schaaf, Kenli A [OES)

Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 3:58 PM
To: Masilko, Barbara J (USUNJ: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Grant, William K (USUN); Simonpff, Mark A (USUN);
Donovan, James B {USUN|

Cc: Baumert, Kevin A

Subject: Re; Please advise-- Re: LOS mtg today

Thanks, Barbaro (and Mark).

BS

We'll keep you posted. It hasn't come up yet, but prob will this afterncon.

Thanks,
KnE

-— Original Message —

From: Masilko, Barbara J [USUN)
To: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES); Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES): Grant, William K (USUN); Simonoff, Mark A [USUN);
Donovan, James B (USUN)

Cc: Baumert, Kevin A

Sent: Wed Sep 29 15:51:33 2010

Subject: RE: Please advise— Re: LOS mig today

Ghost writing for Mark Simonoff -

Our sense is that we should:

i
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307

—0Original Message——
From: Schaaf, Kenli A (OES)
Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 3:28 PM

781 Date: 05/03/2013

To: Kim, Elizabeth AB [OES); Grant, William K (USUN); Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Donowln, James B (USUN)

Cc: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Baumert, Kevin A
Subject: Please advise— Re: LOS mig today

All,
Secretariat just distributed text:

76bis
"Expresses ifs deep regrets for the loss of life and injuries resulting from the use of forcs
military operation in international waters against the convoy sailing fo Gaza and in 1]
those acts which resulted in the loss of 2 civilians and many wounded as expressed O
Presidential Statement (S/PRST/2010/9) of 1 June 2010."

————— -

It prob will come up very soor.

Thanks,
KnE

—— QOriginal Message -—

From: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES)

To: Grant, William K (USUN); Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Donovan, James B (USUN)
Cc: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN); Baumert, Kevin A; Schaaf, Kenli A (OES)

Sent: Wed Sep 29 [5:00:49 2010

Subject: RE: LOS mig today

> during the Israeli
is context condemns
y the Security Council

Thanks,
Elizabeth

—Original Message—

From: Grani, William K (USUN)

Sent: Wednesday, September 29, 2010 2:28 PM

To: Kim, Elizabeth AB (OES); Simonoff, Mark A (USUN); Donovan, James B (USUN)
Cc: Masilko, Barbara J (USUN)

Subject: RE: LOS mig today

Mark or Jim or Elizabeth: know anything about this?

Barbara trying o get info from her sources

This email is UNCLASSIFIED
4
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« UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No, F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307735 Date: 05/03/2013

_ CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL Page 10f2
Sensitive

RELEASED IN PART
1.4(B),B1,1.4(D)

From: Anderson, Brooke D (USUN)

To: 'dshapiro@nss.eop.sgov.gov'

Subject:  UN panel update. UN has given revised documents to Israelis.
Sent: 7/20/2010 8:04:42 PM

Update on UN Panel.

Israeli DPR told me that UN’s Pascoe (DPA) and O’Brien (Legal) gave him a new| draft Terms
of Reference (TOR) and Method of Work (MOW) for the panel on the Gaza flotillp incident,
reflecting conversations that the UN had with Turkey.

UN’s message to Israel’s DPR was:

B1
1.4(B)
1.4(D)
New TOR adds: T E——
New MOW adds:
Israeli DPR told UN he would send it back to capital for review — |
i - " |
CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL Printed By: Anderson, Brooke D (USUN)
Sensitive  REVIEW AUTHORITY: Sharon Ahmad, Senior Reviewer i
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UNCLASSIFIED U.S. Department of State Case No. F-2010-04163 Doc No. C05307735 Date: 05/03/2013 =
L T
- . CLASSIFICATION: CONFIDENTIAL - Page 2 of 2
Sensitive

Israeli DPR told me that the Israeli government meeting that was going to happen last Friday
hasn’t been held yet, but that there is likely to be a meeting tomorrow. He will wait for
instructions. | - — —a, B i B1
. | 1.4(B)

1.4(D)

xS - —_—— T

Please advise if you have any thoughts or direction for me. 1will be talking with|Israeli DPR in
the moming when he will share with me the reaction from Jerusalem.

Best,
Brooke
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